[ QITY 9F

>~

2
2
y

AGENDA
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, September 13, 2022
6:00 PM

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City
Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish _id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1611765730. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,
then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak,
use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 161 176 5730. If you
wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 1
Page 1


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1611765730
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional
ceremonial matters.

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
2. Adjourn in memory of Leisl Griffith Redmond, City of Berkeley Employee
3. Adjourn in memory of Neil Mayer, Former City of Berkeley Employee

City Manager Comments: The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to
the City Council in the form of an oral report. The Council will not take action on such items but may
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on
the Council agenda. If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two
minutes each. If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end
of the agenda.

Consent Calendar

The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Three members of the City Council
must agree to pull an item from the Consent Calendar for it to move to Action. ltems that remain on the
“Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted
upon at the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”.

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar.

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information
Calendar. Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent
Calendar and Information Items. A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment
on Consent Calendar and Information items.

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such,
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops.

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 2
Page 2



Recess Items

1. Contract No. 084534-1 Amendment: NextGen Health Care Information
Systems, Inc. for Electronic Health Records
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City
Manager during recess to amend Contract No. 084534-1 with NextGen Healthcare
Information Systems, Inc., increasing the amount by $188,955 for a total contract
value not to exceed $1,008,291 and extending the term from September 30, 2010
through June 30, 2024.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500

2, Contract No. 31900288 Amendment: Disability Access Consultants for ADA
Transition Plan
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City
Manager during recess to execute an amendment to Contract No. 31900288 with
Disability Access Consultants (DAC) for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
Transition Plan and On-Call ADA accessibility consulting services, increasing the
contract amount by $122,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $606,800 and
extend the contract term to June 30, 2023.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

3. Contract No. 32100194 Amendment: Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. for
Construction and Repairs
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City
Manager during recess to amend Contract No. 32100194 with Bay Cities Paving &
Grading, Inc. for work on the Street Rehabilitation FY 2021 Project, Specification No.
21-11422-C, increasing the current contract amount by $260,000, for a total amount
not to exceed $4,556,733.
Financial Implications: See report.
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Consent Calendar

4. Minutes for Approval
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of July 7 (closed),
July 12 (closed and regular), July 18 (closed), July 26 (special and regular) and
August 3 (special).
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 3
Page 3



Consent Calendar

5. Contract: Municipal Resource Group for Addressing Impacts Resulting from
Great Resignation
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract, with any amendments, with Municipal Resource Group (MRG) for
professional services needed to respond to the impacts within the City as a result of
the Great Resignation. Total contract direct costs will not exceed $87,675.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $87,675
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

6. Contract No. 32100053 Amendment: Orsolya Kuti, DVM to Provide On-site
Veterinary Services for Berkeley Animal Care Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 32100053 with Orsolya Kuti for on-site veterinary services for Berkeley
Animal Care Services, increasing the contract amount by $8,000 for a new total not
to exceed amount of $228,000, and extending the contract term to September 14,
2023.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Peter Radu, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000

7. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on September 13, 2022
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $440,000
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

8. Request for Proposal for Project Homekey
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing City Manager to: 1. Release a
Request for Proposals (RFP) for a Homekey Round 3 Project; and 2. Consider a
reservation of up to $8.5M in General Funds collected pursuant to Measure P, and/or
other funding source, to support a future Homekey project.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 4
Page 4



Consent Calendar

10.

11.

12.

Contract: Tiana Sanchez International LLC for HHCS Equity Consultant

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with Tiana Sanchez International, LLC. (Contractor) to
provide equity consulting services for the Department of Health, Housing and
Community Services (HHCS) from October 1, 2021 to May 30, 2023 in an amount
not to exceed $120,000.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Contract No. 31900043 Amendment: Kings View Professional Services for
Mental Health Reporting Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an amendment to Contract No. 31900043 with Kings View
Professional Services to provide mental health financial reporting services through
June 30, 2024 in an amount not to exceed $220,628.

Financial Implications: Mental Health Realignment-Administration Account -
$57,100

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Accept Future of Public Health Funds from the State of California

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit grant
agreements to the State of California, to accept the grants, and to execute any
resultant revenue agreements and amendments for the Future of Public Health
program for an amount of $912,213 for the Fiscal Year 2023.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Donation of Painting Services from MB Jessee Painting, Inc.

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the donation of painting services
and materials from MB Jessee Painting, Inc., estimated to be a value of $8,994, to
paint interior areas of 1900 6th Street building in accordance with Administrative
Regulation 3.19, Donations to the City from Individuals of Outside Organizations.
Financial Implications: $8,994 (Donation)

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 5

Page 5



Consent Calendar

13. Contract No. 8392 Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) for claims
administration of the City’s Workers’ Compensation Program
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to extend Contract No. 8392 with Innovative Claims Solutions (ICS) to
provide third-party claims administrative services, Medicare, Medicaid, and SCHIP
Extension Act (MMSEA) Section 111 Mandatory Reporting to the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), for an additional term of three years from July
1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 at a decreased annual rate of $570,000 for a total
contract amount of $7,393,611 for year 2023.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

14. AHEAD, Inc: Using the California Department of General Services’ (DGS)
Software Licensing Program (SLP) for Software License Purchases
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to increase
spending authority with AHEAD, Inc. (“AHEAD?”) for the purchase of Varonis software
licenses and professional services, utilizing pricing and contracts, amendments, and
extensions from the California Department of General Services (DGS) Software
Licensing Program (SLP) increasing the amount by $71,481 for a total amount not-
to-exceed $236,305, and the period beginning September 29, 2022 through
September 28, 2023.
Financial Implications: IT Cost Allocation Fund - $71,481
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500

15. Lease Agreement: 80 (North Building), 82/84 & 90 Bolivar Drive in Aquatic Park
with Waterside Workshops
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager
to execute a lease agreement with Waterside Workshops to use the 80 (North
Building), 82/84 & 90 Bolivar Drive in Aquatic Park for a lease term anticipated to
begin November 1, 2022 and ending November 1, 2031.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

16. Donation: Memorial Bench at the Cesar Chavez Park in memory of Walt and
Trudee Rowson
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at the Cesar Chavez Park at the Berkeley
Marina in memory of Walt and Trudee Rowson.
Financial Implications: $3,400 (Donation)
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 6
Page 6



Consent Calendar

17. Donation: Memorial Bench at the Cesar Chavez Park in memory of Don
Rothenberg
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at the Cesar Chavez Park at the Berkeley
Marina in memory of Don Rothenberg.
Financial Implications: $3,400 (Donation)
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

18. Donation: Memorial Bench at the Indian Rock Park in memory of Dave Altman
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of
$3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Indian Rock Park at the Berkeley
Marina in memory of Dave Altman, a longtime Berkeley rock climber and a treasured
member of the rock-climbing community.
Financial Implications: $3,400 (Donation)
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

19. Contract: Bellingham Inc. to Replace and Repair Docks at the Berkeley Marina
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract with Bellingham Inc. to repair and replace docks at the Berkeley Marina in a
total amount not-to-exceed $550,000, which includes a contract amount of $480,000
and a 14.58% contingency in the amount of $70,000.
Financial Implications: Marina Fund - $550,000
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

20. Revenue Grant: California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) for the 2023 “Selective
Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Chief of Police to accept the
"Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)" grant and enter into the resultant
grant agreement and any amendments, with the California Office of Traffic Safety.
This OTS grant is for $180,000 for the period of October 1, 2022 through September
30, 2023, which is Federal Fiscal Year 2023
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 7

Page 7



Consent Calendar

21. 2022 Vision Zero Program Grant Applications
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt three Resolutions:
1. Certifying that the Berkeley Vision Zero Action Plan, the Berkeley Bicycle Plan,
and the Berkeley Pedestrian Plan, collectively meet the Safe Streets and Roads for
All grant program requirement for a Comprehensive Safety Action Plan.
2. Authorizing the City Manager to submit a grant application to the federal Safe
Streets and Roads for All (SS4A), accept the grant awarded, and execute any
resultant agreements and amendments.
3. Authorizing the City Manager to submit a grant application to the federal
Reconnecting Communities Pilot Grant Program (RCP), accept the grant awarded,
and execute any resultant agreements and amendments.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

22. Red Curbs and Visible Signage
From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission
Recommendation: The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (“Commission” or
‘DFSC”) respectfully requests that Council immediately take the following remedial
actions to improve emergency vehicle access and residents’ ability to evacuate in the
event of a wildfire, while we await implementation of more comprehensive long-term
actions such as the Safe Passages program. In identified high fire risk areas (Fire
Zones 2 and 3) and in other high-risk areas, such as where hazardous chemicals are
stored or used: 1. Inspect, fix or replace all parking restriction signage as necessary;
2. Red curb all fire hydrant areas to the maximum extent allowed by law; and 3.
Direct the Fire Department and Public Works to identify areas that could be pinch
points for fire trucks to travel.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Keith May, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-3473

23. Appointment of Judy Appel to Mental Health Commission for the City of
Berkeley
From: Mental Health Commission
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing Judy Appel as a representative of
the Special Public Interest Category (family member), to complete her first 3- year
term beginning September 14, 2022 and ending September 13, 2025.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jamie Works-Wright, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400

24. Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion Access
From: Peace and Justice Commission
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s
Commitment to Abortion Access.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7100

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 8
Page 8



Council Consent Items

25. Pacific Center for Human Growth: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget
Funds to General Fund and Grant of Such Funds
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $1,000 per Councilmember including $1,000 from Mayor Arreguin to the
Pacific Center for Human Growth, for the planning and production of a historical quilt
to honor their 50th anniversary. Funds would be relinquished to the City’'s General
Fund for this purpose from the discretionary Council Office Budgets of Mayor
Arreguin and any other Councilmembers who would like to contribute.
Financial Implications: Mayor's Discretionary Funds - $1,000
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

26. Ordinance Amendment: Correction to the COVID-19 Emergency Response
Ordinance, BMC Chapter 13.110.
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt the first reading of an Ordinance correcting BMC Chapter
13.110, the COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance, to clarify the effect of
Ordinance No. 7,762-N.S. upon tenant protections that were inadvertently omitted
during the last update of BMC Chapter 13.110.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100

27. Resolution in Support of High-Quality, Equitable Healthcare Services at UCSF
Children’s Hospital Oakland
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of patients, nurses, doctors,
caregivers and other employees at UCSF Children’s Hospital Oakland; and send
resolution to the UC Board of Regents, UC Office of the President, and UCSF
Health.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

28. Berkeley Youth Alternatives (BYA) Charity Golf Classic: Relinquishment of
Council Office Budget Funds from General Funds and Grant of Such Funds
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $500 per Councilmember, including $200 from Councilmember Taplin, to
support the 4th Annual Charity Golf Classic hosted by Berkeley Youth Alternatives
(BYA).

Financial Implications: Councilmember's Discretionary Funds - $200

Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 9
Page 9



Council Consent Items

29. California Marriage Equality Resolution (Prop 8 Repeal)
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author), Councilmember Droste (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Wengraf (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-
Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution Urging the California Legislature to Place a
Measure on the Ballot to Repeal Article | Section 7.5 of the State Constitution, a.k.a.
Proposition 8; and send copies to the Offices of the Speaker of the Assembly,
Senate President Pro Tempore, and Governor.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

30. Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley (Reviewed by the Land Use, Housing, &
Economic Development Committee)
From: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Co-
Sponsor), Mayor Arreguin (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Harrison (Co-
Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager and the Planning Commission to
consider and return to Council with Zoning Ordinance amendments, codified
performance standards, and other actions to encourage the growth and retention of
Research & Development (R&D) in Berkeley. Staff and the Commission should
explore: 1. Naming R&D as an allowed land use in the commercial districts of
Telegraph (C-T and C-C), West Berkeley (C-W), University (C-U), and Downtown
Berkeley (C-DMU) with a Zoning Certificate, subject to performance standards. a.
Performance standards should regulate and mitigate potential impacts on quality of
life, public health, and environmental health, such as noise, odors, fumes, vibrations,
dust, light pollution, hours of operation, and disposal and storage protocols for
flammable, combustible, chemical, and hazardous substances. 2. Updating the
“District Purpose” sections of the MM and MU-LI districts to specifically embrace
R&D. Consider doing the same for other districts where R&D is allowed, if deemed
appropriate. 3. Amending R&D parking requirements in M-prefixed districts to align
with Laboratory parking requirements and in C-prefixed districts, excluding C-T, to
align with Manufacturing parking requirements. 4. Reviewing Berkeley Municipal
Code 23.206.080 to ensure that language regulating Biosafety Level (BSL) Classes
1-4 is clear and consistent with regulations in neighboring jurisdictions and other
cities that support a broad range of R&D. Consider repealing the section or
amending it to permit BSL-2 in all districts where research and development facilities
or laboratories are permitted. 5. Returning to Council with additional
recommendations, if any, that would serve to encourage R&D in Berkeley, as
determined by staff or that present themselves through the Planning Commission
process.
Policy Committee Recommendation: Approve the item with a positive
recommendation.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 10
Page 10



Council Consent Items

31. Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds to the General Fund and Grant
of Such Funds for the Center for Independent Living’s 50th Anniversary
From: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Author)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $500 per Councilmember, including $500 each from Councilmember
Robinson and Councilmember Bartlett, to the Center for Independent Living to fund a
Berkeley mural project, street festival, CIL open house, three-day conference on
independent living, and other activities for their 50th Anniversary.
Financial Implications: Councilmembers' Discretionary Funds - $500
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170

Action Calendar

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is
taken up during the Action Calendar.

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak use the "raise hand" function to determine
the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two
minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the
public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to
one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may,
with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to
present their issue.

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council.

Action Calendar — Old Business

32. Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and
Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers (Continued from
July 26, 2022. Item contains revised and supplemental materials)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology
Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic
License Plate Readers submitted pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley Municipal
Code.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900; LaTanya Bellow, City Manager's
Office, (510) 981-7000

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 11
Page 11



Action Calendar — New Business

33. An Ordinance Repealing Chapter 12.76 of the Berkeley Municipal Code and
Repealing Ordinance 7643-NS.
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an ordinance repealing Chapter 12.76 of
the Berkeley Municipal Code and repealing Ordinance 7643-NS.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, (510) 981-6950, Dee Williams-Ridley, City
Manager, (510) 981-7000, Paul Buddenhagen, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-
7000

Council Action Items

34. Equitable Safe Streets and Climate Justice Resolution (Reviewed by the
Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment & Sustainability Committee)
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution committing the expenditure of City and
state/federal matching/recurring funds on city-maintained roads, sidewalks, and bike
lanes to accelerate safety improvements in a manner consistent with City, State, and
Federal policy on street safety, equity, accessibility, and climate change; refer to the
City Manager fully integrate Complete Streets design as defined by the NACTO
Urban Street Design Guide in the default engineering standard for city streets;
restrict city use of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) to only
documented cases that require its use for compliance with Federal/State regulations;
in all other cases, restrict use of the MUTCD to “engineering judgment.”

Policy Committee Recommendation: Send the item to Council with a positive
recommendation.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

35. Efficiency Unit Ordinance (Reviewed by the Land Use, Housing, & Economic
Development Committee)
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-
Sponsor)
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager and Planning Commission to adopt
objective standards for Efficiency Units pursuant to California Housing and Safety
Code § 17958.1, developing an ordinance to amend the Berkeley Municipal Code
modeled after standards implemented in the City of Davis, the City of Santa Barbara
and other cities.
Policy Committee Recommendation: Approve the item with a positive
recommendation.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 12
Page 12



Information Reports

36. City Council Short Term Referral Process — Quarterly Update
From: City Manager
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

37. Federal Economic Relief Spending in Berkeley
From: City Manager
Contact: Eleanor Hollander, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530

38. Sanctuary City Contracting Compliance Report for FY 2022
From: City Manager
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

39. Environment and Climate Commission 2022 Work Plan
From: Environment and Climate Commission
Contact: Billi Romain, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400

40. Planning Commission Fiscal Year 2022-23 Work Plan
From: Planning Commission
Contact: Alene Pearson, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7400

Public Comment - Items Not Listed on the Agenda

Adjournment

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Archived indexed video streams are available at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas.
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m.

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names,
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City
Clerk Department for further information.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at
https://berkeleyca.gov/.

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 13
Page 13


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://berkeleyca.gov/

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations:

City Clerk Department - 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor
Tel: 510-981-6900, TDD: 510-981-6903, Fax: 510-981-6901
Email: clerk@cityofberkeley.info

Libraries: Main — 2090 Kittredge Street,
Claremont Branch — 2940 Benvenue, West Branch — 1125 University,
North Branch — 1170 The Alameda, South Branch — 1901 Russell

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or

services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD)
at least three business days before the meeting date.

&

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.

I hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther
King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on September 1, 2022.

Hid Mssivid)

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department
and through Records Online.

Vision 2050
1. Ben Gerhardstein, on behalf of Walk Bike Berkeley, North Berkeley Now, Bike East
Bay and BNHCA.

Berkeley Marina Area Specific Plan (BMASP)/Cesar Chavez Park
2. Emily Galpern

3. Masha Gutkin

4. Sandy Emerson

5. Daniel Larlham

6. Luke Bailey

7. Garril Page

8. Sandra Blair

9. Kathleen McLauglin
10.David Mandel

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 14
Page 14


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://records.cityofberkeley.info/

11.Roberta Wyn
12.Meryl Siegal
13.Tro Vatro

14. Wini Williams
15.Miranda Morris
16.Shoshana Uribe (2)
17.Linda Karr
18.Morissa Zuckerman
19. Cynthia Gould
20.Judy Grether
21.Charlene Woodcock
22.Nicole Bloom
23.Kerna Trottier

24 . Tamara Birdsall
25.Katya Gerwein
26.Remi Omodele
27.Mary Behm-Steinberg
28.Wanda Warkentin
29.Elsa Tranter
30.Gail Mandella
31.Majid Ghojjeh
32.Bill Reynolds
33.Dorothea Dorenz
34.Ingrid Crickmore
35. Stacey Singleton
36.Yvette Bozzini
37.Barbara Haber
38.Ryan Hart

39. Garril Page
40.Doug Dohrer
41.Barbara Li Santi
42.Susan Griffin
43.lrene Jung-Huang
44 Nancy Newman
45.Elizabeth Rood
46.Ric Keeley
47.Steve Tracy
48.Ken and Silvana Blum
49.Nancy Hormachea
50. Gail Harrison
51.Judy Ballinger
52.Deborah Scott
53.Eric Naiman
54.Gina Hassan
55.David Wallin
56.Sally Nelson

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA

Page 15

Page 15



57.Laurie Lenrow
58.Summer Brenner
59.Erica Roberts
60.Sarah Elzea
61.Ernest Isaacs
62.Bob Schildgen

63. Tamar Oppenheimer
64.Chloe Chaundhry
65. Gillian Heather Geller
66.Francie Shaw
67.Lesli Salzinger
68.Susan Gluss
69.Jack Kurzweill
70.Suzanne Pegas
71.Peter Gleick
72.Herb Schwartz
73.Tobey Wiebe
74.Jean Tepperman
75.Bruce Bagnell
76.Tracey Cosgrove
77.Hannah Meara
78.Margot Smith
79.Kathleen Evans
80.Leslie Sakai
81.Stefani Berger
82.Gael Alcock

83.Wini Williams
84.Shantee Baker
85.Sarah Daniels
86.Melissa Hayes
87.Anne Rowe
88.Nicole S.

89. Shahryar Muzaffar
90.Joan Wheeler
91.Leigh Lightfoot
92.Alex Nguyen
93.Daniel Larlham
94.Kat Schaaf

95.Kelly Hammargren
96.Maureen Fitzgerald
97.Esther Brass

98. Alexandre Chorin
99. Meryl Siegal

100. Maureen Daggett
101. Robert Bloomberg (2)
102. Katharine Carrillo

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA

Page 16

Page 16



103.
104.
105.
106.
107.
108.
109.
110.
111.
112.
113.
114.
115.
116.
117.
118.
119.
120.
121.
122.
123.
124.
125.
126.

Fishing at the Berkeley Waterfront: What is it Worth? — A Draft Summary Report

llse Eden

Dan Slobin

Arthur Braufman
Mimi Moungovan
Feleciana Feller
Ken Krich

John Porter
Jonathan Newman
James McGrath
Sarah Van Cleave
Leah Shelleda
Collette Tureene
Maxina Ventura
Shoshana Dembitz

Martin Nicolaus (Book — Love Letters to the Park)

Janine Brown
Sally Francis
Alan McCornick
Kit Robinson
Riley Taylor
Randy Marks
Susan Oppie

6 similarly-worded form letter (I greatly appreciate)
28 similarly-worded form letters ((I am one of the rapidly)

127. San Francisco State University
IKE Kiosks

128. Dahlia Armon

129. Todd Andrew (2)

130. Jane Tierney

131. Linda Press Wulf

132. Soula Culver

133. Annie Barrows

134. Margit Roos-Collins

135.  Wini Willaims

136. Stephanie Thomas

137. Clay Collett

138. Maxina Ventura

139. Bruce Brody and Lin Druschel
140. Morgan Read

141. Margot Smith

142. Susan Boat

143. Kieron Slaughter (2)

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA

Page 17

Page 17



144.
145.
146.
147.
148.
149.
150.
151.
152.
153.
154.
155.

Luma Corte, on behalf of Fourth Street Merchants
Patricia Zambryski

Janice Murota (2)

Constance Anderson

Zipporah Collins

Joseph Klems

David Bullitt, on behalf of Heroic Italian Restaurant
Karen Rusiniak

David Ndeto, on behalf of TCHO Chocolate

Jack Lavac, on behalf of Visit Berkeley & Berkeley Film Office
Donald Rothberg

James Lerager

Temporary Suspension of the Use of Tear Gas, Smoke and Pepper Spray,
Associated with the Protest at People’s Park

156. Jack Kurzwell

157. Eric Friedman

158. Ron Jacobs

159. Metztli Hamelius
160. Lily Colby

161. Gerard Jamin

162. Hali Hammer

163. Terri Compost

164. Carol Denney

165. Summer Brenner
166. Sarah Cadorette
167. Tobey Wiebe

168. Russell Lee

169. Thomas Luce

170. Zepatitis B

171. Yadi

172. Maryann O’Sullivan
173. Gabe Gartland
174. Nathan Sweet

175. Juliet Lee

176. Emilio Fentanes
177. Sheila Goldmacher
178. John Selawsky
179. Anne-Lise Francois
180. Phoebe Anne Sorgen
181. Alissa Weber

182. Jan Ruchlis

183. Sara Antunovich
184. Melanie Lawrence
185. Councilmember Harrison (2)
186. Martina Reaves
Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 18

Page 18



187. Anna Tseselsky

188. Alan Haber

189. Toby Blome

190. Maxina Ventura

191. Tom Pache

192. Wendy Alfsen

193. Margaret Pritt

194. Adele and David Crady
195. Vicki Young

196. Glenda Pawsey

197. Ken Kratz

198. Anya Worley-Ziegmann
199. Sharon Gillars

200. K.B. Townsend

201. Amy Eden

202. Robert Feuer

203. Rachel Jamison

204. Sarena Kuhn

205. Karly Stark

206. AJ Schaerer

207. Ashe DelLong

208. Justin Lee

209. Sydney Selix

210. 29 similarly-worded form letters (Hello, my name is)

Save People’s Park
211. Diana Bohn
212. James Mattson
213. Chrissy Hoffman
214. Derek Gaither
215. Lavell Young (2)
216. Paul Lee

217. Blair Beekman
218. Keith Nickolaus
219. Patricia Maud Engel
220. Bryan Graham
221. Ken Kratz

222. Terri Compost

Wildfire Safety

223. David Schindler

224. Henry DeNero, on behalf of the Hillside Association of Berkeley and it's Hillside
Fire Safety Group (2)

225. Bruce Brody

226. Suzi Peterson and Alan Sher

227. David Sprague

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 19
Page 19



228. Sondra Schlesinger

Park Usage Fees - Kite Festival, S.F. Mime Troupe, et al
229. Eric Friedman
230. Judith Thomas
231. Sally Nelson
232. Gael Alcock

233. Esfandiar Imani
234. Summer Brenner
235. Jill Schalet

236. Louise Kimball
237. Susan Ashworth
238. Barbara Ancher
239. Rafael Gonzalez
240. Wini Williams

Youth Commission
241. Cecilia Lunaparra
242. 21 similarly-worded form letters

Warrantless Searches/BPD Policy 311
243. Jennifer Wilks
244. Alexandra Mitnick

245. T.C Shu
246. LiShu
247. David T.

248. Gary Amado

249. Billy McDonald

250. Iris Hagen Ratowsky
251. Thomas Luce

252. Summi Kaipa

253. Betty Kano

Shellmound

254. Stephanie Manning
255. Richard Schwartz (2)
256. Peter Walker

257. David Lutes

258. California Norma
259. Linda Newton

260. Elana Auerbach

261. John Curl

262. Jyl Lutes

263. Christy Fischer, on behalf of Trust for Public Land
264. Sylvie Woog

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 20
Page 20



Hopkins Corridor
265. George Porter, on behalf of Commission on Aging
266. Bob Flasher (2)

E-Bikes

267. Fredda Cassidy
268. Jeff Hoover
269. Julie Elis

270. Robert Byler

Housing Element

271. Kendra Ma, on behalf of TranForm

272. Ellen Lake, on behalf of the Kala Art Institute

273. Harvey McKeon

274. North Berkeley Now Housing and Climate Action

275. Sophia DeWitt, on behalf of East Bay Housing Organization

Junior Jackets Sports Team Asked To Leave San Pablo Park
276. Moni Law (2)

277. Angela Jernigan

278. Sheila Jordan

279. Jr Jackets

Tenants Opportunity to Purchase Act (TOPA)
280. 12 similarly-worded form letters
Pedestrian Safety

281. Wende Micco

282. Roger Hallsten

283. Rachel Bradley

284. Robin Kirby

Bio Lab/Bayer
285. Berkeley Neighborhood Council
286. Dana Perls, on behalf of Friends of the Earth

COVID-19, Monkeypox, Vaccinations and Masks
287. Marilyn Kaplan (2)
288. Anne McClintock

Harriet Tubman Terrace
289. Libby Lee-Egan and Mari Mendonca

Joining the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) Lawsuit
290. Susan Candell

Crime

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA Page 21
Page 21



291. Katya Stoakes
292. Alex Merenkov
293. Isobel Dozier

Shattuck Cinemas
294. Charlene Woodcock

BART Development
295. Jean Peters
296. Malea Raffetseder

Toxic Pesticides
297. Maya Cohen

SB9
298. Dorothy Berndt

Golden Duplex
299. Henry Caro

Unresolved City Matter — Closing Business License

300. Bill Creasi
CalPERS Bills Going Up
301. Eric Lerman

Union Pacific Railroad
302. Robert Kroll

Rat Birth Control
303. Andie Grace
304. Tony Benado

Telegraph Avenue is an Eyesore
305. Joann Philbin

Property Tax Exemption for Nonprofits
306. Barbara Gilbert

Toxic Waste Disposal
307. David Lerman

1598 University Avenue Planned 8-Story Building
308. Bill Kristy

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA

Page 22

Page 22



Homelessness
309. Mike Palmer

Bond Measure L
310. Geoff Lomaz (3)
311. Henry Oyekanmi

West Berkeley Budget Priorities
312. 4 similarly-worded form letters

Rent Control
313. Bryce Nesbitt

Affordable Housing
314. Ann Campbell

EDI to Phase Out Bowel and Bladder Care
315. Tamar Michai Freeman

City of Berkeley Corruption
316. Walter Wood

Teaching BUSD Kids To Swim

317. David Lerman

Recruit Solano Avenue BID Advisory Board Members
318. Todd Andrew

Incessant Dog Barking
319. Norma J F Harrison

Misuse of jessearreguin.com Website
320. David Lerman

Underground Wiring on Eton Avenue
321. Fredora H. Darmstadt

Restoring Bus Service
322. Marilyn Sagna
323. |ka Simpson

5G Cell Towers
324. Omowale Fowles

Natural Gas Ban in Berkeley
325. Stella Kim

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 AGENDA

Page 23

Page 23



No Whites Allowed — POC House
326. Janice Barton

Public Financing
327. Omowale Fowles
328. Catherin Huchting

Measure P
329. Joel Libove

Covid Eviction Moratorium
330. Daniel Lorence

Things | Miss About Berkeley
331. M.E. Lawrence

Car-Free Berkeley
332. Ken Stein

University Campus Police Department

333. Carol Denney

Electric Vehicle Charging Stations Infrastructure

334. David Lerman
Genetically Modified Mosquitoes
335. David Luz

Supplemental Communications and Reports
Items received by the deadlines for submission will be compiled and distributed as follows. If no items
are received by the deadline, no supplemental packet will be compiled for said deadline.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
Available by 5:00 p.m. five days prior to the meeting.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Available by 5:00 p.m. the day before the meeting.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 3
Available by 5:00 p.m. two days following the meeting.

Tuesday, September 13, 2022

AGENDA

Page 24

Page 24



Page 1 of 5

/ CITY °F 0 1

-

Office of the City Manager
RECESS ITEM

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Deputy City Manager

Subject: Contract No. 084534-1 Amendment: NextGen Health Care Information
Systems, Inc. for Electronic Health Records

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City Manager during recess to amend
Contract No. 084534-1 with NextGen Healthcare Information Systems, Inc., increasing
the amount by $188,955 for a total contract value not to exceed $1,008,291.20 and
extending the term from September 30, 2010 through June 30, 2024.

NEGATIVE EFFECT IF ACTION IS DELAYED UNTIL AFTER COUNCIL RECESS

The action to amend the contact during recess was required to assure resources by the
vendor for a pertinent and necessary network upgrade in October 2022. This essential
upgrade will include features to support mental health service provision which is a key
service for the City. If we did not enter into the amended contract, we would experience
an indeterminately extended delay in applying critical functionality for mental health
service provision.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Funds for additional professional services and software maintenance, in the amount of
$188,955, will be available in the Department of Health, Housing, and Community
Services’ FY2023 and 2024 General Fund budget as itemized below. Spending for this
contract in future fiscal years will be subject to Council approval of the proposed citywide
budget and annual appropriation ordinances.

FY 2023: Professional Services
Budget Code: 011-51-506-555-0000-000-451-612990
$98,675 (General Fund, HHCS, Professional Services)

FY 2023: Software Maintenance
$40,778  Budget Code: 011-51-506-555-0000-000-451-613130
(General Fund, HHCS, Software Maintenance)

$139.453 FY 2023 Subtotal: Professional Services and Software Maintenance

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 25
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
https://cobmunisapp.berkeley.root/MunisProd/AppHost/VendorCentral/

Page 2 of 5

Contract No. 084534-1 Amendment: NextGen Health Care Information CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

FY 2024: Software Maintenance
$49.502 Budget Code: 011-51-506-555-0000-000-451-613130
(General Fund, HHCS, Software Maintenance)

$49 502 FY 2024: Subtotal: Professional Services & Software Maintenance

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Public Health Division utilizes the HIPAA-compliant NextGen Practice Management
(PM) and Electronic Health Record (EHR) System to manage secure patient health
information and to streamline related business processes, including integrated electronic
claiming and remittance files. The system has been upgraded to include: ePrescribing; a
Quest Laboratory Tests and Results interface; an Immunization Registry Interface with
the State CAIR2 system; NGShare for secure referrals and communication with other
providers; and custom grant reporting modules.

We recently implemented NextGen system changes to support and bill for Telehealth
services which are delivered without face to face encounters at City facilities. This is
critical during the COVID-19 pandemic. The NextGen PM-EHR system has also been
upgraded to produce the Berkeley High School Health Center Grant Data that replaced
manual data entry with a secure export of files to an external grant reporting system.

The NextGen PM-EHR system was certified to manage Meaningful Use Reporting.
Medicare and Medicaid Programs have provided financial incentives for the Meaningful
Use of certified EHR technology to improve patient care which qualified the City to collect
$437,750 during the past few years in incentives through Meaningful Use Reporting.

This Contract Amendment provides licensing and maintenance services through Jun 30,
2024 and it provides NextGen Professional Services in order to implement the following
critical components:

e NextGen PM-EHR System 6.2021 Upgrade;

e Behavioral Health Module 4.5 Consulting, Training and Implementation;

e Administration and Configuration Training for IT;

e Implementation of the new Patient Portal;

e Implementation of an integrated Medication Inventory Module;

e« New Template development for First Aide services and retrofitting of software items
to accommodate the major system upgrade.

BACKGROUND
In September 2010, City Council approved a contract with NextGen Healthcare

Page 2 Page 26


https://cobmunisapp.berkeley.root/MunisProd/AppHost/VendorCentral/

Page 3 of 5

Contract No. 084534-1 Amendment: NextGen Health Care Information CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

Information Systems, Inc. to implement the PM and EHR system.

On June 28, 2011, Council approved a contract amendment with NextGen for data
conversion and additional training and implementation support.

In August 2011, the City implemented the NextGen Practice Management (PM) Module,
including electronic billing, at three Berkeley Public Health Clinics.
In June 2013, the City implemented NextGen’s Electronic Health Record (EHR).

On July 2, 2013, Council approved a contract amendment with NextGen Healthcare
Information Systems, Inc. for an Immunization Registry interface, for additional software
licensing, and for three additional years of maintenance services (through FY 2016).

On July 14, 2015, City Council approved a contract amendment with NextGen Healthcare
Information Systems, Inc. for the Patient Portal and for two additional years of software
licensing and maintenance services (through FY 2018).

On June 26, 2018, City Council approved a contract amendment with NextGen
Healthcare Information Systems, Inc for two additional years of software licensing and
maintenance services.

On February 23, 2021, City Council approved a contract amendment with NextGen
Healthcare Information Systems, Inc and for two additional years of software licensing
and maintenance services.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The system replaces paper-based processes with secure online tools, which reduces
paper consumption, mailings, and the need for Public Health patients to travel to clinics
for routine information. In addition, the system supports electronic data exchange with
other healthcare providers and produces electronic data for claims and grant reporting.
The system operates on a virtual infrastructure thus reducing the City’s carbon footprint.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

NextGen Inc. is a market leader in clinical software and is designated by the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) as meeting federal requirements for Meaningful
Use of Electronic Health Record (EHR) technology. The system supports Clinics in
compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), which
outlines the privacy and security standards for health patient information

Page 3 Page 27


https://cobmunisapp.berkeley.root/MunisProd/AppHost/VendorCentral/

Page 4 of 5

Contract No. 084534-1 Amendment: NextGen Health Care Information CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

Staff considered implementing and maintaining the PM-EHR system without
vendor services. However, the risk of maintaining such a complex application without
specialized support is too high, especially given the impact on Public Health services
and workflow.

CONTACT PERSON
Debra Montgomery, Information Systems Manager, Department of Information
Technology, 510-859-6755

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 4 Page 28


https://cobmunisapp.berkeley.root/MunisProd/AppHost/VendorCentral/

Page 5 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 084534-1 AMENDMENT: NEXTGEN HEALTH CARE
INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. FOR ELECTRONIC HEALTH RECORDS

WHEREAS, the NextGen Practice Management (PM) and Electronic Health Record
(EHR) System has provided a reliable and HIPAA-compliant system for collecting health
patient information; and

WHEREAS, the NextGen Practice Management (PM) and Electronic Health Record
(EHR) System has improved the efficiency of Public Health clinic operations and resulted
in increased revenue; and

WHEREAS, the NextGen Practice Management (PM) and Electronic Health Record
(EHR) System is a CMS-certified Electronic Health Record (EHR) technology, meets the
requirements for achieving EHR Meaningful Use measures, and sets the stage to qualify
for further American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) incentive dollars through
the State; and

WHEREAS, a software maintenance and support agreement with NextGen Healthcare
Information Systems, Inc. is necessary for system updates; and

WHEREAS, additional funding in the amount of $188,955 is available in the Department
of Health, Housing, and Community Services’ FY2023 and 2024 General Fund budget,
and this contract amendment has been entered into the Citywide contract database and
assigned contract number 084534-1, and spending for this contract in future fiscal years
will be subject to Council approval of the proposed citywide budget and annual
appropriation ordinances.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to amend Contract No. 8460E with NextGen Healthcare
Information Systems, Inc., increasing the amount by $188,955 for a total contract value
not to exceed $1,008,291.20 and extend the term from September 30, 2010 through June
30, 2024.

Page 29


https://cobmunisapp.berkeley.root/MunisProd/AppHost/VendorCentral/
https://cobmunisapp.berkeley.root/MunisProd/AppHost/VendorCentral/

Page 30



Page 1 of 3

02

[ CITY ©F

-

Office of the City Manager

RECESS ITEM
CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Department of Public Works

Subject: Contract No. 31900288 Amendment: Disability Access Consultants for ADA
Transition Plan

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City Manager during recess to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 31900288 with Disability Access Consultants (DAC) for
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan and On-Call ADA accessibility
consulting services, increasing the contract amount by $122,000 for a total not-to-exceed
amount of $606,800 and extend the contract term to June 30, 2023.

NEGATIVE EFFECTS IF ACTION IS DELAYED UNTIL AFTER COUNCIL RECESS

The Disability Services Specialist responsible for overseeing the ADA Transition Plan has
resigned and the City requires additional consultant support to help ensure continuity in
these services and that the ADA Transition Plan stays on track.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funding for the duration of the contract amendment is available in the FY 2023 Public
Works budget in the Capital Improvement Fund (501-54-624-698-0000-000-431-665110)
via the approval of the First Amendment to the Annual Appropriations Ordinance.

Current contract amMOUNL ... ...coue e $484,800
Amended CONtract @MOUNT ...ttt ettt e e te ettt seeaaeeensseeneeensaeenees $122.000
Total NTE $606,800

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Disability Access Consultants (DAC) is currently under contract to survey all city
facilities, parks, streets, websites, and programs to help create a new ADA Transition
Plan and to address urgent accessibility issues and concerns.

Page 31



Page 2 of 3

The contract amendment and proposed increase of $122,000 will also allow the consultant
to provide critical and time-sensitive services such as evaluating and responding to public

grievances and ADA accommodation requests, and providing accessibility reviews of plans
and policies as needed until the City can backfill the Disability Services Specialist position.

BACKGROUND

The City’s ADA Transition Plan has not been updated in almost twenty years. This is a
plan required by the ADA to transition local governments from ADA noncompliance to
ADA compliance, and the update is strongly encouraged. In July 2019, after a
competitive Request for Proposals process, the City entered into a contract with DAC to
work on creating an ADA Transition Plan, including surveying all City streets, parks,
programs, facilities, and the website. The plan will be a multi-year approach to
memorialize the City’s ongoing commitment to ADA accessibility and prioritize funding
and resources based on comprehensive data and community feedback. The plan is also
expected to improve pedestrian safety, reduce liability, and provide information to better
guide our capital improvements.

On April 27, 2021, by Resolution No. 69,823 — N.S. City Council authorized an
amendment with DAC, increasing the contract by $78,200 for a revised total not to
exceed amount of $484,800 and extending the contract term to June 30, 2022, for
surveying of additional City sidewalks and to address urgent accessibility issues and
concerns.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

ADA accessibility benefits many pedestrians including but not limited to people with
disabilities, seniors, and parents with strollers and small children. Such improvements
encourage the use of public transportation and travel without cars, thus reducing
greenhouse gases and other negative impacts of driving.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Due to the depletion of the contract budget, additional funding is needed to complete
the ADA Transition Plan including addressing ADA compliance. An urgent need also
exists for ADA services due to a recent vacancy.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The City could issue a new request for proposals to complete the needed work, but
doing so would interrupt continuity of services provided by the departed Disability
Services Specialist and put the ADA Transition Plan off track.

CONTACT PERSON
Andrew Brozyna, Deputy Director, Public Works, (510) 981-6396

Attachment:
1: Resolution

Page 32



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 31900288 AMENDMENT: DISABILITY ACCESS CONSULTANTS
FOR ADA TRANSITION PLAN

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley complies with Americans with Disabilities Act and related
State and Federal laws; and

WHEREAS, On July 3, 2019, after a competitive Request for Proposals process, the City
of Berkeley entered into a contract (Contract No. 31900288) with Disability Access
Consultants (DAC) to survey the City facilities, sidewalks, programs and website and help
create a new ADA Transition Plan; and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021 by Resolution No. 69,823 — N.S. City Council authorized
an amendment with DAC, increasing the contract by $78,200 for a revised total not to
exceed amount of $484,800 and extending the contract term to June 30, 2022 for
surveying of additional City sidewalks and to address urgent accessibility issues and
concerns; and

WHEREAS, amending the contract will allow staff to complete a new ADA Transition Plan;
and provide urgent On-Call ADA services while the City’s Disability Services Specialist
vacancy is backfilled, and

WHEREAS, funding for the duration of the contract amendment will be available in the
FY 2023 Capital Improvement Fund budget via the approval of the First Amendment to
the Annual Appropriations Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
Council ratifies the action taken by the City Manager to execute an amendment to
Contract No. 31900288 with Disability Access Consultants for ADA Transition Plan
increasing the contract amount by $122,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $606,800
and extend the contract term to June 30, 2023.

Page 33



Page 34



Page 1 of 3

03

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager

RECESS ITEM
CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Public Works

Subject: Contract No. 32100194 Amendment: Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. for
construction and repairs

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution ratifying the action taken by the City Manager during recess to
amend Contract No. 32100194 with Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. for work on the
Street Rehabilitation FY 2021 Project, Specification No. 21-11422-C, increasing the
current contract amount by $260,000, for a total amount not to exceed $4,556,733.

NEGATIVE EFFECT IF ACTION IS DELAYED UNTIL AFTER COUNCIL RECESS
Amending this construction contract will allow Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. to
proceed with landslide repairs and the construction of a retaining wall along Wildcat
Canyon Road. It is critical that repairs and construction begin as soon as possible so
that the slope repairs and new and repaired retaining walls are in place before the
upcoming rainy season. Delaying this contract amendment until after Council recess
would extend the construction period into the wet season and lead to an increased risk
of structural failure.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Funding for this contract amendment is available from the FY 2023 Street Capital
Program as follows:

Capital Improvement Fund (501-54-623-673-0000-000-431-665110)  $260,000

No other funding is required and no other projects will be delayed due to this
expenditure.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Several locations along the side of Wildcat Canyon Road experienced landslides due to
storms during the 2021-2022 rainy season. These landslides affected the stability of
slopes and existing retaining walls that support the roadway at four locations. It is

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 35
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Contract No. 32100194 Amendment: Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

recommended that these repairs be performed before the next rainy season so that any
further rains do not worsen the situation and lead to failure of the walls and roadway.

BACKGROUND

On April 27, 2021, Council authorized Contract No. 32100194 with Bay Cities Paving &
Grading, Inc. for the Street Rehabilitation FY 2021 Project in an amount not to exceed
$4,296,733. In order to perform the landslide and retaining wall repairs on Wildcat Canyon
Road, an amendment is needed to increase the contract authority for the Street
Rehabilitation FY 2022 Project to $4,556,733.

The provided services will support the Strategic Plan goal of providing state-of-the-art,
well-maintained infrastructure, amenities, and facilities.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The repair work includes storm system improvements which will not only maximize the
lives of the retaining walls but also reduce erosion of the hillside. Reduced erosion
protects water quality by reducing sediments entering the storm drain system.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. is currently under contract with the City. It is practical
and cost-effective to amend the contract with Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. for the
work on Wildcat Canyon Road. Contracted services are required as the City does not
have the in-house expertise to complete this specialized work.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

No alternative actions were considered for this work. Failure to repair and construct the
retaining walls would result in continued degradation and eventual failure placing public
infrastructure at risk.

CONTACT PERSON
Farid Javandel, Deputy Director, Public Works, 981-7061
Joe Enke, Manager of Engineering, Public Works, 981-6411

Attachment:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 36



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
CONTRACT NO. 32100194 AMENDMENT: BAY CITIES PAVING & GRADING, INC.

WHEREAS, there is a need for landslide and retaining wall repair work on Wildcat Canyon
Road that should be performed before the rainy season; and

WHEREAS, the City has neither the labor nor the equipment necessary to undertake this
construction work; and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2021 by Resolution 69,817-N.S., the City Council authorized
Contract No. 32100194 with Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. in an amount not to
exceed $4,296,733 for work on the Street Rehabilitation FY 2021 Project, Specification
No. 21-11422-C; and

WHEREAS, funds are available from the Capital Improvement Fund (501-54-623-67 3-
0000-000-431-665110) in the FY 2023 budget.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
Council ratifies the action taken by the City Manager to execute an amendment to
Contract No. 32100194 with Bay Cities Paving & Grading, Inc. for work on the Street
Rehabilitation FY 2021 Project, Specification No. 21-11422-C, increasing the current
contract amount by $260,000, for a total amount not to exceed $4,556,733. A record
signature copy of the agreement and any amendments to be on file in the Office of the
City Clerk.

Page 37



Page 38



Page 1 of 64 o 4

{ CITY ©F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Subject: Minutes for Approval

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of July 7 (closed), July 12 (closed and
regular), July 18 (closed), July 26 (special and regular) and August 3 (special).

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

Attachments:

1. July 7, 2022-Closed Council Meeting
July 12, 2022-Closed Council Meeting
July 12, 2022-Regular Council Meeting
July 18, 2022-Closed Council Meeting
July 26, 2022-Special Council Meeting
July 26, 2022-Regular Council Meeting
August 3, 2022 Special Council Meeting

Nookwn

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 39
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/manager g



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager

Page 2 of 64

Attachment 1
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

THURSDAY, JULY 7, 2022
4:30 P.M.

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the
City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-
19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and
presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this

URL https://us02web.zoom.us/i/81831321606. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,

then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 818 3132 1606.
If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Thursday, July 7, 2022 MINUTES Pagedage 40


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81831321606
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 3 of 64

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  4:31 p.m.
Present: Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Kesarwani, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf, Arreguin
Absent: Bartlett

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — None.

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8

Property address: Berkeley Inn 1720 San Pablo Ave, Berkeley, California

Agency Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager; Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy
City Manager; Peter Radu, Assistant to the City
Manager

Negotiating parties: City of Berkeley & Pravin Patel

Property owner: Ganga Holdings, LLC

Under negotiation: Price and terms

Property address: 1250-1288 9th Street, Berkeley, California

Agency Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager; Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy

City Manager; Keith May, Acting Deputy Fire Chief; Dionne Early,
Community Development Project Coordinator — PW Real Property

Negotiating parties: City of Berkeley & Smith and Walters, Inc
Property owner: Smith and Walters, Inc.
Under negotiation: Price and terms

Action: No reportable action taken.

2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6
Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, Paul Buddenhagen, Deputy City Manager,
LaTanya Bellow, Deputy City Manager, Don Ellison, Interim Human Resources Director,
Dawud Brewer, Employee Relations Manager.
Employee Organizations: Berkeley Fire Fighters Association Local 1227, Berkeley Fire
Fighters Association, Local 1227 |.A.F.F. / Berkeley Chief Fire Officers Association;
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local 1245, SEIU 1021 Community

Services and Part-time Recreation Activity Leaders, SEIU 1021 Maintenance and Clerical,
Public Employees Union Local 1, Unrepresented Employees, Berkeley Police Association.

Action: No reportable action taken.

3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(2):

a. Workers Compensation Appeals Board Case Number: ADJ11219150

Thursday, July 7, 2022 MINUTES PageBage 41



Page 4 of 64

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to provide direction to outside counsel and approve a
settlement by Compromise and Release, or else in the alternative by stipulated award of
permanent disability with an Award of lifetime future medical care, as to workers’
compensation matter WCAB Case Number: ADJ11219150.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Councilmember Wengraf absent 6:45 p.m. — 6:55 p.m.

OPEN SESSION:

Public Reports of actions taken pursuant to Government Code section 54957.1.

The City Council provided direction to outside counsel and approved a settlement by
Compromise and Release, or else in the alternative by stipulated award of permanent disability
with an Award of lifetime future medical care, as to workers’ compensation matter WCAB Case
Number: ADJ11219150.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf.

Adjourned at 6:55 p.m.

| hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct record of the special closed
meeting of July 7, 2022 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Rose Thomsen, Deputy City Clerk

Thursday, July 7, 2022 MINUTES Page 3
Page 42



Page 5 of 64

Attachment 2
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, JULY 12, 2022
4:00 P.M.
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the
City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-
19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and
presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this

URL https://us02web.zoom.us/i/87495949850. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,

then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 874 9594 9850.
If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Pagepiage 43


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87495949850
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 6 of 64

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  4:05 p.m.
Present: Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin
Absent: Kesarwani, Bartlett
Councilmember Kesarwani present at 4:09 p.m.
Councilmember Bartlett present at 4:13 p.m.

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 3 speakers

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENTS PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
54957 (b):

a. Title of position to be filled: Director of Police Accountability

Action: No reportable action taken.

OPEN SESSION:
No reportable action taken.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the closed session
meeting held on July 12, 2022.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Pageﬁage 44



Page 7 of 64

Attachment 3
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, July 12, 2022
6:00 PM
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City
Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php ?publish_id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81476464690. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename"” to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 814 7646 4690. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 1
Page 45


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81476464690
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 8 of 64

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call:  6:08 p.m.

Present: Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin
Absent: Bartlett

Councilmember Bartlett present at 6:10 p.m.

Report from Closed Session

City Council met in closed session on July 7, 2022, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)
and provided direction to outside counsel and approved a settlement by Compromise and Release, or
else in the alternative by stipulated award of permanent disability with an Award of lifetime future medical
care, as to workers’ compensation matter WCAB Case Number: ADJ11219150.

Ceremonial Matters:

1. Adjourned in Memory of Thomas Lord, Local Activist and Former Commissioner
City Manager Comments: None

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 10 speakers.

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: 16 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Droste) to accept supplemental materials from Councilmember

Taplin on ltem 18.
Vote: All Ayes.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except

as indicated.
Vote: All Ayes.

Consent Calendar

1. FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,828-N.S. adopting the
FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance (AAO) in the amount of $754,176,624
(gross appropriations) and $625,939,999 (net appropriations).
First Reading Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes - None; Abstain - None; Absent - Harrison, Droste.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000
Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,828—N.S.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 2
Page 46



Page 9 of 64

Consent Calendar

goBerkeley SmartSpace Pilot Program Implementation Recommendations
From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,829-N.S. repealing
and reenacting Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 14.52 Parking Meters to enable
demand-responsive paid parking for non-RPP permit holders in the 2700 blocks of
Durant Avenue, Channing Way, and Haste Street and the 2300-2400 blocks of
Piedmont Avenue (a portion of Residential Preferential Parking Program Area 1) for
the duration of the grant-funded goBerkeley SmartSpace pilot program, and allow
payment via license plate entry pay stations (“pay-by-plate”) to improve convenience
and enforcement.

First Reading Vote: All Ayes.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,829—-N.S.

Voting Delegates — League of California Cities Annual Conference

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Designate, by motion, a voting delegate and alternate for the
business meeting of the Annual League of California Cities conference to be held on
Friday, September 9, 2022, in Long Beach.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: Approved recommendation appointing Councilmember Hahn as the voting
delegate and Councilmember Taplin as the alternate.

Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on July 12, 2022

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $3,620,000

Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300

Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 3
Page 47



Page 10 of 64

Consent Calendar

Contract No. 32000243 Amendment: Waters Moving & Storage for Facility
Moves

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32000243 with Waters Moving &
Storage for moving office furniture between various Health, Housing, & Community
Services Department (HHCS) facilities, as part of HHCS program relocations. These
facility sites include, but are not limited to, the North Berkeley Senior Center, West
Berkeley Service Center, 830 University Avenue, and 1947 Center Street. The
contract is being amended to add to the scope and increase the original contract by
$10,000 to the original contract amount of $50,000 to move Aging Services back into
the newly rehabilitated North Berkeley Senior Center. The total amended amount
will not exceed $60,000 for the period June 1, 2020 through December 30, 2022.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $10,000

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,445—-N.S.

Contract No. 8958F Amendment: Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial
Consulting Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 8958F increasing contract amount by $110,000 with
Bartel Associates, LLC for Actuarial Consulting Services, for a revised total contract
amount not to exceed $380,000 through December 31, 2023.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $110,000

Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,446—N.S.

Contract No. 31900045-3 Amendment: Vestra Resources, Inc. for Additional
Geographic Information System (GIS) Projects

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 31900045-3 with Vestra Resources, Inc. for Geographic Information
System (GIS) professional services, for a total not to exceed $28,679 and for a total
contract value of $64,990 from September 15, 2018 to June 30, 2024.

Financial Implications: IT Cost Allocation Fund - $28,679

Contact: Michael Sinor, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,447—-N.S.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 4
Page 48



Page 11 of 64

Consent Calendar

10.

Contract No. 31900193 Amendment: Hamilton Tree Service, Inc. for As-Needed
Tree Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 31900193 with Hamilton Tree Service, Inc, for as-needed tree services,
increasing the amount by $300,000 for an amended total amount not to exceed
$500,000.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $300,000

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,448—-N.S.

Contract No. 31900218 Amendment: West Coast Arborists, Inc. for As-Needed
Tree Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
contract No. 31900218 with West Coast Arborists Inc., for as-needed tree services,
increasing the amount by $200,000 for an amended total amount not to exceed
$700,000.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $200,000

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,449-N.S.

Contract No. 32200076 Amendment: OBS Engineering, Inc. for John Hinkel
Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32200076 with OBS Engineering, Inc. for the John
Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project, increasing the amount by
$26,000 for an amended total amount not to exceed $1,145,580.

Financial Implications: Parks Tax Fund - $26,000

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,450—-N.S. as revised in Supplemental
Communications Packet #2 by the City Manager to increase the amount by $80,000
for an amended total amount not to exceed $1,199,580.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 5

Page 49



Page 12 of 64

Consent Calendar

11. Berkeley’s Financial Condition (FY 2012 — FY 2021): Pension Liabilities and
Infrastructure Need Attention
From: Auditor
Recommendation: We recommend City Council request that the City Manager
report back by November 2022, and every six months thereafter, regarding the
status of our audit recommendations until reported fully implemented by the City
Manager and Finance Department. They have agreed to our findings and
recommendations. Please see our report for their complete response. This audit
report has been updated with new information regarding the City’s Section 115 Trust.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jenny Wong, Auditor, (510) 981-6750
Action: Approved recommendation.

12. Contract No. 32000196 Amendment: Szabo & Associates for Communications
Consulting Services
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 32000196 with Szabo & Associates for communications consulting
services for the Mayor’s Office, increasing the contract amount by $78,000 for a new
total not to exceed $227,500, and extending the contract term to June 30, 2023.
Financial Implications: Mayor's Office Budget - $78,000
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,451-N.S.

Council Consent Items

13. Joining the House America Initiative
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Robinson (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution joining House America, an initiative of the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the U.S. Interagency
Council on Homelessness to form partnerships with state, tribal and local
governments to rehouse people experiencing homelessness.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,452—-N.S.

14. Support for Assembly Constitutional Amendment 3
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)
Recommendation: Send a letter of support for ACA-3 to members of the state
legislature including Senator Kamlager (D-Los Angeles), Senator Skinner (D-
Berkeley), and Assemblymembers Kalra and Wicks.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (610) 981-7120
Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications
Packet #1 by Councilmember Taplin.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 6
Page 50



Page 13 of 64

Council Consent Items

15.

16.

Support for AB-1816: Reentry Housing and Workforce Development Program.
From: Councilmember Taplin (Author)

Recommendation: Send a letter of support for Assembly Bill 1816 to
Assemblymember Isaac Bryan (D-Los Angeles) and state legislators representing
the City of Berkeley (Skinner/Wicks).

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Terry Taplin, Councilmember, District 2, (610) 981-7120

Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications
Packet #1 by Councilmember Taplin.

Support for SB 1063: Flexibility for Energy Innovation

From: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Send a letter to Senator Nancy Skinner and Assemblymember
Buffy Wicks in support of Senate Bill 1063, which would authorize the California
Energy Commission (CEC) to make new technology standards effective sooner,
enabling the Commission to expedite the rollout of new green technologies and be
more responsive to climate emergencies.

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170

Action: Vice-Mayor Harrison added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 7

Page 51



Page 14 of 64

Action Calendar — Public Hearing

17.

Zoning Ordinance Amendments Making Technical Edits and Corrections to
Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Title 23

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt first
reading of an Ordinance containing technical edits, corrections and other non-
substantive amendments to the following sections of the Zoning Ordinance:
BMC Section 23.202.140 (R-SMU Zoning District)

BMC Section 23.204.020 (Commercial Districts -- Allowed Land Uses)

BMC Section 23.204.030 (Additional Permit Requirements)

BMC Section 23.204.060 (C-U Zoning District)

BMC Section 23.204.130 (C-DMU District)

BMC Section 23.206.202 (Manufacturing Districts — Allowed Land Uses)

BMC Section 23.302.030 (Temporary Uses and Structures)

BMC Section 23.302.070 (Use-Specific Regulations)

BMC Section 23.404.040 (Public Notice)

BMC Section 23.502.020 (Glossary)

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

N~~~

Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 1 speaker.

M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to close the public hearing.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Councilmember Droste absent 7:15 p.m. — 7:20 p.m.

Action: M/S/C (Hahn/Harrison) to adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,830-N.S.
Second reading scheduled for July 26, 2022.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 8

Page 52



Page 15 of 64

Action Calendar — Old Business

18. Revisions to Section 311.6 Warrantless Searches of Individuals on Supervised
Release Search Conditions of the Berkeley Police Department Law
Enforcement Services Manual (Continued from May 24, 2022) (ltem contains
revised material) (Reviewed by the Public Safety Committee)

From: Councilmember Droste (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Author)
Recommendation: Revise Section 311.6 Warrantless Searches of Individuals on
Supervised Release Search Conditions of the Berkeley Police Department (BPD)
Law Enforcement Services Manual to enable officers of the Berkeley Police
Department to conduct detentions and warrantless searches individuals on
parole/probation consistent with and supportive of the provisions in the
probationer’s/parolee’s release conditions.

Policy Committee Recommendation: Send the item to the City Council with a
qualified positive recommendation, as revised by the committee and subject to legal
review.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lori Droste, Councilmember, District 8, (510) 981-7180

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted the policy revision as introduced in
the supplemental material submitted by Councilmember Taplin. Councilmembers
Droste and Hahn added as co-sponsors on the supplemental material.

In accordance with California law, individuals on probation, parole, Post Release Community
Supervision, or other supervised release status may be subject to warrantless search as a
condition of their probation. Officers shall only conduct probation or parole searches to
further a legitimate law enforcement or rehabilitative purpose. Searches shall not be
conducted in an arbitrary, capricious, or harassing fashion.

icer, . 1 —~Individuals contacted or
detained who are found to be on searchable Supervised Release for Violent Offenses’
may be searched pursuant to the terms of their Supervised Release conditions. The
decision to detain a person and conduct a probation or parole search or otherwise enforce
probation or parole conditions for those on supervised release for nonviolent crimes?,
should be made, at a minimum, in connection with articulable facts that create a reasonable
suspicion that a person may have committed a crime, be committing a crime, or be about to
commit a crime or which demonstrate that the individual is connected in some way to
criminal activity or that the individual is an imminent threat to officer or citizen safety.
In the conduct of all such detentions and searches, officers shall consciously avoid the
application of bias, shall not use such detentions or searches as a means to harass or
annoy, and shall not conduct such detentions and searches in a manner that targets or is
discriminatory toward any protected class.

1 Offenses involving the use of force, the threat of force, the use or possession of a weapon, sexual violations against the
person of another, human trafficking, and the use of force or threats to public safety. Battery on a Peace Officer (Penal Code §
243(b)), Reckless Evasion in a Vehicle (Vehicle Code § 2800.2(a)), or a violent felony as defined in Penal Code § 667.5(c).), fall
into the categories of violent crimes, weapons offenses, sex crimes and/or crimes involving threats to public safety in
accordance with state law.

2 “Non-Violent Offenses” are defined as offenses in which violence or use of a weapon or threat to life safety is not a factor.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 9
Page 53



Page 16 of 64
Action Calendar — Old Business

19. Restoring and Improving Access to City of Berkeley Website and Archival
Materials (Continued from June 14, 2022)
From: Councilmember Hahn (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to:
1. Restore at previous URLs all PDF documents previously hosted on the City of
Berkeley website.
2. Create a publicly accessible archival copy of the City’s previous website,
CityofBerkeley.info, that can be accessed without logins and via internet search
engines. Include a prominent disclaimer noting the date the website, page, or
document was archived, with links redirecting to the active website or other
responsive resource.
3. On the new website, update Commission pages to include a minimum of 2 years
of historic agendas and other materials and update City Council and Council
Committee pages to include at least 3 years of complete materials.
4. By July 15, 2022 develop and make available to all City staff and to the public
training at beginner to expert levels on use of the City’s Records Online search
function and create more extensive and less technical self-help resources covering
basic and expert use.
5. In recognition of increased public traffic, update the Records Online homepage to
explain how the portal works and link to more robust self-help resources and
alternative search functions.
6. Coordinate with agency staff to include all relevant records (agendas, minutes,
etc.) from Rent Board and Housing Authority in Records Online Portal.
7. Update any remaining 404 pages to explain that the City’s website has been
moved/updated, and provide links to helpful pages, search functions and/or
pathways to access responsive materials. As quickly as possible, consider
implementing redirects with wildcards to direct as many old links to relevant new
website pages in lieu of the standard 404 page. E.g. cityofberkeley.info/planning* to
the Planning Department site map/homepage, or Department Specific 404 page
explaining new navigation.
Refer to the City Manager the following additional improvements to Records Online:
1. Within Records Online, provide unique archival/search categories for each City
Commission, Board, Committee and Rent Board, and consider other useful
categories, to assist users in narrowing results and identifying responsive materials.
2. Allow Records Online search results to be sorted by date and by other searchable
factors. Consider means to integrate records online into default site search bar.
3. Explore and report back to Council options for improving the scope of Records
Online, improving search options and sorting, and making all materials — or materials
from January 1, 2000 (or an earlier recommended date) forward, searchable using
internet search engines.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150
Action: Item 19 continued to July 26, 2022.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 10
Page 54



Page 17 of 64

Action Calendar — New Business

20. Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)
From: 4 x 4 Joint Committee on Housing City Council/Rent Board
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution placing the proposed amendments to the Rent Stabilization
and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance on the ballot of the November 8, 2022
General Municipal Election.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Matt Brown, Rent Stabilization Board, (510) 981-7368

Recess 8:10 p.m. — 8:20 p.m.
Action: 54 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to:

Delay final action tonight and continue Item #20 to the July 26, 2022 regular City
Council meeting and direct the City Attorney to bring back revised measure language
reflecting the following changes:

1. Bring back revised language for Section 13.76.050.F to continue the exemption
from just cause and rent control for owner occupied “Golden Duplexes” if the duplex
was owner-occupied as of July 1, 2022 and continues to be occupied by the same
owner. Once the current owner no longer resides there, then it would be no longer be
exempt.

Action: M/S/Failed (Wengraf/Kesarwani) to take no action on the golden duplex
provisions in Part 1 of the Main Motion.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Wengraf, Droste; Noes — Harrison, Hahn,
Robinson, Arreguin; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett (Recused — resides in golden
duplex).

Action: M/S/Failed (Arreguin/Harrison) to approve Part #1 of the Main Motion.
Vote: Ayes — Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — Kesarwani, Taplin,
Wengraf, Droste; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett (Recused — resides in golden
duplex).

Councilmember Bartlett recused 9:45 p.m. — 10:35 p.m.

2. Remove the language in Section 13.76.050.N which would repeal the exemption
of lawfully established and fully permitted Accessory Dwelling Units from just cause
for eviction protections. Also, refer to the City Manager to explore noticing
requirements of rent/eviction control exemption for ADU units.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to suspend the rules and extend to 11:30 p.m.
Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 11
Page 55



Page 18 of 64

Action Calendar — New Business

Action: M/S/C (Hahn/Harrison) to approve Part #2 of the Main Motion.
Vote: All Ayes.

3. Bring back the proposed language in Section 13.76.040 to modify the new

construction exemption for SB 330 replacement units and other units if permitted by

state or local law.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to approve Part #3 of the Main Motion.
Vote: Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain —
Kesarwani, Taplin, Wengraf, Droste.

4. Bring back the proposed language in Section 13.76.060.Q as proposed by the
Rent Board, “Rent Stabilization Ordinance/Decontrol”.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to approve Part #4 of the Main Motion.
Vote: Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — Taplin; Absent — Droste.

5. Remove the language in Section 13.76.130, “Additional Occupants.”

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to approve Part #5 of the Main Motion.
Vote: All Ayes.

Vote: Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — Kesarwani, Droste;
Abstain — Taplin, Wengraf.

Information Reports

21.

Youth Commission Work Plan 2022

From: Youth Commission

Contact: Ginsi Bryant, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6700
Action: Received and filed.

Public Comment — Items Not Listed on the Agenda - 7 speakers.

Adjournment

Adjourned at 11:30 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular session
meeting held on July 12, 2022.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 12

Page 56



Page 19 of 64

Communications

Item #19: Restoring and Improving Access to City of Berkeley Website and

Archival Materials
1. David Lerman (2)

Berkeley Marina Area Specific Plan and Cesar Chavez Park
Laura Katz

Sarah Elzea

Helen Greenspan

Margaret and Laura Goodman
Kristi Bennewitz

Ric Keeley

Robin Slovak

. Nancy Schimmel

10.Leslie Brogan

11.Kate Greswold

12.Mort Cohn

13.Rose Glickman

14.Karen Hoffman

15.Nel Benningshof

16.Phyllis Olin

17.Claire Kahane

18.Kathleen Tandy

19.Kellie Gan

20.Nick Despota

21.Robin Freeman

22.Carol Ginsburg and Joseph Como
23.Kate Greswold

24.Sahana Rajasekar

25. Caroline Powell

26. Stefani Berger

©CoOoNOORWN

Vacancy Tax
27.Elana Auerbach
28.Avram

29.Barbara Gilbert (2)
30.Toni Mester

Hopkins Corridor

31.Rachel Bradley

32.Tanya Bustamante, on behalf of The Commission on Aging
33.Susan Taylor

eScooters

34.Robert Byler

35.Anne McClintock (2)

36.Melanie Beasley, on behalf of the City Manager’s Office

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES

Page 13

Page 57



Page 20 of 64

People’s Park
37.Moni Law

Climate
38.Thomas Lord

Neighbors Smoking — Modify B.M.C. 12.70.035
39.Anne Marie (2)

Plastic Bag Ordinance
40.Dakota Peebler

Hybrid Council Meetings
41.Elana Auerbach

Homelessness
42 .M. Emillie Keas
43.Gordon Peterson

lllegal Short-Term Rental
44.Ramona Cavanaugh

1740 San Pablo New Construction — Funding Application
45.Kate Traynor, on behalf of BRIDGE Housing

Reimagining Public Safety
46.Nan McGuier

Shellmound
47.Zahcary Bell

Eviction Moratorium
48. Anne

African American Holistic Resource Center (AAHRC)
49. George Lippman, on behalf of Berkeley Peace and Justice Commission

Traffic at Intersections of 80 and University and Gilman
50.Nick Roosevelt
51.Farid Javandel

SB 1183
52.Seena Hawley

BART Development
53.Nancy Lieblich

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 14
Page 58



Page 21 of 64

Needles and Drug Use Downtown

54. Alex Merenkov

Fire Anniversary of September 17, 1923
55.Margot Smith

Eviction of the Pacific Center at 2712 Telegraph Avenue
56.Lasara Firefox

Double Parking on Durant
57.Alex Merenkov

Housing Element
58.Kelly Hammargren

Fire Danger at People’s Park
59.Max Ventura

Accept Haitian Migrants to Berkeley
60.Nin Ichikawa

UN Secretary General
61. Thomas Lord

Arson and Wildfires
62.Barbara Gilbert

Tenants Opportunity to Purchase Act
63. Kelly Hammargren
64.56 similarly-worded from letters from “campaigns@good.do”

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #1: FY 2023 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
65. Eric Friedman

Item #14: Support for Assembly Constitutional Amendment 3
66. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Taplin

Item #15: Support for AB-1816: Reentry Housing and Workforce Development
Program
67.Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Taplin

Item #18: Revisions to Section 311.6 Warrantless Searches of Individuals on
Supervised Release Search Conditions of the Berkeley Police Department Law
Enforcement Services Manual

68. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Taplin

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 15
Page 59



Page 22 of 64

Item #19: Restoring and Improving Access to City of Berkeley Website and
Archival Materials
69. Melanie Beasley, on behalf of the City Manager’s Office

Item #20: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)

70.Revised material, submitted by the City Attorney’s Office

71.Dan McDunn

72.William Campbell

73.Kevin Casey

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #10: Contract No. 32200076 Amendment: OBS Engineering, Inc. for John
Hinkel Park Amphitheater Area Improvements Project
74.Revised material, submitted by Parks, Recreations & Waterfront

Item #18: Revisions to Section 311.6 Warrantless Searches of Individuals on
Supervised Release Search Conditions of the Berkeley Police Department Law
Enforcement Services Manual

75. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Taplin

76.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Droste

77.Bryce Nesbitt

78.Michael Brodheim

79.Todd Andrew

80.Andree Jones

81.Carolyn

82.Lorenzo Avila

83.Rachel Bradley

84.lsabelle Gaston

85. Steve Kromer

86.Rob Yohai

87.Jon McAuliffe

88. 38 similarly-worded form letters

Item #20: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)
89.Revised material, submitted by the City Attorney’s Office

90. Joann Sullivan

91. Alicia Moore

92.Vanessa Marrero

93.Kirsten Rose

94.Norma Harrison

95. Debbie Woods

96. Jerry Fillingim

97.Charlene Woodcock

98.Robin R

99. Cecile Leneman

100. Erica Cleary

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES Page 16
Page 60



101.
102.
103.
104.
105.
106.
107.
108.
109.
110.
111.
112.
113.
114.
115.
116.
117.
118.
119.
120.
121.

Page 23 of 64

Yoni Mayeri

Chris Ballinger

Judy MacLean

Jeffrey Carter

John Tortorice

Sheila Goldmacher

Diana Bohn

Michele Muenning

John Selawsky

Fredric Fierstein

Angela Carlton

Beth Gerstein, on behalf of Councilmember Kesarwani
Thomas Luce

Diana Bohn

Anne McClintock

Matthew Lewis

Claudia Kawczynska

Debra Sanderson, Co-chair ADU Task Force
Julieta Pisani McCarthy
Cameroon Woo

7 similarly -worded form letters

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #16: Support for SB 1063: Flexibility for Energy Innovation
122.

Item #18: Revisions to Section 311.6 Warrantless Searches of Individuals on
Supervised Release Search Conditions of the Berkeley Police Department Law

D.S.

Enforcement Services Manual

123. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Taplin
124. Fran Haselsteiner

125. Sara Shnider

126. April Gilbert

127. Ben Finkel

128. Barbara Gilbert

129. Jake Teitebaum

130. Elliot Halpern

131. Kitt Saginor

132. Meryl Siegal

133. Karen Weidert

134. Diana Bohn

135. Laralynn Rapoza

136. John Rea

137. Mike Perimutter

138. Carol Denney

139. Meghan Schwartz

140. Vicki Sommer

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES

Page 17

Page 61



Page 24 of 64

141. Terrence Kotsatos
142. Kellicia Kotsatos
143. Margaret Pritt

144. Raul Delarosa

145. Max Ventura

146. Tracy Rosenberg
147. Julia Cato

148. Glenda Citragno
149. Edward Opton

150. Lynda Caesara

151. Alicia Moore

152. Wendy Alfsen

153. Larry Hartsough
154. Elana Auerbach

155. John Vias

156. Josh Buswell-Charkow
157. Lisa Ferguson

158. Negeene Mosaed
159. Fred Krieger

160. Christoverre Kohler
161. Laura Klein

162. Debbie Woods

163. Anna Sophie Loewenberg
164. Jan Baerwald

165. Mark McGoldrick
166. Kelly Hammargren
167. Adolfo Cabral

168. Bill Newton

169. Beth Goldstein

170. Hongnian Guo

171. Dennis Weikel

172. Marcia Dubois

173. Stephanie Lim

174. Seena Hawley

175. Andrea Kamman
176. Dai Ying Zhang

177. Selena Chu

178. Laurie Lenrow

179. Kellicia Wong Kotsatos
180. David Lerman

181. Bill Pottinger

182. J. Frederick Clark Jr.
183. Gina Rieger

184. Joshua Reich

185. Simon Leemann
186. Alyse Jacobson
Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES

Page 18

Page 62



187.
188.
189.
190.
191.
192.
193.
194.
195.
196.
197.
198.
199.
200.
201.
202.
203.
204.
205.
206.
207.
208.
209.
210.
211.
212.
213.
214.
215.
216.
217.
218.

Item #20: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)

Page 25 of 64

Becky Dalton
Sheila Moran

Ari Lev
Catherine Shalen
Sunny Yoon
Richard Bunce
Christine Staples
John E. Rosenthal
Suzanne McKee
Steven Berger
John Rice

Seth Engel
David Fogarty
Irene Marcos
Feliciano Mejia
Alex Jordan
Wenxia Maclay
Peter Hosemann
Julia Zhang
Diego Aguilar-Canabal
Bethany del Lima
William Rosen
Lisa Tsang
Shuang Li

Bruce Feingold
Frannie Mok
Susan Orbuch
wenijingxu@
Erik Schmitt
Audrey Richards
Mari Vlastos

Liz Ruhland

219. Norma Harrison
220. Neil Sawhney
221. Julia Cato

222. Tobey Wiebe
223. Karen Gosling
224. Negeene Mosaed
225. Becca Freed
226. Diana Bohn

227. Katharine Bierce
228. Chimey Lee

229. Bryce Nesbitt
230. Jeanne Clinton
Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES

Page 19

Page 63



Page 26 of 64

231. Scott Curtin

232. Cris Benton

233. Michael O’Heaney

234. Tony Warwick

235. Michael Katz

236. Claire Sherman & Ed Anisman
237. Virginia Browning

238. Lauren Schiller

239. Lori Kossowsky

240. Laura Bixby

241. Daren Fields

242. Mathias Kondolf

243. Alejandro Garcia-Paredes
244, Katharine Vidt

245. Teresa Paris

246. Rebecca Champion

247. Erin Chalmers

248. Elena Gonzalez

249. Carol Perez

250. Lawrence Kaplan and Marie Champlin (2)
251. Stephen Knight

252. The Casita Coalition

253. Brenda Richardson

254. Sean McMurray

255. Barbara Gilbert (2)

256. Jeanne Clinton

257. Todd Andrew (2)

258. Tuan Ngo

259. Jesus Mejia

260. Rie Takahashi

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 MINUTES

Page 20

Page 64



Page 27 of 64

Attachment 4
MINUTES

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
MONDAY, JULY 18, 2022
4:00 P.M.

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the
City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-
19 state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and
presents imminent risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this

URL https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87836924529. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen,

then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to
speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free); enter Meeting ID: 878 3692 4529.
If you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized
by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other
rules of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or
videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record,
email council@cityofberkeley.info.

Monday, July 18, 2022 MINUTES PageBage 65



Page 28 of 64

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  4:01 p.m.
Present: Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf, Arreguin
Absent: Kesarwani, Bartlett

Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 1 speaker.

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENTS PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION
54957 (b):

a. Title of position to be filled: Director of Police Accountability

Action: No reportable action taken.

OPEN SESSION:
Public Reports of actions taken pursuant to Government Code section 54957 .1.
No reportable action taken.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 8:38 p.m.

| hereby certify that the forgoing is a true and correct record of the special closed
meeting of July 18, 2022 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Rose Thomsen, Deputy City Clerk

Monday, July 18, 2022 MINUTES Pageage 66


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87836924529
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 29 of 64

Attachment 5
MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
Tuesday, July 26, 2022
3:00 PM
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City
Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php ?publish_id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89491193768. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename"” to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 894 9119 3768. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified..

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 1 Page 67



Page 30 of 64

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  3:05 p.m.
Present: Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin
Absent: Kesarwani, Bartlett
Councilmember Kesarwani present at 3:07 p.m.

Councilmember Bartlett present at 3:21 p.m.

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: O speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except
as indicated.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Consent Calendar

1. Memorandum Agreement: International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers
Local 1245
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions:
1. Adopting a successor three-year Memorandum Agreement (MA) with the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1245 (hereinafter referred to as
the “Union”) with a term of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025, authorizing the City
Manager to execute and implement the revised terms and conditions of employment
set forth in the Memorandum Agreement; and
2. Approving a new salary resolution for Representation Unit C that implements the
new salary levels negotiated in the new labor agreement and rescinding Resolution
No. 69,962-N.S.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,453—-N.S. (IBEW Local 1245), and Resolution
No. 70,454—-N.S. (Representation Unit C).

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 2 Page 68


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89491193768
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 31 of 64

Consent Calendar

Side Letter of Agreement — SEIU Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical Chapters
From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute and
implement a Side Letter of Agreement with Service Employees International Union
Local 1021 Maintenance and Clerical Chapters to modify Section 31.3 of the
Memorandum Agreement regarding the Pre-Age 65 Retiree Health Insurance.
Effective 7/1/2022 through 6/30/2023, the City shall contribute an additional $200.00
toward both single and two-party rate for active employees who retire from city
service and file such retirement within thirty (30) days of separation from the city with
CalPERS. This enhanced retiree incentive shall continue until Section 31.4 become
applicable.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Donald E. Ellison, Human Resources, (510) 981-6800

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,455—-N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page3  page 69



Page 32 of 64

Action Calendar — New Business

3. Establishing Policy for Adequate Annual General Fund Contribution for Street
Maintenance to Prevent Deterioration of Pavement Condition
From: Councilmember Wengraf (Author), Councilmember Kesarwani (Author),
Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution establishing a Council fiscal policy to
allocate $8 million annually in General Fund monies for street maintenance, adjusted
annually for inflation. The allocation will augment the existing General Fund street
paving budget of $7.3 million, for a total of $15.3 million annually, adjusted for
inflation. The policy allows for suspension in any year in which there is a budget
deficit or emergency under two circumstances (1) the City Council draws upon $1
million (or more) from its Stabilization Reserve in order to adopt a final budget; or (2)
a two-thirds vote of the City Council.
This policy is needed to ensure that deferred street maintenance is supported by an
ongoing adequate General Fund contribution. Without adequate ongoing street
maintenance funding, analysis shows that a one-time infusion of resources will only
lead to a temporary improvement in the pavement condition.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160
Action: 5 speakers. M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to adopt Resolution No. 70,456—-N.S.
with the changes to resolved clauses noted in the underlined text below.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that a
fiscal policy is hereby established requiring the allocation of $8 million dollars
annually from the General Fund to the Street Maintenance Fund, in addition to the
existing baseline $7.3 million allocation, for a total amount of $15.3 million to be
adjusted annually for inflation using the greater of the cost of living in the immediate
San Francisco Bay Area or per capita personal income growth in the state, as
verified by official United States Bureau of Labor statistics, or other construction
index as recommended by the City Manager.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this fiscal policy to fund street maintenance at a
level of $15.3 million (as adjusted for inflation) may be suspended in any year in
which the City Council draws upon $1 million (or more) from the Stabilization
Reserve in order to adopt a final budget or by a two-thirds vote of the City Council.

Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 4 Page 70



Page 33 of 64

Action Calendar — New Business

4, Placing a General Obligation Bond Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot for
Affordable Housing, Climate Change Resiliency, Wildfire Protection, and Other
Public Infrastructure Improvements
From: City Manager
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution determining public interest and necessity for issuing a general
obligation bond in the amount of $300 million for affordable housing, climate change
resiliency, wildfire protection, and other public infrastructure improvements,
submitting to the Berkeley electorate on the November 8, 2022 ballot a measure to
authorize a general obligation bond in that amount, and finding that the proposed
measure is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: 15 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Kesarwani) to continue Item 4 to a special
meeting to be held on August 3 and provide direction to the City Manager to return
with a revised single bond measure in an amount from $600 million to $650 million,
and provide analysis of the various bond amounts, including average tax rate and
various bond terms. Bond measure text should categories the funding as noted
below.

$300 million — street paving, sidewalks, and complete streets

$150 million — affordable housing

$150 million — other public infrastructure, undergrounding on evacuation routes, civic
center improvements, infrastructure at the waterfront, the pier, parks, pools, or other
public infrastructure.

Vote: All Ayes.

5. Placing a Special Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Fund Street
Repairs, Sidewalk Repairs, and Traffic Safety Improvements; and Adopting the
Vision 2050 Program Plan
From: City Manager
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution submitting a ballot measure to fund street repairs, sidewalk
repairs, and traffic safety improvements to a vote of the electors at the November 8,
2022 General Municipal Election.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.

3. Adopt a Resolution adopting the Vision 2050 Program Plan.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: 6 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to take no action on ltem 5.

Vote: All Ayes.

Recess 5:59 p.m. - 6:15 p.m.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page5  page 71



Page 34 of 64

Action Calendar — New Business

6. Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax Vacant
Residential Units
From: City Manager
Recommendation:
1. Adopt a Resolution submitting a ballot measure to tax vacant residential units to a
vote of the electors at the November 8, 2022 General Municipal Election.
2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to accept revised materials from Vice-Mayor
Harrison on Item 6.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Action: 45 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to continue the item to the August 3
special meeting including revised material submitted at the meeting by Vice-Mayor
Harrison.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — Droste.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 8:56 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the special session
meeting held on July 26, 2022.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications
Item #6: Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax
Vacant Residential Units
1. Adriel Hampton
Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

e None

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page6  page 72



Page 35 of 64

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #4 Placing a General Obligation Bond Measure on the November 8, 2022
Ballot for Affordable Housing, Climate Change Resiliency, Wildfire Protection,
and Other Public Infrastructure Improvements

2. James McGrath

Item #6: Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax
Vacant Residential Units

Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Kelly Hammargren

The Berkeley Progressive Alliance

Sam Greenberg, on behalf of East Bay for Everyone, Telegraph for People, and Cal
Berkeley Democrats

o0k w

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #3: Establishing Policy for Adequate Annual General Fund Contributions for
Street Maintenance to Prevent Deterioration of Pavement Condition
7. Ben Gerhardstein, on behalf of Walk Bike Berkeley

Item #4 Placing a General Obligation Bond Measure on the November 8, 2022
Ballot for Affordable Housing, Climate Change Resiliency, Wildfire Protection,
and Other Public Infrastructure Improvements

8. Presentation, submitted by Public Works

9. Vanessa Marrero

10.Anne McClintock

11.Alejandro Garcia-Paredes

12.Rie Takahashi

13.Berkeley Tenants Union

14.Ignacio Dayrit

15.Karin Wertheim

16.Summer Brenner

17.La Fan

18.Chimey Lee

19. Michael Brown

20. Shelley Pitts

Item #6: Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax
Vacant Residential Units

21.Paola Laverde

22.Tracy Parent, on behalf of the Bay Area Community Land Trust

23.Robin Rattan

24.Sylvia Chapman

25.Julia Cato

26.Gale Garcia

27.Elana Auerbach

28.Bryce Nesbitt

29. Andrea Mullarkey, on behalf of SEIU 1021

30.Sandra Fini

31.Igor Tregub

32.Martin Nicolaus

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 7 Page 73



Page 36 of 64

33.lda Martinac
34.Diana Bohn
35.Jordan Burns

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page8  page 74



Page 37 of 64

Attachment 6
MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, July 26, 2022
6:00 PM
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City
Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php ?publish_id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89491193768. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename"” to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 894 9119 3768. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 1
Page 75



Page 38 of 64

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  9:00 p.m.

Present: Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin

Absent: None

Ceremonial Matters:
1. Recognition of Kathy Lee, Interim Director of Police Accountability, and 33-year City Employee

2. Recognition of the Excellent Work of the Independent Redistricting Commission
City Manager Comments: None

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 10 speakers.

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Iltems Only: 6 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to accept revised materials from Councilmember
Hahn for Item 32.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Councilmember Droste absent 9:31 p.m. — 10:22 p.m.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except
as indicated.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 2
Page 76


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89491193768
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 39 of 64

Consent Calendar

Zoning Ordinance Amendments Making Technical Edits and Corrections to
Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Title 23

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,830-N.S. containing
technical edits, corrections and other non-substantive amendments to the following
sections of the Zoning Ordinance:

BMC Section 23.202.140 (R-SMU Zoning District)

BMC Section 23.204.020 (Commercial Districts -- Allowed Land Uses)

BMC Section 23.204.030 (Additional Permit Requirements)

BMC Section 23.204.060 (C-U Zoning District)

BMC Section 23.204.130 (C-DMU District)

BMC Section 23.206.202 (Manufacturing Districts — Allowed Land Uses)

BMC Section 23.302.030 (Temporary Uses and Structures)

BMC Section 23.302.070 (Use-Specific Regulations)

BMC Section 23.404.040 (Public Notice)

BMC Section 23.502.020 (Glossary)

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf,
Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,830—-N.S.

N~~~

Resolution Reviewing and Ratifying the Proclamation of Local Emergency Due
to the Spread of a Severe Acute Respiratory lliness Caused by a Novel (New)
Coronavirus (COVID-19)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution reviewing the need for continuing the local
emergency due to the spread of a severe acute respiratory illness caused by a novel
(new) coronavirus (COVID-19) and ratifying the Proclamation of Local Emergency
issued by the Director of Emergency Services on March 3, 2020, initially ratified by
the City Council on March 10, 2020, and subsequently reviewed and ratified by the
Council on April 21, 2020, June 16, 2020, July 28, 2020, September 22, 2020,
November 17, 2020, December 15, 2020, February 9, 2021, March 30, 2021, May
25, 2021, July 20, 2021, September 14, 2021, December 14, 2021, February 8,
2022, March 22, 2022, May 10, 2022, and June 28, 2022.

Financial Implications: To be determined

Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, (510) 981-6950

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,457—-N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 3
Page 77



Page 40 of 64

Consent Calendar

Resolution Making Required Findings Pursuant to the Government Code and
Directing City Legislative Bodies to Continue to Meet Via Videoconference and
Teleconference

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution making the required findings pursuant to
Government Code Section 54953(e)(3) and determining that as a result of the
continued threat to public health and safety posed by the spread of COVID-19, City
legislative bodies shall continue to meet via videoconference and teleconference,
initially ratified by the City Council on September 28, 2021, and subsequently
reviewed and ratified on October 26, 2021, November 16, 2021, December 14, 2021,
January 10, 2022, February 8, 2022, March 8, 2022, March 22, 2022, April 12, 2022,
May 10, 2022, May 31, 2022, and June 28, 2022.

Financial Implications: To be determined

Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, (510) 981-6950

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,458-N.S.

Minutes for Approval

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of June 2
(special), June 13 (closed), June 14 (regular), June 21-4 p.m. (special), June 21-6
p.m. (special), June 27 (closed) and June 28 (regular).

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Mark Numainville, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6900

Action: Approved the minutes as submitted.

Downtown Berkeley YMCA for Fitness Center Memberships for City Employees
From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with the Downtown Berkeley YMCA in the amount of
$109,440, for fitness center memberships for City employees for the period July 1,
2022 through June 30, 2023.

Financial Implications: Payroll Deduction Trust Fund - $109,440

Contact: Sharon Friedrichsen, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,459—-N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 4
Page 78



Page 41 of 64

Consent Calendar

Contract: Lehr for Emergency Response Vehicle Supplies/Equipment and
Installation Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into
contract with Stommel Inc. dba Lehr, for emergency response vehicle
supplies/equipment and installation services, with the term of the contract from
August 1, 2022 to September 30, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $350,000. The
contract may be extended for up to five additional years and shall not exceed
$750,000 in total.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $750,000

Contact: David Sprague, Fire, (510) 981-3473

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,460—-N.S.

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Update
From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Mental Health Services Act
(MHSA) Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Annual Update (MHSA FY23 Annual Update), which
provides information on current and proposed uses of funds for mental health
programming, and forwarding the MHSA FY23 Annual Update to appropriate state
officials.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,461-N.S.

Contract No. 32200185 Amendment: Sonya Dublin Consulting to Provide
Evaluation Services

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32200185 with Sonya Dublin
Consulting to provide evaluation services, and any subsequent amendments or
extensions, to add $93,600 and bring the contract total to an amount not to exceed
$109,200 and extending the end date from June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2025.
Financial Implications: See report.

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,462—N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 5
Page 79



Page 42 of 64

Consent Calendar

10.

Shelter Plus Care Program Renewal Grants

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to receive
funds and execute any agreements and amendments resulting from the renewal of
the following grants: 1. Two Shelter Plus Care grants from U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD): a) $3,949,021 for Supportive Housing
Collaborative Project (SHC) for the period June 1, 2022 through May 31, 2023; b)
$2,327,914 for COACH Project (COACH) for the period of January 1, 2022 through
December 31, 2022. 2. One grant from HUD administered through the County of
Alameda for $881,045 to provide tenant-based rental assistance to individuals who
are chronically homeless and disabled from March 1, 2022 through February 28,
2023.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,463—-N.S.

Contract Amendments: Mental Health Services Act Community Services and
Supports, and Prevention and Early Intervention

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt ten Resolutions authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute amendments for the following contracts that are funded through
Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Community Services and Supports (CSS) and
Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI); increasing the contract amounts as outlined
below; totaling $1,571,966 and extending the contracts through June 30, 2023:

1. Increasing CSS Contract No. 100042-1 with Lakehurst Hall by $36,000 for a total
contract amount not to exceed $185,500 for Room Rental Fees for Berkeley Mental
Health clients;

2. Increasing CSS Contract No. 108800-1 with Bay Area Hearing Voices Network by
$46,941 for a total contract amount not to exceed $184,855 for hearing voices
support groups;

3. Increasing CSS Contract No. 31900132 with Building Opportunities for Self-
Sufficiency by $100,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $400,000 for
representative payee services;

4. Increasing CSS Contract No. 32200130 with Alameda County Behavioral Health
Care Services by $491,933 for a total contract amount not to exceed $983,866 for
Wellness Center operations;

5. Increasing CSS and PEI Contract No. 32000094 with Youth Spirit Artworks by
$100,000 for Transition Age Youth case management and linkage services, and
$32,046 for trauma support services. This amendment also includes $78,000 for Tiny
House Village services, which is non-MHSA funding, for a total contract amount not
to exceed $737,092;

6. Increasing PEI Contract No. 32000240 with Berkeley Unified School District by
$355,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,347,778 for services to
support Berkeley students;

7. Increasing PEI Contract No. 088999-1 with Center for Independent Living by
$32,046 for a total contract amount not to exceed $352,722 for services to support

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 6

Page 80



Page 43 of 64

Consent Calendar

Older Adults;

8. Increasing PEI Contract No. 052129-1 with Pacific Center for Human Growth by
$100,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $515,150 for services to support
the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer/Questioning, Agender, Plus
(LGBTQIA+) population;

9. Increasing PEI Contract No. 32200146 with OnTrack Program Resources by
$100,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $175,000 for services to support
African Americans; and

10. Increasing PEI Contract No. 3200111 with East Bay Sanctuary Covenant by
$100,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $200,000 for services to support
the Latinx/Latina/Latino population.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Health, Housing, and Community Services, (510) 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,464—N.S. (Contract No. 100042-1), Resolution
No. 70,465—-N.S. (Contract No. 108800-1), Resolution No. 70,466—N.S. (Contract No.
31900132), Resolution No. 70,467—N.S. (Contract No. 32200130), Resolution No.
70,468—-N.S. (Contract No. 32000094), Resolution No. 70,469-N.S. (Contract No.
32000240), Resolution No. 70,470-N.S. (Contract No. 088999-1), Resolution No.
70,471-N.S. (Contract No. 052129-1), Resolution No. 70,472—-N.S. (Contract No.
32200146), and Resolution No. 70,473—-N.S. (Contract No. 3200111).

11. Revision of the Tool Lending Specialist Classification to Reflect an Accurate
Scope of Duties with a Four Percent (4%) Salary Increase
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the revision of the Tool Lending
Specialist job specification to accurately reflect the scope of duties and to increase
the current salary schedule by four percent (4%) effective March 16, 2021 or the
employee’s start date, if more recent.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Tess Mayer, Library, (510) 981-6100
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,474—N.S.

12. Contract No. 32100168 Amendment: Robert Half International/Protiviti for
Professional Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32100168 to increase spending authority with Robert
Half International/Protiviti for professional services in support of the cyber-resilience
projects in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 using the General Services Agency’s (GSA)
purchasing vehicle no. GS-35F-0280X to increase the contract by $312,000 for a
total amount not to exceed $552,432 through June 30, 2023.
Financial Implications: General Fund - $312,000
Contact: Michael Sinor, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,475—-N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 7

Page 81



Page 44 of 64

Consent Calendar

13. Contract No. 7167M Amendment: Superion, LLC for AS400 Software
Maintenance and Support
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 7167M with Superion, LLC for software maintenance and support of the
City's FUND$ system on the AS400 platform, increasing the contract amount by
$154,927 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $2,549,483 from July 1, 2006 through
June 30, 2023.
Financial Implications: IT Cost Allocation Fund - $154,927
Contact: Michael Sinor, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,476—N.S.

14.  Protiviti Government Services: Using General Services Administration (GSA)
Vehicle for Professional Services Purchase Orders
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to issue
purchase orders with Protiviti Government Services for the purchase of professional
services using the General Services Agency’s (GSA) purchasing vehicle no. GS-
35F-0280X for an amount not to exceed $350,000 through September 30, 2023.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $350,000
Contact: Michael Sinor, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,477—-N.S.

15. Contract No. 047162-1 Amendment: ESI Group for the IBM Hardware and
Software Lease
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 047162-1 with ESI Group for leasing, maintenance, and technical
support for International Business Machines (IBM) hardware lease and software
maintenance and support, increasing the current contract by $140,000, for a total not
to exceed $2,294,769 from June 2, 2003 through June 30, 2023
Financial Implications: IT Cost Allocation - $140,000
Contact: Michael Sinor, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,478—-N.S.

16. Donation: New Sign at Berkeley Waterfront - from Caltrans
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving a donation of a new sign from
Caltrans to be placed at the entrance to the Berkeley Waterfront with a value up to
$250,000.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,479-N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 8
Page 82



Page 45 of 64

Consent Calendar

17. Contract: AE3 Partners, Inc. for Architectural Services for the African American
Holistic Resource Center
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
not-to-exceed $900,000 contract with AE3 Partners, Inc. for architectural services for
the African American Holistic Resource Center (AAHRC) for a contract period of
August 1, 2022 through July 31, 2025.
Financial Implications: Measure IT Phase 2 Funds - $900,000
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,480—-N.S.

18. Extension of Exclusive Negotiating Agreement with Innovation Properties
Group for 199 Seawall Drive
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an Amended and Restated Exclusive Negotiating Agreement
(ENA) with Innovation Properties Group (IPG), extending the existing ENA for 9
months with two 3-month options to work toward a long-term lease of City property at
199 Seawall Drive and short-term lease to activate a portion of the adjacent parking
lot.
Financial Implications: See report.
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,481-N.S.

19. Approval of Funds for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations at Tuolumne Camp
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to allocate up
to $350,000 to add electric vehicle charging stations at Tuolumne Camp.
Financial Implications: See report.
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,482—N.S.

20. Accept Grant Funding from the California Highway Patrol (CHP) Cannabis Tax
Fund Grant Program to Reduce Impaired Driving in the City of Berkeley
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager, or designee,
to accept the “Cannabis Tax Fund Grant (CTFGP)” and enter into the resultant grant
agreement and any amendments to fund impaired driving detection/investigation
training for officers, community educational programs and supplemental impaired
driving enforcement. The tentative grant allocation is for $112,337 for the period of
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,483—-N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 9

Page 83



Page 46 of 64

Consent Calendar

21. Contract No. 32000078 Amendment DC Electric Group, Inc. for On-Call
Electrical Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 32000078 with DC Electric Group, Inc. for on-call electrical services,
increasing the current contract by $100,000 for a total not to exceed amount of
$175,000 and extending the contract through June 30, 2025.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $100,000
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,484—-N.S.

22. Contract No. 098713-1 (9488D) Amendment: Berry Brothers Towing for On-Call
Towing Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 098713-1 with Berry Brothers Towing to provide towing
services for the City’s Fleet equipment and vehicles, increasing the contract amount
by $75,000 for a new not to exceed amount of $255,000 and extending the contract
end date to June 30, 2025.
Financial Implications: Equipment Maintenance Fund - $75,000
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,485—-N.S.

23. Contract No. 32000128 Amendment: Wood Environment & Infrastructure
Solutions, Inc. for On-Call Environmental Consulting Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32000128 with Wood Environment & Infrastructure
Solutions, Inc. to increase the contract for on-call environmental consulting services
by $400,000 for a new not to exceed amount of $700,000 and extend the contract
term through November 30, 2025.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $400,000
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,486—N.S.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 10
Page 84



Page 47 of 64

Consent Calendar

24. Contract No. 32100072 Amendment: CycloMedia Technology, Inc. for
Geographic Information System Infrastructure Data
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 32100072 with CycloMedia Technology Inc. for
Geographic Information System Infrastructure asset data acquisition and ongoing
data access to increase the contract amount by $100,000 for an amount not to
exceed $287,401, adopt the use policy, and extend the contract term through
December 30, 2025.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $100,000
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300, Michael Sinor, Information
Technology, (510) 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,487—N.S.

25. Grant Application: Highway Safety Improvement Program Cycle 11
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a
grant application to the California Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)
Cycle 11 for the following project: Protected Left-Turn Signals at multiple signalized
intersections for up to $6 million, and accept the grant if awarded, and execute any
resultant agreements and amendments.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Liam Garland, Public Works, (510) 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,488—-N.S.

26. Approval of Additional Disaster and Fire Safety Commission Meeting
From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the request from the Disaster and
Fire Safety Commission to hold one additional meeting in calendar year 2022.
Financial Implications: Staff time
Contact: Keith May, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-3473
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,489-N.S.

Council Consent Items

27. Authorize Three Additional Meetings in 2022 for the Homeless Services Panel
of Experts
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author)
Recommendation: Authorize three additional meetings for the Homeless Services
Panel of Experts for the calendar year, 2022.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 11
Page 85



Page 48 of 64

Council Consent Items

28. Resolution Supporting the Living Wage Act of 2022
From: Councilmember Robinson (Author), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution supporting the Living Wage Act of 2022 to
increase the California state-wide minimum wage to $18 on a gradual timeline.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 70,490-N.S.

Action Calendar — Old Business

29. Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and
Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers (Continued from
May 12, 2020. Item contains revised and supplemental materials)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology
Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic
License Plate Readers submitted pursuant to Chapter 2.99 of the Berkeley Municipal
Code.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900

Action: Item continued to September 13, 2022. Item includes revised material in
Supplemental Communications Packet #1 from Councilmember Harrison.

30. Police Equipment & Community Safety Ordinance Impact Statements,
Associated Equipment Policies and Annual Equipment Use Report (Continued
from June 21, 2022) (Iltem contains supplemental and revised material)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Controlled Equipment Impact
Statements, Associated Equipment Use Policies and Equipment.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jennifer Louis, Police, (510) 981-5900

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar to approve the recommendation and accept the
report of the Police Accountability Board in Supplemental Communications Packet
#2 approving the revised Policy 709 and determining that none of the other
associated equipment policies require revision at this time.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 12
Page 86



Page 49 of 64

Action Calendar — Old Business

31. Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76) (Continued
from July 12, 2022)

From: 4 x 4 Joint Committee on Housing City Council/Rent Board
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution placing the proposed amendments to the Rent Stabilization
and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance on the ballot of the November 8, 2022
General Municipal Election.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Matt Brown, Rent Stabilization Board, (510) 981-7368

Action: Referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee for future scheduling.

32. Restoring and Improving Access to City of Berkeley Website and Archival
Materials (Continued from July 12, 2022)
From: Councilmember Hahn (Author), Councilmember Taplin (Co-Sponsor),
Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Harrison (Co-Sponsor)
Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to:
1. Restore at previous URLs all PDF documents previously hosted on the City of
Berkeley website.
2. Create a publicly accessible archival copy of the City’s previous website,
CityofBerkeley.info, that can be accessed without logins and via internet search
engines. Include a prominent disclaimer noting the date the website, page, or
document was archived, with links redirecting to the active website or other
responsive resource.
3. On the new website, update Commission pages to include a minimum of 2 years
of historic agendas and other materials and update City Council and Council
Committee pages to include at least 3 years of complete materials.
4. By July 15, 2022 develop and make available to all City staff and to the public
training at beginner to expert levels on use of the City’s Records Online search
function and create more extensive and less technical self-help resources covering
basic and expert use.
5. In recognition of increased public traffic, update the Records Online homepage to
explain how the portal works and link to more robust self-help resources and
alternative search functions.
6. Coordinate with agency staff to include all relevant records (agendas, minutes,
etc.) from Rent Board and Housing Authority in Records Online Portal.
7. Update any remaining 404 pages to explain that the City’s website has been
moved/updated, and provide links to helpful pages, search functions and/or
pathways to access responsive materials. As quickly as possible, consider
implementing redirects with wildcards to direct as many old links to relevant new
website pages in lieu of the standard 404 page. E.g. cityofberkeley.info/planning* to
the Planning Department site map/homepage, or Department Specific 404 page
explaining new navigation.
Refer to the City Manager the following additional improvements to Records Online:

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 13
Page 87



Page 50 of 64

Action Calendar — Old Business

1. Within Records Online, provide unique archival/search categories for each City
Commission, Board, Committee and Rent Board, and consider other useful
categories, to assist users in narrowing results and identifying responsive materials.
2. Allow Records Online search results to be sorted by date and by other searchable
factors. Consider means to integrate records online into default site search bar.

3. Explore and report back to Council options for improving the scope of Records
Online, improving search options and sorting, and making all materials — or materials
from January 1, 2000 (or an earlier recommended date) forward, searchable using
internet search engines.

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150

Action: M/S/Failed (Robinson/Harrison) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting
to 11:45 p.m.

Vote: Ayes — Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — Kesarwani,
Taplin, Wengraf, Droste.

Action: Referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee for future scheduling.

Information Reports

33. Sanctuary City Contracting Compliance Report for FY 2021
From: City Manager
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300
Action: Received and filed.

34. LPO NOD: 2733 Buena Vista Way/#LMSAP2022-0004
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400
Action: Received and filed.

35. LPO NOD: 2200-block of Piedmont Avenue/#LMSAP2019-0009
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400
Action: Received and filed.

36. LPO NOD: 8 Greenwood Common/#LMSAP2022-0002
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400
Action: Received and filed.

37. LPO NOD: 2113 Kittredge Street/#LMIN2022-0001
From: City Manager
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400
Action: Received and filed.

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 14
Page 88



38.

39.

Page 51 of 64

Information Reports

From: Commission on Aging

Contact: Richard Castrillon, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5190

Action: Received and filed.

From: Auditor

Contact: Jenny Wong, Auditor, (510) 981-6750

Action: Received and filed.

2022 Commission on Aging Work Plan

City Auditor Fiscal Year 2023 Audit Plan

Public Comment — Iltems Not Listed on the Agenda — 0 speakers.

Adjournment

Adjourned at 11:00 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular session

meeting held on July 26, 2022.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Commendations of the Berkeley Police Department
1. Katherine Lee, Interim Director of Police Accountability

Berkeley Marina Area Specific Plan (BMASP) + Cesar Chavez Park

Susan Black
Helen Canin
Maud Engel
Carol Denney
Summer Brenner
Gael Alcock
Margaret Fouda

. Donald Stang and Helen Wickes
10. Wini Williams
11.Paul Litsky
12.Edward Vine
13.Jamie Brown
14.Bobbi Sloan
15.Diane Mintz
16.Llyana Landes
17.Sally Nelson
18.Micky Duxbury

©CoOoONOORWN

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES

Page 15

Page 89



Page 52 of 64

19.Bob Herman

20.T. Anne Richards
21.Terry ToczynsKi
22.Alan K

23.Jane White
24.Antonio Guzman
25.Kevin James
26.Linda Kroll and Dennis Creek
27.Tanja Schlosser
28.Kathryn Ruiz
29.Save CC (Cesar Chavez Park)
30.Tom Reilly
31.Michele Ritterman
32.Lex Morris
33.Sharran Zeleke
34.Darah Daniels
35.Carl Dellar
36.Diana Bohn
37.Marcy Darnovsky
38.llya Ganelin
39.Susan Tomasello
40.Charles Wilson
41.Rachel Bradley

42 . Kate Greswold
43.Ernest Isaccs
44.Ginny Garrett

45. Carlos Hill

46. Tamara Birdsall
47.Robert Blomberg (2)
48.Barbara Rydlander
49.dougdohrer@

50. City Manager’s Office (14)

IKE Kiosks

51.Elsa Tranter
52.Rebecca Dahlberg
53. Judith Brown
54.Judi Doyle

55.Lisa Titus

56.Vicki Sommer
57.1sabel Samaras
58.Heather Hernandez (2)
59.Betsy Bigelow-Teller
60.Karen Eisenstadt
61.Mimi Moungovan
62.Paul Jacobs

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES

Page 16

Page 90



Page 53 of 64

63.Nancy Lichtenstein
64.Pat Hill

65. Cece Littlepage
66.Lisa Tsering
67.Roya Arasteh
68. Carol Vertel
69.Lissa Miner
70.Joan Hart
71.Diana Damonte
72.Karen Nierlich
73.Carol Bledsoe
74.Janet Coleman
75.Maulin Chokshi
76.Mayilyn Siegel
77.Soula Culver
78.Miranda Ewell
79.Morton Cohn

80. Sally Hughes
81.Judy Dale
82.Charles Siegel
83. Josephine Gallup
84.Karen Eisenstadt
85.Bryce Nesbitt
86.David Durbin
87.Susan Taylor
88.Todd Andrew

People’s Park
89. Summer Brenner

90. Shella Benevides, on behalf of Resources for Community Development

Hopkins Street Corridor
91. Stephen Alpert
92.Rachel Bradley

93. Carol Benioff

94.Ann May

95.Sally Adams

Biking and Concrete Blobs
96. Maris Arnold

High Rises Destroying Our City of Berkeley
97.Carole Gill

1201-1205 San Pablo Avenue
98.Yvette Bozzini (2)

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES

Page 17

Page 91



Page 54 of 64

Berkeley Federation of Teachers School Board Endorsements
99. Matty Meyer

Train Noise
100. Maria Kolakowska
101. Councilmember Kesarwani

Street Project Confusion at Prince and Dana
102. Dorothy Hale

Low Income Housing
103. Virginia Browning
104. Councilmember Harrison

Pedestrian Safety at the Intersection of Addison and Martin Luther King
105. Charles Siegel, on behalf of Walk Bike Berkeley

Crime in Berkeley
106. Dan Auten
Vacancy Tax

107. Diana Bohn

Berkeley Restaurant Inspections
108. David Lerman

Rodeway Inn Residents Trashing Neighborhood
109. Dolores Cortez

Pentagon Budget
110. Jack Kurzweil

Small Building Owners Paying for Large Developments
111. Dan Auten

Harriet Tubman Tenants Issues
112. M. Mendonca

Tenant Opportunity to Purchase Act
113. Paul Gumpel

114. Diana Bohn

115. Janice Schroeder

116. Ariana Thompson-Lastad

117. Patricia Hall

118. 21 similarly-worded form letters

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 18

Page 92



Page 55 of 64

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #29: Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and
Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers
119. Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Item #31: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)
120. Revised material, submitted by the City Attorney’s Office
121. Margery Lackman

122. Dand and Karen Williams-Null

123. Norma Harrison

124. Julieta Pisani McCarthy

125. Sharon Ptashek

126. Cris Benton

127. Jonathan Beck

128. Shua Chai

129. Suzanna Reiss-Koncar

130. Sasha Futran (2)

131. Michele Muennig

132. Sara Hartley

133. Erica Cleary

134. Marion Hunt

135. Susan Fritz

136. Jean Mudge

137. Lilana Spindler

138. Rosina Keren

139. Toni Mester

Item #32: Restoring and Improving Access to City of Berkeley Website and
Archival Materials

140. David Lerman

141. Anne M.

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #17 Contract: AE3 Partners, Inc. for Architectural Services for the African
American Holistic Resource Center
142. Eric Friedman

Item #30: Police Equipment & Community Safety Ordinance Impact Statements,
Associated Equipment Policies and Annual Equipment Use Report
143. Supplemental material, submitted by the Police Accountability Board

Item #31: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)

144. Lilana Spindler

145. Keith Nickolaus

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 19



Page 56 of 64

146. Lisa Handwerker

147. Tobey M. Wiebe

148. Judy MaclLean

149. Marguerite Talley

150. Sam Greenberg, on behalf of East Bay for Everyone, Telegraph for People, and
Cal Berkeley Democrats

151. Sandra Smith

152. Lauren Schiller

153. Laura Webb

154. Chris Gilbert

155. Erica Cleary

156. Alison Simon

157. Chris Chen

158. Martha Kariv

159. Debbie Woods

160. Bryce Nesbitt

161. Daniel Frydman (2)

162. Rie Takahashi

163. Janice Schroeder

164. Elana Auerbach

165. Negeene Mosaed

166. Diana Bohn

167. Terri Saul

168. Anne Smith

169. May Kandarian

170. Julia Cato

171. Kate Harrison

172. Rachel Bradley

173. G Mathias Kondolf

174. Jeanne Clinton

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #17 Contract: AE3 Partners, Inc. for Architectural Services for the African
American Holistic Resource Center
175. Toni Mester

Item #31: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)

176. Paola Laverde

177. Julio Cato (2)

178. Sandy Hrdlicka

179. Suzanne Joi

180. Kathleen Lee Verani

181. Vanessa Marrero

182. Charlie Benton

183. James Furuichi

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES Page 20
Page 94



Page 57 of 64

184. Jesus Mejia

185. Claudia Benton

186. Scott Curtin

187. Martine Glaros

188. Ayden Winter

189. Jo Ann Driscoll

190. Margery Lackman

191. Vivian Yu

192. Roger Hallsten

193. Ana Perches Perez
194. Ocea Savage

195. Alison Lingo

196. Chana Kronfeld

197. Anne Smith

198. Dobee Snowber

199. Vivian Yu

200. Andy DeGiovanni

201. Yvonne Weiss

202. Arthur Corelli

203. Berkeley Tenants Union
204. Karen Gosling

205. Carole Pertofsky

206. Sarah Baughn

207. Mary Richerson

208. Ira Serkes

209. Yvonne Burgress

210. Andrea Mullarkely, on behalf of SEIU 1021
211. James Corr

212. Julieta Pisani McCarthy
213. Caroline Woods-Mejia
214. Beth Auclair

215. Mary West

216. Sandra Fini

217. Michael Frantz

218. Dana Gerstein

219. H. DeMarco

220. Devyani Jain and Tanu Sankalia
221. Deborah Machta

222. Dana Perls

223. Jacqueline Zeigler

224. Erin Chalmers

225. Ellen Kramer

226. Fentress Hill

227. Keith Nickolaus

228. Crystal Brunzell

229. Steven Lipson

Tuesday, July 26, 2022 MINUTES

Page 21

Page 95



Page 58 of 64

Attachment 7
MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
Wednesday, August 3, 2022
9:00 AM
JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:
DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City
Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php ?publish_id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https.://us02web.zoom.us/j/81806496183. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename"” to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the ‘raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 818 0649 6183. If
you wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any
member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark
Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the
Agenda. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time
to be specified.

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 1 Page 96



Page 59 of 64

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  9:07 a.m.
Present: Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin

Absent: Droste

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: 5 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Bartlett/Wengraf) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except as
indicated.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

1. Additional Allocation of Measure P Funding to “Step Up Housing” Project
From: Councilmember Bartlett (Author), Councilmember Wengraf (Co-
Sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (Co-Sponsor)

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution allocating an additional $114,660 per year
for 10 years, from Measure P transfer tax receipts to support the increased costs for
the lease and operation of a new permanent supportive housing project for the
unhoused at the Step-Up Housing Project at 1367 University Avenue. In addition,
refer to the next meeting of the Budget and Finance Policy Committee to confirm the
availability of requested funding.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, (510) 981-7130

Action: 1) Referred to the Budget & Finance Committee to consider future General
Fund needs for this project and confirm availability of funds for the operating budget.

2) Adopted Resolution No. 70,491-N.S. with an amended first Resolved clause as
written below.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that

the following be approved for the StepUp Housing at 1367 University Ave:

» A reservation of approximately an additional $114,660 year in ongoing funds

annually for 10 years for the leasing and operation of the proposed project, with

funding adjusted annually based on the Consumer Price Index for Oakland-Hayward-

Berkeley, CA.

e Funding may be from Measure P and/or the General Fund

e In the event BOSS is unable to perform its function as the service provider, an

alternative qualified service provider may operate the project with the review and

approval of the City Manager, or her designee.

e Further, the City’s commitment is contingent upon the funding of the balance of the

project.

e Owner agrees to grant the City option to buy property after one year, at a cost not
to exceed $15,000,000 should Boss choose not to exercise its option.

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 2 Page 97


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81806496183
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

Page 60 of 64

Action Calendar

2. Placing a General Obligation Bond Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot for
Affordable Housing, Climate Change Resiliency, Wildfire Protection, and Other
Public Infrastructure Improvements (Continued from July 26, 2022) (Iltem contains
revised material)

From: City Manager

Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution determining public interest and necessity for issuing a general

obligation bond in the amount of either $600 million or $650 million for affordable

housing, climate change resiliency, wildfire protection, and other public infrastructure

improvements, submitting to the Berkeley electorate on the November 8, 2022 ballot

a measure to authorize a general obligation bond in that amount, and finding that the

proposed measure is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure

arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: 26 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Kesarwani) to:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 70,492—N.S. as submitted by the Mayor in Supplemental

Communications Packet #2, and as further amended below, determining public

interest and necessity for issuing a general obligation bond in the amount of $650

million for affordable housing, climate change resiliency, wildfire protection, and other

public infrastructure improvements, submitting to the Berkeley electorate on the

November 8, 2022 ballot a measure to authorize a general obligation bond in that

amount, and finding that the proposed measure is not a project under the California

Environmental Quality Act.

¢ Amended to add language in section B.2. of the third resolved clause regarding
funds for traffic safety.

¢ Amended the ballot question to read as written below.
Shall the measure to create affordable housing; repair streets and sidewalks;
underground utilities; and enhance buildings, infrastructure, and safety, authorizing
the issuance of $650 million in general obligation bonds, subject to independent
oversight and audits, be adopted?

Financial Implications
Median annual cost over the projected 48-year period bonds are outstanding is
approximately $40.91 for every $100,000 or $265 for the average assessed home

value of $647,000; raising approximately $25,000,000/year.
e Amended to add clarification of the “mean” cost in the Tax Rate Statement and
make other corresponding changes to the Tax Rate Statement text.

2. Designate Mayor Arreguin and Councilmembers Hahn, Wengraf, and Kesarwani
to file ballot measure arguments on behalf of the City Council on this measure.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson,
Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Droste.

Recess 12:06 p.m. — 12:22 p.m.

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 3 Page 98



Page 61 of 64

Action Calendar

3. Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax Vacant
Residential Units (Continued from July 26, 2022) (Item contains revised material)
From: City Manager
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution submitting a ballot measure to tax vacant residential units to a
vote of the electors at the November 8, 2022 General Municipal Election.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900

Action: 37 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 70,493—-N.S. as revised in the agenda packet materials from
Vice-Mayor Harrison and further amended at the meeting in Sections 7.54.060,
7.54.050, 7.54.070, 7.54.040 paragraphs F and I, and amending the ballot question
to read as noted below.

Shall the measure to tax property owners who keep residential units vacant more than 182 days per
year, $3,000 for each nonexempt condominium, duplex, single family dwelling, or townhouse vacant
unit in the first year, increasing to $6,000 for each subsequent year, and $6,000 for all other
residential units vacant in the first year, increasing to $12,000 for each subsequent year, with
exceptions, from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2034, generating between $3,900,000 and
$5,900,000 annually, be adopted?

2. Designate Vice-Mayor Harrison and Councilmember Robinson to file ballot
measure arguments on behalf of the City Council on this measure.

Vote: Ayes - Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — Wengraf; Abstain
— Kesarwani, Taplin; Absent — Droste.

Recess 2:27 p.m. — 2:43 p.m.

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 4 Page 99



Page 62 of 64

Action Calendar

4,

Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76) (ltem
contains revised material)

From: 4 x 4 Joint Committee on Housing City Council/Rent Board
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution placing the proposed amendments to the Rent Stabilization
and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance on the ballot of the November 8, 2022
General Municipal Election.

2. Designate, by motion, specific members of the Council to file ballot measure
arguments on this measure as provided for in Elections Code Section 9282.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Matt Brown, Rent Stabilization Board, (510) 981-7368

Recess 4:46 p.m. — 4:52 p.m.

Action: 44 speakers. M/S/C (Harrison/Bartlett) to include #3 from the Rent Board
proposal regarding suspension of rent control in the ballot measure.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Hahn, Droste.

Councilmember Hahn absent 2:27 p.m. — 5:09 p.m.

Action: M/S/Failed (Harrison/Bartlett) to include #1 from the Rent Board proposal
regarding newly constructed units in the ballot measure.

Vote: Ayes — Bartlett, Harrison, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes — Wengraf; Abstain —
Kesarwani, Taplin; Absent — Hahn, Droste.

Action: M/S/Carried (Taplin/Kesarwani) to take no action on Agenda Item 4.
Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Hahn, Droste.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Hahn, Droste.

Adjourned at 5:09 p.m.

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the special session
meeting held on August 3, 2022.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 5

Page 100



Page 63 of 64

Communications

Item #3. Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 200 Ballot to Tax
Vacant Residential Units

Barbara Gilbert

Lynnda Ohama

Harvey Sharp

Jim Furuichi

Adriel Hampton

Carole Marasovic

IS o o

Item #4. Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)

7. Elaine Bloom

8. Michael O’'Heaney

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
e None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #2: Placing a General Obligation Bond Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot
for Affordable Housing, Climate Change Resiliency, Wildfire Protection, and Other
Public Infrastructure Improvements

9. Supplemental material, submitted by councilmember Taplin

10.Revised material, submitted by Finance

11.Supplemental material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #3: Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax
Vacant Residential Units
12.Barbara Gilbert
13.Berkeley Tenants Union
14.Walter Wood

15.Rie Takahashi

16. Toni Mester

17.Michael Brown
18.Sydney Ji

19.Karin Wertheim

20.May Kandarian

Item #4: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)
21.Sanders Political Law

22.Barbara Gilbert

23.Gail Martin

24 .Berkeley Tenants Union

25.Toni Mester

26.Francie Maguire

27.Erica Cleary

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 6 Page 101



Page 64 of 64

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #2: Placing a General Obligation Bond Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot
for Affordable Housing, Climate Change Resiliency, Wildfire Protection, and Other

Public Infrastructure Improvements
28. Geoff Lomax (3)

29.Henry Oyekanmi

30.Tom Lent

31.Eric Friedman

32.Isabelle Gaston

33.Derethia DuVal

34.Thomas Luce

35. Josh Buswell-Charkow
36.Barbara Gilbert

Item #3: Placing a General Tax Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot to Tax
Vacant Residential Units

37.Warren Pottebaum

38.Jack Kurzweil, on behalf of the Wellstone Democratic Renewal Club

39. Cecilia Lunaparra, on behalf of the Cal Berkeley Democrats

40.Chimey Lee

41.lgor Tregub, on behalf of the Alameda County Democratic Party

42.Barbara Gilbert (2)

Item #4: Placing a Measure on the November 8, 2022 Ballot Amending the Rent
Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance (B.M.C. 13.76)
43.Jo Ann Driscoll

44 Keith Nickolaus

45.Bryce Nesbitt

46. Scott Curtin (2)

47.Daniel Frydman

48.Dawn Thomas

49.Sarah Valor

50.Cheryl Newbrough

51.Erin Chambers

52.Shua Chai

53.Keith Nickolaus

54.Barbara Gilbert (2)

55. Councilmember Harrison

Wednesday, August 3, 2022 MINUTES Page 7

Page 102



Page 1 of 4

05

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Deputy City Manager

Subject: Contract: Municipal Resource Group for Addressing Impacts Resulting from
Great Resignation

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract, with any
amendments, with Municipal Resource Group (MRG) for professional services needed
to respond to the impacts within the City as a result of the Great Resignation’. Total
contract direct costs will not exceed $87,675.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The anticipated expenditure for the work provided under this contract is $87,675, as
demonstrated in the table below. Funding for a portion of the work anticipated to be
performed under this contract is available in the City Manager’s Office FY 2023 budget
in the General Fund (Fund 011). The additional funding in the amount of $67,675 will be
recommended for appropriation through the first amendment to the appropriations
ordinance in the General Fund (Fund 011).

Deliverable Cost

Kickoff meeting $2,500
Best practices review $5,000
Conduct meetings (onsite) $40,000
Facilitate strategy session $8,000
Develop draft recommendations $7,500
Review draft recommendations $2,500
Present draft recommendations to Council $4,000
Prepare final recommendations $1,500
Travel and expenses $12,500
5% Contingency $4,175

" The “Great Resignation” is an ongoing economic trend whereby many employees are voluntarily leaving
(i.e., resigning) their places of employment.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 103
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 4

Approve Expenditure Contract for Consultant CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

Total $87,675

Projected contract costs total $83,500. Due to potential variability in some of the costs,
the not-to-exceed contract cost includes a five percent contingency, resulting in a total
recommended not-to-exceed cost of $87,675.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The work under this contract would directly support our City’s Strategic Plan goal to
attract and retain a talented and diverse City government workforce. The COVID-19
pandemic continues to have myriad impacts on our community and the world—including
the phenomenon known as the Great Resignation. The Great Resignation is a term
used to describe a recently developed and ongoing trend of employees voluntarily
leaving their places of employment. Traditional means of recruiting, retaining, and
engaging employees are proving insufficient to address this trend. Jurisdictions around
the country, including the City of Berkeley, need to understand this trend and associated
changes, identify and tailor methods of recruiting, retaining and engaging employees,
and to plan for future workforce development. Employers that are not acknowledging
this trend and quickly adapting may be at danger of losing excellent employees and
being unable to retain or compete for top talent.

BACKGROUND

On September 4, 2018, the City of Berkeley engaged into a contract with Municipal
Resource Group (MRG) for a Human Resources Departmental Assessment. The
contract was subsequently extended through June 2021. During the course of
assessment, MRG gained knowledge and background and contextual understanding of
the City organization and workforce. For the purposes of continuity and consistency, it is
in the City’s best interest to utilize MRG for the next phase of Human Resources
adaptations and improvements. MRG should be able to quickly build upon its past work
in the City and develop recommendations for how to adapt Human Resources methods
and practices to best address the Great Resignation.

There is a need for this work to begin immediately. The City organization is already
experiencing some impacts from the Great Resignation, as evidenced in high vacancy
rates citywide.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Through remote work and relying heavily on technology, the City will minimize purchase
of consumable items, such as paper and toner, and by minimizing travel related to this
work, will be able keep the City’s carbon footprint to a minimum.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Allowing the City Manager to enter into a contract with MRG for addressing impacts
resulting from the Great Resignation has numerous advantages:

Page 2 Page 104



Page 3 of 4

Approve Expenditure Contract for Consultant CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

e Based upon past work references and experience, staff has found MRG to be a
good fit for the City organization.

e Having recent experience with the City organization, particularly the Human
Resources department, MRG will be able to quickly leverage that knowledge to
provide actionable recommendations.

e Actionable recommendations will give the City the ability to pivot and adapt to
address the impacts of the Great Resignation and improve recruitment and
retention.

e Addressing the impacts of the Great Resignation now will put the City slightly
“ahead of the curve” among its peers and other local jurisdictions, increasing its
competitiveness as an “employer of choice”.

e Using this trend as an opportunity for long range planning, MRG’s work and
recommendations will help the City prepare for future workforce development.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The City may choose to pursue no action. A lack of action or postponing action will likely
result in continued workforce impacts from the Great Resignation.

CONTACT PERSON
LaTanya Bellow, Deputy City Manager, City Manager’s Office, 510-981-7012

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 3 Page 105



Page 4 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: MUNICIPAL RESOURCE GROUP FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO
RESPOND TO THE IMPACTS OF THE GREAT RESIGNATION

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley contracted with Municipal Resource Group to conduct a
Human Resources department assessment; and

WHEREAS, Municipal Resource Group has recent and relevant experience, knowledge
and background with and of the City organization; and

WHEREAS, the City organization is experiencing workforce impacts from the Great
Resignation and seeks recommendations for the Human Resources department to best
address those impacts; and

WHEREAS, for the purposes of continuity and consistency it is in the best interest of the
City to utilize Municipal Resource Group for the next phase of Human Resources
department adaptations and improvements.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute a professional services contract, including any
amendments, with Municipal Resource Group to respond to the impacts of the Great
Resignation, for direct costs of $87,675, funded by the General Fund.

Page 106



Page 1 of 3

06

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

SEPTEMBER 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Peter Radu, Assistant to the City Manager

Subject: Contract No. 32100053 Amendment: Orsolya Kuti, DVM to Provide On-site
Veterinary Services for Berkeley Animal Care Services

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend Contract No. 32100053 with
Orsolya Kuti for on-site veterinary services for Berkeley Animal Care Services,
increasing the contract amount by $8,000 for a new total not to exceed amount of
$228,000, and extending the contract term to September 14, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Berkeley Animal Care Services regularly contracts with a Doctor of Veterinary Medicine
(DVM) to provide veterinary services two days per week onsite at the Dona Spring
Animal Shelter. The amended contract will be extended through September 14, 2023.
$188,000 will come from the Berkeley Animal Care Services General Fund budget code
011-21-203-000-0000-000-424-612410. In April 2021, the Friends of Berkeley Animal
Care Services donated $4,800 to be used for on-site veterinary care and agreed to
donate additional funds as needed in $5,000 increments for an amount not to exceed
$40,000. The donation funds for the contract will be appropriated as they are received
by the City.

Annual funds for the contract are subject to Council approval of the future budgets and
the Annual Appropriations Ordinances.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

In September 1, 2020, the City of Berkeley entered into a three-year contract ending
August 31, 2023 with Orsolya Kuti, DVM to provide on-site veterinary care at the Dona
Spring Animal Shelter. The current contract specifies the hourly rate of pay as $75.00
per hour. In March of 2023, the California Animal Welfare Organization released a
survey indicating that the average rate of pay for veterinarians in animal shelter is
$84.79 per hour, which indicated that the hourly rate of pay for the contracted
veterinarian is below the current market rate of pay.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 107
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Contract: Orsloya Kuti, DVM for On-site veterinary services September 13, 2022

BACKGROUND

BACS is a full-service municipal animal care and control agency, enforcing local and
state laws throughout the City of Berkeley (COB) and the City of Albany. BACS is also
contracted to shelter animals for the cities of Emeryville and Piedmont. BACS is an
open-door facility accepting approximately 1,700 stray and homeless animals annually.
BACS has a constant influx of animals that need to receive affordable veterinary care,
treatment and spay/neuter services. The BACS shelter is open to the public seven days
a week to receive stray, surrendered and confiscated animals. Additionally, field
services are provided seven days week during which Animal Control Officers impound
stray, surrendered and confiscated animals. Many animals arrive at the shelter sick or
injured and in need of immediate veterinary care. On-site veterinary services include,
but are not limited to: examining and diagnosing shelter animals, treating sick or injured
animals, performing spay/neuter surgeries, performing other routine surgeries.

In order to adhere to the BACS Euthanasia Policy and to maintain the current high live
release rate of 90%, sick or injured animals must obtain necessary treatment so that
they have a much better chance of rescue or adoption.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or climate impacts associated with the
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Orsolya Kuti is a local veterinarian who has practiced veterinary medicine since 2014
and has specialized in animal shelter medicine since 2017. Dr. Kuti's experience and
expertise in shelter medicine require an hourly rate of pay consistent with the industry
standard.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The alternative to engaging in a contract amendment with with Dr. Kuti is to continue
using Dr. Kuti on a per diem basis. The limit of spending for per diem veterinarian is

$5,000 within a Fiscal Year. The need for on-site veterinary services is 16 hours per
week and the cost of veterinary services needed would exceed the limit of permitted
spending for per diem vendors in sixty (60) days.

CONTACT PERSON
Amelia Funghi, Animal Services Manager, (510) 981-6603

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 108



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 32100053 AMENDMENT: ORSOLYA KUTI, DVM TO PROVIDE ON-
SITE VETERINARY SERVICES FOR BERKELEY ANIMAL CARE SERVICES

WHEREAS, BACS has a constant influx of animals that need to receive immediate and
affordable veterinary care and treatment; and

WHEREAS, sick or injured animals that obtain necessary procedures and/or treatment/s
have a much better chance of rescue or adoption; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide veterinary care and oversight on the premises for
16 hours per week; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Orsolya Kuti is a highly qualified veterinarian with extensive experience
and expertise shelter medicine; and

WHEREAS, Friends of Berkeley Animal Care Services will donate an amount not to
exceed $40,000 in FY 2023; and

WHEREAS, the contract will be funded as a General Fund allocation and will be subject
to the City’s annual appropriation process.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute an amendment to Contract No. 32100053 with
Orsolya Kuti for on-site veterinary services for Berkeley Animal Care Services (BACS),
increasing the contract amount by $8,000 for a new total not to exceed amount of
$228,000, and extending the contract term to September 14, 2023.

Page 109



Page 110



Page 1 of 3 07

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Henry Oyekanmi, Director, Finance

Subject: Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on September 13, 2022

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached to staff report) that will
be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the requesting department or
division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold will be returned to Council for
final approval.

Total estimated cost of items included in this report is $440,000.

PROJECT Fund Source Amount
Aquatic Park Trail Sculpture
Public Art Project 148 Cultural Trust $350,000
Covid-19 Resiliency-Youth
Ambassador Program. 350 Bio-Terrorism Grant $90,000
Total: $440,000

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

On May, 6, 2008, Council adopted Ordinance No. 7,035-N.S. effective June 6, 2008,
which increased the City Manager’s purchasing authority for services to $50,000. As a
result, this required report submitted by the City Manager to Council is now for those
purchases in excess of $100,000 for goods; and $200,000 for playgrounds and
construction; and $50,000 for services. If Council does not object to these items being
sent out for bid or proposal within one week of them appearing on the agenda, and

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 111
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager

Page 2 of 3

Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals CONSENT CALENDAR
Scheduled for Possible Issuance After Council September 13, 2022
Approval on September 13, 2022

upon final notice to proceed from the requesting department, the IFB (Invitation for Bid)
or RFP (Request for Proposal) may be released to the public and notices sent to the
potential bidder/respondent list.

BACKGROUND
On May 6, 2008, Council adopted Ordinance No. 7,035-N.S., amending the City
Manager’s purchasing authority for services.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The Finance Department reviews all formal bid and proposal solicitations to ensure that
they include provisions for compliance with the City’s environmental policies. For each
contract that is subject to City Council authorization, staff will address environmental
sustainability considerations in the associated staff report to City Council.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Need for the services.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Darryl Sweet, General Services Manager, Finance, 510-981-7329

Attachments:
1: Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible Issuance
After Council Approval on September 13, 2022

a. Aquatic Park Trail Sculpture Public Art Project
b. COVID-19 Resiliency-Youth Ambassador Program

Note: Original of this attachment with live signature of authorizing personnel is on file in
General Services.

Page 112



NEXT 30 DAYS

DATE SUBMITTED: September 13, 2022

Page 3 of 3

Attachment 1

SPECIFICATI
ON NO.

DESCRIPTION
OF GOODS /
SERVICES
BEING
PURCHASED

APPROX.
RELEASE
DATE

APPROX.
BID
OPENING
DATE

INTENDED USE

ESTIMATED COST

BUDGET CODE TO BE
CHARGED

DEPT. / DIVISION

CONTACT
NAME &
PHONE

23-11541-C

Aquatic Park
Trail Sculpture
Public Art Project

9/14/2022

11/1/2022

This opportunity is for an
artist to create a series of
permanent, sculptural
artworks at various
locations along Aquatic
Park Trail and Bolivar
Drive.

Aquatic Park Trail is a 2.3-

mile pedestrian and bicycle
path that loops around the

park’s lagoon.

Bolivar Drive between
Addison Street to
Dreamland Playground in
Aquatic Park is undergoing
a renovation in conjunction
with the development at
600 Addison Street.

$350,000

148-21-208-252-0000-000-
446-612990-

City Managers
Office/Office of
Economic
Development/Civic
Arts

Zoe Taleporos
981-7538

Dept TOTAL

$350,000

23-11542-C

COVID-19
Resiliency-Youth
Ambassador
Program.

9/12/2022

10/13/2022

Single contract with
community based
organization or individual to
increase equitable
outreach and support
related to the COVID-19
pandemic through the
Youth COVID Ambassador
program.

$90,000

One time COVID-19
Workforce Development
Grant, funds must be
expended by June 30, 2023.

350-51-501-503-2075-000-
451-612990

HHCS/ Office of
the Director/Public
Health Officer
Unit/COVID
Response Team

Katharine
Sullivan
510-981

Dept TOTAL

$90,000

TOTAL

$440,000.00

Page 113

lof 1



Page 114



Page 1 of 5 08

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Request for Proposal for Project Homekey

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution authorizing City Manager to:
1. Release a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a Homekey Round 3 Project; and
2. Consider a reservation of up to $8.5M in General Funds collected pursuant to
Measure P, and/or other funding source, to support a future Homekey project.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The RFP may lead to the selection of a Homekey project which would require a local
match of City funds, estimated at approximately $8.5M in order to be feasible. The City
could allocate current and future years of Measure P funding already earmarked for
permanent supportive housing for unhoused residents, or other City sources that may
be available to support the acquisition, rehabilitation, and/or supportive services for a
future Homekey project. Staff will return to City Council with a detailed recommendation
for a specific project and funding required to submit an application to the State for
Homekey funding.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

In anticipation of the State of California Housing and Community Development (the
“State”) releasing a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for Homekey Round 3 funds
later this year, staff plan to release a Request for Proposals (“RFP”), to select projects
that meet the Homekey Program requirements and the City goals. The State Homekey
Program provides government entities funding to purchase and rehabilitate housing,
including hotels, motels, vacant apartment buildings, and other buildings and convert
them into interim or permanent, long-term housing. Under the Homekey Program, local
entities partner with the State to offer this housing to people experiencing homelessness
or who are at risk of becoming homeless and who are impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic.

In order to increase the chance of having a successful project in Berkeley, staff
recommend:

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 115
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 5

Request for Proposal for Project Homekey CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

1. Considering a local funding commitment of up to $8.5M, or up to $100,000 per
unit from General Funds collected pursuant to Measure P or another local
source. This will leverage the maximum state funding.

2. Expediting the RFP process timeline, by forgoing a Commission meeting if
needed to ensure an early application submission. This will increase the chance
of receiving state funds, which are awarded on a rolling basis.

If and when the State releases its Homekey Round 3 NOFA (anticipated in Fall 2022),
the City will issue an RFP inviting organizations to submit a proposal for a specific
property and be a joint applicant with the City for the State Homekey application. The
City’s Homekey RFP will solicit proposals for a specific property and staff expect that
bidders will request funds from the City.

In addition to General Fund, the City could also consider using State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds (SLFRF), if any are available, so long as any required environmental
review fits within the State’s application timeline.

Issuing an RFP for a Homekey project is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing our
goal to create affordable housing and housing support services for our most vulnerable
community members.

BACKGROUND

In July 2020, the State of California Department of Housing and Community
Development (the “State”) established its Homekey Program' and released a first NOFA
for the program. It released its second NOFA in September 2021, and is expected to
issue a third NOFA in Fall 2022.

Partnering with a qualified affordable housing developer to identify a Homekey project is
an opportunity for the City to make an immediate impact on creating long-term,
permanent supportive housing for Berkeley; leveraging limited City funds with State
funds created specifically for this purpose. Per the Homekey requirements, residents
will have extremely low incomes (ELI, defined as up to 30% of the Area Median Income)
and have experienced homelessness or be at risk of homelessness. To ensure long-
term affordability of these units, the City will record a 55-year regulatory agreement on
property. Since the purpose of the State Homekey program is to mitigate the spread of
COVID-19 among the homeless, the preference is to serve those who are experiencing
homelessness. If COVID-19 is no longer a prevalent iliness in the future, the
requirement to serve households impacted by COVID-19 may be eliminated.

If Council approves, the City will partner with a developer and submit a joint application
for one Homekey Project. Per the second Homekey NOFA issued in September 2021,
the State required applicants to demonstrate a 5-year commitment of operating funds;

1 For more information, see: https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/Homekey.shtml

Page 2 Page 116


https://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/homekey.shtml

Page 3 of 5

Request for Proposal for Project Homekey CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

two years of which could be requested as part of the Homekey application from the
State General Fund. The State also required a 1:1 match for acquisition/construction
costs over $200,000 per unit for projects serving chronically homeless households. The
State’s matching funds would provide up to an additional $100,000 per unit. Assuming
the match requirements stay the same, the total amount of funds available for chronic
homeless units would be $300,000 per unit. The RFP will include criteria pertaining to
an applicant’s ability to secure non-City sources for these match funds. Staff
recommends that the City also be prepared to commit local funds to help meet the
match requirements of the State Homekey program, if needed.

While the City cannot, at this time, state the amount of funding it would commit to a
project, the RFP will list any City funds available for acquisition, improvements, and/or
services. After the RFP process, staff will submit a proposal to City Council for
consideration of a Homekey project along with a request for City funds, and
authorization to submit an application for State Homekey funding.

In 2021, the City released an RFP for Homekey Round 2, from which the City received
a proposal from Bay Area Community Services (BACS) and Memar Properties for the
Golden Bear Inn. The Golden Bear is a 44-room hotel located at 1620 San Pablo
Avenue with a separate restaurant. A joint application was submitted to the State and
the project received $16M of Homekey funding in addition to $8.5M from the City (a
combination of Measure P and Permanent Local Housing Allocation funds). The hotel
has already been renovated by the former owner, and the remaining improvements will
include making rooms accessible and adding a new modular building with a community
room and service office. The project will serve chronically homeless households, with
services provided by BACS. The conversion of the hotel to housing is expected to be
complete by early 2023.

Staff recommend using General Funds collected pursuant to Measure P to support a
future Homekey Round 3 project.

General Funds collected pursuant to Measure P are available for a permanent
supportive housing project such as Homekey. City Council allocated $2.5M in Measure
P funds for permanent supportive housing in June 2020. Of this amount, Council
subsequently set aside approximately $1M per year for the Step-Up Housing Program,
leaving $1.5M available each year for a permanent supportive housing project. Staff
recommend allocating four to five years, depending on availability (Fiscal Years 2022
through 2027) of Measure P funds for a Homekey project. However, depending on the
cost and timing of a future acquisition, staff will also consider alternative possible
funding sources should they become available and/or be more appropriate to the
project, and return to Council with a more specific recommendation.

In the first two Homekey NOFAs, the State accepted applications and approved funding
on a rolling basis until the funds were exhausted. To maximize its chance for a

Page 3 Page 117



Page 4 of 5

Request for Proposal for Project Homekey CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

successful application, staff recommends expediting its RFP approval process. If time
permits, staff will bring a recommendation for a Homekey project and funding to
whichever Commission or Commissions have oversight over the proposed funding
source prior to City Council review and approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

There are no identifiable direct environmental sustainability or climate impacts
associated with the adoption of this recommendation. A future Homekey project would
involve reusing or re-purposing an existing hotel, motel, other residential or non-
residential structure to permanent supportive housing. The work would entail
rehabilitating the housing units to be more energy efficient, to the extent possible. If
federal funds are used, staff would coordinate an environmental review, which includes
recommendations for mitigating environmental impacts if needed.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The State Homekey Program provides funding to convert existing buildings into
permanent supportive housing. The City has the opportunity to leverage limited City
funds with the State funds created for this purpose. By issuing this City Homekey RFP,
the City can identify a viable project and developer partner to submit a joint application
for Homekey funding if and when the State releases its Homekey NOFA.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The City could forego this funding opportunity, which would not be consistent with the
City’s Strategic Plan goal to provide housing opportunities. Theoretically, the City could
act on its own to identify, purchase, rehabilitate and operate housing under Homekey,
since funds are available to public entities. However, the City has not developed,
owned or operated residential properties in the past and does not have the capacity to
do so.

Therefore, staff recommend the approach outlined above.

CONTACT PERSON
Jenny Wyant, Senior Community Development Project Coordinator, HHCS, 981-5228

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 4 Page 118



Page 5 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

ISSUING A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR A HOMEKEY PROJECT TO CREATE
LONG-TERM, PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley (“City”) wishes to partner with a qualified housing
developer to create permanent supportive housing for residents who are experiencing
homelessness or at risk of homelessness; and

WHEREAS, in July 2020, the State of California Housing and Community Development
(“State”) created the State Homekey Program and issued its first Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA) to fund the conversion of existing residential buildings, such as hotels,
motels, other residential buildings and non-residential structures, to permanent
supportive housing for residents who are homeless or at risk of being homeless and have
been impacted by COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, in anticipation of the State issuing a third Homekey NOFA later this year, the
City will issue a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) when the State releases Homekey Round
3 NOFA, to select applications for a specific property that meets Homekey requirements;
and

WHEREAS, through the RFP the City will select a developer or development team with a
specific property and be a joint applicant with the City if and when the State issues a third
Homekey Program NOFA; and

WHEREAS, the State Homekey Program may require a match of local and private funds
to maximize the amount of State Homekey funds awarded to a project; and

WHEREAS, City staff have identified potential sources of City that may be used to fulfill
the match requirement.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is hereby authorized to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a Homekey
project in the City of Berkeley to create long-term, permanent supportive housing for
residents who are homeless or are at risk of being homeless; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City Manager is hereby authorized to consider a

funding request of up to $8.5 million from the project selected, and to return to Council
with a funding recommendation.

Page 119



Page 120



Page 1 of 3

09

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Contract: Tiana Sanchez International LLC for HHCS Equity Consultant

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments with Tiana Sanchez International, LLC. (Contractor) to provide equity
consulting services for the Department of Health, Housing and Community Services
(HHCS) from October 1, 2021 to May 30, 2023 in an amount not to exceed $120,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The term of this contract is from October 1, 2022 to May 30, 2023 in the amount of
$120,000. Funding for the HHCS Equity Consulting project is available in the FY23
budget through a California Department of Public Health grant, the California Equitable
Recovery Initiative, (CERI) ERMA Code 336-51-501-501-2075-000-451-612990.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The department’s equity work is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing our goal to
champion and demonstrate social and racial equity. The City of Berkeley issued an RFP
to obtain consulting services to develop an equity framework to be adopted by HHCS,
which will be the foundation for the creation of a Strategic Plan for Health Equity. The
project has three deliverables: 1) determine how equity is approached and defined
throughout the department; 2) recommend or develop an equity framework that will be
adopted across the department; and 3) using this equity framework, facilitate
development of a departmental strategic plan that is anchored in the adopted equity
framework.

The City conducted RFP Specification No. 22-11529-C with proposals due no later than
July 6, 2022. The City received two proposals. The selection committee was comprised
of the HHCS Department Director, Deputy Director, and a program manager. An
interview was conducted with the most qualified organization.

BACKGROUND

The City of Berkeley is a thriving community with considerable wealth, high levels of
education attainment, and a rich culture that all contribute to a healthy community.
However, Berkeley is not a city where all people are living long and healthy lives and

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 121
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Contract: Tiana Sanchez International LLC for HHCS Equity Consultant CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

achieving the highest possible level of health. In Berkeley, African American/Black and
other people of color are more likely to die prematurely and experience a wide variety of
adverse health conditions throughout their lives.

As reported in the 2018 City of Berkeley Health Status Report, higher incidence of
disease is linked to neighborhoods that have been historically under-resourced and
overexposed to unhealthy conditions. These neighborhoods have more people living in
poverty and more people of color than surrounding neighborhoods. Like other
jurisdictions, these historic and ongoing health inequities have been exacerbated by the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. Communities of color, specifically African
American/Black and Hispanic/Latinx residents, have a higher COVID-19 positivity rate,
hospitalizations, and deaths compared to White residents.

Since 2018, extensive work has been done by HHCS to analyze and identify solutions
to overcome the underlying issues that perpetuate these health inequities. HHCS
programs serve individuals who are most impacted in Berkeley and continue to make
progress toward solving health inequities that have existed and been exacerbated by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

In addition to these community programs, the divisions of HHCS have been conducting
their own internal equity work. Solving these inequities involves a conscious effort to
look at Department-wide systems and structures to define, codify, and systematize this
work into a HHCS Strategic Plan for Health Equity. This Plan will include an adopted
equity framework to guide Department-wide and Division-specific projects and systems,
which will allow HHCS to achieve its overarching goal to create a City where all
community members can achieve their highest level of health.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
action requested in this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The City conducted a competitive bid process and Tiana Sanchez International, LLC
successfully met the bid requirements and ranked highest among all bidders given their
applicable experience working on similar projects with other jurisdictions in California.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Katherine “Katie” Hawn, Senior Management Analyst, HHCS, (510) 981-5411

Page 2 Page 122



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT: TIANA SANCHEZ INTERNATIONAL LLC FOR HEALTH HOUSING AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES EQUITY CONSULTING

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has issued an RFP to obtain consulting services for
HHCS to create or recommend an equity framework which will then be used as the
foundation to create a Strategic Plan for Health Equity; and

WHEREAS, the City conducted RFP Specification No. 22-11529-C with proposals due
no later than July 6, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the City received two proposals in response to this RFP; and

WHEREAS, one finalist was invited to meet with the selection committee for a more in-
depth review of their proposal and describe their past consulting work with other
jurisdictions in California, resulting in the selection of Tiana Sanchez International LLC
as the best qualified vendor.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with Tiana
Sanchez International LLC to provide consulting services to produce the deliverables to
support the recommendation or creation of an equity framework for HHCS to support
the development of a Strategic Plan for Health Equity from October 1, 2022 to May 30,
2023 in an amount not to exceed $120,000.

Page 123



Page 124



Page 1 of 3

10

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

=

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Contract No. 31900043 Amendment: Kings View Professional Services for
Mental Health Reporting Services

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 31900043 with Kings View Professional Services to provide
mental health financial reporting services through June 30, 2024 in an amount not to
exceed $220,628.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funds for the additional scope of work in the amount of $57,100 will be provided from
Mental Health Realignment-Administration Account (ERMA GL 158-51-503-520-0000-
000-451-612990).

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Kings View Professional Services has provided reliable reporting services to the Mental
Health Division for more than three years. In addition to processing Medi-Cal
Administrative Activities (MAA) quarterly claims, they have produced annual cost
reports; including collaborating with Alameda County to submit the completed reports to
the necessary agencies. The production of these reports directly supports the operation
of the City’s Mental Health programs. The additional funding requested in this report will
allow Kings View to complete this work for the next two fiscal years.

BACKGROUND

Specialized reporting for MAA quarterly claims is necessary to be in compliance with
local, state, and federal agencies regarding mandatory reporting requirements. The
California Department of Healthcare Services, the Centers for Medicaid and Medicare,
and other agencies associated with the oversight of financial reporting by Counties and
Cities prescribe specific forms and documentation for all submissions. In addition,
Alameda County requires cost reports for each fiscal year, including total units of
service by mode and service function code and identified by funding source.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 125
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Contract No. 31900043 Amendment: Kings View Professional Services CONSENT CALENDAR
for Mental Health Reporting Services September 13, 2022

In order to remain in compliance with these and other agencies, the City’s Mental Health
Division must produce specialized financial reports. Utilizing a contract with vendor
Kings View Professional Services, an expert firm in this field, ensures precision due to
their particular familiarity with this type of reporting. Retaining specialized financial
expertise helps the City maximize revenues for service provided and minimize any risk
of recaptured funds.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects, climate impacts, or sustainability
opportunities associated with the subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Kings View Professional Services has demonstrated specialized expertise and
performance in mental health financial reporting requirements. Their services ensure
that the City remains in compliance with funder requirements and sustains these vital
funding streams.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

As an alternative action, Council could instead direct staff to circulate a formal RFP to
competitively solicit a different vendor, or to not fund this service altogether. Since King
View is already familiar with City programs and has performed well under the existing
contract these approaches are not recommended.

CONTACT PERSON
Conor Murphy, Assistant Management Analyst, HHCS, 510-981-7611
Jeff Buell, Manager of Mental Health Services, HHCS, 510-981-7682

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 126



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CONTRACT NO. 31900043 AMENDMENT: KINGS VIEW PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FOR MENTAL HEALTH FINANCIAL REPORTING SERVICES

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2018, the City of Berkeley entered into Contract No.
31900043 with Kings View Corporation for mental health reporting services in an amount
not to exceed $29,507 for the period December 1, 2018 to November 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, this contract was previously amended on May 1, 2019, to increase the total
contract amount by $16,132 for a total amount of $45,639 and to extend the expiration
date to June 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,450-N.S., City Council approved
amending Contract No. 31900043 through June 30, 2022 for a total amount of $106,428;
and

WHEREAS, Kings View Professional Services has specific expertise in mental health
compliance and financial reporting requirements, and are very familiar with the unique
needs of the City; and

WHEREAS, funds are available to perform this work in the current year budget in the
Mental Health Realignment-Administration Account, numbered 158-51-503-520-0000-
000-451-612990.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is authorized to execute an amendment to the contract with
Kings View Professional Services for Mental Health reporting services for a total not to
exceed $220,628, through June 30, 2024. A record signature copy of said contract to be
on file in the City Clerk Department.

Page 127



Page 128



Page 1 of 3

11

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Dr. Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing & Community Services

Subject: Accept Future of Public Health Funds from the State of California

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit grant agreements to the
State of California, to accept the grants, and to execute any resultant revenue
agreements and amendments for the Future of Public Health program for an amount of
$912,213 for the Fiscal Year 2023.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The City’s award for FY2023 is $912,213, which will need to be expended by June 30,
2024. Funds will be expended from ERMA account HHOFPH2301 (302-51-501-501-
0000-000-451- various) and revenue will be received in 302-51-501-501-0000-000-451-
432110-. HHCS staff will request to add these funds to the FY2023 budget in AAO#1.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The State’s Budget Act of 2022 created a new funding stream called the Future of
Public Health, intended to support and grow California’s public health infrastructure.
The funds are in the budget baseline and are planned to be an ongoing source of
funding. As a local public health jurisdiction, the City is entitled to a base award of
$350,000 and additional funds awarded by formula. At least 70% of funds must be
spent on permanent City staff costs and training, and up to 30% can be used for
equipment, supplies and other administrative costs.

The funding comes with certain requirements, including the submission of a public
health improvement plan, the use of evaluation and Results Based Accountability to
measure success, and staff participation in specified regional public health groups.

The City’s public health activities are a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing our
goals to champion and demonstrate social and racial equity and to be a customer-
focused organization that provides excellent, timely, easily-accessible service and
information to the community.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 129
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Accept Future of Public Health Funds from CONSENT CALENDAR
the State of California September 13, 2022
BACKGROUND

The vast majority of the City’s health funding grants support strictly defined health
activities and services and come with extensive reporting requirements. In contrast, the
Future of Public Health funds can be used relatively flexibly to support the City’s
infrastructure to plan, coordinate and deliver programs to address specific local needs,
most notably reducing public health disparities.

The City of Berkeley is a thriving community with considerable wealth, high levels of
education attainment, and a rich culture that all contribute to a healthy community.
However, Berkeley is not a city where all people are living long and healthy lives and
achieving the highest possible level of health. In Berkeley, African American/Black and
other people of color are more likely to die prematurely and experience a wide variety of
adverse health conditions throughout their lives.

As reported in the 2018 City of Berkeley Health Status Report, higher incidence of
disease is linked to neighborhoods that have been historically under-resourced and
overexposed to unhealthy conditions. These neighborhoods have more people living in
poverty and more people of color than surrounding neighborhoods. Like other
jurisdictions, these historic and ongoing health inequities have been exacerbated by the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic. Communities of color, specifically African
American/Black and Hispanic/Latinx residents, have a higher COVID-19 positivity rate,
hospitalizations, and deaths compared to White residents.

Since 2018, extensive work has been done by HHCS to analyze and identify solutions
to overcome the underlying issues that perpetuate these health inequities. HHCS
programs serve individuals who are most impacted in Berkeley and continue to make
progress toward solving health inequities that have existed and been exacerbated by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no environmental impacts associated directly with accepting public health
funding.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Accepting these funds will allow the City to grow its infrastructure for public health.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Amy Davidson, Deputy Director, HHCS, (510) 981-5406

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 130



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
ACCEPTING STATE OF CALIFORNIA FUTURE OF PUBLIC HEALTH FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has been a public health jurisdiction for more than one
hundred years; and

WHEREAS, in Berkeley communities of color, specifically African American/Black and
Hispanic/Latinx residents continue to experience disparate health outcomes, which have
been exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of public health needs throughout California the state budget
established funds for the Future of Public Health program; and

WHEREAS, as a public health jurisdiction the City is eligible to receive an allocation of
Future of Public Health funds.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to submit grant agreements to the
State of California, to accept the grants, and execute any resultant revenue agreements
and amendments for the Future of Public Health program for an amount of $912,213 in
Fiscal Year 2023. Funds will be expended from ERMA account HHOFPH2301 (302-51-
501-501-0000-000-451- various) and revenue will be received in 302-51-501-501-0000-
000-451-432110-. A record signature copy of said agreements and any amendments
shall be on file in the office of the City Clerk.

Page 131



Page 132



Page 1 of 5 12

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Lisa Warhuus, Director, Health, Housing and Community Services

Subject: Donation of Painting Services from MB Jessee Painting, Inc.

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution accepting the donation of painting services and materials from MB
Jessee Painting, Inc., estimated to be a value of $8,994, to paint interior areas of 1900
6t Street building in accordance with Administrative Regulation 3.19, Donations to the
City from Individuals of Outside Organizations.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
This donation will decrease the cost of interior painting of the facility.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The West Berkeley Service Center (WBSC), located at 1900 6t Street, Berkeley, CA
94710 will be the new site of Public Health Division’s Maternal, Child, and Adolescent
Health Services. MB Jessee Painting, Inc. has offered pro bono work to paint the
interior of the building. A project estimate provided by MB Jessee Painting, Inc places
the total value of services at an estimated $8,994.26 to complete the interior painting of
the: 1) entry and reception area, 2) parking entrance and bathroom hallways, and 3) the
Dining Room area. This donation of services will provide a welcoming and warm
environment where low-income families and community members can seek services
and connect as a community.

This painting service donation is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing our goal to
provide state-of-the-art, well-maintained infrastructure, amenities, and facilities and
champion and demonstrate social and racial equity.

The donor has requested that they complete the first phase of the painting project prior
to public health programs moving in to the facility and community accessing the site.
Touch up work will also be provided once full renovations at the facility are complete.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 133
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager

Page 2 of 5

Donation of Painting Services from MB Jessee Painting, Inc. CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

The methodology used to determine the value of the donation of services required to
complete the project was based on the standard estimation practices conducted by MB
Jessee Painting, Inc.

The project is anticipated to begin September 26, 2022.

BACKGROUND

The West Berkeley Service Center, located at the 1900 6t Street, Berkeley, CA is an
aging facility with many structural and cosmetic needs. The Public Health Division is
planning to move its Maternal, Child, Adolescent Health Programs, including WIC,
Immunization Program, School Linked Services, and Family Support Services into this
facility in late summer/ early fall 2022. Funding has been identified for facility
improvements for the roof repairs and the electrical upgrade needed to operate
community facing services in the building, but cosmetic improvements such as interior
and exterior painting would add greatly to a welcoming and clean environment.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The donor will be using the Kelly Moore Acrylic-Plex interior product line, which is a
water-based, 100% acrylic, and a low Volatile Organic Compound (VOC) paint. This
product will be used in the 1) entry and reception area, 2) parking entrance and
bathroom hallways, and 3) the Dining Room area of the WBSC.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Painting the interior of the WBSC would provide a clean, warm, and welcoming
environment for the community and clients that the Public Health Division serves.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
The City can decline the painting donation and seek other funding to support this work
or eliminating painting the interior entirely.

CONTACT PERSON
Janice Chin, Manager, Public Health Division, HHCS, 510-981-5121

Attachments:
1: Resolution
2: Administrative Regulation 3.19

Page 134



Page 3 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A DONATION OF PAINTING SERVICES FOR
THE WEST BERKELEY SERVICE CENTER FROM MB JESSEE PAINTING, INC.

WHEREAS, MB Jessee Painting has named City of Berkeley Public Health Division as a
recipient of a gift of services; and

WHEREAS, the West Berkeley Services Center is expected to serve clients, their
families, and community members through a community-centered, family friendly
environment, and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is committed to providing state-of-the-art, well-
maintained infrastructure, amenities, and facilities and champion and demonstrate social
and racial equity

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
council accepts a donation of painting services, estimated to be a value of $8,994.26 to
the City of Berkeley Public Health Division from MB Jessee Painting, Inc. to paint the
West Berkeley Service Center interior.

Page 135



Page 4 of 5

A.R. NUMBER: 3.19
ORIGINAL DATE: 5/2/2011
POSTING DATE:  5/9/2011

CITY SF BERKELEY PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES
ADMINISTRATIVE REGQULATIONS

SUBJECT: DONATIONS TO THE CITY FROM INDIVIDUALS OR OUTSIDE
ORGANIZATIONS |

PURPOSE

The purpose of this administrative regulation is to set forth a policy on how donations made to the city
by individuals or outside organizations are officially approved.

POLICY

The following types of donations made to the City by individuals or outside organizations must be
approved by the City Council before they can be accepted:

1. Any monetary donation of $1,000 or more. ‘
2. Non-monetary donations of goods, materials, supplies, and equipment with an estimated value
of $1,000 or more.

PROCEDURE

Prior to a donation being received by the City, the department receiving the donation must prepare a
consent calendar report requesting City Council approval for the donation. When a donation is
received, without advance notice, the department immediately deposits the donation into the treasury.

A consent calendar report requesting Council approval is submitted for the next available agenda.

The following information must be included in the report:

Monetary Donations

1. The name of the individuals or organizations making the donation

2. The amount of the donation

3. The purpose and use for the donation

4. Any special conditions from the donor

5. The budget code and name of the fund where the donation will be deposited and expended

from
6. The timing of when the donation will be officially appropriated into the budget

Non-Monetary Donations

1. The name of the individuals or organizations making the donation

2. A description of the donation

3. The purpose of the donation

4. The methodology used to determine the donation is valued at $1,000 or more.

Page 136



Page 5 of 5
A.R. NUMBER: 3.19 Page 2 of 2 Pages

5. The timing of when the donation will be received by the City

Once the City Council has approved a monetary donation, the department deposits the donation into
the City Treasury. A budget modification to appropriate the donation, with a copy of the Council report
and resolution approving the donation, is sent to the Budget Office. This process also applies to
donations already deposited into the City Treasury.

Non-monetary donations of physical goods must be officially added to the City’s inventory control
before they may be used by the operating department receiving the donation.

It is the responsibility for the receiving department to maintain any records regarding the donation for a
period of at least three (3) fiscal years following the fiscal year in which the donation was received.

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT: Approved by:
City Manager’s Office / Q /

" ] Zépartn?ﬂt Director
TO BE REVISED: W / C

Every 2 years

CityVIanager

L4

Page 137




Page 138



Page 1 of 4 13

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Donald Ellison, Interim Director, Human Resources

Subject: Contract No. 8392 Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions (ICS) for claims
administration of the City’s Workers’ Compensation Program

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to extend
Contract No. 8392 with Innovative Claims Solutions (ICS) to provide third-party claims
administrative services, Medicare, Medicaid, and SCHIP Extension Act (MMSEA) Section
111 Mandatory Reporting to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS), for an
additional term of three years from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025 at a decreased
annual rate of $570,000 for a total contract amount of $7,393,611 for year 2023.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The contract amendment with Innovative Claim Solutions will add $570,000 to the original
contract through the end of Fiscal Year 2023. Funding for the proposed contract
amendment is available in the Fiscal Year 2023 Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance
fund.

As a result of the proposal, Innovative Claims Solutions (ICS) has agreed to lower their
total fees with a cap increase of just 3% annually. These annual fees include both the
administrative and the MMSEA fees, per contract agreement. The proposed annual fees
are as follows:

FY 2022-2023 Program Year: $570,000

FY 2023-2024 Program Year: $587,100

FY 2024-2025 Program Year: $604,713

Current total annual fees are $619,819. The decrease in annual fees will net the City of
Berkeley an additional annual savings total of $49,819 for Fiscal Year 2023.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 139
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 4

Contract No. 8392 Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

Original Contract Amount (7/1/2016 — 6/30/2021) | $6,823,611

Current Contract Amount (FY 7/1/2021 — $619,819
6/30/2022)

Proposed Amount (FY 7/1/2022 — 6/30/2023) $570,000

Savings (decrease in fees) $49,819

Total New Contract Amount $7,393,611

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The City of Berkeley is permissibly Self-Insured by the State of California, Department of
Industrial Relations, to provide statutorily required workers’ compensation benefits to
injured employees.

On April 26, 2016, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 67,436, authorizing the City
Manager to execute and implement a contract including amendment for workers’
compensation third-party administration services with ICS. This contract amendment was
approved from July 1, 2016 — June 30, 2021. The increase for this contractual period
was $3,247,413 for a total not to exceed $6,823,611.

The current contract with ICS is set to expire on June 30, 2022. As such, a contract
amendment is needed to continue claims administrative and management of the City’s
self-funded workers’ compensation program. The Human Resources Department is
planning to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for workers’ compensation third-party
administrative services. It has been several years since the City of Berkeley has
solicitated an RFP for these services. As such, during the RFP process it is imperative
that the operation of critical claim management services is maintained until a third-party
administrator is selected. Additionally, retaining claim management services with ICS
until the RFP selection process is completed ensures the City remains in compliance with
all applicable workers’ compensation laws and regulations.

BACKGROUND

Innovative Claim Solutions, has been providing claims management services for over 20
years. The third-party claim management services for a workers’ compensation program
consist of responsibility for claims management including, but not limited to, approval of
claims based upon whether an injury arose out of the course and scope of employment;
denial of claims that did not arise out of the course and scope of employment; or delay of
claim decisions in order to obtain additional information or evidence before a
determination can be on a claim. The third-party administrator procures services and
pays bills incurred by claims for the provision of benefits to injured employees. These

Page 140



Page 3 of 4

Contract No. 8392 Amendment: Innovative Claim Solutions CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

expenses include, but are not limited to, medical; legal; temporary and permanent
disability payments; and future medical needs of injured employees.

A contract amendment with ICS will maintain continuous service delivery including
several performance standards that require ICS to evaluate old claims for closure and
close new claims as soon as feasible.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Innovative Claim Solutions has provided superior quality claim management services
throughout the terms of the contract. ICS consistently applies professionalism, expertise,
and superior customer service in their claim management practices.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Issue a Request for Proposal to seek bids from firms including ICS to provide third party
administrative services for the City’s workers’ compensation program.

CONTACT PERSON
Donald Ellison, Interim Director of Human Resources, 510-981-6807

Attachment;
1: Resolution

3 Page 141



Page 4 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
CONTRACT NO. 8392 AMENDMENT: INNOVATIVE CLAIM SOLUTIONS

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is certified by the State of California Department of
Industrial Relations under Labor Code Sections 3700 and 3705 to self-insure for providing
statutorily required workers’ compensation benefits to its employees; and

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the Berkeley City Council adopted Resolution No. 67,436
that authorized the City Manager to amend the contract with ICS for third-party
administrative services for the City’s workers’ compensation program by extending the
term through June 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021, the Berkeley City Council adopted Resolution No. 69,977-
N.S., for July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022;

WHEREAS, amending the existing contract with ICS to provide both administration of the
City’s workers’ compensation program and Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP Extension Act
(MMSEA) Section 111 mandatory reporting to the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services (CMS) on behalf of the City to maintain continuous service delivery; and

WHEREAS, the City has found that the services performed by ICS have been satisfactory
during the term of the contract and both parties desire to extend the term of the contract
for one (1) additional year.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to amend Contract No. 8392 with Innovative Claim Solutions
for third-party administrative services for both the City’s workers’ compensation program
and MMSEA Reporting to the CMS, extending the period through June 30, 2025 and
increase the original contract amount by an additional $570,000 with a 3% annual cap
increase for each term, total contract amount of $7,393,611 FY 2022-2023. All expenses
are to be paid by the Workers’ Compensation Self-Insurance Fund (676-00-000-000-
0000-000-000-102127). A record signature copy of said contract and any amendments
are to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

Page 142



Page 1 of 4 14

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Acting Director, Information Technology

Subject: AHEAD, Inc: Using the California Department of General Services’ (DGS)
Software Licensing Program (SLP) for Software License Purchases

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to increase spending authority with
AHEAD, Inc. (“AHEAD?”) for the purchase of Varonis software licenses and professional
services, utilizing pricing and contracts, amendments, and extensions from the California
Department of General Services (DGS) Software Licensing Program (SLP) increasing the
amount by $71,481 for a total amount not-to-exceed $236,305, and the period beginning
September 29, 2022 through September 28, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funding for the Varonis software add-on and professional services in the amount of
$71,481.00 is available in the Department of Information Technology’s FY 2023 Cost
Allocation

FY 2023: Cyber Security
$50,304 Budget Code: 680-35-363-384-6005-000-472-613130-
(IT Cost Allocation, IT Department)

FY 2023: Cyber Security Professional Services
Budget Code: 680-35-363-382-0000-000-472-612990-
(IT Cost Allocation, IT Department, Professional Services)

$21,177

$71,481 Total FY 2023: Good and Services

Page 143



Page 2 of 4

AHEAD: Using the California Department of General Services’ SLP Contract CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The purpose of the Data Safety Program is to protect the City of Berkeley’s information
and access to information, using an enterprise standard across all city systems. Varonis
is a crucial component in this security effort. The Data Safety Program is designed to
support the Digital Strategic Plan and the City’s Strategic Plan goal of advancing our
City’s strategic goal to provide state-of-the-art, well-maintained infrastructure, amenities,
and facilities.

The City initially used Varonis to complete a data risk technical assessment, and
subsequently purchased Varonis for its on-premise and Microsoft Office 365 resources.
The add-on licenses and professional services are being purchased under the attached
resolution support the City’s Data Safety Program under the SLP vehicle.

The City of Berkeley participates in a cooperative purchasing agreement established by
the California Department of General Services (DGS)’ called the Software License
Program (SLP). Established in January 1994, the SLP negotiates major software
discounts with publishers and passes those discounts onto the State. The State
establishes contracts with resellers based on these negotiations, which local agencies
within the State of California can utilize. The City of Berkeley has engaged AHEAD as a
reseller for the Varonis software under SLP contract number SLP-19-70-0151s.
Additional software, and other goods and services related to the City’s Data Safety
Program, are also available on this SLP contract with AHEAD.

BACKGROUND

The procurement and implementation of Varonis in 2021 provided City of Berkeley
(COB) visibility into how the City is handing and protecting the data we touch on a daily
basis. The City of Berkeley now seeks to add automated remediation to matters we are
discovering.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

A universal, secure, and reliable set of safeguards allows for increased collaboration
between City staff from anywhere at any time without the need for paper copies printed-
off and taken into the field or to home offices. It also provides protection to the information
on existing internal and Cloud-based infrastructure that supports the City’s online
services, reducing greenhouse gas emissions used to travel between City facilities.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The IT department has selected two new modules within Varonis to offer full visibility to
alerts for all department heads and empower them and their designated staff to review
and manage access controls for their staff. This procurement of software and profes-
sional services will enable all the departments and the IT department to proactively
respond to alerts and lower the operational risks at a significantly lower cost in human
resources.

Page 144



Page 3 of 4

AHEAD: Using the California Department of General Services’ SLP Contract CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

The Varonis modules that we currently have provide visibility into in the way sensitive
data (such as privacy data) is being handled on a daily basis. The additional modules
and professional services covered within this staff report will (a) clean up and prepare
existing permissions so that (b) the automatic remediation enabled by these modules
will be most effective. These new modules also (c) offer City department heads the
ability to administer who has access to their data in keeping with their role within the
Data Safety Program.

Without these additional modules, the full potential of the Varonis will not be realized. In
fact, remediation will remain manual and tedious.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The IT department considered using and leveraging/extending existing technology
platforms. However, these tools do not offer the capability to automate remediation, and
provide the self-service portal needed for department heads and their staff.

From a cost comparison, the 3-year total cost of ownership (TCO) for Varonis and the
initial set up professional services is less than similar enterprise license from existing
tools.

The IT department also estimated the level of effort (LOE) and resource requirements for
manual remediation, and existing platforms will be significantly more expensive (in staff
hours) than the procurement and implementation cost of these additional modules for
Varonis.

CONTACT PERSON
LaTanya Bellow, Acting Director, Information Technology, 510-981-7012

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 145



Page 4 of 4

AHEAD: Using the California Department of General Services’ SLP Contract CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. ## ###-N.S.

AHEAD: USING THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES’ (DGS)
SOFTWARE LICENSING PROGRAM (SLP) FOR SOFTWARE LICENSE PURCHASES

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Data Safety Program is to protect the City of Berkeley’s
information and access to information, using an enterprise standard across all city
systems, and is designed to support the Digital Strategic Plan and the City’s Strategic
Plan goal of advancing our City’s strategic goal to provide state-of-the-art, well-
maintained infrastructure, amenities, and facilities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley participates in a cooperative purchasing agreement
established by the California Department of General Services (DGS)’ called the Software
License Program (SLP) that negotiates software discounts that are passed down to local
agencies through a cooperative contract and software reseller; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has engaged AHEAD as a reseller for the Varonis
software under SLP contract number SLP-19-70-0151s, and has the opportunity to
purchase additional software, and other goods related to the City’s Data Safety Program;
and

WHEREAS, funding for purchases with AHEAD are funded by the IT Cost Allocation Fund
(Fund 680), and citywide purchases will be made as needed by other available funding.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to increase spending authority with AHEAD for the purchase
of professional services and software, and other goods related to the City’s Data Safety
Program, utilizing pricing and contracts, amendments, and extensions from the California
Department of General Services (DGS) Software Licensing Program (SLP) increasing the
amount by $71,481 for an amount not-to-exceed $236,305, and the period beginning
September 29, 2022 through September 28, 2023.

Page 146



Page 1 of 48

CTY ©F

»

Pﬁ
A
i

Office of City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks, Recreation & Waterfront
Subject: Lease Agreement: 80 (North Building), 82/84 & 90 Bolivar Drive in

Aquatic Park with Waterside Workshops

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute a lease
agreement with Waterside Workshops to use the 80 (North Building), 82/84 & 90 Bolivar
Drive in Aquatic Park for a lease term anticipated to begin November 1, 2022 and
ending November 1, 2031.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF THE RECOMMENDATION

Waterside Workshops will pay an annual rent of $1,800, escalating by $150 per year.
The total lease revenue is $24,750. In addition, they will be responsible for completing
capital improvements and maintenance to the building over the 10-year period of their
lease, which are valued at $166,200. The list of capital improvements and maintenance
requirements are described in Exhibit “C” of the lease. Lease revenue will be deposited
in Budget Code 450-5801-363.10-04.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Waterside Workshops succeeded Tinker's Workshop and Berkeley Crew to begin
leasing the Aquatic Park buildings in 2006 through 2009. Over time, they entered into 3
separate leases for the 4 buildings: a lease for the north storage building at 80 Bolivar; a
lease for the main building (which they share with BORP, the Bay Area Outreach and
Recreation Program) and the Street Level Cycles building at 82/84 Bolivar; and a lease
for the building at 90 Bolivar, formerly known as the Rod & Gun Club.

The City’s leases with Waterside Workshops for the properties at 80 (North Building),
82/84 Bolivar have expired, and are now in holdover status (month-to-month). The lease
for 90 Bolivar will expire in 2024.

This action would merge the three leases into one and extend the expiration to 2031,
with an option to extend to 2036. The premises shall continue to be used for public bicycle

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7010
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info Website: https://berkeleyca.gov

15

Page 147


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info

Page 2 of 48

Lease Agreement: Waterside Workshops for the properties at CONSENT CALENDAR
80 (North Building), 82/84 & 90 Bolivar Drive, Aquatic Park September 13, 2022

rentals and sales, community bicycle repair space, boat building space, storage area, and a
small café.

In exchange for a 10-year term and favorable rent of $1800/year, escalating by
$150/year, Waterside Workshops agrees to perform all improvements cited in the City’s
recently commissioned Condition Assessment report, appended to the lease as Exhibit
“D”. The value of these improvements is estimated to be $166,200.

BACKGROUND

Waterside Workshops is a non-profit organization whose mission is to engage youth
and the community through hands-on learning in bicycle mechanics, wooden
boatbuilding, and outdoor education. They work to provide at-risk youth ages 8 to 24
with a safe place to feel heard, gain confidence, develop work skills, and access the
tools and resources needed to lead healthy, sustainable lives.

Since 2001, Waterside has operated their programs at 82/84 Bolivar Drive in Aquatic
Park (Main Building B) through a lease agreement with the City. In 2006, they expanded
into the North Building at 80 Bolivar Drive as a sub-tenant to Berkeley Crew in
exchange for performing needed improvements to the building. The Bay Area Outreach
and Recreation Program (BORP) has also occupied 80 Bolivar Drive in Main Building A
since 2006. BORP and Waterside have shared docks, gardens and other common
spaces and have done so for many years.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Waterside Workshops is a non-profit youth development and vocational education
program for East Bay youth. Through their bicycle repair and café programs, they
encouraging sustainable and healthy lifestyles. This helps promote three City of
Berkeley Climate Action goals: Chapter 3 focuses on sustainable transportation,
including bicycling, Chapter 4 includes the promotion of youth development and job
training for a green economy, and Chapter 5 includes goals for the expansion of
recycling and reducing waste.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The proposed lease offers the following benefits to the City:

e Waterside Workshops has been a good steward for the buildings and Aquatic
Park for the past 20 years.

e The proposed use will continue to provide community-serving activities, including
public bicycle repair sessions, and a small café; in addition to youth training
opportunities.

e Bicycle activities will increase opportunities for the public to explore Aquatic Park,
and to connect via I-80 pedestrian bridge to the Bay Trail and the Berkeley
Waterfront.

Page 2
Page 148



Page 3 of 48

Lease Agreement: Waterside Workshops for the properties at CONSENT CALENDAR
80 (North Building), 82/84 & 90 Bolivar Drive, Aquatic Park September 13, 2022
e These activities are expected to continue to attract people and families to Aquatic
Park.
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None
CONTACT PERSON

Scott Ferris, Director, Parks, Recreation & Waterfront, 981-6711
Christina Erickson, Deputy Director, Parks, Recreation & Waterfront, 981-6703
Mollica Sokhom, Assistant Management Analyst, 981-6437

Attachments:
1: Ordinance
Exhibit A: Lease Agreement

Page 2
Page 149



Page 4 of 48

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH WATERSIDE WORKSHOPS TO USE CITY
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 80, 82/84, & 90 BOLIVAR DRIVE IN AQUATIC PARK

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. The City Manager, or his designee, is hereby authorized to execute
a lease agreement with Waterside Workshops for the property location at 80 (North
Building), 82/84 and 90 Bolivar Drive in Aquatic Park with a lease term beginning on
November 1, 2022, ending November 1, 2031. The estimated revenue is $24,750. The
lease shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.

Section 2.  All revenue from said lease shall be deposited in the Park Tax Fund
in a specific revenue account (Budget Code 450-5801-363.10-04) and used to maintain
public facilities in Aquatic Park.

Section 3.  Copies of this bill shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of Old City Hall, 2134 Martin Luther King
Jr. Way. Within fifteen calendar days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed
at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a
newspaper of general circulation.

Exhibit A: Lease Agreement

Page 150



Page 5 of 48

Exhibit A: Lease Agreement

CITY OF BERKELEY

IMPROVED PROPERTY LEASE

Between

THE CITY OF BERKELEY, A CHARTER CITY
ORGANIZED AND EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

as Landlord,

and

WATERSIDE WORKSHOPS

as Tenant.
For the Properties at

80 (North Building), 82, 84 & 90 Bolivar Drive
Berkeley, CA

Page 151



Page 6 of 48

TABLE OF CONTENTS
TABLE OF CONTENTS ...ttt sttt ettt et et ettt sa e sb e s ettt e et et eneeaeeneeneebesaenaens 2
1. DEFINITIONS ...ttt ettt s bbbttt et eaeebe s bt sae et e b e 5
2. TERM ..o e 6
3. RENT ettt ettt et e s et s h et s bt et e ae e bt e e e saeeaaesaeessesae e s e san et e easeneeaneneenne 6
4. PROPERTY AND OTHER TAXES ..ottt ettt ettt et s e 8
5. USE OF PROPERTY AND THE AQUATIC PARK MAIN LAGOON .......cccccceniniiiiieieieicieeeeneeeeenee 9
6. USE OF AQUATIC PARK PROPERTY ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicectctcceeese e 13
7. SERVICES ...ttt sttt et sttt et e e s et et st e sae s e e b e eane b e eanesbeennenneenee 14
8. OBLIGATION OF TENANT TO REMOVE PERSONAL PROPERTY .....ccceoiniininiiiieicicieieeeeeeneenns 15
9. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS ....c.ooiiiiiiiiiicieene sttt 15
10 LIENS ettt e s b e ettt en s 18
11. TENANT AND LANDLORD MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS ......ccccociiiiiiiieneereecreseereseeeeeeeee 18
12. ENVIRONMENTAL ...ttt sttt ettt ettt e st sttt a et et ene bt et eae b enes 19
13. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION ......ociiiiiiitinieniieeteeetet ettt sttt 19
14. INDEMNIFICATION ...ttt st sttt e eae 20
15. INSURANCE ..ot ettt sttt ettt e b e et e ean e eaeesnesaeenaesatennesanenneeanens 21
16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS ..ottt ettt sttt ettt et ene 23
17. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE .....ccoooiiiiiiiieeeeteteeee ettt sttt 24
18. INSPECTION ...ttt e sttt e ene s eneas 25
19. DEFAULT ...ttt ettt st st b e s b e et e e bt e e et e e s e eaeesnesatennesatennesanennesanens 25
20. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .....coutiiiiitintinententeteetetetetet ettt ettt st sttt et sae b 27
21. ENVIRONMENTAL OBLIGATIONS ..ottt sttt 28
22. LANDLORD'S RIGHT TO CURE.......ccocciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicce et 29
23. EMINENT DOMAIN ..ottt sttt st sttt et sae e sateae st enesenenesanens 30
24, SUBORDINATION ..ottt sttt sttt ettt ettt et sae et st ettt sae st n et e e e e st eneeuenaeeae 30
25. NO MERGER ..ottt st st sttt et eneenes 31
26. TRANSFER BY LANDLORD ......coiiiiiiiiiieccee sttt 31
27. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES ...ttt ettt et e s st 31
28. HOLDING OVER ...ttt ettt ettt et st et ese et eae b v 31
29. CHANGES BY LANDLORD ....oooiiiiiiiiititeseetetetet ettt sttt sttt 32
30. GOVERNING LAW L. st 32
31. SECURITY DEPOSIT ...ttt et ettt st st ae e s e ne e 32
32. SIGNAGE ...ttt et ettt ettt a et bbbt ettt sa e st n et se et aeeaesaeeae 33
33. NO PARTNERSHIP ...ttt ettt s sttt 33
34. NO WAIVER ..o et 34
35. INOTICES ...ttt et e e e et e bt e s et e ne s h e e aaeea e e e ea e et e eaeese e eneesneennesaeennes 34
36. COMPLETE AGREEMENT .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiietie ettt ettt ettt st st sttt ene 34
37. REQUESTS FOR CONSENT; WAIVER OF CLAIM .....ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiienecieeeeeeeeee e 35
38. INTERPRETATION ..ottt st 35
2

80, 82, 84 & 90 Bolivar Drive Lease — Waterside Workshops, Tenant
Page 152



39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44,
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.

Page 7 of 48

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS ...ttt ettt sttt sttt et et est e st ese e st ssesseetessease st ensensensenseneeneeneeseenens 35
AUTHORITY ettt ettt et eh e bt he e bt e bt e bt sb e et et e s b et em b e s e e et enseneeneeseeneeneebeanes 35
UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS ...ttt sttt sttt sttt et ettt ebe bbbt eves 35
TIME OF THE ESSENC E .......coiiiiiieieiiteteteee sttt ettt ettt et ese st eseeseeseesessessessassessassassessassassassesesseasens 36
BROKERAGE ..ottt sttt ettt ettt e st ea e st e st e st e bt e st ee e et et e eae s ense s ensensenseneeneeneeneeneeseenas 36
CITY NON-DISCRIMINATION ORDINANCE ........ccoccetrieirieieieieieieiesteiesieesteseete et e sessesessesesseseesens 36
NON-DISCRIMINATION AGAINST PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ......ccooeiieirieirieerieceieeeeeeienes 36
CONFLICT OF INTEREST PROHIBITED.........cctetitiieieieieieiieiet ettt ssesse s b s ssesseseeneessesesneesens 37
NUCLEAR FREE BERKELEY ...ttt ettt et ese et st seeste st e ssesens e e eneeneeneeneeneenas 37
OPPRESSIVE STATES. ...ttt ettt et b e s bbb b st e b et et et e st et e st ebeebeeaeereas 37
BERKELEY LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE (LWO) ..ottt s 38
BERKELEY EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE (EBO)....cccoieiiieieiiniiiieeiieiesie ettt e s eseenas 39
AUDIT ettt ettt ettt ettt et e b et e e ea e en e e st emtes e eaeeaees e e Rt e Rt eh e ke R e es et en s et et et ensenteneeneeneeneereenas 40
CITY BUSINESS LICENSE, PAYMENT OF TAXES, TAX I.D. NUMBER .......ccccceoeiiiniiiieieeeeee, 40
SURVIVAL ...ttt sttt ettt et e bt e bt e bt e bt bt e bt s bbb s b et et et et e st eatebe e bt ebenbene 40
EXHIBITS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et et e s et e st esseseeseesteseesees e et e eseeseeseseesansansansensansensensansasseseenensensas 40
Exhibit “A”: Leased PremMISES . .....cc.eeiiiiieiiieieitiee ettt sttt s be e e et et ebe e e naeeenen 42
Exhibit “B”: Berkeley Municipal Code, Chapter 6.04............c.couveieriieieniieienieeiesie e eve e ese e s e s 43
Exhibit “C”: Proposed Repair/Renovation SChedule ............cooceviviienieiiieieiceeeeeeeee e 44
Exhibit “D”: KIitChell REPOTT......eeitieiiiiieieiee ettt ettt ettt ettt e se e e s st eeesseeseeneeseennens 45
3

80, 82, 84 & 90 Bolivar Drive Lease — Waterside Workshops, Tenant

Page 153



Page 8 of 48

PROPERTY LEASE

BASIC LEASE INFORMATION

L. Landlord: City of Berkeley, a California municipal corporation
2180 Milvia Street
Berkeley, CA 94704
Attention: Director, Parks, Recreation & Waterfront
Telephone:  (510) 981-6437
Email: parks@cityofberkeley.info

2. Tenant: Waterside Workshops

3. Tenant Trade Name: = Waterside Workshops

4. Effective Date: November 1, 2022

' Four buildings (as depicted in Exhibit “A”) located at the
5. Premises: northeast side of Aquatic Park Approx. % an acre, including 4

buildings that together are approx. 5,265 square feet, plus outdoor
space between the buildings. Public dock and garden area shared
with BORP.
The premises shall be used for public bicycle rentals and sales,

6. Permitted Uses: community bicycle repair space, boat building space, storage area,
and a small café.

7. Initial Term: Ten (10) year(s), commencing as of November 1, 2022
(“Commencement Date”).

8. Option Period: Five (5) years.
9. Base Rent: $1,800 per year with $150 increase annually

Tenant will invest approx. $166,200 in capital improvements. This
10. Improvements includes ADA bathroom renovations, dry rot repairs, window and

door repairs and replacements, painting, siding repairs, and ADA
repairs and improvements throughout the premises.
Tenant will invest approx. $50,000 in ongoing maintenance,

11. Maintenance including landscaping, graffiti abatement, pest control, and
maintenance of plumbing, electrical and building systems.
Landlord pays for water and sewer. Tenant pays for all other

12. Services utilities including electricity, gas, garbage, and telephone. Tenant
pays electrical services associated with Dreamland bathrooms.

The Basic Lease Information set forth above and the Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated into
and made a part of the following Lease. In the event of any conflict between the Basic Lease
Information and terms of the Lease, the terms of the Lease shall control.

LANDLORD’S INITIALS TENANT’S INITIALS

4

80, 82, 84 & 90 Bolivar Drive Lease — Waterside Workshops, Tenant
Page 154



Page 9 of 48

LEASE

THIS LEASE is made by and between the CITY OF BERKELEY, a Charter City
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California ("Landlord or City") and
WATERSIDE WORKSHOPS, a non-profit organization doing business at 80, 82, 84 & 90
Bolivar Drive, in Berkeley, CA ("Tenant").

WITNESSETH:

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, the Premises
for the term and subject to the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions set forth below, to
each and all of which Landlord and Tenant hereby mutually agree.

1. DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise specifies or requires, the following terms shall have the
meanings herein specified:

A. "Affiliate," as to any person, shall mean such person's partners, members,
commissioners, officers, employees, volunteers and agents.

B. "Building" shall mean a building on the Premises as shown on Exhibit A.
C. "Lease Year" shall mean each twelve-month period during the term of the Lease

commencing upon the effective date of the Lease.

D. "Aquatic Park" shall mean the Aquatic Park as defined in Chapter 6.04 of the
Berkeley Municipal Code ("B.M.C.") (attached hereto as Exhibit “B”), as amended or succeeded,
and any buildings and other improvements constructed or to be constructed therein. Without
limiting the provisions of Section 36 of this Lease, Tenant acknowledges it is not relying on any
representations or warranties made by Landlord, Landlord's agents or anyone else in regard to
the size or configuration of Aquatic Park or in regard to the nature, location, or appearance of
any buildings, improvements, or unimproved property therein.

E. "Main Lagoon" or “Aquatic Park Lake” shall mean that body of water lying
between West Bolivar Drive on the west, Addison Street on the north, the Southern Pacific
railroad tracks on the east, and the service road on the south.

F. "Premises" are depicted in Exhibit A and shall mean the following portions of 80,
82, 84, and 90 Bolivar Drive:

1. At 80 Bolivar Drive, the North Building as described on Exhibit “A”, bounded to the
north by the lagoon and bounded to the east by the pathway. The areas to the south and west of
the building are shared spaces with BORP, the tenant at Main Building A at 82 Bolivar Drive.

2. At 82 Bolivar Drive, the southern portion of the main building, called Main Building B
and depicted in Exhibit “A”. This also includes shared use of the common area, public dock, and
the garden area shown on Exhibit “A”.

3. At 84 Bolivar Drive, the building, bounded to the south by the southern edge of the

5

Page 155



Page 10 of 48

building, to the east by the pathway, to the west by the lagoon. This also includes the outdoor
area between 82 and 84 Bolivar Drive, which is bounded by the buildings to the north and south,
lagoon to the west, and the pathway to the east.

4. At 90 Bolivar Drive, the exterior area of five feet around the perimeter of the building,
provided the Premises are setback a minimum of eight feet from any structures or objects
including but not limited to the pathways. Where the setback requirements cannot be met, the
boundary line of the Premises will be the building itself. On the east side of the building, the
property boundary is up to the street. The Premises include the unimproved foundation to the
West of the building. The Premises does not include any portion of the lagoon, or any docks or
other appurtenances that expend into the lagoon. It does not include exclusive use of any of the
surrounding Aquatic Park land beyond that mentioned above.

G. "Facilities Condition Assessments" shall mean the comprehensive review and
report of maintenance and repair needs of City-owned buildings conducted by Kitchell Capital
Expenditure Managers, Inc., during 2013 and 2014 (dated 2/20/2015). The section of the report
pertaining to Building (pages 45) is attached hereto as Exhibit "D", which lists the recommended
capital improvements by building system class along with the estimated cost to repair or replace
each specified building element or system (Table: CIP Cost Summary, page 45). This list of
recommended capital improvements informs the List of Required Improvements set forth in
Exhibit “C”.

L. "Public Dock" shall mean the public boat launching dock serving the Main
Lagoon and located adjacent to the parking area of the Premises (as depicted in the aerial view of
the Premises appearing in Exhibit "A").

2. TERM

A. Initial Term and Term of Renewal. The initial term is for a period of
approximately ten years. Tenant has the option, under certain terms and conditions as described
below, to renew this lease for an additional five-year term. This Lease shall take effect once duly
approved by the Berkeley City Council and executed by both Landlord and Tenant (“the
Effective Date”). The Initial Lease Term will expire at midnight October 30, 2032 (“the
Termination Date”).

B. Procedure for Renewal. If Tenant wishes to renew the Lease beyond the Initial
Lease Term, Tenant must provide written notice of such intent to Landlord at least one hundred
and twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If Landlord, in its sole
discretion, determines that Tenant has complied with all terms and conditions of the Lease, at
least sixty (60) days prior to expiration of the Lease, Landlord shall provide written notice to
Tenant of any additional improvements that will be required to be completed by Tenant or
increase in rent for a single five-year renewal term and shall provide notice of its determination
to grant renewal of the lease upon condition that Tenant agrees to the additional improvements
and increase in rent, if any, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term.

3. RENT
A. Rent. Tenant shall pay to Landlord as a minimum rental for its use and occupancy
of the Premises an annual rent of ONE THOUSAND AND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS

6

Page 156



Page 11 of 48

($1800.00) for the first year of the Lease. For purposes of determining Rent, the first year of the
Lease is the period up to October 31, 2023 and will be pro-rated for a partial year. In each
subsequent Lease Year during the Term, the Rent shall increase by ONE HUNDRED AND
FIFTY DOLLARS ($150.00) per year.

B. Percentage of Gross Income from Special Events.

1. In the event that Tenant operates a concession or a revenue-generating
special event on the Premises or on the Main Lagoon, then Tenant agrees to pay Landlord, in
addition to any fees levied by the City, an amount equal to FIVE PERCENT (5%) of the gross
income realized by each such concession or special event during the term of the Lease. A special
event is defined as any event in which the participants (groups or individuals) pay an entry fee to
the Tenant. Tenant shall make this payment to the Landlord within thirty (30) calendar days
from the last day of each special event, together with a financial statement of the gross income
from said event. Tenant shall keep true and accurate books and records of each special event.
Said books and records shall be retained for at least two (2) years after occurrence of the events
to which they relate. Landlord, and/or its designee, shall have the right at reasonable periods and
at all reasonable times, and upon at least five (5) days' advance notice to Tenant to inspect such
books and records. Income from special events does not include any grants or donations Tenant
receives.

2. If any special event is likely to preclude some or all users of Aquatic Park
from exercising a different use, and/or is a regatta, race, or pageant in Aquatic Park and/or on the
Main Lagoon, Tenant shall first obtain a permit from the City, as required by Resolution No.
58,644-N.S. and Section 6.04.060 of the Berkeley Municipal Code. The fees for such permits
shall be set by the City Council. Water use permits (by definition, for an event lasting no more
than two weeks), may be issued by the Parks Recreation and Waterfront Department. Tenant
understands that this Lease does not guarantee that the City, in its regulatory capacity, will grant
any particular request for a permit. Tenant understands that the City may grant or deny such
permit in its sole discretion, and may impose such terms and conditions as it deems consistent
with that discretion.

C. Manner of Payment. All rent and other payments due from Tenant shall be made
to Landlord in lawful money of the United States of America at Landlord's address for notice
hereunder, or to such other person or at such other place as Landlord may from time to time
designate in writing.

D. Delinquency and Late Charges: Interest.

1. Tenant hereby acknowledges that its late payment of rent and other sums
due hereunder will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated by this Lease, the exact
amount of which will be extremely difficult or impracticable to ascertain. Such costs include,
without limitation, processing and accounting charges and overtime wages. Accordingly, any
payment of rent or other sum due hereunder that remains due and unpaid for a period of ten (10)
days after it becomes due and payable shall be subject to a delinquency charge of ten percent
(10%) of the delinquent amount. The parties agree that such charge represents a fair and

7

Page 157



Page 12 of 48

reasonable estimate of the costs Landlord shall incur by reason of Tenant's late

payment. Landlord shall apply any monies received from Tenant first to any accrued
delinquency charges and then to any rent then due. Acceptance of such delinquency charges by
Landlord shall not constitute a waiver of Tenant's default with respect to such overdue

amount. The delinquency charge is in addition to all other remedies that Landlord may have
under this Lease or at law.

2. Any amount due to Landlord, if not paid when due, shall bear interest
from the date due until paid at the rate of the twelve percent (12%) per annum. Interest shall not
be payable on delinquency or late charges nor on any amounts upon which such charges are paid
by Tenant, to the extent such interest would cause the total interest to exceed that legally
permitted. Payment of interest shall not excuse nor cure any default hereunder by Tenant.

E. Accord and Satisfaction. Landlord's acceptance of a lesser amount of rent or
other sum due hereunder shall not be deemed to be other than on account of the earliest rent or
payment due and shall be applied by Landlord as provided in subsection D. 1. No endorsement
or statement on any check or letter accompanying any such check or payment shall be deemed an
accord and satisfaction, and Landlord may accept such check or payment and pursue any other
remedy available under this Lease or at law. Landlord may accept any partial payment from
Tenant without invalidation of any contractual notice required hereunder (if required) and
without invalidation of any notice required pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure
Section 1161, et seq., or any successor statute.

4. PROPERTY AND OTHER TAXES

A. Possessory Interest Taxes. The property interests created by this Lease may be
subject to property taxation and Tenant, in whom the possessory interest is vested, will be
responsible for the timely payment of any property taxes levied on such possessory interest.
Tenant agrees to pay before delinquency all lawful taxes, assessments, fees or charges which at
any time may be levied by the state, county, city or any tax or assessment levying body against
the transfer of the leasehold interest hereunder upon recordation or otherwise, or upon any
activity carried on under this Lease, any interest in this Lease or any possessory right which
Tenant may have in or to the Property or the Premises by reason of its use or occupancy thereof
or otherwise.

B. City of Berkeley Assessments. Tenant also shall be responsible for and shall pay
prior to delinquency all assessments imposed against the Property and/or the Premises by the
City. Tenant acknowledges that City has established certain assessment districts within the City
of Berkeley and that all properties within the assessment districts are subject to annual
assessments. The City reserves the right to create additional districts and to terminate any such
district(s). Tenant shall be billed for each such assessment in the same manner as other property
owners and lessees in the City.

C. Personal Property and Other Taxes. In addition to all other sums to be paid by
Tenant hereunder, Tenant shall pay, before delinquency, any and all taxes levied or assessed
during the term of the Lease on Tenant's equipment, furniture, fixtures, merchandise, and other

8

Page 158



Page 13 of 48

personal property located in the Premises, and shall pay, or shall reimburse Landlord for, any and
all assessments (including, without limitation, all assessments for public improvements, services
or benefits, irrespective of when commenced or completed), excises, levies, business taxes,
Lease, permit, inspection and other authorization fees, transit fees, service payments in lieu of
taxes and any other fees or charges of any kind, which are levied, assessed, or imposed by any
public authority: (i) upon or measured by rental payable hereunder, including without limitation,
any gross income tax or excise tax levied by the City of Berkeley, Alameda County, the State of
California, the Federal Government or any other government body with respect to the receipt of
such rental; (i1) upon or with respect to the development, possession, leasing, operation,
management, maintenance, alteration, repair, use or occupancy by Tenant of the or any portion
thereof; (1i1) upon, measured by or reasonably attributable to the cost or value of Tenant's
equipment, furniture, fixtures, merchandise, and other personal property located at or in the
Premises or by the cost or value of any improvements made by Tenant to the Premises,
regardless of whether title to such improvements shall be in Tenant or Landlord; or (iv) upon this
Lease or any document to which Tenant is a party creating or transferring an interest in the
Premises.

D. Tenant's Right to Contest. Tenant may, at no cost to Landlord, reasonably contest
the legal validity or amount of any taxes, assessments, or charges for which Tenant is responsible
under this Lease, and institute such proceedings as Tenant considers necessary; provided,
however, that Tenant shall at all times protect Landlord from foreclosure of any lien, and that
Landlord shall not be required to join in any proceeding or contest brought by Tenant.

S. USE OF PREMISES AND THE AQUATIC PARK MAIN LAGOON

A. The Premises shall be used for public bicycle rentals and sales, community bicycle
repair space, public boat rentals, boat building space, storage area, and a small café.

B. Tenant shall operate its business on and about the Premises in a manner consistent
with the use permitted herein and the standards promulgated by Landlord.

C. Tenant understands that motorboats may be used on the Main Lagoon at Aquatic
Park only from May 1% through September of each Lease Year on a schedule to be approved by
the City of Berkeley’s Director of Parks, Recreation, and Waterfront. For safety and instructional
purposes while using the Main Lagoon, Tenant may use three motorboats, power by four-stroke
outboard motors, provided the speed of said boats does not exceed 11 MPH, except in case of
emergencies. At all times, Tenant agrees to provide adequate personnel to ensure the safe and
efficient management of its use of the Premises and the Main Lagoon. Tenant must comply with
all applicable regulations governing the use of the Main Lagoon and Aquatic Park. Tenant may
not use motorboats on any portion of the Main Lagoon from October 15 through April 30, due
to the fact that environmental studies show use during those months would impact migratory
birds. Any such use of the Main Lagoon during this period is subject to approval of the City
Council and other affected regulatory agency.

D. At all times, Tenant agrees to provide adequate personnel to ensure the safe and
efficient management of its use of the Premises and the Main Lagoon. Tenant must comply with
all applicable regulations governing the use of the Main Lagoon and Aquatic Park. Tenant

9

Page 159



Page 14 of 48

acknowledges that the City may alter the permitted scope of usage of the Main Lagoon and
Aquatic Park in its sole discretion, and the City’s regulations shall take precedence over any
agreements between Lagoon users.

E. Prior to entering and using the Main Lagoon, Tenant shall have complied with
Section 15 - Insurance, of this Lease. In addition, Tenant, and any of its participants or guests of
guests of its participants entering and using the Main Lagoon shall sign a waiver and release
form to be provided by the Tenant that holds the City of Berkeley harmless in case of any
accidents or loss of any type. Such release shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

“Participant releases and forever discharges the City of Berkeley, its divisions, subsidiaries,
affiliates, officers, agents, employees, and the heirs, executors or assigns of any of the
foregoing, from any and all claims, demands, and causes of action of every kind, known or
unknown, whether based in tort, contract, breach of warranty, strict liability, negligence or
any other legal theory of recovery, and whether for general, special, compensatory or
punitive damages, arising out of or in any way related to use of the Main Lagoon at Aquatic
Park.”

In the event Tenant fails to obtain a signed waiver and release form from any member or guest of
its participants who uses the Main Lagoon or is in any way connected to the use of the Main
Lagoon, Tenant at all times will still be bound by Section 14 of this Agreement.

F. Tenant will comply with all applicable safety standards in effect at any given
time, and take all necessary steps to ensure that its participants and guests of its participants are
properly supervised and trained to prevent injury to themselves and others. Tenant will provide
adequate supervision and training of its participants and guests of in their use of the Premises
and/or Main Lagoon.

G. Landlord shall have no responsibility for Tenant’s equipment, vehicles or
personal property that may be lost, stolen, or damaged.

H. With the exception of Tenant's equipment stored within the Premises, no items
will be allowed to be stored in the exterior Premises without written approval by Landlord. In no
circumstances shall items not related to the Tenant’s programs be allowed to be stored on the
Premises, either inside or outside.

L Tenant agrees to require its participants and guests of participants who use the
Premises and/or Main Lagoon to respect other Aquatic Park lessees, licensees and visitors and to
abide by standards of behavior common to the sport of rowing, bike riding, and general park use.

J. Business may be conducted with the public on the Premises during park hours,

provided that Tenant shall have obtained all required permits and provided Tenant shall

comply with all rules applicable to Aquatic Park.

K. Tenant agrees to cooperate with the City in promoting community participation in
Tenant’s programs and activities held on the Premises.

10

Page 160



Page 15 of 48

L. Tenant shall not, without the written consent of Landlord:

1. place, construct or maintain in, on, or about the Premises or within
Aquatic Park any advertisement media, including without limitation, searchlights,
flashing lights, loudspeakers, or other similar media or device;

2. place or permit the use in or on the Premises of any video games, pinball
machines or other devices or equipment for amusement or recreation, or any vending
machines, newspaper racks or other coin operated devices (excepting pay telephones).

3. warehouse or stock on the Premises any goods, wares or merchandise
other than that which is directly related to the Tenant's use of the Premises;

4. store, display or sell goods or merchandise on the Premises or place or
permit portable signs or other devices to be stored or to remain on the Premises;

5. use or permit any portion of the Premises to be used as living or sleeping
quarters; and

6. sell, distribute, display, or offer for sale any item, which, in Landlord's
good faith judgment, may tend to detract from the image of Aquatic Park.

M. Tenant shall not do or permit to be done in, on, or about the Premises anything
which is prohibited by or may conflict with any law, statute, ordinance or governmental rule or
regulation now in force or hereafter enacted or promulgated, which is prohibited by the standard
forms of special form or commercial general liability insurance or which may cause a
cancellation of any insurance policy covering Aquatic Park or the Premises or any of its contents,
or (except with the prior written consent of Landlord) which may increase the existing rate of or
affect any special form or commercial general liability insurance or other insurance upon
Aquatic Park or the Premises, or any of its contents. In the event Tenant does or permits to be
done anything or keeps or permits to be kept anything on or about the Premises or the Aquatic
Park which increases the existing rate of such insurance upon Aquatic Park or the Premises or
any of its contents, Tenant shall pay the amount of any such increase promptly upon Landlord's
demand. Tenant shall not do or permit anything to be done which will in any way obstruct or
interfere with the rights of other lawful users of Aquatic Park, including, without limitation,
tenants, their employees or invitees, disturb or annoy them, or use or allow the Premises to be
used for any improper, unlawful or objectionable purpose. Tenant shall not maintain or permit
any nuisance in or about the Premises or commit or suffer to be committed any waste in or upon
the Premises.

N. No auction, fire, bankruptcy, distress, clearance, or going-out-of-business sale
shall be conducted on the Premises nor shall any sign or advertisement regarding such activity be
posted in or about the Premises.

0. Tenant shall not use or permit the Premises to be used in any manner or permit
anything to be brought into or kept therein which would (i) violate the certificate of occupancy

11

Page 161



Page 16 of 48

for the Premises; (i1) make it impossible or extraordinarily difficult to obtain special form
coverage, commercial general liability or other insurance required to be furnished by Tenant
under this Lease; (iii) cause structural injury to any part of the Premises or the Building; (iv)
impair or interfere with the proper operation and maintenance of the Premises and/or Aquatic
Park; or (v) violate any of Tenant's other obligations under this Lease.

P. If any governmental license or permit, other than a certificate of occupancy, shall
be required for the proper and lawful conduct of Tenant's business, Tenant shall procure and
maintain such license or permit and submit the same for inspection by Landlord. Tenant at all
times shall comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit.

Q. Nothing shall be done in or about the Premises by Tenant or anyone having a
contractual relationship with Tenant that will result in substantial interference, by themselves or
third parties, with normal operation and use of Aquatic Park or the means of ingress and egress
thereto ("Substantial Interference"). Tenant shall use every effort to eliminate Substantial
Interference, including legal action. If Tenant fails to bring an immediate halt to any Substantial
Interference, Landlord shall have the right (i) to take action and require Tenant to undertake and
eliminate such Substantial Interference and (ii) to commence any legal action to eliminate such
Substantial Interference. Any agreement entered into by Tenant with regard to use of the
Premises shall contain a provision reserving to Tenant all of the necessary rights and remedies to
permit Tenant to comply with its obligations under this provision and authorizing Landlord to
enforce the terms of such provision if Tenant fails to do so.

R. Tenant acknowledges that West Bolivar Drive is closed to vehicular traffic and
that Landlord has installed a gate to prohibit such traffic. Landlord agrees that Tenant and its
Affiliates may use West Bolivar Drive to access the Premises, provided that Tenant and its
Affiliates shall close the gate after each entry and exit.

S. Tenant agrees to submit to the Landlord, by June 1% of each Lease Year, an
annual report that describes the Tenant’s community activities in the prior year, including:

1. List tenant’s community activities in the previous year, with the number of
participants volunteering and the total hours at each day of community activity.

2. List number of participants, number of participants from Berkeley, number of
participants who are under 18 or other member subgroups the organization
believes is appropriate to mention.

3. Tenant shall identify the fee structure utilized during the previous year, including
dues for Berkeley residents, non-Berkeley residents, and different sub-groups if
applicable.

4. Approximate level of usage, such as number of people per day, number of person-
hours per day, or comparable information. If there is variation from one time of
year to another, then this information shall be reported by season.

5. Tenant shall discuss any Aquatic Park lagoon use scheduling or issues with other
park users. If there are no issues, a statement to that effect is required.

T. Tenant agrees to post on the Premises references to the Organization's website for

12

Page 162



Page 17 of 48

information concerning the Organization's programs and goals, events, and contacts
to discuss and facilitate participation.

6. USE OF AQUATIC PARK PROPERTY

A. The parties acknowledge that Tenant has, as a member of the general public, the
non-exclusive right, in common with others duly authorized by Landlord, and subject to all
generally applicable laws and regulations, to use Aquatic Park, including the Main Lagoon.

B. Tenant agrees that except as otherwise provided in this Lease, it is not a covenant
or condition of this Lease or of any other agreement with Tenant that Landlord undertake or
cause to be undertaken any development or redevelopment of the Premises or Aquatic Park, and
Landlord shall incur no liability whatsoever to Tenant for failure to undertake such development
or redevelopment.

C. Landlord at all times shall have the right and privilege of making such changes in
and to Aquatic Park (other than to the Premises) from time to time which in its sole opinion are
deemed to be desirable or appropriate, including the location and relocation of stairways,
sidewalks, pathways, driveways, streets, entrances, exits, automobile parking spaces, the
direction and flow of traffic, designation of prohibited areas, landscaped areas, utilities and all
other facilities; provided, however, that the foregoing is not intended to entitle Landlord to
unreasonably effect changes that would materially and adversely affect access to or visibility of
the Premises, except temporarily during periods of construction. Landlord shall have the right to
establish, promulgate, and enforce such reasonable rules and regulations concerning Aquatic
Park, as it may deem necessary or advisable for the proper and efficient management, operation,
maintenance and use thereof, and Tenant shall comply with the same.

D. Landlord at all times shall have the sole and exclusive management and control of
Aquatic Park, including without limitation, the right to lease, license or permit the use of space
within Aquatic Park to persons for the sale of merchandise and/or services and the right to permit
advertising displays, educational displays, displays of art, and promotional activities and
entertainment.

E. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to create any liability to Landlord for
any personal injury, or any damage to motor vehicles, vessels, or other Premises of Tenant's
participants, employees or others, unless caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of
Landlord, its agents, servants or employees. Tenant is solely responsible for the security of the
Premises, and for the safety of its participants and guests using the Premises and/or the Main
Lagoon pursuant to this Lease or any permits or licenses from the City. Tenant acknowledges
that if Landlord provides security guards or police patrols for Aquatic Park or any portion
thereof, Landlord does not represent, guarantee or assume responsibility that Tenant or any
person or entity will be secure from losses or injury caused by the acts of third parties and does
not assume responsibility for any such illegal acts. Tenant hereby waives any present or future
claims Tenant may have against Landlord, whether known or unknown, for bodily injury or
property damage arising from the performance of such security agents. City shall not be
obligated to provide any public liability or property damage or loss insurance for the benefit of

13

Page 163



Page 18 of 48

Tenant or any other person or entity.

F. Tenant will use its best efforts to maintain effective relations with other users of
Aquatic Park and with neighbors. Tenant shall park vehicles only in legal and/or designated
parking areas and only for the legal period of time; shall deposit all trash in legal containers;
shall not deposit food or material of any kind on adjacent Premises; and shall respect the
sensitive environment of Aquatic Park. Landlord has the right at any time to revise the traffic
flow on Bolivar Drive, provided Tenant continues to have vehicular access to the Premises.

G. Tenant shall not interfere with the free and unobstructed access by the public to
Aquatic Park. Tenant shall not preclude other users of Aquatic Park from exercising a different
use without first obtaining any and all appropriate permits. Tenant shall be obligated to permit
such access to Aquatic Park as required for consistency with applicable laws of the State of
California, and/or City's plans adopted from time to time; however, this sentence is not intended
to, and shall not be construed to, confer any right of action upon any third party.

H. Landlord reserves to itself the right to grant to others in the future nonexclusive
utility easements over, under, through, across, in or on the Premises in locations that will not
unreasonably interfere with Tenant's access to or use of the Premises. Any interference shall be
temporary, and all work on the Premises shall proceed expeditiously. Tenant shall be given
reasonable notice before commencement of any work on the Premises. In the event the
installation or maintenance of such future utility lines in such easements causes any damage to
the Premises, or any portion thereof, or to the Building, or other facilities located upon the
Premises, including but not limited to pavement, curbs and sidewalks, the same shall be repaired
by Landlord at its expense, if not so repaired by the party installing and maintaining the line.
Landlord shall hold harmless and indemnify Tenant from all claims arising out of the grant or
use of such a utility easement, except to the extent they result from the negligence or willful
misconduct of Tenant or its sub-lessees or sub-tenants.

7. SERVICES

A. Landlord shall provide and maintain water and sewer service to the Premises.
Tenant shall maintain the water and sewer lines within the Building. Landlord shall pay the costs
of the water and sewer service. Tenant shall pay for and be responsible for all other utilities and
services, including electric, gas, garbage and telephone, and all fees and periodic charges related
thereto. Tenant agrees to pay electrical services associated with Dreamland bathrooms, as they
share a meter with 90 Bolivar Drive.

B. Landlord makes no representation or warranty that the supply of any utility or
service to the Premises and/or the Building will not be interrupted, delayed or reduced.

C. Landlord shall not be liable for damages to either person or property; nor shall
Landlord be deemed to have evicted Tenant; nor shall there be any abatement of any rent; nor
shall Tenant be relieved from performance of any covenant on its part to be performed hereunder
by reason of any (i) breakdown of equipment or machinery utilized in supplying utilities or
services; (ii) interruption of or failure to supply or delay in supplying any such utilities or

services; (iii) the limitation or restriction on use of water, electricity gas, or telecommunications
14

Page 164



Page 19 of 48

service serving the Premises or Aquatic Park; or (iv) failure to repair or cure any of the
foregoing, except in the case of Landlord's gross negligence or willful misconduct.

8. OBLIGATION OF TENANT TO REMOVE PERSONAL PROPERTY

Upon the expiration of this Agreement, Tenant is obligated to remove any personal property
placed in the Premises by the Tenant. If any personal property does remain on the Premises
upon the expiration of the Agreement it will be considered abandoned personal property, which
will be removed, by the City and the Tenant will be responsible for all costs associated with
removing the personal property from the Premises.

9. ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS

A. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord owns the Premises. Tenant accepts the
Premises from Landlord in its "as is" condition, the conditions that exist as of the Effective Date
of this Lease. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord makes no representation or warranty
concerning (1) the physical condition of the Premises; (ii) the Premises suitability for Tenant's
proposed use; or (iii) the presence of any Hazardous Substance in or about the Premises, except
as otherwise expressly set forth in this Lease. Landlord has encouraged Tenant to make its own
physical inspection of all aspects of the Premises and to conduct its own investigation as to the
suitability of the Property and the Premises for Tenant's use.

B. Upon the execution of this Lease, Landlord approves and requires the
improvements to the Premises listed on Exhibit “C” that shall be completed by Tenant. Tenant
shall complete the improvements within the timeframe as stated in Exhibit “C” (Tenant’s Work).
Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the Premises (i) costing in
excess of $5,000 for any single instance or $15,000 in the aggregate for any twelve (12)
consecutive months or (ii) affecting the Building structure or utility systems, or attach any fixture
or item of equipment thereto without Landlord's prior written consent except for the Fence and
the improvements listed in Exhibit “C”. All such alterations, additions, or improvements shall be
made at Tenant's sole expense in accordance with Landlord's General Design Requirements (if
any) and the plans and specifications (including specifications for materials to be used in
connection therewith) and a statement of the estimated cost of such work submitted to and
approved by Landlord (collectively the "Plans and Specifications"). If the cost thereof exceeds
$5,000 for any single instance, or if such Tenant's Work involves the Building structure or utility
systems, any contractor or person selected by Tenant must be a licensed contractor. Landlord, in
its sole discretion, shall approve or disapprove Tenant's request and may disapprove Tenant's use
of any materials or substances, including but not limited to asbestos and fiberglass, which
Landlord, in its sole discretion, deems potentially hazardous, toxic or threatening to health. To
the extent that Tenant's Work shall require a building permit or other permits from the City of
Berkeley, Bay Conservation and Development Commission ("BCDC") and/or any other
governmental agency, Tenant shall not perform any of Tenant's Work until Tenant has obtained
all requisite permits. Tenant further shall comply with all prevailing wage requirements of
California Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., to the extent such requirements are applicable to
Tenant's work.

C. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Lease, Tenant shall not repair,
15

Page 165



Page 20 of 48

replace or modify any utility system located within the Building without the Landlord's prior
written consent. Tenant is responsible for the repair of any damage to any utility system,
structural element of the Building(s), facilities of Landlord or any other facilities arising out of
Tenant's construction activities or Tenant's negligence or willful misconduct; provided, however,
such provision is not intended to and shall not be interpreted to make any other person or entity a
third party beneficiary thereof.

D. This Lease specifically prohibits Tenant, or any other party, from expanding uses
or structures allowed on the Premises beyond those designated in use permits approved by the
City of Berkeley. Notwithstanding approval of any new Use Permit allowing expansion, or any
future expansion of the uses in existing buildings, or additions to existing buildings or docks, or
construction of any new buildings or docks, or moving existing buildings onto the Premises, are
all subject to the prior written approval of the Landlord (with the exception of the Exhibit “C”
Improvements) and all improvements (including Exhibit “C” Improvements) are subject to the
environmental review and permit regulations and approvals of same by all applicable local, state,
and federal agencies.

E. If Tenant proposes to make or construct any alterations, improvements, additions
or fixtures (other than Exhibit “C” Improvements) that affect any portion of the Premises or any
structures located on the Premises that are allowed under an existing use permit, Tenant shall
first provide the Landlord with thirty (30) days prior written notice. If Landlord raises no
objections within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, Tenant may proceed, provided
Tenant obtains all required permits.

F. Except for Exhibit “C” Improvements, Tenant shall not substantially deface or
change any floors, walls, ceilings, roofs, or partition any of the structures or improvements on
the Premises without first providing thirty (30) days written notice to Landlord. If Landlord
raises no objections within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, Tenant may proceed,
provided Tenant obtains all required permits. Except as may be specifically approved in writing
by Landlord, Tenant shall require all contractors to provide a labor and materials bond for the
full amount of any contract for improvements that exceed $50,000, including any applicable
Exhibit “C” Improvements. Tenant shall pay, when due, all sums of money that may be due or
become due for any labor, services, materials, supplies or equipment furnished to or for Tenant
in, at, upon or about the Premises and which may be secured by any mechanic's, material men’s
or other lien against the Premises or Landlord's interest therein.

All alterations, improvements or additions that are now or in the future attached permanently to
the Premises shall be the Property of Landlord and shall remain with the Property at the
termination of this Lease, except that Landlord can elect within thirty (30) days of the
termination of the Lease to require Tenant, at its cost, to remove any equipment that Tenant has
affixed to the Premises.

G. l. Tenant hereby agrees in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit
"C" to undertake and complete all of the recommended capital improvements.

2. Tenant understands the Premises were inspected by the City’s Certified Access
Specialist CASp. The Lessee acknowledges receipt of their findings and many of these are
16

Page 166



Page 21 of 48

incorporated into planned improvements in Exhibit C. City makes no warranty or representation
as to whether or not the Premises comply with ADA or any similar legislation. In the event that
Lessee’s use of the Premises requires modifications or additions to the Premises in order to
comply with the ADA or similar legislation, Lessee agrees to make any such necessary
modifications and/or additions at Lessee’s expense. City shall have no responsibility to make any
repairs or modifications to the premises in order to comply with accessibility standards, except as
set forth in other provisions of this Lease.

3. The parties acknowledge and agree that one of the principles underlying the terms
and conditions of this Lease is Tenant's agreement to perform specified capital improvements on
the Premises in exchange for abated rent and a 10-year term of occupancy. The parties have
thoroughly inspected the Building and Premises and have entered into this Lease on the
assumption that the capital improvements set forth in Exhibit C represents a reasonable estimate
of the improvements necessary to preserve, enhance and improve the condition of the Building
through the term of this Lease. However, the parties also acknowledge and agree that certain
events (for example, latent or unanticipated defects or damage to the Premises, accessibility
requirements, etc.) may give rise to substantial, unavoidable expenses that materially and
adversely affect Tenant's ability to perform its obligations under this Lease. In such event, upon
Tenant's written notice to Landlord, Landlord shall temporarily defer declaring default pursuant
to Section 19 of this Lease, and the parties, in good faith, shall employ their best efforts to
negotiate amendments to the Lease that recognize Tenant's financial hardship while preserving to
the extent possible the original terms and intent of the Lease. In the event the parties are unable
to reach agreement on such amendments, either party may terminate this lease upon 30 days’
written notice to the other. Upon such termination, Tenant shall vacate the Premises in
accordance with Section 2.B. and shall be relieved of all other obligations under this Lease.

H. 1. Tenant agrees that to the extent it is required to comply with the prevailing
wage requirements, Tenant shall assure that all workers are paid the prevailing rate of per diem
wages, and travel and subsistence payments (defined in applicable collective bargaining
agreements filed in accordance with Section 1773.8 of the California Labor Code), in effect on
the date of Landlord's first approval of a building permit or other approval of the work. Copies
of the applicable prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at Landlord's principal office and
will be made available to any interested party on request. Tenant agrees to post a copy of the
prevailing rate of per diem wages at the Premises. Tenant, as a penalty to Landlord, shall forfeit
Twenty-Five Dollars ($25) for each calendar day, or portion thereof (or such other sum as
specified from time to time by Section 1775 of the California Labor Code), for each worker paid
less than the applicable prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is employed.
The difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount paid to each worker for each
calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage
rate shall be paid to each worker by Tenant.

2. Tenant agrees to keep or cause to be kept by each contractor and
subcontractor an accurate payroll record for each worker employed on Tenant's Work covered by
this subsection H showing all of the information specified in subsection (a) of Section 1776 of
the California Labor Code. All such payroll records shall be certified, available for inspection
and filed in accordance with the procedures specified in subsections (b)-(e) inclusive of Section

17

Page 167



Page 22 of 48

1776 of the California Labor Code. In the event of noncompliance with the foregoing
requirements concerning payroll records which continues for more than ten (10) days after
Landlord gives Tenant written notice specifying in what respects Tenant must comply, Tenant
shall forfeit, as a penalty to Landlord, for each worker Twenty-Five Dollars ($25) for each
calendar day, or portion thereof, until strict compliance is effectuated. Tenant shall be
responsible for complying with Section 1777.5 of the California Labor Code concerning
apprenticeable occupations, with respect to all work covered by that section. For purposes of the
prevailing wage requirements of this subsection, Tenant shall be deemed to be a "contractor" as
that term is used in Sections 1720 et seq., of the California Labor Code. Except where the
context otherwise requires, the definitions of terms and phrases contained in the State prevailing
wage law, Sections 1720 et seq., of the California Labor Code, and in the implementing
administrative regulations, shall apply to the same terms and phrases which are used in the
prevailing wage requirements of this subsection H.

10. LIENS

Tenant shall keep the Premises, the Building, and Aquatic Park free from any liens
arising out of any work performed, materials furnished or obligations incurred by Tenant. In the
event that Tenant shall not cause any such liens to be released of record, Landlord shall have, in
addition to all other remedies provided herein or by law, the right (but not the obligation) to
cause the same to be released by such means as Landlord shall deem proper, including payment
of the claim giving rise to such lien. All sums paid and all expenses incurred by Landlord in
connection therewith shall be reimbursed by Tenant promptly on demand. Landlord shall have
the right to post and keep posted on the Premises any notices (including, without limitation,
notices of non-responsibility pursuant to California Civil Code Section 3094) that Landlord may
deem proper for protection of Landlord and the Premises. Tenant shall give Landlord at least ten
(10) business days' prior notice of the date of commencement of any Tenant's work on or in the
Premises to allow Landlord to post such notices.

11. TENANT AND LANDLORD MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS

A.  Tenant agrees that during the entire term of this Lease, at its own cost and expense,
it shall keep and maintain the Building on the Premises, and all leasehold improvements,
fixtures, furniture, and other improvements located on the Premises in good-quality order, repair
and condition. Except as otherwise provided in this Lease, Tenant shall perform, at its own cost
and expense, any and all maintenance, removal of graffiti, repairs, or rehabilitation to the
Building, Public Dock, or other area in the Premises, whether required by deterioration or by
operations of Tenant or otherwise. This obligation includes any repairs to the roof or building
structure.

B.  To the extent applicable, Tenant hereby waives the provisions of Civil Code
Sections 1941 and 1942, and any other provision of law now or hereafter in effect, with regard to
the habitability of the Property and the Premises.

C. "Good-quality order, repair and condition", as used herein, shall mean the
maintenance, repair, or renovation of the Building, equipment, furniture, fixtures, outdoor

18

Page 168



Page 23 of 48

lighting, signage, and appurtenances necessary to keep and maintain the Building in efficient and
attractive condition, given the nature and age of the Building, at any time during the term of this
Lease.

D. Tenant shall provide its own janitorial service for the Premises, and all of Tenant's
rubbish shall be removed by Tenant to such location(s) on the Premises or within Aquatic Park
as may be designated by Landlord for pick-up and disposal by the Landlord.

E. Tenant shall maintain or cause to be maintained, at Tenant’s expense, the Public
Dock adjacent to the Premises.

F. In the event of a dispute that Landlord and Tenant cannot informally resolve,
Tenant’s only remedy against Landlord shall be the right to terminate this Lease, effective thirty
(30) days from the delivery of written notice to Landlord.

G. Nothing in this Section 11 shall be deemed to affect or impair Landlord's rights
under Section 9 of this Lease. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has no obligation and has
made no promises to alter, remodel, improve, repair, decorate or paint the Building or to improve
the Premises, or any part thereof. Other than as set forth in the Facilities Condition Assessments,
Landlord has made no representations respecting the condition of the Building, the Premises, or
Aquatic Park, except as specifically set forth in this Lease.

12. ENVIRONMENTAL

A. Tenant shall follow all environmental rules and regulations as they apply to City
agencies. Specifically, Tenant shall minimize waste and recycle and compost. Tenant must
participate in a recycling service provided by the City or provide an acceptable alternative with the
approval of the City’s Recycling Supervisor. To that end, Tenant shall:

1. Assign someone to be in charge of its recycling programs, and to communicate
needs and questions to the City’s Zero Waste Division.

2. Recycle corrugated cardboard, office papers and beverage containers (glass
bottles, plastic bottles, and cans)

3. Place collection containers for paper at convenient locations.
4. Educate employees and program participants about recycling procedures.
5. Recycle batteries and office equipment (contact the City’s Zero Waste Division

for information about vendors).
6. Tenant shall recycle construction waste from tenant improvements.
7. Tenant shall conserve energy.

13. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

A. In the event the Premises are damaged by fire, flood, earthquake, act of God, the
elements, or other casualty, then (unless this Lease is terminated pursuant to this Section 13)
Tenant shall forthwith repair the same, at its sole expense. In this event, Tenant shall be solely
responsible for the loss, repair, and replacement of its equipment and leasehold improvements.

19

Page 169



Page 24 of 48

B. Anything in subsection A to the contrary notwithstanding, neither Tenant nor
Landlord shall have any obligation to repair or rebuild the Premises or the Buildings following
damage or destruction thereto if the damage or destruction is due to any cause or casualty other
than one against which the responsible party is required to carry insurance or actually does carry
insurance and such party reasonably estimates that the cost of repair or rebuilding exceeds ten
percent (10%) of the replacement cost of the Premises or Buildings, as the case may be. If the
responsible party elects not to repair any damage or destruction pursuant to this provision, such
party shall give the other party notice of such election within sixty (60) days after the date of
such damage or destruction; and this Lease shall terminate as of the date of such damage or
destruction.

C. Tenant hereby waives the provisions of California Civil Code Sections 1932 and
1933 and any other statutes now or hereafter in effect which relate to termination of a lease when
leased Premises is damaged or destroyed and agrees that such event shall be governed by the
terms of this Lease.

14. INDEMNIFICATION

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall (1) immediately defend and
(2) indemnify Landlord, and its directors, officers, and employees from and against all liabilities
regardless of nature, type, or cause, arising out of or resulting from or in connection with the
Lease. Liabilities subject to the duties to defend and indemnify include, without limitation, all
claims, losses, damages, penalties, fines, and judgments; associated investigation and
administrative expenses; defense costs, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees;
court costs; and costs of alternative dispute resolution. The Tenant's obligation to indemnify
applies regardless of whether a liability is a result of the negligence of any other person, unless it
is adjudicated that the liability is caused by the sole active negligence or sole willful misconduct
of an indemnified party.

B. The duty to defend is a separate and distinct obligation from the Tenant’s duty to
indemnify. The Tenant shall be obligated to defend, in all legal, equitable, administrative, or
special proceedings, with counsel approved by the Landlord, the Landlord and its directors,
officers, and employees, immediately upon submittal to the Tenant of the claim in any form or at
any stage of an action or proceeding, whether or not liability is established. A determination of
comparative active negligence or willful misconduct by an indemnified party does not relieve the
Tenant from its separate and distinct obligation to defend Landlord. The obligation to defend
extends through final judgment, including exhaustion of any appeals. The defense obligation
includes an obligation to provide independent defense counsel if Tenant asserts that liability is
caused in whole or in part by the negligence or willful misconduct of the indemnified party. If it
is finally adjudicated that liability was caused by the sole active negligence or sole willful
misconduct of an indemnified party, Tenant may submit a claim to the Landlord for
reimbursement of reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs.

C. The review, acceptance or approval of any of Tenant’s work or work product by
any indemnified party shall not affect, relieve or reduce the Tenant’s indemnification or defense

20

Page 170



Page 25 of 48

obligations. This Section survives the termination of this Lease. The provisions of this Section
are not limited by and do not affect the provisions of this Lease relating to insurance.

D. Liabilities subject to this Section include any claim of discrimination or
harassment, including but not limited to sexual harassment, arising from the conduct of the
Tenant or any of the Tenant’s officers, employees, agents, licensees, or subcontractors. In the
event of a discrimination or harassment complaint against any employee, agent, licensee or
subcontractor of the Tenant or its subcontractors, the Tenant shall take immediate and
appropriate action in response to such complaint, including, but not limited to termination or
appropriate discipline of any responsible employee, agent, licensee or subcontractor.

15. INSURANCE
A. Tenant, at its sole expense, shall procure and maintain the following insurance:

1. Commercial general liability insurance insuring Tenant against any
liability arising out of its use, occupancy, repair or maintenance of the Premises, the Building,
Aquatic Park or the Main Lagoon, with a combined single limit of not less than $2,000,000 for
injury to or death of one or more persons in any one accident or occurrence and Property damage
in any one accident or occurrence. Such comprehensive general liability insurance shall include
fire liability coverage and public liability and Property damage insurance, including personal
injury, broad form Property damage, blanket contractual, and other coverage as may be
reasonably required by Landlord. Landlord shall have the right, from time to time, to require
Tenant to increase the amount of its comprehensive general liability insurance coverage if, in
Landlord's reasonable opinion, the amount of such coverage is not sufficient in light of the risks
insured and Tenant's use of the Premises or Aquatic Park.

2. Special Form Property insurance for cost of damage to the Premises,
including, without limitation, during any term of construction of Tenant's Work, builders' All-
Risk Insurance. Such insurance shall include coverage for vandalism and malicious mischief and
cost of demolition and increased cost of construction by reason of changes in applicable
ordinances/laws and shall not contain a co-insurance clause.

B. All policies of insurance and all renewals thereof shall be approved as to form and
sufficiency by Landlord's Risk Manager and shall be issued by good and responsible companies
qualified to do and doing business in California and rated A+: XIII or better in the most recent
version of Best's Insurance Guide. Each of the required insurance coverages except for workers
compensation (i) shall name Landlord and each of its Affiliates as additional insureds and, with
respect to casualty insurance, as their respective interests may appear and (ii) shall provide that it
may not be canceled or altered by the insurer in such manner as to adversely affect the coverage
unless sixty (60) days' prior notice is given by certified mail to Landlord at the address set forth
in Section 35 below, or to such place as Landlord may from time to time designate in a notice to
Tenant.

C. An original certificate of each policy of insurance shall be delivered to Landlord
prior to the date the Premises is delivered to Tenant and from time to time during the Term. If

21

Page 171



Page 26 of 48

Tenant shall fail to procure or maintain any insurance required hereunder or shall fail to furnish
to Landlord any duplicate policy or certificate, Landlord may obtain such insurance; and any
premium or cost paid by Landlord for such insurance shall be reimbursed by Tenant promptly
upon Landlord's demand. Tenant shall make good faith efforts to ensure that at least sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration of any such policy, an extension endorsement showing that such
insurance coverage has been or will be renewed or extended shall be delivered to Landlord and
if, despite such good faith efforts, such extension endorsement cannot be timely delivered,
Tenant shall cause to be delivered to Landlord within said time other reasonable documentary
evidence of renewal of coverage and shall continue exercising diligent efforts to deliver to
Landlord the required extension endorsement. If such coverage is canceled or reduced, Tenant,
within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice of such cancellation or reduction in coverage
but in no event later than the effective date of cancellation or reduction, shall deliver to Landlord
a certificate showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or provided through another
insurance company(ies). Upon Tenant's failure to so deliver such certificate, Landlord may,
without further notice and at its option, (1) exercise Landlord's rights as provided in this Lease or
(2) procure such insurance coverage at Tenant's expense and Tenant shall promptly reimburse
Landlord for such expense.

D. If any of the insurance required in this Section 15 is provided under a claims-
made form of policy, Tenant shall maintain such coverage continuously throughout the Term and
without lapse for a period of not less than five (5) years beyond the termination of this Lease, to
the effect that should occurrences during the Term give rise to claims made after termination of
this Lease, such claims shall be covered by such claims-made policies.

E. Each of Tenant's Property insurance policies insuring the Premises and Tenant's
Property in the Premises shall include a waiver of the insurer's right of subrogation against
Landlord, or, if such waiver should be unobtainable or unenforceable, (1) an express agreement
that such policy shall not be invalidated if the assured waives, before the casualty, the right of
recovery against any party responsible for a casualty covered by the policy or (i1) any other form
of permission concerning the assured's right to waive its right of recovery. If such waiver,
agreement or permission shall not be, or shall cease to be, obtainable, Tenant shall so notify
Landlord promptly after learning thereof.

F. Tenant hereby releases Landlord with respect to any claim (including a claim for
negligence) which Tenant might otherwise have against Landlord for loss, damage or destruction
of Tenant's Property occurring during the Term to the extent to which Tenant is insured under a
policy (ies) containing a waiver of subrogation or agreement or permission to release liability, as
provided in E. above. If, notwithstanding the recovery of insurance proceeds by Tenant for such
loss, damage or destruction, Landlord is liable to Tenant with respect thereto or is obligated
under this Lease to make replacement, repair, restoration or payment, then (provided Tenant's
right of full recovery under its insurance policies is not thereby prejudiced or otherwise adversely
affected) the amount of the net proceeds of the Tenant's insurance against such loss, damage or
destruction shall be offset against Landlord's liability to Tenant therefore or shall be made
available to Landlord to pay for replacement, repair or restoration, as the case may be. Nothing
contained herein shall relieve either party of any duty to repair, restore or rebuild imposed
elsewhere in this Lease or shall nullify any abatement of rent provided for elsewhere in this Lease.

22

Page 172



Page 27 of 48

G. If Tenant employs any person, it shall carry workers' compensation and
employer's liability insurance and shall provide a certificate of insurance to the Landlord. The
workers' compensation insurance shall: provide that the insurance carrier shall not cancel,
terminate, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said insurance except upon thirty (30)
days prior written notice to the Landlord; provide for a waiver of any right of subrogation
against Landlord to the extent permitted by law; and be approved as to form and sufficiency
by the Landlord's Risk Manager.

H. If a death, serious personal injury, or substantial Property damage occurs in
connection with the performance of this Lease, Tenant shall immediately notify the Landlord's
Risk Manager. If any accident occurs in connection with this Lease, Tenant shall promptly
submit a written report to Landlord, in such form as the Landlord may require. This report shall
include the following information: 1) name and address of the injured or deceased person(s); 2)
name and address of Tenant's subtenant, if any; 3) name and address of Tenant's liability
insurance carrier; and 4) a detailed description of the accident, including whether any of
Landlord's equipment, tools or materials were involved.

I Tenant shall forward all insurance documents to:
Parks, Recreation & Waterfront
City of Berkeley
2180 Milvia St., 3" Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704

16. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

A. Tenant, at its sole expense, shall promptly comply with all applicable laws,
ordinances, rules, regulations, permits or requirements now or hereafter in effect (whether
foreseen or unforeseen by Landlord or Tenant), with the requirements of any board of fire
underwriters or similar body now or hereafter constituted; with any occupancy certificate issued
by any public officer and with the provisions of all recorded documents affecting the Premises,
insofar as any of the foregoing relate to or affect the condition, use or occupancy of the Premises
or the Building. Such compliance by Tenant shall include, without limitation, compliance with
all obligations to alter, maintain, or restore the Premises (and, as applicable, the Building), or
construct improvements in or to the Premises, regardless of cost and regardless of when during
the term of the Lease the work is required.

B. Tenant acknowledges that conducting its operations at the Premises and making
certain alterations and improvements may require an authorization, approval or permit
(collectively, "Regulatory Approval") from a governmental authority having jurisdiction over the
Premises, including but not limited to the Bay Conservation and Development Commission.
Tenant shall be solely responsible for obtaining any such Regulatory Approval, and Tenant shall
not seek any Regulatory Approval without first obtaining the approval of Landlord, except for
the Fence and items listed on Exhibit “C”. All costs associated with applying for and obtaining
any necessary Regulatory Approval shall be borne by Tenant. Tenant shall be solely responsible

23

Page 173



Page 28 of 48

for complying with any and all conditions imposed by regulatory agencies as part of a
Regulatory Approval; however, Landlord shall not take any action that would materially
interfere or prevent Tenant from complying with all such conditions. Any fines or penalties
imposed as a result of the failure of Tenant to comply with the terms and conditions of any
Regulatory Approval shall be paid and discharged by Tenant, and Landlord shall have no
liability, monetary or otherwise, for said fines and penalties, except to the extent that such fines
or penalties were caused by the willful acts or omissions of Landlord. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, Tenant agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord and its officers, agents and
employees harmless from and against any loss, expense, cost, damage, attorneys' fees, penalties,
claims or liabilities which Landlord may incur as a result of Tenant's failure to timely obtain or
comply with the terms and conditions of any Regulatory Approval. Landlord agrees to cooperate
(but only to the same extent and in the same manner as a non-public entity could so cooperate,
and not as an exercise of Landlord's police or regulatory power) with Tenant in filing, processing
and obtaining all Regulatory Approvals, and upon request of Tenant, to join with Tenant as co-
applicant in filing, processing and obtaining all Regulatory Approvals; provided, however, that
Landlord may refuse to file, process or obtain Regulatory Approvals or to join Tenant as a co--
applicant if Landlord determines in its sole and absolute discretion that it is not in Landlord's
best interest to do so. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit or otherwise constrain
Landlord's discretion, powers, and duties as a regulatory agency with certain police powers.

C. Tenant understands and agrees that Landlord is entering into this Lease in its
capacity as a landowner with a proprietary interest in the Premises and not as a regulatory agency
of the City of Berkeley with certain police powers. Landlord's legal status shall in no way limit
the obligation of Tenant to obtain any required approvals from Landlord's departments, boards,
or commissions that have jurisdiction over the Premises. By Landlord's entering into this Lease,
neither Landlord nor any of City Council, boards, commissions, agencies, departments, or
Affiliates obligates itself to any other governmental agent, board, commission or agency, or to
Tenant, or to any other individual or entity, with regard to any discretionary action relating to
development or operation of the Premises or Aquatic Park. Discretionary action includes but is
not limited to rezonings, variances, environmental clearances, or any other governmental agency
approvals that may be required or desirable for the improvement, alteration, or operation of the
Premises or Aquatic Park. By entering into this Lease, Landlord is in no way modifying or
limiting the obligation of Tenant to cause the Premises to be used and occupied in accordance
with all laws.

17. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE

A. Any provision of this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, Tenant shall not
directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, transfer, assign, pledge, encumber or
hypothecate this Lease or all or any portion of the Premises or Tenant's interest in and to the
Premises (collectively, an "Assignment") or sublet the Premises or any portion thereof or permit
the Premises or any portion thereof to be used, occupied or managed by anyone other than
Tenant pursuant to any Lease, use or concession agreement or otherwise (collectively, a
"Sublease") without first obtaining Landlord’s written consent. Any assignment, encumbrance,
or sublease without Landlord's written consent shall be voidable and, at Landlord's election, shall
constitute a default. City has the sole discretion to determine whether to agree to any sublease or

24

Page 174



Page 29 of 48

assignment. No consent to any assignment, encumbrance, or sublease shall constitute a further
waiver of the provisions of this subsection.

B. Neither this Lease nor any interest therein shall be assignable or transferable in
proceedings in attachment, garnishment, or execution against Tenant, in voluntary or involuntary
proceedings in bankruptcy or insolvency or receivership taken by or against Tenant or by any
process of law. Possession of the Premises shall not be divested from Tenant in such
proceedings or by any process of law without the prior written consent of Landlord.

C. Tenant expressly waives any rights that it might otherwise be deemed to possess
pursuant to applicable law, including without limitation, Section 1997.040 of the California Civil
Code, to limit any remedy of Landlord pursuant to Section 1951.2 or 1951.4 of the Code by
means of proof that enforcement of a restriction on use of the Premises would be unreasonable.

18. INSPECTION

Landlord may enter the Premises at all reasonable times (with reasonable advance notice
except in case of emergency) (i) to inspect the same; (i1) to exhibit the same to prospective
purchasers, mortgagees or tenants; (iii) to conduct tests, inspections and surveys to determine
whether Tenant is complying with all of its obligations hereunder; (iv) to post notices of
nonresponsibility or other notices that may be permitted hereunder; (v) to post "to Lease" signs
of reasonable size upon the Premises during the last ninety (90) days of the Term; and (vi) to
make repairs required or permitted to be made by Landlord or repairs to any adjoining space or
any utility systems or to make repairs, alterations or additions to any other portion of the
Building or Aquatic Park; provided, however, that all such work shall be done as promptly and
with as little interference to Tenant as reasonably possible. Tenant hereby waives all claims
against Landlord for any injury or inconvenience to or interference with Tenant's business or any
loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Premises resulting from Landlord's entry into the
Premises or any work performed therein by Landlord. Landlord shall at all times have a key to
all doors in and about the Premises (excluding Tenant's vaults, safes and similar areas designated
by Tenant in writing in advance), and Landlord shall have the right to use any and all means
which Landlord may deem proper in an emergency to obtain entry to the Premises. Tenant also
shall provide Landlord with written notice of the name, address, telephone number, and Tenant's
account number of the burglar alarm company (if any) utilized by Tenant for the Premises. Any
entry to the Premises by any of said means or otherwise shall not under any circumstances be
deemed a forcible or unlawful entry into or a detainer of the Premises or an eviction (actual or
constructive) of Tenant from the Premises.

19. DEFAULT

The occurrence of any one of the following shall constitute an event of default on the part
of Tenant:

A. Failure to Use Premises. Failure to use the Premises as specified in Sections 5
and 6.

25

Page 175



Page 30 of 48

B. Nonpayment of Rent. Failure to pay any installment of rent or any other sum due
and payable hereunder upon the date when such payment is due, such failure continuing for a
period of five (5) days after written notice of such failure; provided, however, that Landlord shall
not be required to provide such notice more than twice during any consecutive twelve (12)
months with respect to non-payment of any portion of rent, the third such non-payment during
any consecutive twelve (12) months constituting an event of default without requirement of
notice.

C. Other Obligations. Failure to perform any obligation, agreement or covenant
under this Lease, such failure having continued for thirty (30) days after notice of such failure
from Landlord or such longer period as is reasonably necessary to remedy such default, provided
that Tenant has commenced to remedy the default within such thirty (30) day period and shall
continuously and diligently pursue such remedy until such default is cured.

D. General Assignment. A general assignment by Tenant for the benefit of creditors.

E. Bankruptcy. The filing of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy by Tenant, or the
filing of an involuntary petition by Tenant's creditors, which involuntary petition remains
undischarged for a period of thirty (30) days. In the event that under applicable law the trustee in
bankruptcy or Tenant has the right to affirm this Lease and to continue to perform the obligations
of Tenant hereunder, such trustee or Tenant, in such time period as may be permitted by the
bankruptcy court having jurisdiction, shall cure all defaults of Tenant hereunder outstanding as
of the date of affirmance and shall provide to Landlord such adequate assurances as may be
necessary to ensure Landlord of the continued performance of Tenant's obligations
hereunder. Any transferee (by operation of law or otherwise) must provide Landlord with
adequate assurance of its future performance under this Lease. In the event of Tenant's
bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization, the parties specifically intend that the actions of the
trustee or Tenant in assuming and/or assigning this Lease shall be governed by Section 365 of
Title 11 of the United States Code applicable to shopping center leases.

F. Receivership. The employment of a receiver to take possession of all or
substantially all of Tenant's assets in the Premises.

G. Insolvency. The attachment, execution or other judicial seizure of all or
substantially all of Tenant's assets in or on the Premises; the admission by Tenant in writing of
its inability to pay its debts as they become due; the filing by Tenant of a petition seeking
reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief
under any present or future law or regulation; the filing by Tenant of an answer admitting or
failing timely to contest a material allegation of a petition filed against Tenant in any such
proceeding or if, within thirty (30) days after the commencement of any proceeding against
Tenant seeking reorganization or arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation,
dissolution or similar relief under any present or future law or regulation, such proceeding shall
not have been dismissed.

H. Release of Hazardous or Toxic Substances or Materials and Other
Environmental Impacts. Any release or discharge in, on, under, around, or from the Premises

26

Page 176



Page 31 of 48

and/or Aquatic Park by Tenant, its agents or employees of Hazardous Substances which has not
been fully cleaned up within ten (10) days after such release or discharge. Any negative impacts
to the natural habitat and environment of Aquatic Park and/or the Main Lagoon caused by
Tenant that are documented by a qualified, independent source and for which reasonable
remediation measures are not available, or the Tenant fails to cooperate with the Landlord in
implementing in a timely manner reasonable measures intended to mitigate any negative
impacts.

L Illegal Drugs. Any release or discharge of chemicals, toxics, solution in
connection with the manufacturing and mixing of any illegal substance on the premises.

J. Non-compliance with lease term. Failure to perform any of the obligations
and improvements listed on Exhibit “C”, such failure continuing for 30 days after notice from the
landlord of said default.

20. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT

A. Termination. In the event of the occurrence of any event of default, Landlord
shall have the right immediately to terminate this Lease by written notice and at any time
thereafter to recover possession of the Premises or any part thereof and to expel and remove
Tenant, any other person or party occupying the same and all Premises located therein, by any
lawful means and to reenter the Premises without prejudice to any of the remedies that Landlord
may have under this Lease or under law or equity.

B. Continuation after Default. In the event of any default, this Lease shall continue
in effect for so long as Landlord does not terminate this Lease under subsection A above. In
such case, Landlord may enforce all its rights and remedies under this Lease, including without
limitation, the right to recover rent as it becomes due, and all of its rights and remedies under
law. Acts of maintenance, preservation, efforts to relet the Premises for Tenant's account or the
appointment of a receiver upon application of Landlord to protect Landlord's interest under this
Lease shall not constitute an election to terminate this Lease or Tenant's right to possession.

C. Damages upon Termination. Should Landlord terminate this Lease pursuant to
subsection A above, in addition to any other rights and remedies to which it may be entitled
under applicable law, Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenant: (i) the worth at the time
of the award of the unpaid rent and other amounts which had been earned at the time of
termination; plus (ii) the worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid rent
which would have been earned after termination until the time of the award exceeds the amount
of such rent loss that Tenant proves reasonably could have been avoided; plus (iii) the worth at
the time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the balance of the Term after
the time of award exceeds the amount of such rent loss that Tenant proves reasonably could be
avoided; plus (iv) any other amount necessary to compensate Landlord for all the detriment
proximately caused by Tenant's failure to perform its obligations under this Lease or which, in
the ordinary course of things, would likely result therefrom, including without limitation, the
costs and expenses (including brokerage commissions and advertising costs) incurred by
Landlord, with or without terminating the Lease, (1) in retaking possession of the Premises; (2)

27

Page 177



Page 32 of 48

in cleaning and making repairs and alterations to the Premises reasonably necessary to return the
Premises to good condition for the use permitted by this Lease and otherwise to prepare the
Premises for reletting;(3) in removing all persons and personal property from the Premises and
transporting and storing any of Tenant's personal property left at the Premises, although
Landlord shall have no obligation to remove, transport, or store any of such personal property;
and (4) in reletting the Premises for such term, at such rent and upon such other terms and
conditions as Landlord in its sole discretion may deem advisable; plus (v) such other amounts in
addition to or in lieu of the foregoing as may be permitted from time to time under California
law. The "worth at the time of award" of the amounts referred to in (i) and (i1) shall be computed
with interest at the maximum rate allowed by law. The "worth at the time of award" of the
amount referred to in (iii) shall be computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of
the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco at the time of the award plus one percent (1%).

D. Computation of Rent for Purposes of Default. For purposes of computing unpaid
rent which would have accrued and become payable pursuant to subsection C above, unpaid rent
shall include the total rent for the balance of the term of the Lease.

E. Remedies Cumulative. All rights, privileges and elections or remedies of the
parties are cumulative and not alternative to the extent permitted by law and except as otherwise
specifically provided herein.

F. No Waiver. Landlord's waiver of any breach of a covenant or condition hereof, or
Landlord's failure to declare any default immediately upon occurrence thereof or a delay in
taking any action in connection therewith shall not waive such breach or such covenant or
condition or any subsequent breach thereof. The subsequent acceptance of rent or other monies
by Landlord shall not be deemed a waiver of any preceding default by Tenant, other than the
failure of Tenant to pay the particular rent or other sum so accepted, regardless of Landlord's
knowledge of such default at the time of its acceptance of rent.

G. No Right of Redemption. Tenant waives any right of redemption or relief from
forfeiture under California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1174 and 1179 or any other present
or future law in the event Tenant is evicted or Landlord takes possession of the Premises by
reason of Tenant's default.

21. ENVIRONMENTAL OBLIGATIONS

A. Tenant shall not, without Landlord's prior written consent (which consent may be
granted or denied in Landlord's sole discretion), install, bring into or release or discharge in, on,
under, around, or from the Premises any (i) asbestos-containing materials, (ii) electrical
transformers, fluorescent light fixtures with ballasts or other equipment containing PCB's or (iii)
materials which constitute hazardous, extremely hazardous or toxic materials under the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act, the California Hazardous Waste Control Act, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, the California Safe
Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 or any other applicable law or regulation
concerning hazardous or toxic materials, (collectively "Hazardous Substances") and has not done
so prior to the effective date of this Lease. Any Hazardous Substances which are used, stored,

28

Page 178



Page 33 of 48

treated, disposed of or released from the Premises by Tenant or its representatives, agents,
employees or invitees, shall be used, stored, treated, released and disposed of in accordance with
all applicable laws and regulations.

B. If Tenant knows or has reasonable cause to believe that any Hazardous Substance
has been released on or beneath the Premises, Tenant shall immediately notify the Berkeley
Police Department and the Toxic Management Office and promptly give written notice of same
to Landlord. If Tenant knows or has reasonable cause to believe that such substance is an
imminent and material danger to public health or safety, Tenant shall take all actions necessary
to alleviate such danger. Tenant shall provide to Landlord as promptly as possible, and in any
event within five business days after Tenant first receives or sends the same, copies of all claims,
reports, complaints, notices, warnings or asserted violations relating in any way to the Premises
or Tenant's use thereof and concerning Hazardous Substances. Tenant shall not negotiate or
enter into any settlement agreement, consent decree or other compromise in respect of Hazardous
Substances affecting the Premises or the Premises without first giving Landlord prior written
notice and full opportunity to appear, intervene or otherwise protect Landlord's rights and
interests.

C. Without limitation of the provisions of Section 14 hereof, Tenant shall indemnify,
defend and hold Landlord and its affiliates harmless from any and all claims, judgments,
damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities or losses which arise during or after the term of this
Lease as a result of the handling of Hazardous Substances on the Premises, or Aquatic Park by
Tenant, its agents or invitees, including without limitation, all costs of monitoring, investigating,
and remediation of the same, damages for diminution in the value of the Premises, damages for
the loss or restriction on use of rentable or usable space or of any amenity of the Premises,
damages arising from any adverse impact on marketing of any such space and sums paid in
settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultant fees and expert fees. This indemnification by
Tenant includes, but is not limited to, costs incurred in connection with any investigation of site
conditions or any clean-up, remediation, removal or restoration work requested by Landlord or
required by any federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision because of
Hazardous Substance present in the soil or groundwater in, on or under the Premises or in any
improvements. Without limiting the foregoing, if the presence of any Hazardous Substance in,
on, under or about the Premises caused or permitted by Tenant results in any contamination of
the Premises or Aquatic Park, Tenant, at its sole expense, promptly shall take all action that is
necessary to return the Premises to the condition existing prior to the introduction of such
Hazardous Substance in, on, under or about the Premises; provided that Landlord's approval of
such actions shall first be obtained, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld so long as
such actions could not potentially have any material adverse effect upon the Premises. Tenant's
obligations under this Section 21.C. shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease.

22. LANDLORD'S RIGHT TO CURE

All covenants to be performed by Tenant shall be performed at Tenant's sole cost and
expense and without abatement of rent. Without limiting Landlord's rights under any other
provision of this Lease, if Tenant shall fail to pay any sum of money or shall fail to perform any
other act and such failure shall have become an event of default under Section 19, Landlord,

29

Page 179



Page 34 of 48

without waiving or releasing Tenant from any of its obligations, may make (but shall not be
obligated to make) any such payment or perform any such other act. All sums so paid by
Landlord and all necessary incidental costs shall be deemed additional rent and shall be payable
to Landlord immediately upon Landlord's written demand.

23. EMINENT DOMAIN

A. If all or any part of the Premises shall be taken as a result of the exercise of the
power of eminent domain, this Lease shall terminate as to the part so taken on the earlier of the
dates that title vests in the condemning authority or such authority takes possession of the
Premises. In the case of a partial taking, either Landlord or Tenant shall have the right to
terminate this Lease as to the balance of the Premises by written notice to the other party within
thirty (30) days after such date of taking; provided, however, that Tenant shall have no right to
terminate this Lease unless the portion of the Premises taken shall be of such extent and nature as
substantially to impede or impair Tenant's use of the balance of the Premises. In the event of any
such taking, Landlord shall be entitled to all compensation, damages, income, rent, awards and
interest that may be paid or made in connection with such taking. Tenant shall have no claim
against Landlord for the value of any unexpired Term; however, Landlord shall cooperate with
Tenant if Tenant seeks to recover, at its sole expense, proceeds or awards paid to compensate for
damage to the "goodwill" associated with Tenant's business. Any such amounts recovered shall
belong to Tenant.

B. If any part of the Premises shall be so taken and this Lease shall not be
terminated, then this Lease shall continue in full force and effect, except that the Rent shall be
reduced in the same proportion that the rentable area of the Premises taken bears to the original
rentable area of the Premises. Landlord, upon receipt of the award, shall make all necessary
repairs and alterations (exclusive of Tenant's trade fixtures, furniture, furnishings, personal
Premises, decorations, signs and contents) to restore the portion of the Premises remaining to as
near its former condition as the circumstances will permit and to restore the Building to the
extent necessary to constitute the portion of the Building not so taken a complete architectural
unit. Landlord, in any event, shall not be required to spend for such repairs and alterations an
amount in excess of the amount received by Landlord as damages for the taking of such part of
the Premises and/or Building; and Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall make all necessary
repairs and alterations to Tenant's trade and lighting fixtures, furniture, furnishings, personal
Premises, decorations, signs and contents.

C. As used herein, the "amount received by Landlord" shall mean that portion of the
award received by Landlord as damages from the condemning authority which is free and clear
of all prior claims or collections by Landlord and less reasonable attorneys' and appraisers' fees
and expenses.

24. SUBORDINATION

A. This Lease shall be subject and subordinated to (i) all ground or underlying leases
which have been or may hereafter be executed affecting the Premises, (ii) any Declaration of
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions now or hereafter recorded affecting Aquatic Park, all

30

Page 180



Page 35 of 48

without the necessity of having further instruments executed on behalf of Tenant to effectuate
such subordination.

B. Tenant agrees to execute and deliver upon demand such further instruments or
documents as may reasonably be required by Landlord to evidence any such subordination of
this Lease. Tenant hereby constitutes and appoints Landlord, as Tenant's attorney-in-fact,
coupled with an interest, to execute and deliver any such instrument(s) on behalf of Tenant.

25. NO MERGER

The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Tenant, or a mutual cancellation
thereof, shall not work a merger and shall, at the option of Landlord, terminate all or any existing
subleases or subtenancies or operate as an assignment to it of any or all such subleases or
subtenancies.

26. TRANSFER BY LANDLORD

In the event the original Landlord or any successor owner of Aquatic Park shall sell or
convey the Premises or the Building, or any portion thereof that includes the Premises, all
liabilities and obligations on the part of the original Landlord or such successor owner shall
terminate. All such liabilities and obligations thereupon shall be binding only upon the new
owner. Tenant agrees to attorn to such new owner.

27. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES

From time to time, Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord promptly upon request a
certificate certifying (i) that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect or, if there has
been any modification, that this Lease is in full force and effect as modified, and stating the date
and nature of each such modification; (i1) the date to which rent and other sums payable
hereunder have been paid; (iii) that no notice has been received by Tenant of any default which
has not been cured, except as to defaults specified in such certificate; (iv) that Landlord is not in
default under this Lease and that Tenant has no claims, charges, offsets or defenses against
Landlord, or specifying the nature of any such default or claim, charges, offsets or defense; and
(v) such other matters as may be reasonably requested by Landlord. Any such certificate may be
relied upon by any prospective purchaser, vendee, or other party. If Tenant fails to execute and
deliver any such certificate within ten (10) business days after Landlord's written request, such
failure, at Landlord's election, shall be conclusive against Tenant that this Lease is in full force
and effect, without modification (except as may be represented by Landlord), that there are no
uncured defaults in Landlord's performance, and that not more than one month's rent has been
paid in advance.

28. HOLDING OVER

If, after the expiration of the Term of the Lease, Tenant remains in possession of the
Premises with Landlord’s consent all provisions of this Lease shall remain in effect with the
following exceptions: (1) Tenant shall become a tenant from month-to-month, such tenancy

31

Page 181



Page 36 of 48

terminable on thirty (30) days’ notice given at any time by either party; and (2) the Rent shall
increase to 120% of the amount of the rent when the Lease expired.

29. CHANGES BY LANDLORD

A. The description of the Premises and the location of any Premises utility system(s),
including without limitation electrical, plumbing, shall be subject to such minor changes as
Landlord determines to be necessary or desirable in the course of any construction performed by
or under the authorization of Landlord. No such changes shall invalidate or affect this
Lease. Landlord shall effect such changes using reasonable efforts not to disturb Tenant's
business. Tenant shall have no claim against Landlord for abatement of rent or loss of business
as a result of any such disturbance.

B. Landlord shall have the right in its sole discretion to, among other things, change
permitted land uses, install, maintain and remove public improvements, change the arrangement,
character, use or location of entrances or passageways, walkways, streets, sidewalks, parking
areas, stairs, landscaping, toilets, and other facilities and portions of Aquatic Park, and to change
the name, number or designation by which the Building is commonly known. None of the
foregoing shall be deemed an actual or constructive eviction of Tenant, nor shall it entitle Tenant
to any reduction of rent hereunder or result in any liability of Landlord to Tenant; provided,
however, Landlord shall not unreasonably obstruct or interfere with access to or the lines of sight
toward the Premises.

30. GOVERNING LAW

This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.

31. SECURITY DEPOSIT

As security for the full and faithful performance by Tenant of each and every term, provision,
covenant, and condition of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord in an amount of
THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($300), unless waived in whole or in part by Landlord. Such
security shall be deposited on or before the Effective Date of this Lease.

If Tenant defaults in respect to any of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this
Lease, including but not limited to the payment of rent, Landlord may use the security deposit or
any portion of it to cure the default or compensate the Landlord for all damage sustained by
Landlord resulting from Tenant's default. If Landlord so uses any portion of the security deposit,
Tenant will restore the security deposit to its original amount within ten (10) days after written
demand from Landlord.

Landlord will not be required to keep the security deposit separate from its own funds and
Tenant shall not be entitled to interest on the security deposit. The security deposit will not be a
limitation on Landlord's damages or other rights under this Lease, or a payment of liquidated
damages or an advance payment of the rent. If Tenant pays the rent and performs all of its other
obligations under this Lease, Landlord shall return the unused portion of the security deposit to

32

Page 182



Page 37 of 48

Tenant within sixty (60) days after the end of the term. Landlord may deliver the security
deposit to a purchaser of the Premises and be discharged from further liability with respect to it.

32. SIGNAGE

The size, design, material and location of any sign, marquee, awning, decoration or other
attachment, advertising material or lettering on the Premises or on the exterior of the Building
(collectively "signage") shall be subject to Landlord's prior written approval. All such signage
shall comply with the criteria outlined in Landlord's General Design Requirements (if any) and
shall be subject to the following provisions:

A. Tenant, at its sole expense, shall submit to Landlord a written description of all
proposed signage, including dimensions, color, proposed location and other pertinent
information ("Signage Proposal"). Landlord shall review the Signage Proposal and shall notify
Tenant in writing of its approval, or reason(s) for its disapproval, within thirty (30) business days
after Landlord's receipt of the Signage Proposal. If disapproved, Tenant shall make all required
modifications to the Signage Proposal and shall resubmit the same to Landlord within seven (7)
days after its receipt of Landlord's disapproval.

B. Within ten (10) days after Landlord's approval of the Signage Proposal, Tenant, at
its sole expense, shall cause to be prepared and submitted to Landlord two (2) sets of plans
("Sign Plans") reflecting in detail the information contained in the approved Signage Proposal.
Landlord shall review the Sign Plans within thirty (30) days after Landlord's receipt of the same.

C. Upon Tenant's receipt of its sign permit from Landlord, Tenant shall construct
and/or install all signage shown on the Sign Plans; in any event, however, Tenant shall complete
such construction and/or installation not later than thirty (30) days after the sign permit is issued,
unless otherwise agreed to by the City in writing.

D. Upon Landlord's request, Tenant immediately shall remove any signage that
Tenant has placed or permitted to be placed in, on or about the Premises or Building contrary to
the terms of this Section 32. If Tenant fails to do so, Landlord may enter upon the Premises and
remove the same at Tenant's expense. Tenant, at its sole expense, shall maintain and replace all
approved signage and shall repair, at its sole expense, any damage to the Building caused by the
erection, maintenance or removal of any signage, including any damage caused by Tenant's
removal of its signage at the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease. Tenant also shall
comply with such regulations as may from time to time be promulgated by Landlord governing
the signage of all tenants in Aquatic Park.

33. NO PARTNERSHIP

It is expressly understood and agreed that Landlord shall not be deemed in any way or for
any purpose a partner, agent or principal of Tenant, in the conduct of its business or otherwise, or
a joint venture or member of a joint enterprise with Tenant.

34. NO WAIVER

33

Page 183



Page 38 of 48

Landlord's waiver of Tenant's breach of any covenant or condition shall not be deemed a
waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other covenant or condition, nor shall any
custom or practice which may develop between the parties in the administration of the terms
hereof be construed to waive or to lessen the right of Landlord to insist upon Tenant's
performance in strict accordance with the terms of this Lease.

35. NOTICES

All notices, demands, consents or approvals which may or are required to be given by
either party shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been received when delivered
personally or on the earlier of the date of actual receipt or two (2) business days following
deposit in the United States mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

To Tenant: Waterside Workshops
84 Bolivar Drive
Berkeley, CA 94710

To Landlord: Parks, Recreation & Waterfront
City of Berkeley
2180 Milvia Street, 3" Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704

With copies to: City Manager Parks Superintendent
City of Berkeley City of Berkeley
2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor 1325 Bancroft Way
Berkeley, CA 94704 Berkeley, CA 94702

Notices to Landlord regarding Hazardous Substances required by Section 21 hereof shall
be sent both to the above addresses and to such other place as either party may from time to time
designate in a written notice to the other party, or in the case of Tenant, delivered to the
Premises.

Tenant will appoint an agent to receive the service of all proceedings, demands, and
notices hereunder the person in charge of or occupying the Premises at the time. If no person
shall be in charge of or occupying the same, then such service may be made by attaching the
same on the main entrance of the Premises

36. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Lease is intended by the parties as the final expression of their agreement with
respect to such terms as are included herein and may not be contradicted by evidence of any
prior or contemporaneous agreement. The parties further intend that this Lease constitutes the
complete and exclusive statement of its terms, and no extrinsic evidence whatsoever may be
introduced in any judicial or other proceeding involving this Lease. The language and all parts
of this Lease shall be construed as a whole and in accordance with its fair meaning and not

34

Page 184



Page 39 of 48

restricted for or against either party. This Lease may be modified or amended only by a written
instrument signed by both parties.

37. REQUESTS FOR CONSENT; WAIVER OF CLAIM

Tenant hereby waives any claim for damages against Landlord that it may have based
upon any assertion that Landlord unreasonably has withheld or has delayed any consent or
approval, and Tenant's sole remedy shall be an action for specific performance of such provision,
injunction or declaratory judgment. In the event of a final determination in Tenant's favor, the
requested consent or approval shall be deemed to have been granted.

38. INTERPRETATION

The use of masculine, feminine, or neuter genders shall include the other genders, and the
singular shall include the plural and vice-versa. Headings are intended for convenience only and
shall not be referred to in construing any provision. If there is more than one party as Tenant, the
obligations imposed upon Tenant shall be joint and several. If any provision(s) of this Lease
shall be found, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable the remainder of the Lease shall not
be affected thereby.

39. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Lease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Landlord, its successors
and assigns, and shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of Tenant, its heirs,
successors and (to the extent assignment may be permitted hereunder) assigns.

40. AUTHORITY

If Tenant is a corporation or partnership, each of the persons executing this Lease on
behalf of Tenant covenants and warrants that Tenant is a duly authorized and existing
corporation or partnership, that Tenant has and is qualified to do business in California, that
Tenant has full right and authority to enter into this Lease and that each person signing on behalf
of Tenant is authorized to do so.

41. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS

A. In the event that Tenant or Landlord is delayed, directly or indirectly, from the
performance of any act or thing required to be done or performed under the terms or conditions
hereof by acts of the other party to this Lease, acts of God, fire, floods, inclement weather,
unavoidable governmental action, strikes or labor difficulties of any and all kinds, shortages of or
delay in the delivery of materials, acts of war, riot and civil commotion, or by any other cause
beyond the reasonable control of Tenant or Landlord, as the case may be, such failure shall not
be deemed to be a breach of this Lease or a violation of any such covenants or conditions and the
time within which Tenant or Landlord must perform any such act shall be extended by a period
of time equal to the period of delay arising from any of such causes.

35

Page 185



Page 40 of 48

B. Notwithstanding any provision of this Section 41 or any other provision of this
Lease to the contrary, it is understood and agreed that there shall be no abatement of, or delay in
the commencement of, or payment of any sum due to Landlord under this Lease.

42. TIME OF THE ESSENCE

Time is of the essence of each and every covenant and condition of this Lease.

43. BROKERAGE

Landlord and Tenant hereby represent and warrant, each to the other, that they have not
disclosed this Lease or the subject matter hereof to, and have not otherwise dealt with, any
broker, finder or any other person, firm, corporation or other legal entity so as to create any legal
right or claim of whatsoever kind or nature for a commission or similar fee or compensation with
respect to the Premises or this Lease. Landlord and Tenant hereby indemnify each other against,
and agree to hold each other harmless from, any liability or claim (and all expenses, including
attorneys' fees, incurred in defending any such claim or in enforcing this indemnity) for a real
estate brokerage commission or similar fee or compensation arising out of or in any way
connected with any claimed dealings with the indemnitor and relating to the Premises or this
Lease.

44. CITY NON-DISCRIMINATION ORDINANCE

A. Tenant hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Municipal Code
("B.M.C."), including without limitation Chapter 13.26, as amended from time to time. In the
performance of its obligations under this Lease, Tenant agrees as follows:

1. Tenant shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age (over 40), sex,
pregnancy, marital status, disability, sexual orientation or AIDS.

2. Tenant shall permit Landlord access to records of employment, employment
advertisements, application forms, EEO-1 forms, affirmative action plans and any other
documents which, in the reasonable opinion of Landlord, are necessary to monitor compliance
with this non-discrimination provision. In addition, Tenant shall fill out, in a timely fashion,
forms supplied by Landlord to monitor this non-discrimination provision.

B. Tenant understands that this Lease is governed by City Council Resolution No.
58,664 — N.S. This resolution, as may be amended from time, stipulates that Tenant's
membership policies may be reviewed by the City for compliance therewith at any time, and that
unsatisfactory membership policies may result in non-renewal of this Lease or termination by the
City.

45. NON-DISCRIMINATION AGAINST PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

A. If Tenant provides any aid, service or benefit to others on the Landlord’s behalf,

36

Page 186



Page 41 of 48

Tenant shall, in the provision of such aid, service or benefit, observe and comply with all
applicable provisions of Title I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and any
amendments thereto. Tenant shall further observe and comply with all applicable federal, state,
municipal and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations prohibiting discrimination against
individuals with disabilities or ensuring that individuals with disabilities are not excluded from
participating in or receiving benefits, services or activities of the Landlord.

B. If Tenant is or becomes a "public accommodation" as defined in Title III of the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, Tenant shall observe and comply with all applicable
provisions of the Act and any amendments thereto, and all applicable federal, state, municipal
and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of
disability in the full and equal enjoyment of goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages, or
accommodations offered by the Tenant. All of Tenant's activities must be in accordance with
these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations, and Tenant shall be solely responsible for
complying therewith.

46. CONFLICT OF INTEREST PROHIBITED

A. In accordance with California Government Code Section 1090, Berkeley City
Charter Section 36 and B.M.C. Chapter 3.64, neither Tenant nor any employee, officer, director,
partner or member of Tenant, or immediate family member of any of the preceding, shall have
served as an elected officer, an employee, or a board, a committee or commission member of
Landlord, who has directly or indirectly influenced the making of this Lease.

B. In accordance with California Government Code Section 1090 and the Political
Reform Act, (Government Code Section 87100 et seq.,) no person who is a director, officer,
partner, trustee, employee or consultant of Tenant, or immediate family member of any of the
preceding, shall make or participate in a decision made by Landlord or any of its boards,
commissions or committees, if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material
effect on any source of income, investment or interest in real property of that person or Tenant,
except to the extent permitted by 2 California Code of Regulations, Section 18700(c)(2).

C. Interpretation of this subsection shall be governed by the definitions and
provisions used in the Political Reform Act, Government Code section 87100 et seq., its
implementing regulations, manuals and codes, Government Code section 1090, Berkeley City
Charter section 36 and B.M.C. Chapter 3.64, as amended from time to time.

47. NUCLEAR FREE BERKELEY

Tenant agrees to comply with B.M.C. Chapter 12.90, the Nuclear Free Berkeley Act, as
amended from time to time.

48. OPPRESSIVE STATES

A. In accordance with Resolution No. 59,853 — N.S., Tenant certifies that it has no
contractual relations with, and agrees during the term of this Lease to forego contractual relations

37

Page 187



Page 42 of 48

to provide personal services to, the following entities:

(1) The governing regime in any Oppressive State.

(2) Any business or corporation organized under the authority of the
governing regime of any Oppressive State.

3) Any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association, or any other
commercial organization, and including parent-entities and wholly-owned subsidiaries (to
the extent that their operations are related to the purpose of this Lease) for the express
purpose of assisting in business operations or trading with any public or private entity
located in any Oppressive State.

B. For purposes of this Lease, the Tibet Autonomous Region and the provinces of Ado,
Kham, and U-Tsang shall be deemed oppressive states.

C. Tenant’s failure to comply with this subsection shall constitute a default of this Lease
and Landlord may terminate this Lease pursuant to Section 19. In the event that Landlord
terminates this Lease due to a default under this provision, Landlord may deem Tenant a non-
responsible bidder for five (5) years from the date this Lease is terminated.

49. BERKELEY LIVING WAGE ORDINANCE (LWO)

A. Tenant agrees to comply with Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.27, the
Berkeley Living Wage Ordinance (LWO). If Tenant employs six (6) or more part-time or full-
time employees, and generates $350,000 or more in annual gross receipts, Tenant will be
required to provide all eligible employees with City mandated minimum compensation during
the term of this lease, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, and well as comply with the terms
enumerated herein.

B. Tenant shall be required to maintain all reasonable records and documents that
would establish whether Tenant is subject to Berkeley's Living Wage Ordinance. If Tenant is
subject to the LWO, as defined therein, Tenant shall be further required to maintain monthly
records of those employees located on the leased premises. These records shall include the total
number of hours worked, the number of hours spent providing service on the leased Premises,
the hourly rate paid, and the amount paid by Tenant for health benefits, if any, for each of its
employees providing services under the lease. The records described in this subsection shall be
made available upon the City's request. The failure to produce these records upon demand shall
be considered a default, subject to the provisions contained in Section 19 herein.

C. If Tenant is subject to the LWO, Tenant shall include the requirements of the
ordinance, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.27, in any and all subleases in which Tenant enters
with regard to the subject premises. Subtenants shall be required to comply with this ordinance
with regard to any employees who spend 25% or more of their compensated time on the leased
Premises.

38

Page 188



Page 43 of 48

D. If Tenant fails to comply with the requirements of this the LWO and this lease,
the City shall have the rights and remedies described in this Section, in addition to any rights and
remedies provided by law or equity.

Tenant's failure to comply with this Section shall constitute default of the lease, upon
which City may terminate this lease pursuant to Section 19.

In addition, at City's sole discretion, Tenant may be responsible for liquidated damages in
the amount of $50 per employee per day for each and every instance of an underpayment to an
employee. It is mutually understood and agreed that Tenant's failure to pay all of its eligible
employees at least the applicable living wage rate will result in damages being sustained by the
City; that the nature and amount of the damages will be extremely difficult and impractical to
fix; that the liquidated damages set forth herein is the nearest and most exact measure of damage
for such breach that can be fixed at this time; and that the liquidated damage amount is not
intended as a penalty of forfeiture for Tenant's breach.

50. BERKELEY EQUAL BENEFITS ORDINANCE (EBO)

A. Tenant hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Berkeley Equal
Benefits Ordinance, B.M.C. Chapter 13.29. If Tenant is currently subject to the Berkeley Equal
Benefits Ordinance, Tenant will be required to provide all eligible employees with City
mandated equal benefits during the term of this lease, as defined in B.M.C. Chapter 13.29, as
well as comply with the terms enumerated herein.

B. If Tenant is currently or becomes subject to the Berkeley Equal Benefits
Ordinance, Tenant agrees to supply the City with any records the City deems necessary to
determine compliance with this provision. Failure to do so shall be a considered a default,
subject to the provisions of Section 19 of this lease.

C. If Tenant fails to comply with the requirements of this Section, City shall have the
rights and remedies described in this Section, in addition to any rights and remedies provided by
law or equity.

Tenant’s failure to comply with this Section shall constitute default of the lease, upon
which City may terminate this lease pursuant to Section 20.

In addition, at City’s sole discretion, Tenant may be responsible for liquidated damages
in the amount of $50.00 per employee per day for each and every instance of violation of this
Section. It is mutually understood and agreed that Tenant’s failure to provide its employees with
equal benefits will result in damages being sustained by City; that the nature and amount of these
damages will be extremely difficult and impractical to fix; that the liquidated damages set forth
herein is the nearest and most exact measure of damages for such breach that can be fixed at this
time; and that the liquidated damage amount is not intended as a penalty or forfeiture for
Tenant’s breach.

51. BERKELEY SANCTUARY CITY ORDINANCE

39

Page 189



Page 44 of 48

Tenant hereby agrees to comply with the provisions of the Sanctuary City Contracting
Ordinance, B.M.C. Chapter 13.105. In accordance with this Chapter, Tenant agrees not to
provide the U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement Division of the United States
Department of Homeland Security with any Data Broker or Extreme Vetting Services as defined
herein:

a. “Data Broker” means either of the following: (1) The collection of information,
including personal information about consumers, from a wide variety of sources for the purposes
of reselling such information to their customers, which include both private-sector business and
government agencies; (2) the aggregation of data that was collected for another purpose from
that for which it is ultimately used.

b. “Extreme Vetting” means data mining, threat modeling, predictive risk analysis,
or other similar services. Extreme Vetting does not include: (1) The City’s computer-network
health and performance tools; (2) Cybersecurity capabilities, technologies and systems used by
the City of Berkeley Department of Information Technology to predict, monitor for, prevent, and
protect technology infrastructure and systems owned and operated by the City of Berkeley from
potential cybersecurity events and cyber-forensic based investigations and prosecutions of illegal
computer-based activity.

52. AUDIT

Pursuant to Section 61 of the Berkeley City Charter, the City Auditor's Office, or its
designee, may conduct an audit of Tenant's financial, performance and compliance records
maintained in connection with the operations and services performed under this Lease, and with
the payments made under this Lease. In the event of such audit, Tenant agrees to make all such
financial, performance and compliance records available to the Auditor's Office, or to its
designee. City agrees to provide Tenant an opportunity to discuss and respond to any findings
before a final audit report is filed.

53. CITY BUSINESS LICENSE, PAYMENT OF TAXES, TAX I.D. NUMBER

Tenant has obtained a City business license as required by B.M.C. Chapter 9.04, and its
license number is written below; or, Tenant is exempt from the provisions of B.M.C. Chapter
9.04 and has written below the specific B.M.C. section under which it is exempt. Tenant shall
pay all state and federal income taxes and any other taxes lawfully assessed and due. Tenant
certifies under penalty of perjury that the taxpayer identification number written below is correct.

54. SURVIVAL
The provisions of this Lease and obligations of Tenant, that by their nature, are to be performed
after or are to survive termination of this Lease shall survive such termination.

5S. EXHIBITS

Exhibits A, B, C, and D and any other exhibit, addendum or schedule referenced in this Lease
are made a part hereof by this reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease at Berkeley, California

40

Page 190



effective as of the Effective Date.
LANDLORD:
CITY OF BERKELEY

A municipal corporation

By:

City Manager

Approved as to form:

Page 45 of 48

Date

City Attorney Date

Attest:

Registered by:

City Auditor

City Clerk Date

TENANT:
WATERSIDE WORKSHOPS
A non-profit organization

By:

Neil Larsen, Executive Director

TENANT INFORMATION

Tax Identification No.

Incorporated: Yes No

Date

Certified Woman Business Enterprise: Yes No X

Certified Minority Business Enterprise: Yes No X

Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise: Yes  No

City Business License No.

, or Exempt pursuant to B.M.C. Section

Date

Page 191



Page 46 of 48

Exhibit “A”

42

Page 192



Page 47 of 48

Exhibit “B”: Berkeley Aquatic Park

Section 6.04.010 Definitions.

Chapter 6.04 BERKELEY AQUATIC PARK*

Section 6.04.010 Definitions,

For the purpose of this chapter certain words and
be construed as herein set out, unless it shall be 2
intended.

A. "Berkeley Aquatic Park" means thal area.owned or controlled by the City of Berkeley, bounded A
by the Eastshore Highway on the west, Third Street on the east, University Avenue on the north and
Ashby Avenue on the south, which is used as an aquatic park. o

B. "Concessiohaire” means the lessee of the boating and other facilities al the Berkeley Aquatic
Park. - ‘

C. "Lake" means the Berkeley Aquatic Park lake,

D. *Motorboat” means any and all types of motor-driven craft. (Ord. 3650-NS §§1,1.1, 1.2, 1.3,
1.4, 1958) ' ‘ .

phrases are defined and certain provisions shall .
pparent from the context that a different meaning is

43

Page 193



Page 48 of 48

Exhibit “C”:
Proposed Repair/Renovation Schedule 2023-2031

44

Page 194



Page 1 of 3

16

" ( [ cCImYeF

»

%
m
Z
m
-

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Donation: Memorial Bench at the Cesar Chavez Park in memory of Walt
and Trudee Rowson

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of $3,400 for a memorial
bench to be placed at the Cesar Chavez Park at the Berkeley Marina in memory of Walt
and Trudee Rowson.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The value of a single bench and memorial plaque is $3,400, which covers the
purchasing and installation costs performed by the City. The cash donation will be
deposited into Parks Fund donation revenue budget code 608-52-544-591-0000-000-
000-481110 and will be appropriated in FY 2023.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Tracie Rowson, daughter of Walt and Trudee Rowson, wishes to donate a memorial
bench in their memory to be placed in Cesar Chavez Park with a cash donation of
$3,400. Per the City’s Park Bench Donation Policy, individuals may donate memorial
benches to the City’s parks in selected locations, subject to the approval of the Director
of the Parks Recreation & Waterfront Department, and pay for all associated costs,
subject to Council disclosure and approval of the gift donation. The Director has
determined that the proposed donation complies with the City’s Bench Donation Policy
as described in Resolution No. 64,148-N.S. and has approved the donation, subject to
Council approval.

BACKGROUND

Benches are placed throughout the City in accordance with the City’s Park Bench
Donation Policy approved by Council on July 22, 2008 (Resolution No. 64,148-N.S.).
The City’s Open Governance Ordinance (OGO) requires City Council disclosure and
approval of any gift to the City in excess of $1,000 (BMC Section 2.06.150, Ord. 7,166-
N.S.)

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 195
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Donation: Memorial Bench at Cesar Chavez Park — Walt and Trudee Rowson CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACT

The City’s vendor for benches, Dumor, Inc., makes its priority to purchase only
sustainably-harvested wood derived from stringently-regulated timber source locations,
including California, Oregon, Washington and British Columbia. This policy reduces
solid waste volumes in landfills, helps conserve natural resources and limits the
environmental effects resulting from the extraction of virgin materials. The benches
therefore comply with the City’s environmentally preferable purchasing policy,
specifically section 3.7 Forest Conservation.

CONTACT PERSON
Alexandra Endress, Waterfront Manager, 510-981-6737

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 196



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

DONATION: MEMORIAL BENCH AT THE CESAR CHAVEZ PARK IN MEMORY OF A
WALT AND TRUDEE ROWSON

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2008, Council adopted the Park Bench Donation Policy
(Resolution No. 64,148-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, the City’s Open Governance Ordinance (OGO) requires City Council
disclosure and approval of any gift to the City in excess of $1,000 (BMC Section 2.06.150,
Ord. 7,166-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, Tracy Rowson, the daughter of Walt and Trudee Rowson wishes to donate a
memorial bench in their memory to be placed at the Cesar Chavez Park with a cash
donation of $3,400; and

WHEREAS, per the City’s Park Bench Donation Policy, individuals may donate memorial
benches to the City’s parks in selected locations, subject to the approval of the Director
of the Parks Recreation & Waterfront Department, and pay for all associated costs,
subject to Council disclosure and approval of the gift donation; and

WHEREAS, the Director has determined that the proposed donation complies with City’s
Bench Donation Policy as described in Resolution No. 64,148-N.S. and has approved the
proposed donation; and

WHEREAS, the cash donation will be deposited into Parks Fund donation revenue budget
code 608-52-544-591-0000-000-000-481110 and will be appropriated in FY 2023.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that a cash

donation in the amount of $3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Cesar Chavez
Park in memory of Walt and Trudee Rowson is hereby accepted.

Page 197



Page 198



Page 1 of 3 17

" ( [ cCImYeF

»

o
o
5
a
L

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Donation: Memorial Bench at the Cesar Chavez Park in memory of Don
Rothenberg
RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of $3,400 for a memorial
bench to be placed at the Cesar Chavez Park at the Berkeley Marina in memory of Don
Rothenberg.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The value of a single bench and memorial plaque is $3,400, which covers the
purchasing and installation costs performed by the City. The cash donation will be
deposited into Parks Fund donation revenue budget code 608-52-544-591-0000-000-
000-481110 and will be appropriated in FY 2023.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The family of Don Rothenberg wishes to donate a memorial bench in his memory to be
placed in Cesar Chavez Park with a cash donation of $3,400. Per the City’s Park Bench
Donation Policy, individuals may donate memorial benches to the City’s parks in
selected locations, subject to the approval of the Director of the Parks Recreation &
Waterfront Department, and pay for all associated costs, subject to Council disclosure
and approval of the gift donation. The Director has determined that the proposed
donation complies with the City’s Bench Donation Policy as described in Resolution No.
64,148-N.S. and has approved the donation, subject to Council approval.

BACKGROUND

Benches are placed throughout the City in accordance with the City’s Park Bench
Donation Policy approved by Council on July 22, 2008 (Resolution No. 64,148-N.S.).
The City’s Open Governance Ordinance (OGO) requires City Council disclosure and
approval of any gift to the City in excess of $1,000 (BMC Section 2.06.150, Ord. 7,166-
N.S.)

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 199
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Donation: Memorial Bench at Cesar Chavez Park — Don Rothenberg CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACT

The City’s vendor for benches, Dumor, Inc., makes its priority to purchase only
sustainably-harvested wood derived from stringently-regulated timber source locations,
including California, Oregon, Washington and British Columbia. This policy reduces
solid waste volumes in landfills, helps conserve natural resources and limits the
environmental effects resulting from the extraction of virgin materials. The benches
therefore comply with the City’s environmentally preferable purchasing policy,
specifically section 3.7 Forest Conservation.

CONTACT PERSON
Alexandra Endress, Waterfront Manager, 510-981-6737

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 200



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

DONATION: MEMORIAL BENCH AT THE CESAR CHAVEZ PARK IN MEMORY OF
DON ROTHENBERG

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2008, Council adopted the Park Bench Donation Policy
(Resolution No. 64,148-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, the City’s Open Governance Ordinance (OGO) requires City Council
disclosure and approval of any gift to the City in excess of $1,000 (BMC Section 2.06.150,
Ord. 7,166-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, the family of Don Rothenberg wishes to donate a memorial bench in his
memory to be placed at the Cesar Chavez Park with a cash donation of $3,400; and

WHEREAS, per the City’s Park Bench Donation Policy, individuals may donate memorial
benches to the City’s parks in selected locations, subject to the approval of the Director
of the Parks Recreation & Waterfront Department, and pay for all associated costs,
subject to Council disclosure and approval of the gift donation; and

WHEREAS, the Director has determined that the proposed donation complies with City’s
Bench Donation Policy as described in Resolution No. 64,148-N.S. and has approved the
proposed donation; and

WHEREAS, the cash donation will be deposited into Parks Fund donation revenue budget
code 608-52-544-591-0000-000-000-481110 and will be appropriated in FY 2023.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that a cash

donation in the amount of $3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Cesar Chavez
Park in memory of Don Rothenberg is hereby accepted.

Page 201



Page 202



Page 1 of 3 18

" ( [ cCImYeF

»

o
o
5
a
L

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Donation: Memorial Bench at the Indian Rock Park in memory of Dave
Altman
RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation in the amount of $3,400 for a memorial
bench to be placed at Indian Rock Park in memory of Dave Altman, a longtime Berkeley
rock climber and a treasured member of the rock-climbing community.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The value of a single bench and memorial plaque is $3,400, which covers the
purchasing and installation costs performed by the City. The cash donation will be
deposited into Parks Fund donation revenue budget code 138-52-542-568-0000-000-
000-481110 and will be appropriated in FY 2023.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

On behalf of Berkeley Ironworks and the friends of Dave Altman, Lynn Barraza wishes to
donate a memorial bench in their memory to be placed at Indian Rock Park with a cash
donation of $3,400. Per the City’s Park Bench Donation Policy, individuals may donate
memorial benches to the City’s parks in selected locations, subject to the approval of
the Director of the Parks Recreation & Waterfront Department, and pay for all
associated costs, subject to Council disclosure and approval of the gift donation. The
Director has determined that the proposed donation complies with the City’s Bench
Donation Policy as described in Resolution No. 64,148-N.S. and has approved the
donation, subject to Council approval.

BACKGROUND

Benches are placed throughout the City in accordance with the City’s Park Bench
Donation Policy approved by Council on July 22, 2008 (Resolution No. 64,148-N.S.).
The City’s Open Governance Ordinance (OGO) requires City Council disclosure and
approval of any gift to the City in excess of $1,000 (BMC Section 2.06.150, Ord. 7,166-
N.S.)

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 203
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Donation: Memorial Bench at Indian Rock Park — Dave Altman CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACT

The City’s vendor for benches, Dumor, Inc., makes its priority to purchase only
sustainably-harvested wood derived from stringently-regulated timber source locations,
including California, Oregon, Washington and British Columbia. This policy reduces
solid waste volumes in landfills, helps conserve natural resources and limits the
environmental effects resulting from the extraction of virgin materials. The benches
therefore comply with the City’s environmentally preferable purchasing policy,
specifically section 3.7 Forest Conservation.

CONTACT PERSON
Bruce Pratt, Parks Superintendent, 510-981-6632

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 204



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

DONATION: MEMORIAL BENCH AT THE INDIAN ROCK PARK IN MEMORY OF A
DAVE ALTMAN

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2008, Council adopted the Park Bench Donation Policy
(Resolution No. 64,148-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, the City’s Open Governance Ordinance (OGO) requires City Council
disclosure and approval of any gift to the City in excess of $1,000 (BMC Section 2.06.150,
Ord. 7,166-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, on behalf of Berkeley Ironworks and the friends of Dave Altman, Lynn Barraza
wishes to donate a memorial bench in her memory to be placed at the Indian Rock Park
with a cash donation of $3,400; and

WHEREAS, per the City’s Park Bench Donation Policy, individuals may donate memorial
benches to the City’s parks in selected locations, subject to the approval of the Director
of the Parks Recreation & Waterfront Department, and pay for all associated costs,
subject to Council disclosure and approval of the gift donation; and

WHEREAS, the Director has determined that the proposed donation complies with City’s
Bench Donation Policy as described in Resolution No. 64,148-N.S. and has approved the
proposed donation; and

WHEREAS, the cash donation will be deposited into Parks Fund donation revenue budget
code 138-52-542-568-0000-000-000-481110 and will be appropriated in FY 2023.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that a cash

donation in the amount of $3,400 for a memorial bench to be placed at Indian Rock Park
in memory of Dave Altman is hereby accepted.

Page 205



Page 206



Page 1 of 3 19

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by:  Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Contract - Bellingham Inc. to replace and repair docks at the Berkeley Marina

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Bellingham
Inc. to replace and repair docks at the Berkeley Marina in an amount not-to-exceed
$550,000, which includes a contract amount of $480,000 and 14.58% contingency in the
amount of $70,000.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Funding for the construction contract in the amount of $550,000 is available in the FY23
Marina Fund budget.

Construction contract

Bellingham Marine..........cooiiiiii e e $480,000
14.58% CONtINGENCY . . ..ttt ettt ettt e ettt et s s e seseseasneeeessaaneseaeaanns $70,000
Total construction contract COSt ........oouniieiiei e, $550,000

Marina Fund

Waterfront Docks

608-52-545-000-0000-000-473-663110- PRWWF22008..........ceeiuvnnnn.... $550,000
Total Marina Fund $550,000

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Docks at the Berkeley Marina (J to O) were installed in the early 1970’s and need repair or
replacement to retain structural integrity for the safety for our slipholders and their boats.
The City requires the services of a qualified marina dock construction contractor.

BACKGROUND

On April 21, 2022 the City issued an Invitation For Bid (IFB) for Marina Finger Dock
Construction (Spec No. 22-11515-C). The City received one bid from Bellingham Marina,
which was deemed a responsive and responsible bidder.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager Page 207



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 3

Contract - Bellingham Inc. to replace and repair docks at the Berkeley Marina CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The construction contract includes requirements to comply with the City's
Environmentally Preferable Purchasing Policy. The project involves the repair and
replacement of existing docks and therefore will not negatively affect natural habitat.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The FY23 budget includes an allocation of Marina Fund to replace damaged and
deteriorated docks at the Berkeley Marina. The City does not have the in-house labor or
equipment resources to repair damaged docks.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Ali Endress, Waterfront Manager, 981-6737
Sean Crothers, Waterfront Supervisor, 981-6744

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 208



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##-###

CONTRACT: BELLINGHAM INC. TO REPLACE AND REPAIR DOCKS AT THE
BERKELEY MARINA

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2022, the City issued an Invitation For Bid (IFB) for Marina Finger
Dock Construction (Spec No. 22-11515-C). The City received one (1) bid from Bellingham
Marina, which was deemed a responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, funding for the construction contract in the amount of $550,000 is available in
the FY23 Marina Fund budget.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the City
Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with
Bellingham Marine to replace and repair docks at the Berkeley Marina in the amount not-to-
exceed $550,000, which includes a contract amount of $480,000 and a 14.58% contingency in
the amount of $70,000. A record signature copy of said contract will be on file in the Office of the
City Clerk.

Page 209



Page 210



Page 1 of 23 20

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Jennifer A. Louis, Interim Chief of Police

Subject: Revenue Grant: California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) for the 2023
“Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Chief of Police to accept the "Selective Traffic
Enforcement Program (STEP)" grant and enter into the resultant grant agreement and
any amendments, with the California Office of Traffic Safety. This OTS grant is for
$180,000 for the period of October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023, which is
Federal Fiscal Year 2023.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The total of this project will not exceed $180,000. Grant revenues will be deposited into
budget code 309-71-703-812-0000-000-000-431-110 to offset expenditures.
Appropriation of the expenditures is being included in the First Amendment to the
Appropriations Ordinance. This grant will fund overtime, benefits, equipment, training
costs, and reduce additional General Fund expenditures.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
Securing OTS grant funding is a Strategic Plan Priority Project, advancing our goal to
create a resilient, safe, connected, and prepared city.

Currently the Traffic Bureau at the Berkeley Police Department is staffed by two motor
officers, one traffic data analyst, one sergeant, and one lieutenant. Motor officers’
responsibilities include injury-collision investigations and traffic enforcement; however,
resources often deplete rapidly due to ancillary duties and personnel shortages in the
Operations Division. OTS funding builds upon our current traffic safety efforts by
allowing patrol and motor officers opportunities to address traffic safety issues-most
significantly pedestrian and bicycle safety, distracted and impaired driving- in addition to
and outside of their regularly scheduled duties. Additionally, the funds provide
opportunities for leadership development and learning in traffic safety and DUIl/impaired
driving enforcement, and enhance the department's overall mission of public safety.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 211
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 23

Revenue Grant: California Office of Traffic Safety Grant
for the 2023 STEP Grant CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

BACKGROUND

Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) rankings place the City of Berkeley number one for the
past seven years in pedestrian and bicycle related injury collisions when compared to
fifty-nine other cities with comparable populations. Each year hundreds of people are
injured in traffic collisions that occur in the City of Berkeley. Berkeley maintains a high
ranking in total fatal and injury collisions, hit and run injury collisions, speed related
collisions, nighttime collisions, and motorcycle involved collisions. With assistance from
the 2023 Office of Traffic Safety Grant, the department will continue our efforts to
reduce the number of community members injured in collisions whether they choose to
walk, drive, bike or ride a motorcycle in our city.

In 2018, the City of Berkeley was number one (1/59) for injury collisions involving
pedestrians; number one (1/59) for collisions involving bicyclists; number one (1/59) for
injury collisions involving bicyclists; and number one (1/59) for collisions involving
pedestrians, and fifth (5/59) for injuries and fatal collisions involving motorcyclists.
Based on these statistics and OTS rankings, the City of Berkeley is one of the most
dangerous cities in the State of California to be a pedestrian or bicyclist.

Between January 2016 and June 2022, there have been twenty-three fatal auto
collisions in the City of Berkeley. Eighteen of those resulted in a pedestrian being killed,
and five resulted in a bicyclist being killed.

The OTS Grant and the City Council’s Vision Zero Program have shared ideologies.
BPD'’s participation directly supports two of three of Vision Zero’s tenets. BPD'’s efforts
directly support Public Awareness Education and Traffic Enforcement. Public
Awareness through our social media, departmental messaging, and direct contact with
the public (in the field and at community meetings) and data-driven enforcement of
primary collision factor offenses in areas where they have the highest probability of
occurring.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The City of Berkeley continues to have one of the highest bicycle and pedestrian usage
rates in the County of Alameda and, as a result, there are a large number of bicyclists
and pedestrians sharing the roadway with motorists. This grant will support the City of
Berkeley's efforts to promote more sustainable forms of transportation, reducing
greenhouse gas emissions-with the goal of reducing traffic injuries and fatalities related
to all modes of transportation.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The Police Department requests this funding be approved to enhance our current
mission of providing a safer environment for pedestrians, bicyclists, motorcyclists, and
motorists on all City of Berkeley roadways and highways.

Page 2 Page 212



Page 3 of 23

Revenue Grant: California Office of Traffic Safety Grant
for the 2023 STEP Grant CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The California Office of Traffic Safety currently provides the only known grant funding
specific to traffic enforcement and related education. Not accepting this OTS grant
would require additional overtime expenditures from General Fund resources or could
result in a decrease in the overall safety of the citizens of Berkeley

CONTACT PERSON
Lieutenant Jen Tate, Police Traffic Bureau, (510) 981-5983

Attachments:
1: Resolution
Exhibit A: OTS Grant Agreement

Page 3 Page 213



Page 4 of 23

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

REVENUE GRANT: SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM (STEP)
GRANT FROM THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY TO FUND STRATEGIES TO
REDUCE THE NUMBER OF INJURIES AND DEATHS RELATED TO TRAFFIC
COLLISIONS IN THE CITY OF BERKELEY

WHEREAS, the Police Department is committed to providing a safe and secure
environment through law enforcement within the City of Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, the Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) has made grant funding available to the
Police Department to assist them in their mission of increasing traffic safety; and

WHEREAS, this grant will provide funding to support efforts to reduce injury and fatal
collisions involving pedestrians, bicyclists, motorcyclists, and motorists on all City of
Berkeley roadways and highways; and

WHEREAS, grant revenues will be deposited into budget code 309-71-703-812-0000-
000-000-431110, in the DUI Enforcement Education Program Fund.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
Chief of Police is authorized to accept the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)
Grant and enter into the resultant grant agreement and any amendments, with the Office
of Traffic Safety (OTS) to fund increased levels of impaired or distracted driving
enforcement, nighttime seatbelt enforcement, motorcycle safety enforcement, and
educational programs regarding bicycle and pedestrian collisions in the amount of
$180,000 for the period of October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023.

Exhibit
A: OTS Grant Agreement

Page 214



State of California — Office of Traffic Safety
GRANT AGREEMENT

Page 5 of 23

GRANT NUMBER
PT23088

1. GRANT TITLE

Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)

2. NAME OF AGENCY
Berkeley

3. Grant Period
From: 10/01/2022

4. AGENCY UNIT TO ADMINISTER GRANT
Berkeley Police Department

To: 09/30/2023

5. GRANT DESCRIPTION

Best practice strategies will be conducted to reduce the number of persons killed and injured in crashes
involving alcohol and other primary crash factors. The funded strategies may include impaired driving
enforcement, enforcement operations focusing on primary crash factors, distracted driving, night-time seat belt
enforcement, special enforcement operations encouraging motorcycle safety, enforcement and public
awareness in areas with a high number of bicycle and pedestrian crashes, and educational programs. These
strategies are designed to earn media attention thus enhancing the overall deterrent effect.

6. Federal Funds Allocated Under This Agreement Shall Not Exceed: $180,000.00

this reference made a part of the Agreement:

Exhibit A — Certifications and Assurances
Exhibit B* — OTS Grant Program Manual

attached hereto.

7. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the following which are by

e Schedule A — Problem Statement, Goals and Objectives and Method of Procedure
Schedule B — Detailed Budget Estimate and Sub-Budget Estimate (if applicable)
Schedule B-1 — Budget Narrative and Sub-Budget Narrative (if applicable)

Exhibit C — Grant Electronic Management System (GEMS) Access
*Items shown with an asterisk (*), are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement as if

These documents can be viewed at the OTS home web page under Grants: www.ots.ca.gov.

We, the officials named below, hereby swear under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that we
are duly authorized to legally bind the Grant recipient to the above described Grant terms and conditions.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

8. Approval Signatures

A. GRANT DIRECTOR

NAME: Jennifer Tate
TiTLE: Lieutenant
EmalL: jtate@cityofberkeley.info
PHONE: (510) 981-5983
ADDRESS: 2100 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way
Berkeley, CA 94704

B. AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL

ADDRESS:

Jennifer Louis

Interim Chief of Police
jlouis@cityofberkeley.info

(510) 981-5700

2100 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way
Berkeley, CA 94704

(Signature) (Date)

C. FISCAL OFFICIAL

ADDRESS: Chuck Gunter
Administrative & Fiscal Services Manager
cgunter@cityofberkeley.info
510-981-5976

2100 Martin Luther King Jr. Way
Berkeley, CA 94704

(Signature) (Date)

D. AUTHORIZING OFFICIAL OF OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY

ADDRESS:

Barbara Rooney

Director
barbara.rooney@ots.ca.gov
(916) 509-3030

2208 Kausen Drive, Suite 300
Elk Grove, CA 95758

(Signature) (Date)

(Signature) (Date)

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM

PagdP8e1815




Page 6 of 23

E. ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY | 9. SAM INFORMATION

NAME: Carolyn Vu SAM#:. KC7DYLVOEF25
ADDRESS: 2208 Kausen Drive, Suite 300 REGISTERED .
Elk GI'OVG, CA 95758 ADDRESS: 2180 Milvia St. 3rd Floor

City: Berkeley
ZIP+4:  94704-1122

10. PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

PROJECTED
FUND CFDA ITEM/APPROPRIATION F.Y. CHAPTER | STATUTE EXPENDITURES
164AL-23 20.608 0521-0890-101 2022 22/22 BA/22 $80,000.00
402PT-23 20.600 0521-0890-101 2022 22/22 BA/22 $100,000.00
AGREEMENT
TOTAL $180,000.00

$180,000.00

AMOUNT ENCUMBERED BY THIS DOCUMENT

I CERTIFY upon my own personal knowledge that the budgeted
funds for the current budget year are available for the period and

PRIOR AMOUNT ENCUMBERED FOR THIS

purpose of the expenditure stated above. AGREEMENT
$0.00
OTS ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S SIGNATURE | DATE SIGNED TOTAL AMOUNT ENCUMBERED TO DATE
$180,000.00

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM

Pagehp8Pe1916




Page 7 of 23

State of California — Office of Traffic Safety GRANT NUMBER
GRANT AGREEMENT PT23088
Schedule A

1. PROBLEM STATEMENT

In California alone, there are more than 32 cities bigger than Berkeley. In Alameda County, Berkeley is
ranked number four in population behind Oakland, Fremont, and Hayward. Yet, the City of Berkeley is
famous around the globe.

According to the 2020 Census, Berkeley’s population was 124,321. The population density was 10,752 per
square mile. Nearly 48 percent of Berkeley residents use a motor vehicle to commute to work, just under 8
percent used a bicycle and 16 percent walked. Berkeley makes up only 8 percent of Alameda County’s
population but more than 37 percent of the county’s population of people who walk and ride bikes to work.

In addition to residents, the city’s population spikes during the day as people commute to Berkeley for travel,
special events, work, and education. UC Berkeley had nearly 43,000 student population in 2019. Located
less than 72 mile away from UC Berkeley, is Berkeley City College, with a student population of over 6,000.
Berkeley High School, located just one block away has a student population of over 3,000. All of these
schools are located near central Berkeley in the downtown business district.

Additionally, in 2018 Berkeley City Council voted to allow three scooter companies, each with 200-400
scooters to operate within the city. Berkeley joined a number of other cities in California and across the
nation in an effort to implement regulations and maintain rider safety. According to a study published by the
Center for Disease Control and Prevention and Public Health Departments of Austin, TX., published in April
2019, they found that for every 100,000 scooter rides, 20 people were injured. Half of all the reported
injuries were to the head, and 15 percent showed evidence of traumatic brain injury.

The City of Berkeley continually strives to promote safety for all modes of transportation with the large
number of bicyclists and pedestrians share the crowded roadway with motorists.

The Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) rankings place the City of Berkeley number one for the past several years
in pedestrian and bicycle related injury crashes when compared to fifty-nine other cities with comparable
populations. Each year hundreds of people are injured in traffic crashes that occur in the City of

Berkeley. Berkeley has maintained a high ranking in total fatal and injury crashes, hit and run injury crashes,
motorcycle involved crashes, nighttime crashes, and speed related crashes. The Berekely Police
Department will continue efforts to reduce the number of individuals injured in crashes whether they choose
to walk, drive, bike or ride a motorcycle in the city.

In 2019, the City of Berkeley was ranked number one (1/59) for crashes involving bicyclists, motorcyclists,
pedestrians, and pedestrians over 65 years old and. Based on these statistics and OTS rankings, the City of
Berkeley is one of the most dangerous cities in the State of California to walk or ride a bicycle.

Between January 1, 2012 and January 1, 2022 there have been thirty-one fatal auto crashes in the City of
Berkeley. Sixteen of those resulted in a pedestrian being killed, and five resulted in a bicyclist being
killed. In 2021 alone Berkeley Police Investigated seven fatal crashes.

On May 11t 2021, at approximately 1:39 pm the driver of a 1988 Toyota Camry lost control of the vehicle
after the brakes failed while driving westbound on Marin Ave (roadway with approx. 18% grade). The Toyota
went airborne and collided with the rear driver side of an Audi SUV that was also driving westbound on
Marin Ave before hitting a telephone pole, rolling over, and colliding with a tree on the opposite side of the
street. The passenger in the Camry was pronounced dead at the scene and the driver later died as a result
of his injuries. The 3-year-old in a child restraint device in the center rear seat of the Audi had a minor injury
and the driver suffered a spine injury.

On June 14" 2021, at approximately 9:36 pm a 50-year-old man told witnesses that he wanted to kill himself
and then laid down in the roadway on Telegraph Ave near Ashby Ave. A newer model Nissan sedan collided
with the pedestrian in the roadway, and fled the scene. On June 26" the male passed away as a result of his

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePpee1917



injuries. The involved vehicle and driver were neVEPCoRtILEAS even after a reward and nUMerous press
releases.

On July 26" 2021, at approximately 9:56 pm a 54-year-old pedestrian was crossing Ashby Ave at the
intersection with Newbury St. There were no painted crosswalks at the intersection in the direction the
pedestrian was crossing. D-1 who was driving for a food delivery service at the time, collided with P-2
causing her to fall onto the road. Following the crash D-1 became afraid for her own safety and began to
drive away when she collided with P-2 and P-3. P-2 and P-3 were both transported to the Alameda County
Hospital where P-2 succumbed to her injuries.

On August 19t 2021, at approximately 2:46 pm a 59-year-old pedestrian was crossing San Pablo Ave at the
intersection with Oregon St (in a marked crosswalk). D-1 was driving a Chrysler minivan northbound on San
Pablo Ave and stated he never saw the pedestrian. Following the investigation at the scene D-1 was
arrested for VC 23153(a). P-2 succumbed to his injuries five days later at the hospital.

On September 6th 2021, at approximately 12:35 am, BPD officers respond to a report of a male laying in the
median of Adeline St north of the intersection with Ashby Ave. The subject was pronounced deceased but
didn’t initially appear to have injuries consistent with a crash. On September 14" the Alameda County
Coroners office contacted BPD Fait team to advise that the cause of death was determined to be caused by
a crash. Press releases were shared, but the driver nor vehicle were ever identified.

On November 3 2021, at approximately 7:43 pm the driver of a BMW M5 was driving westbound on
University Ave west of West Frontage Rd. A witness reported the vehicle traveling at about 100 MPH. The
vehicle struck a tree, telephone box, and the top of a fence before becoming airborne hitting a concrete pier
piling and dock. The driver was pronounced deceased at the scene. He was reported to have a prior medical
condition, and the investigation lead to that being the possible cause of this crash.

On November 17" 2021, at approximately 6:11 pm, BPD officers respond to the report of a male laying in
the roadway of Ashby Ave west of the intersection of 6™ St. The 65-year-old male had fatal injuries that
appeared to be the result of an automobile crash. The investigation revealed no witnesses, or investigative
leads.

In 2021, 547 persons were injured in auto crashes. 69 of those were pedestrians, 95 were bicyclists. In
crashes involving a pedestrian, the motor vehicle operator was found at fault over eighty-six percent of the
time. In crashes involving a bicyclist, the bicyclist was found at fault over sixty-three percent of the

time. These factors are important in formulating Berkeley PD’s enforcement strategy in these two critical
areas.

In 2021, Berkeley Police made 123 misdemeanor DUI arrests, 9 felony DUI arrests, and 1 minor over
.05% DUI arrests. Officers attended NHTSA Standardized Field Sobriety Testing (SFST), NHTSA
Advanced Roadside Impaired Driving Enforcement (ARIDE). Drug Recognition Expert (DRE), and Drug
Recognition Expert (DRE) DRE Recertification classes.

Over the past five years (2017-2021), BPD has investigated 51 injury crashes where alcohol or drugs were a
factor (average of 10 per year). Continued proactive enforcement through DUI saturation patrols and DUI
checkpoints will be effective aids for taking dangerously impaired drivers off the road, and also serving to
educate the community as to the dangers of drug and alcohol impaired driving. Due to limited staffing levels,
Berkeley PD had to cancel a few checkpoints over the last few years.

Unsafe speed (VC 22350) was the most prevalent primary crash factor in 2021. Berkeley Police Investigated
97 injury crashes, resulting in 124 people injured as a result of unsafe speed. According to OTS rankings for
2019 the City of Berkeley ranked in the top twelve (12/59) for speed related injury crashes. The majority of
roadways in Berkeley have a 25 MPH speed limit. There are only three roadways with a higher speed limit.
Those roadways have the greatest speed limit in the city at 35 MPH. Drivers travelling in the City of Berkeley
at unsafe speeds continue to be an enforcement priority for the Berkeley Police Department.

According to OTS rankings for 2019 the City of Berkeley ranks thirteen (13/59) in Total Fatal and Injury
crashes.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM Pag£6e1918




Pagc9of23
According to NHTSA, “Of the 37,133 people killed in motor vehicle crashes in 2017 47% were not wearing
seatbelts.” Berkeley Police understands the importance of buckling up. In 2021 Berkeley Police Officers

issued 59 citations for seatbelt violations. Many of these were issued by traffic enforcement officers during
“Click it or ticket” campaigns.

A factor that is vastly under reported in injury crashes in the City of Berkeley is distracted driving due to
cellular phone use. While it is often difficult to determine if this is the primary crash factor in many crashes,
BPD Officers issued 429 citations for driving while using a cellphone device in a non-hands free manner in
2021.

Based on the NHTSA findings, drivers who text while behind the wheel have a twenty-three percent chance
of causing a crash.

Two of the core methodologies that the Berkeley PD Traffic Unit employs, are the use of internal crash and
SWITRS data to provide a data driven approach to focus our enforcement efforts. The data allows us to
identify the top PCFs and the most dangerous roadways in the city for vehicles, pedestrians, and bicyclists,
and to direct the majority of available resources to in an informed and impartial manner. Secondly, altering
traffic violator behavior through vigorous traffic enforcement of top PCFs—Dby issuing citations, rather than
warnings.

The Berkeley Police Department will maintain it's mission to reduce the overall number of injury crashes,
bicycle and pedestrian related crashes, alcohol related crashes, speed related crashes, motorcycle related
crashes, and crashes involving distracted driving.

Currently, the Traffic Bureau at the Berkeley Police Department is staffed by three motor officers, one traffic
data analyst, one sergeant, and one lieutenant. Motor officer responsibilities include injury-crash
investigations and traffic enforcement, however resources often deplete rapidly due to ancillary duties and
personnel shortages in the Operations/Patrol Division. Grant operations build upon current traffic safety
efforts by allowing patrol and motor officers opportunities to address traffic safety—most significantly
pedestrian and bicycle safety, distracted and impaired driving— in addition to and outside of their regularly
scheduled duties. Grant acrtivity will provide opportunities for leadership development and learning in traffic
safety and DUl/impaired driving enforcement, and enhance the department’s overall mission of public safety.
2. PERFORMANCE MEASURES
. Goals:

Reduce the number of persons killed in traffic crashes.

Reduce the number of persons injured in traffic crashes.

Reduce the number of pedestrians killed in traffic crashes.

Reduce the number of pedestrians injured in traffic crashes.

Reduce the number of bicyclists killed in traffic crashes.

Reduce the number of bicyclists injured in traffic crashes.

Reduce the number of persons killed in alcohol-involved crashes.

Reduce the number of persons injured in alcohol-involved crashes.

Reduce the number of persons killed in drug-involved crashes.
10. Reduce the number of persons injured in drug-involved crashes.
11. Reduce the number of persons killed in alcohol/drug combo-involved crashes.
12. Reduce the number of persons injured in alcohol/drug combo-involved crashes.
13. Reduce the number of motorcyclists killed in traffic crashes.
14. Reduce the number of motorcyclists injured in traffic crashes.
15. Reduce hit & run fatal crashes.
16. Reduce hit & run injury crashes.
17. Reduce nighttime (2100 - 0259 hours) fatal crashes.
18. Reduce nighttime (2100 - 0259 hours) injury crashes.
B. Objectives: Target Number
1. Issue a press release announcing the kick-off of the grant by November 15. The 1

kick-off press releases and media advisories, alerts, and materials must be
emailed to the OTS Public Information Officer at pio@ots.ca.gov, and copied to

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PageP6e1919

©COENOORWN =P




your OTS Coordinator, for approval 14 29988 & A2 issuance date of the

release.

2. Participate and report data (as required) in the following campaigns; Quarter 1: 10
National Walk to School Day, National Teen Driver Safety Week, NHTSA Winter
Mobilization; Quarter 3: National Distracted Driving Awareness Month, National
Motorcycle Safety Month, National Bicycle Safety Month, National Click it or Ticket
Mobilization; Quarter 4: NHTSA Summer Mobilization, National Child Passenger
Safety Week, and California's Pedestrian Safety Month.

3. Develop (by December 31) and/or maintain a “DUI BOLO” program to notify patrol 12
and traffic officers to be on the lookout for identified repeat DUI offenders with a
suspended or revoked license as a result of DUI convictions. Updated DUI BOLOs
should be distributed to patrol and traffic officers monthly.

4. Send law enforcement personnel to the NHTSA Standardized Field Sobriety 2
Testing (SFST) (minimum 16 hours) POST -certified training.

5. Send law enforcement personnel to the NHTSA Advanced Roadside Impaired

Driving Enforcement (ARIDE) 16 hour POST-certified training.

Send law enforcement personnel to the Drug Recognition Expert (DRE) training.

Send law enforcement personnel to the DRE Recertification training.

Send law enforcement personnel to SFST Instructor training.

Send law enforcement personnel to DRE Instructor training.

0. Conduct DUI/DL Checkpoints. A minimum of 1 checkpoint should be conducted
during the NHTSA Winter Mobilization and 1 during the Summer Mobilization. To
enhance the overall deterrent effect and promote high visibility, it is recommended
the grantee issue an advance press release and conduct social media activity for
each checkpoint. For combination DUI/DL checkpoints, departments should issue
press releases that mention DL's will be checked at the DUI/DL checkpoint. Signs
for DUI/DL checkpoints should read "DUI/Driver's License Checkpoint Ahead."
OTS does not fund or support independent DL checkpoints. Only on an exception
basis and with OTS pre-approval will OTS fund checkpoints that begin prior to
1800 hours. When possible, DUI/DL Checkpoint screeners should be DRE- or
ARIDE-trained.

11. Conduct DUI Saturation Patrol operation(s). 19

12. Conduct Traffic Enforcement operation(s), including but not limited to, primary 13
crash factor violations.

13. Conduct highly publicized Distracted Driving enforcement operation(s) targeting 14
drivers using hand held cell phones and texting.

14. Conduct highly publicized Motorcycle Safety enforcement operation(s) in areas or 15
during events with a high number of motorcycle incidents or crashes resulting from
unsafe speed, DUI, following too closely, unsafe lane changes, improper turning,
and other primary crash factor violations by motorcyclists and other drivers.

15. Conduct highly publicized pedestrian and/or bicycle enforcement operation(s) in 16
areas or during events with a high number of pedestrian and/or bicycle crashes
resulting from violations made by pedestrians, bicyclists, and drivers.

16. Conduct Traffic Safety educational presentation(s) with an effort to reach 4
community members. Note: Presentation(s) may include topics such as distracted
driving, DUI, speed, bicycle and pedestrian safety, seat belts and child passenger
safety.

17. Participate in highly visible collaborative DUl Enforcement operations.

18. Participate in highly visible collaborative Traffic Enforcement operations.

19. Send law enforcement personnel to DUl Checkpoint Planning and Management
training.

3. METHOD OF PROCEDURE
A. Phase 1 — Program Preparation (1%t Quarter of Grant Year)

e The department will develop operational plans to implement the “best practice” strategies
outlined in the objectives section.

e All training needed to implement the program should be conducted this quarter.

o All grant related purchases needed to implement the program should be made this quarter.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM Page96e1920

N

S|©|® (NS
w|=|NN (N

NIN|N




¢ In order to develop/maintain the “Durgﬁég,oife%garch will be conducted to identify the “worst of
the worst” repeat DUI offenders with a suspended or revoked license as a result of DUI
convictions. The Hot Sheets may include the driver's name, last known address, DOB,
description, current license status, and the number of times suspended or revoked for DUI. DUI
BOLOs should be updated and distributed to traffic and patrol officers at least monthly.

e Implementation of the STEP grant activities will be accomplished by deploying personnel at high
crash locations.

¢ Media Requirementslssue a press release approved by the OTS PIO announcing the kick-off of
the grant by November 15, but no sooner than October 1. The kick-off release must be approved
by the OTS PIO and only distributed after the grant is fully signed and executed. If you are
unable to meet the November 15 deadline to issue a kick-off press release, communicate
reasons to your OTS coordinator and OTS PIO.

B. Phase 2 — Program Operations (Throughout Grant Year)
o The department will work to create media opportunities throughout the grant period to call
attention to the innovative program strategies and outcomes.
Media Requirements

The following requirements are for all grant-related activities:

¢ Send all media advisories, alerts, videos, graphics, artwork, posters, radio/PSA/video scripts,
storyboards, digital and/or print educational materials for grant-related activities to the OTS PIO
at pio@ots.ca.gov for approval and copy your OTS coordinator. Optimum lead time would be 7
days before the scheduled release but at least 3 business days prior to the scheduled release
date for review and approval is appreciated.

e The OTS PIO is responsible for the approval of the design and content of materials. The agency
understands OTS PIO approval is not authorizing approval of budget expenditure or cost. Any
cost approvals must come from the Coordinator.

e Pre-approval is not required when using any OTS-supplied template for media advisories, press
releases, social media graphics, videos or posts, or any other OTS-supplied educational material.
However, copy the OTS PIO at pio@ots.ca.gov and your OTS coordinator when any material is
distributed to the media and public, such as a press release, educational material, or link to social
media post. The OTS-supplied kick-off press release templates and any kickoff press releases
are an exception to this policy and require prior approval before distribution to the media and
public.

e If an OTS-supplied template, educational material, social media graphic, post or video is
substantially changed, the changes shall be sent to the OTS PIO at pio@ots.ca.gov for approval
and copy to your OTS Coordinator. Optimum lead time would be 7 days prior to the scheduled
release date, but at least 3 business days prior to the scheduled release date for review and
approval is appreciated.

o Press releases, social media posts and alerts on platforms such as NextDoor and Nixle reporting
immediate and time-sensitive grant activities (e.g. enforcement operations, day of event
highlights or announcements, event invites) are exempt from the OTS PIO approval process. The
OTS PIO and your Coordinator should still be notified when the grant-related activity is
happening (e.g. car seat checks, bicycle rodeos, community presentations, DUI checkpoints,
etc.).

e Enforcement activities such as warrant and probation sweeps, court stings, etc. that are
embargoed or could impact operations by publicizing in advance are exempt from the PIO
approval process. However, announcements and results of activities should still be copied to the
OTS PIO at pio@ots.ca.gov and your Coordinator with embargoed date and time or with
“‘INTERNAL ONLY: DO NOT RELEASE” message in subject line of email.

e Any earned or paid media campaigns for TV, radio, digital or social media that are part of a
specific grant objective, using OTS grant funds, or designed and developed using contractual
services by a subgrantee, requires prior approval. Please send to the OTS PIO at
pio@ots.ca.gov for approval and copy your grant coordinator at least 3 business days prior to the
scheduled release date.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM Page-B8e1321



e Social media posts highlighting state%tl'cfngftfé?ﬁc safety campaigns (Distracted Driving
Month, Motorcycle Safety Awareness Month, etc.), enforcement operations (DUI checkpoints,
etc.), or any other grant-related activity such as Bicycle rodeos, presentations, or events, are
highly encouraged but do not require prior approval.

e Submit a draft or rough-cut of all digital, printed, recorded or video material (brochures, posters,
scripts, artwork, trailer graphics, digital graphics, social posts connected to an earned or paid
media campaign grant objective) to the OTS PIO at pio@ots.ca.gov and copy your OTS
Coordinator for approval prior to the production or duplication.

o Use the following standard language in all press, media, and printed materials, space permitting:
Funding for this program was provided by a grant from the California Office of Traffic Safety,
through the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.

e Space permitting, include the OTS logo on all grant-funded print materials, graphics and paid or
earned social media campaign grant objective; consult your OTS Coordinator for specifics,
format-appropriate logos, or if space does not permit the use of the OTS logo.

e Email the OTS PIO at pio@ots.ca.gov and copy your OTS Coordinator at least 21 days in
advance, or when first confirmed, a short description of any significant grant-related traffic safety
event or program, particularly events that are highly publicized beforehand with anticipated media
coverage so OTS has sufficient notice to arrange for attendance and/or participation in the event.
If unable to attend, email the OTS PIO and coordinator brief highlights and/or results, including
any media coverage (broadcast, digital, print) of event within 7 days following significant grant-
related event or program. Media and program highlights are to be reflected in QPRs.

¢ Any press releases, work plans, scripts, storyboards, artwork, graphics, videos or any
educational or informational materials that received PIO approval in a prior grant year needs to
be resubmitted for approval in the current grant year.

e Contact the OTS PIO or your OTS Coordinator for consultation when changes from any of the
above requirements might be warranted.

C. Phase 3 — Data Collection & Reporting (Throughout Grant Year)
1. Prepare and submit invoice claims (due January 30, April 30, July 30, and October 30)
2. Prepare and submit Quarterly Performance Reports (QPR) (due January 30, April 30, July 30, and
October 30)
e Collect and report quarterly, appropriate data that supports the progress of goals and objectives.
e Provide a brief list of activity conducted, procurement of grant-funded items, and significant
media activities. Include status of grant-funded personnel, status of contracts, challenges, or
special accomplishments.
e Provide a brief summary of quarterly accomplishments and explanations for objectives not
completed or plans for upcoming activities.
e Collect, analyze and report statistical data relating to the grant goals and objectives.

4. METHOD OF EVALUATION

Using the data compiled during the grant, the Grant Director will complete the “Final Evaluation” section in
the fourth/final Quarterly Performance Report (QPR). The Final Evaluation should provide a brief summary
of the grant’s accomplishments, challenges and significant activities. This narrative should also include
whether goals and objectives were met, exceeded, or an explanation of why objectives were not completed.
5. ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

This program has full administrative support, and every effort will be made to continue the grant activities
after grant conclusion.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM Page8©e1322



State of California — Office of Traffic Safety

Page 13 of 23

GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT23088
Schedule B
FUND NUMBER CATALOG FUND DESCRIPTION TOTAL AMOUNT
NUMBER (CFDA)
402PT-23 20.600 State and Community Highway $100,000.00
Safety
164AL-23 20.608 Minimum Penalties for Repeat $80,000.00
Offenders for Driving While
Intoxicated
CosT CATEGORY FUND UNIT COSTOR | UNITS TOTAL COST TO
NUMBER RATE GRANT
A. PERSONNEL COSTS
Straight Time
$0.00
Overtime
DUI/DL Checkpoints 164AL-23 $13,536.00 3 $40,608.00
DUI Saturation Patrols 164AL-23 $1,410.00 19 $26,790.00
Collaborative DUI Enforcement 164AL-23 $1,410.00 2 $2,820.00
Benefits AL @ 9.91% 164AL-23 $70,218.00 1 $6,959.00
Traffic Enforcement 402PT-23 $1,410.00 13 $18,330.00
Distracted Driving 402PT-23 $1,410.00 14 $19,740.00
Motorcycle Safety 402PT-23 $1,410.00 15 $21,150.00
Pedestrian and Bicycle Enforcement 402PT-23 $1,410.00 16 $22,560.00
Traffic Safety Education 402PT-23 $846.00 4 $3,384.00
Collaborative Traffic Enforcement 402PT-23 $1,410.00 2 $2,820.00
Benefit PT @ 9.91% 402PT-23 $87,984.00 1 $8,719.00
Category Sub-Total $173,880.00
B. TRAVEL EXPENSES
In State Travel 402PT-23 $3,297.00 1 $3,297.00
$0.00
Category Sub-Total $3,297.00
C. CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
$0.00
Category Sub-Total $0.00
D. EQUIPMENT
$0.00
Category Sub-Total $0.00
E. OTHER DIRECT COSTS
DUI Checkpoint Supplies 164AL-23 $2,823.00 1 $2,823.00
Category Sub-Total $2,823.00
F. INDIRECT COSTS
$0.00
Category Sub-Total $0.00
GRANT TOTAL $180,000.00

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM

PageltPeLe1923




Page 14 of 23

State of California — Office of Traffic Safety GRANT NUMBER
GRANT AGREEMENT PT23088
Schedule B-1

BUDGET NARRATIVE

PERSONNEL COSTS

DUI/DL Checkpoints - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.

DUI Saturation Patrols - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.

Collaborative DUI Enforcement - Overtime for grant funded Collaborative DUI Enforcement operations
conducted by appropriate department personnel

Benefits AL @ 9.91% - Total Benefits

1.45% Medicare

8.46% Worker's Comp

Traffic Enforcement - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.

Distracted Driving - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.

Motorcycle Safety - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by appropriate
department personnel.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Enforcement - Overtime for grant funded law enforcement operations conducted by
appropriate department personnel.

Traffic Safety Education - Overtime for grant funded traffic safety presentations or campaigns conducted by
appropriate department personnel.

Collaborative Traffic Enforcement - Overtime for grant funded Collaborative Traffic Enforcement operations
conducted by appropriate department personnel

Benefit PT @ 9.91% - Total Benefits

1.45% Medicare

8.46% Worker's Comp

TRAVEL EXPENSES

In State Travel - Costs are included for appropriate staff to attend conferences and training events
supporting the grant goals and objectives and/or traffic safety. Local mileage for grant activities and
meetings is included. Anticipated travel may include the OTS Law Enforcement Forum. All conferences,
seminars or training not specifically identified in the Budget Narrative must be approved by OTS. All travel
claimed must be at the agency approved rate. Per Diem may not be claimed for meals provided at
conferences when registration fees are paid with OTS grant funds.

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

EQUIPMENT

OTHER DIRECT COSTS

DUI Checkpoint Supplies - On-scene supplies needed to conduct sobriety checkpoints. Costs may include
28" traffic cones, MUTCD compliant traffic signs, MUTCD compliant high visibility vests (maximum of 10),
traffic counters (maximum of 2), generator, gas for generators, lighting, reflective banners, electronic flares,
PAS Device/Calibration Supplies, heater, propane for heaters, fan, anti-fatigue mats, and canopies.
Additional items may be purchased if approved by OTS. The cost of food and beverages will not be
reimbursed. Each item must have a unit cost of less than $5,000 (including tax and shipping).

INDIRECT COSTS

STATEMENTS/DISCLAIMERS

Program Income default statement:

There will be no program income generated from this grant.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePRO& 484



Page-13of23
Enforcement Grant Quota Disclaimer:

Nothing in this “agreement” shall be interpreted as a requirement, formal or informal, that a particular law
enforcement officer issue a specified or predetermined number of citations in pursuance of the goals and
objectives here under.

Benefits Disclaimer:
Benefits for personnel costs can only be applied to straight time or overtime hours charged to the grant.

CHP Grant Program Disclaimer:

The OTS grant funded activities must be separate from the CHP Cannabis Tax Fund Grant Program
activities and maintained under separate accounting/tracking/other codes (example: the same DUI
checkpoint may not be funded by both the CHP and the OTS).

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePAO& 485



State of California — Office of Traffic Safety Page 16 of 23 GRANT NUMBER

GRANT AGREEMENT PT23088
Exhibit A

CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANTS
(23 U.S.C. Chapter 4; Sec. 1906, Pub. L. 109-59, As Amended By Sec. 4011, Pub. L. 114-94)

The officials named on the grant agreement, certify by way of signature on the grant agreement signature page,
that the Grantee Agency complies with all applicable Federal statutes, regulations, and directives and State
rules, guidelines, policies, and laws in effect with respect to the periods for which it receives grant funding.
Applicable provisions include, but are not limited to, the following:

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

e 23 U.S.C. Chapter 4 — Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended

e Sec. 1906, Pub. L. 109-59, as amended by Sec. 4011, Pub. L. 114-94

e 23 CFR part 1300 — Uniform Procedures for State Highway Safety Grant Programs

e 2 CFR part 200 — Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards

o 2 CFR part 1201 — Department of Transportation, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

NONDISCRIMINATION

(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

The State highway safety agency will comply with all Federal statutes and implementing regulations relating to
nondiscrimination (“Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities”). These include but are not limited to:

o Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin) and 49 CFR part 21;

¢ The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42
U.S.C. 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);

o Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. 324 et seq.), and Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685-1686) (prohibit discrimination
on the basis of sex);

e Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability) and 49 CFR part 27;

e The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 6101 ef seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age);

¢ The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (Pub. L. 100-209), (broadens scope, coverage
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms
"programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal aid recipients,
subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally-funded or
not);

o Titles Il and lll of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private
transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing) and 49 CFR parts
37 and 38;

o Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations (prevents discrimination against minority populations
by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human
health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations); and

o Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency (guards against Title VI national origin discrimination/discrimination because of limited
English proficiency (LEP) by ensuring that funding recipients take reasonable steps to ensure that
LEP persons have meaningful access to programs (70 FR 74087-74100).

The Subgrantee-
8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePR96r 486



o Wil take all measures necessary to ensufef1§th6 8£&%n in the United States shall, on the grounds
of race, color, national origin, disability, sex, age, limited English proficiency, or membership in any
other class protected by Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of its programs or
activities, so long as any portion of the program is Federally-assisted;

o Will administer the program in a manner that reasonably ensures that any of its subrecipients,
contractors, subcontractors, and consultants receiving Federal financial assistance under this
program will comply with all requirements of the Non- Discrimination Authorities identified in this
Assurance;

e Agrees to comply (and require its subrecipients, contractors, subcontractors, and consultants to
comply) with all applicable provisions of law or regulation governing US DOT’s or NHTSA'’s access to
records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff, and to cooperate and comply with
any program or compliance reviews, and/or complaint investigations conducted by US DOT or
NHTSA under any Federal Nondiscrimination Authority;

¢ Acknowledges that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter
arising under these Non-Discrimination Authorities and this Assurance;

e Agrees toinsert in all contracts and funding agreements with other State or private entities the
following clause:

o “During the performance of this contract/funding agreement, the contractor/funding recipient
agrees—

a. To comply with all Federal nondiscrimination laws and regulations, as may be amended
from time to time;

b. Not to participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by any Federal non-
discrimination law or regulation, as set forth in appendix B of 49 CFR part 2| and herein;

c. To permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities
as required by the State highway safety office, US DOT or NHTSA;

d. That, in event a contractor/funding recipient fails to comply with any nondiscrimination
provisions in this contract/funding agreement, the State highway safety agency will have the
right to impose such contract/agreement sanctions as it or NHTSA determine are
appropriate, including but not limited to withholding payments to the contractor/funding
recipient under the contract/agreement until the contractor/funding recipient complies;
and/or cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract or funding agreement, in whole or in
part; and

e. To insert this clause, including paragraphs (a) through (e), in every subcontract and
subagreement and in every solicitation for a subcontract or sub-agreement, that receives
Federal funds under this program.

THE DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT OF 1 41 U.S.C. 81
The Subgrantee will provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying
the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

b. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations occurring in the
workplace;
5. Making it a requirement that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
c. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will —
1. Abide by the terms of the statement;
2. Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in
the workplace no later than five days after such conviction;
d. Notifying the agency within ten days after receiving notice under subparagraph (c)(2) from an
8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM Page 06 487

PO~



employee or otherwise receiving actual £88 38<8ERBonviction;
e. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (c)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted —

1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination;

2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

f. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of all of the paragraphs above.

POLITICAL ACTIVITY (HATCH ACT)

(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)
The State will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508), which limits the political activities
of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING FEDERAL LOBBYING

(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)
Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The signed certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making
of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension,
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement;

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its
instructions;

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-award at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grant, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

RESTRICTION ON STATE LOBBYING

(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically designed to urge or influence a
State or local legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative proposal pending before
any State or local legislative body. Such activities include both direct and indirect (e.g., "grassroots") lobbying
activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a State official whose salary is supported with NHTSA
funds from engaging in direct communications with State or local legislative officials, in accordance with
customary State practice, even if such communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the
adoption of a specific pending legislative proposal.

ERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND PENSION
(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePRO6 488



Instructions for Primary Tier Participant CertificatibR@§t@8f 23

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary tier participant is providing the
certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective primary tier participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary tier participant to furnish a certification or an
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that
the prospective primary tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may terminate this
transaction for cause or default or may pursue suspension or debarment.

4. The prospective primary tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department or
agency to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary tier participant learns
its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant, person,
principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.
You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance in
obtaining a copy of those regulations.

6. The prospective primary tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction
with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred,
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,
unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.

7. The prospective primary tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include
the clause titled “Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification” including the "Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered
Transaction,” provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4,
debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows
that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not
suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the
eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each
participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management Exclusions website
(https://www.sam.gov/).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for
debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government,
the department or agency may terminate the transaction for cause or default.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters-Primary Tier Covered
Transactions

(1) The prospective primary tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePR06r 489



rendered against them for commission of frf A 2LRHR3 offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental

entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph

(1)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary tier participant is unable to certify to any of the Statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification

1.

2.

By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the
certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.
The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension or debarment.

The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which
this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant, person,
principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.
You may contact the person to whom this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of
those regulations.

The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4,

debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered
transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification” including the "Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier Covered Transaction,"
without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4,
debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows
that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not
suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. To verify the
eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier participants, each
participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management Exclusions website
(https://www.sam.gov/).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for
debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government,
the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies,
including suspension or debarment.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM Page 6 430



Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, mﬁiﬁ'ﬂtﬂa&? Voluntary Exclusion -- Lower Tier Covered
Transactions:

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its
principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or agency.

2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

BUY AMERICA ACT

(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will comply with the Buy America requirement (23 U.S.C. 313) when
purchasing items using Federal funds. Buy America requires a State, or subrecipient, to purchase with
Federal funds only steel, iron and manufactured products produced in the United States, unless the Secretary
of Transportation determines that such domestically produced items would be inconsistent with the public
interest, that such materials are not reasonably available and of a satisfactory quality, or that inclusion of
domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project contract by more than 25 percent. In order to
use Federal funds to purchase foreign produced items, the State must submit a waiver request that provides
an adequate basis and justification for approval by the Secretary of Transportation.

PROHIBITION ON USIN RANT FUNDS TO CHECK FOR HELMET USAGE

(applies to all subrecipients as well as States)

The State and each subrecipient will not use 23 U.S.C. Chapter 4 grant funds for programs to check helmet
usage or to create checkpoints that specifically target motorcyclists.

POLICY ON SEAT BELT USE

In accordance with Executive Order 13043, Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States, dated April 16,
1997, the Grantee is encouraged to adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its
employees when operating company-owned, rented, or personally-owned vehicles. The National Highway
Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) is responsible for providing leadership and guidance in support of this
Presidential initiative. For information and resources on traffic safety programs and policies for employers,
please contact the Network of Employers for Traffic Safety (NETS), a public-private partnership dedicated to
improving the traffic safety practices of employers and employees. You can download information on seat belt
programs, costs of motor vehicle crashes to employers, and other traffic safety initiatives at
www.trafficsafety.org. The NHTSA website (www.nhtsa.gov) also provides information on statistics,
campaigns, and program evaluations and references.

POLICY ON BANNING TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING

In accordance with Executive Order 13513, Federal Leadership On Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,
and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While Driving, States are encouraged to adopt and enforce
workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted driving, including policies to ban text
messaging while driving company-owned or rented vehicles, Government-owned, leased or rented vehicles,
or privately-owned vehicles when on official Government business or when performing any work on or behalf
of the Government. States are also encouraged to conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner
commensurate with the size of the business, such as establishment of new rules and programs or re-
evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text messaging while driving, and education, awareness, and other
outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with texting while driving.

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM PagePAgs 491



State of California — Office of Traffic Safety Paae
OTS-55 Grant Electronic Management Sys?gm%égm Access

Exhibit C

GRANT NUMBER
PT23088

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ADDING OR UPDATING GEMS USERS
1. Each agency is allowed a total of FIVE (5) GEMS Users.

2. GEMS Users listed on this form will be authorized to login to GEMS to complete and submit Quarterly

Performance Reports (QPRs) and reimbursement claims.
3. Complete the form if adding, removing or editing a GEMS user(s).

4. The Grant Director must sign this form and return it with the Grant Agreement.

GRANT DETAILS

Grant Number: PT23088

Agency Name: Berkeley Police Department

Grant Title: Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP)
Agreement Total: $180,000.00

Authorizing Official: Jennifer Louis

Fiscal Official: Chuck Gunter

Grant Director: Jennifer Tate

CURRENT GEMS USER(S)

1. Gina Chan

Title: Assistant Management Analyst Media Contact: No
Phone: (510) 981-5971

Email: gchan@cityofberkeley.info

2. Stephanie Cole

Title: Police Officer Media Contact: Yes
Phone: (510) 981-5897

Email: scole@cityofberkeley.info

3. Andrew Frankel

Title: Sergeant Media Contact: Yes
Phone: (510) 981-5982

Email: afrankel@cityofberkeley.info

4. Chuck Gunter

Title: Administrative & Fiscal Services Manager Media Contact: No
Phone: 510-981-5976

Email: cgunter@cityofberkeley.info

5. Jennifer Tate

Title: Lieutenant Media Contact: No

Phone: (510) 981-5983
Email: jtate@cityofberkeley.info

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM

PagePROSF 482



Complete the below information if adding, refBIMGIPEERing a GEMS user(s)

GEMS User 1 Add as a media contact? Yes No
Add/Change [_] Remove Access[_| L] L
Name Job Title
Email address Phone number
GEMS User 2 Add as a media contact? Yes[ | No[ ]
Add/Change [_] Remove Access[_|
Name Job Title
Email address Phone number
GEMS User 3 Add as a media contact? Yes[ | No[ ]
Add/Change [_] Remove Access[_|
Name Job Title
Email address Phone number
GEMS User 4 Add as a media contact? Yes[ | No[ ]
Add/Change [_] Remove Access [_|
Name Job Title
Email address Phone number
GEMS User 5 Add as a media contact? Yes[ | No[ ]
Add/Change [_] Remove Access[_]
Name Job Title
Email address Phone number
Form completed by: Date:
As a signatory | hereby authorize the listed individual(s) to represent and have GEMS user access.
Signature Name
Grant Director
Date Title

8/24/2022 8:00:59 AM

Page 06 493



Page 234



Page 1 of 10 21

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Department of Public Works
Subject: 2022 Vision Zero Program Grant Applications

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt three Resolutions:

1. Certifying that the Berkeley Vision Zero Action Plan, the Berkeley Bicycle Plan,
and the Berkeley Pedestrian Plan, collectively meet the Safe Streets and Roads
for All grant program requirement for a Comprehensive Safety Action Plan.

2. Authorizing the City Manager to submit a grant application to the federal Safe
Streets and Roads for All (SS4A), accept the grant awarded, and execute any
resultant agreements and amendments.

3. Authorizing the City Manager to submit a grant application to the federal
Reconnecting Communities Pilot Grant Program (RCP), accept the grant
awarded, and execute any resultant agreements and amendments.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

If awarded, the SS4A and RCP grants would bring a total of up to $6,480,000 of
competitive grant revenue to the Federal Capital Grants Fund (Fund 305) for high-
priority transportation projects, starting in FY 2023.

Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant Funding Request and Matching Funds
Vision Zero Pedestrian and Bicycle Crossing Safety Improvements up to $6,000,000

Required City Matching Funds (20% of total project cost) up to $2,000,000
Total Project Cost up to $8,000,000
Reconnecting Communities Pilot Grant Funding Request and Matching Funds
Ashby Avenue Vision Zero Safety Plan up to $480,000
Required City Matching Funds (20% of total project cost) up to $120,000
Total Project Cost up to $600,000

The total estimated cost of the projects is up to $8.6 million. Both SS4A and RCP
require local match of 20% of the total project cost. Funding for the required $2,120,000
local match is available from the Alameda County Measure BB Bicycle and Pedestrian
Program Fund (Fund 135) and the Measure BB Local Streets and Roads Fund (Fund
134), with planning and capital project design activities anticipated to begin in FY2023

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 235
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 10

2022 Vision Zero Grant Applications CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

and FY2024, and capital bidding and construction activities anticipated in FY2025,
FY2026, and FY2027.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

In the two years since the Berkeley Vision Zero Action Plan' was adopted, the City has
made substantial progress in implementing projects from both the 2017 Berkeley
Bicycle Plan? and the 2021 Berkeley Pedestrian Plan? that are located on Vision Zero
High Injury Streets. Since 2020, Public Works has completed the Sacramento Complete
Streets Project, the Milvia Bikeway Project, and initiated planning, design, and public
engagement for projects on Hopkins Street, Sacramento Street, Martin Luther King
Junior Way, streets in the Southside neighborhood, among other locations in Berkeley.
These projects are intended to improve traffic safety to achieve the Vision Zero goal of
eliminating all severe injury and fatality traffic crashes in Berkeley by 2028.

Continuing with these efforts, staff is requesting approval from Council to submit the
following traffic safety projects to compete for SS4A capital project design and
construction funding and RCP capital project planning funding. These applications are
due in September and October 2022, respectively.

Vision Zero Pedestrian and Bicycle Crossing Safety Improvements (SS4A funding)

This project bundles intersection traffic safety improvements from the Berkeley Bicycle
Plan and/or Berkeley Pedestrian Plan, selected because of their location on Vision Zero
High Injury Streets within the Equity Priority Area identified in the Vision Zero Action
Plan. Crossing treatments fall into one of two categories: rectangular rapid-flashing
beacons with raised concrete street medians (RRFB + Median) or pedestrian hybrid
beacons (PHB). Both treatments are intended to help people walking and biking to
cross the street more safely. More information about the specific proposed
improvements can be found in the Berkeley Bicycle Plan and Berkeley Pedestrian Plan.

e Bicycle Boulevard Intersection Crossings:
o Channing Way/6" Street: RRFB+Median
o Channing Way/Sacramento Street: PHB
o Russell Street/Sacramento Street: PHB*
o California Street/Dwight Way: RRFB + Median
e Pedestrian Plan Intersection Crossings:
o Sacramento Street/Derby Street: PHB**
o Sacramento Street/Harmon Street: PHB**
o Alcatraz Street/King Street: RRFB+Median**
o Alcatraz Street/California Street: RRFB+Median**

*Location also identified in Pedestrian Plan
**[ ocation also identified in Bicycle Plan

1 https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/vision-zero-action-plan
2 https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/berkeley-bicycle-plan
3 https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/pedestrian-plan-2020

Page 2 Page 236


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/vision-zero-action-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/berkeley-bicycle-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/pedestrian-plan-2020

Page 3 of 10

2022 Vision Zero Grant Applications CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

Ashby Avenue Vision Zero Safety Plan (RCP funding)

The Ashby Avenue Vision Zero Safety Plan will develop a conceptual plan for safety
improvements along Ashby Avenue (State Route 13) from Telegraph Avenue to San
Pablo Avenue, with the goal of eliminating severe injury and fatal traffic crashes,
consistent with the 2020 Berkeley Vision Zero Action Plan. Ashby Avenue is a Vision
Zero High Injury Street, and the project limits are predominantly within the Equity
Priority Area identified in the Vision Zero Action Plan. Historically, Ashby Avenue has
the highest concentration of severe and fatal crashes in Berkeley. The street divides the
Lorin District and South Berkeley, historically black neighborhoods that have been
subject to disinvestment and “redlining” discriminatory housing lending practices, from
more affluent Central and North Berkeley areas. The Plan will refine recommendations
for pedestrian and bicycle crossing safety treatments from the 2021 Berkeley
Pedestrian Plan and 2017 Berkeley Bicycle Plan and develop additional conceptual
design recommendations as needed as part of a comprehensive approach to traffic
safety on Ashby Avenue. City of Berkeley will serve as the lead agency for this study
with Caltrans as a joint applicant and project partner. The Plan is necessary in order to
facilitate effective interagency coordination, to develop a comprehensive corridor traffic
safety plan, and to support the robust local public engagement necessary to fully
understand and address the safety concerns of the local community.

BACKGROUND

In 2020, the Berkeley City Council adopted the Vision Zero Action Plan, with the goal of
eliminating all severe injury and fatality traffic crashes in Berkeley by the year 2028. The
Vision Zero Action Plan identified High Injury Streets in Berkeley, a relatively small
number of streets where the vast majority of severe injury and fatality crashes occur.
This Plan also identified an Equity Priority Area, located predominantly in historically
disinvested and “redlined” South and West Berkeley neighborhoods. The Vision Zero
Action Plan prioritized the need to implement the projects identified in the 2017 Berkeley
Bicycle Plan and 2021 Berkeley Pedestrian Plan that are located on High Injury Streets
within the Equity Priority Area, as a way to reduce the disproportionate impact of severe
injury and fatality traffic crashes on people walking and cycling in historically disinvested
areas of Berkeley.

In 2021, the federal Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) established the new Safe Streets
and Roads for All (SS4A) discretionary program with $5 billion in appropriated funds
over 5 years. The SS4A program funds regional, local, and Tribal initiatives through
grants to prevent roadway deaths and serious injuries. The SS4A program supports the
United States Department of Transportation’s goal of zero deaths and serious injuries
on our nation’s roadways. SS4A requires that eligible applicants have a comprehensive
safety action plan to eliminate severe injury and fatal crashes. Berkeley’s Vision Zero
Action Plan, along with the Berkeley Bicycle Plan and Berkeley Pedestrian Plan, meets
this eligibility requirement.

In 2021, the federal Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) established a new $1
billion discretionary grant program to reconnect communities divided by transportation

Page 3 Page 237



Page 4 of 10

2022 Vision Zero Grant Applications CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

infrastructure. This federal Reconnecting Communities Pilot (RCP) grant program
supports planning, capital construction, and technical assistance to restore community
connectivity through the removal, retrofit, mitigation, or replacement of eligible
transportation infrastructure that creates barriers in communities. Partnerships between
States and local government agencies, as well as robust engagement with community
organizations are encouraged as part of eligible capital project planning.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

The projects included in these grant applications would increase the number of Berkeley
residents and visitors who walk, bike, and take mass transit, which would decrease
vehicle miles traveled and greenhouse gas emissions. This would help the City achieve
the Berkeley Climate Action Plan greenhouse gas emission reduction target of 80%
below the year 2000 level by 2050. The Climate Action Plan states that, in order to meet
these targets, “Transportation modes such as public transit, walking and bicycling must
become the primary means of fulfilling our mobility needs.”

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Capital planning, design, and construction grant funding will allow the City to address
critical local and regional transportation infrastructure gaps for all modes of travel. The
projects in these grant applications were identified and prioritized using criteria drawn
directly from adopted City plans which have undergone extensive public review prior to
Council adoption.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The City could choose to forgo the opportunity to seek grant funding from the federal
government for these projects. Alternative funding would need to be identified or the
identified projects would not move forward toward implementation.

CONTACT PERSON

Farid Javandel, Deputy Director of Public Works, Transportation/Engineering, 981-7061
Beth Thomas, Principal Planner, Public Works, 981-7068

Eric Anderson, Senior Planner, Public Works, 981-7062

Attachments:
1: Resolution: Comprehensive Safety Action Plan Self-Certification
Exhibit A: Comprehensive Safety Action Plan Self-Certification
2: Resolution: Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant Application
3: Resolution: Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program Grant Application

Page 4 Page 238



Page 5 of 10

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

SAFE STREETS AND ROADS FOR ALL
COMPREHENSIVE SAFETY ACTION PLAN SELF-CERTIFICATION

WHEREAS, the Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) grant program requires that
applicants have a Comprehensive Safety Action Plan that includes elements specified by
the U.S. Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, applicants are required to self-certify that their Comprehensive Safety Action
Plan meets these requirements; and

WHEREAS, in 2020, the Berkeley City Council adopted the Vision Zero Action Plan
(Resolution No. 69,324-N.S.), with input from the Vision Zero Task Force and Vision Zero
Advisory Committee, with the goal of eliminating all severe injury and fatality traffic
crashes in Berkeley by the year 2028, in fulfilment of Comprehensive Safety Action Plan
requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Vision Zero Action Plan describes how progress will be measured over
time by utilizing data sources for severe injury and fatality traffic crashes, in fulfillment of
Comprehensive Safety Action Plan requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Vision Zero Action Plan is posted publicly online on the City of Berkeley’s
website, in fulfilment of Comprehensive Safety Action Plan requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Vision Zero Action Plan analyzed the history and location of severe injury
and fatality crashes in Berkeley, developed a map of High Injury Streets to document
higher traffic safety risk locations, and used historical and current demographic and
economic data to develop an Equity Priority Area to prioritize traffic safety improvements
on High Injury Streets, in fulfillment of Comprehensive Safety Action Plan requirements;
and

WHEREAS, the Vision Zero Action Plan development included an assessment of current
policies, plans, guidelines, and standards to identify opportunities to improve how
processes prioritize safety and discussed implementation through the adoption of revised
or new policies, guidelines, and standards, in fulfillment of Comprehensive Safety Action
Plan requirements; and

WHEREAS, the 2017 Berkeley Bicycle Plan (Resolution No. 67,945-N.S.), the 2021
Berkeley Pedestrian Plan (Resolution No. 69,711-N.S.) identify a comprehensive set of
projects and strategies to address the safety problems for walking and biking documented
in the Berkeley Vision Zero Action Plan, timelines for when these projects and strategies
will be deployed, and an explanation of project prioritization criteria, in fulfillment of
Comprehensive Safety Action Plan requirements.

Page 239



Page 6 of 10

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley certifies
that the 2017 Berkeley Bicycle Plan (Resolution No. 67,945-N.S.), the 2021 Berkeley
Pedestrian Plan (Resolution No. 69,711-N.S.), and the 2020 Berkeley Vision Zero Action
Plan (Resolution No. 69,324-N.S.) collectively fulfil the requirements for a
Comprehensive Safety Action Plan as required to submit a grant application to the Safe
Streets and Roads grant program.

Page 240



Safe Streets and Roads for All

Self-Certification Eligibility Worksheet

This worksheet is not meant to replace the NOFO. Applicants should follow the instructions in the NOFO to
correctly apply for a grant. See the SS4A website for more information: https://www.transportation.gov/SS4A

Instructions: This content is from Table 2 in the NOFO. The purpose of the worksheet is to determine whether

or not an applicant’s existing plan(s) is substantially similar to an Action Plan.

For each question below, answer "yes” or "no.” If “yes,” cite the specific page in your existing Action Plan or
other plan(s) that corroborate your response, or cite and provide other supporting documentation separately.

An applicant is eligible to apply for an Action Plan Grant that funds supplemental action plan activities, or an

Implementation Grant, only if the following two conditions are met:

* Answer "yes" to Questions e o 0

» Answer "yes” to at least four of the six remaining Questions o e 0 e 0 e
If both conditions are not met, an applicant is still eligible to apply for an Action Plan Grant that funds

creation of a new action plan.

Lead Applicant: City of Berkeley UE KC7DYLVOEF25

o Are both of the following true?

« Did a high-ranking official and/or governing body in the jurisdiction
publicly commit to an eventual goal of zero roadway fatalities and
serious injuries?

+ Did the commitment include either setting a target date to reach zero,
OR setting one or more targets to achieve significant declines in
roadway fatalities and serious injuries by a specific date?

[ Ino

Vision Zero Action Plan

(W YES

If yes, provide documentation:

6 To develop the Action Plan, was a committee, task force, implementation
group, or similar body established and charged with the plan’s
development, implementation, and monitoring?

(] vES [ INno

If yes, provide documentation:

Vision Zero Action Plan

e Does the Action Plan include all of the following?

» Analysis of existing conditions and historical trends to baseline the level
of crashes involving fatalities and serious injuries across a jurisdiction,
locality, Tribe, or region;

* Analysis of the location where there are crashes, the severity, as well as
contributing factors and crash types;

» Analysis of systemic and specific safety needs is also performed, as
needed (e.g., high risk road features, specific safety needs of relevant
road users; and,

* A geospatial identification (geographic or locational data using maps)
of higher risk locations.

A

U.S. Department of Transportation

(M vES [ INno

If yes, provide documentation:
Vision Zero Action Plan

Still have questions? Visit the SS4A website
SSAA Self-Certification Eligibility Workshed® g gar@411of 2



Safe Streets and Roads for All

Self-Certification Eligibility Worksheet

0 Did the Action Plan development include all of the following activities? IE YES |:| NO
* Engagement with the public and relevant stakeholders, including the If yes, provide documentation:
private sector and community groups;
* Incorporation of information received from the engagement and Vision Zero Action Plan

collaboration into the plan; and

» Coordination that included inter- and intra-governmental cooperation
and collaboration, as appropriate.

o Did the Action Plan development include all of the following? lil YES I:l NO
» Considerations of equity using inclusive and representative processes;
* The identification of underserved communities through data; and

 Equity analysis, in collaboration with appropriate partners, focused on Vision Zero Action Plan
initial equity impact assessments of the proposed projects and strategies,
and population characteristics.

If yes, provide documentation:

O Are both of the following true? li’ YES I:l NO
* The plan development included an assessment of current policies, plans, If yes, provide documentation:
guidelines, and/or standards to identify opportunities to improve how
processes prioritize safety; and Vision Zero Action Plan

* The plan discusses implementation through the adoption of revised or
new policies, guidelines, and/or standards.

o Does the plan identify a comprehensive set of projects and strategies to Iil YES I:' NO
address the safety problems in the Action Plan, time ranges when , _
projects and strategies will be deployed, and explain project If yes, provide documentation:
prioritization criteria? VZ. Bike. & Ped Plans

0 Does the plan include all of the following? li’ YES |:| NO
» A description of how progress will be measured over time that includes, at If yes, provide documentation:

a minimum, outcome data.

* The plan is posted publicly online. Vision Zero Action Plan

0 Was the plan finalized and/or last updated between 2017 and 2022? Iil YES I:' NO

If yes, provide documentation:

Vision Zero Action Plan

(v Still have questions? Visit the SS4A website

U.S. Department of Transportation SS4A Self-Certification Eligibility Workshed® age 2402 2



Page 9 of 10

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

GRANT APPLICATION: SAFE STREETS AND ROADS FOR ALL FOR
VISION ZERO PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE CROSSING SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, people walking and cycling in Berkeley experience traffic safety issues when
trying to cross the street at currently uncontrolled intersections; and

WHEREAS, these traffic safety concerns have been documented in the 2017 Berkeley
Bicycle Plan (Resolution No. 67,945-N.S.) and the 2021 Berkeley Pedestrian Plan
(Resolution No. 69,711-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, intersection traffic safety improvements from the Berkeley Bicycle Plan and
Berkeley Pedestrian Plan were selected for this grant because of their location on Vision
Zero High Injury Streets within the Equity Priority Area identified in the Berkeley Vision
Zero Action Plan (Resolution No. 69,324-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, crossing treatments such as rectangular rapid-flashing beacons with raised
concrete street medians (RRFB + Median) and pedestrian hybrid beacons (PHB) are
intended to help people walking and biking to cross the street more safely, at locations
as proposed in the 2017 Berkeley Bicycle Plan and 2021 Berkeley Pedestrian Plan; and

WHEREAS, Safe Streets and Roads For All grant funds can be used to make traffic safety
improvements to currently uncontrolled pedestrian and bicycle intersection crossings; and

WHEREAS, if awarded, the grant funds will be placed in the Federal Capital Grants Fund
(Fund 305) starting in FY 2023.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to submit a grant application to the Safe Streets and Roads
for All grant program, for pedestrian and bicycle intersection crossing safety
improvements for up to the amount of $6,000,000; and accept the grant awarded, and
execute any resultant agreements and amendments.

Page 243



Page 10 of 10

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

GRANT APPLICATION: RECONNECTING COMMUNITIES PILOT GRANT PROGRAM
FOR ASHBY AVENUE VISION ZERO SAFETY PLAN

WHEREAS, Ashby Avenue (State Route 13) has the highest concentration of severe
injury and fatal traffic crashes of any street in Berkeley, as described in the Berkeley
Vision Zero Action Plan (Resolution No. 69,324-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, this crash history has made Ashby Avenue a barrier that is difficult to cross
by any mode of transportation, dividing South Berkeley, a historically black neighborhood
that has been subject to disinvestment and “redlining” discriminatory housing lending
practices, from more affluent Central and North Berkeley areas; and

WHEREAS, these traffic safety concerns have been documented in the Berkeley Vision
Zero Action Plan, which identifies Ashby Avenue as a High Injury Street located partially
within the Equity Priority Area, and in the 2017 Berkeley Bicycle Plan (Resolution No.
67,945-N.S.) and the 2021 Berkeley Pedestrian Plan (Resolution No. 69,711-N.S.); and

WHEREAS, the Ashby Avenue Vision Zero Safety Plan will refine the traffic safety
recommendations proposed in the 2017 Berkeley Bicycle Plan and the 2021 Berkeley
Pedestrian Plan and develop additional conceptual design proposals as needed as part
of a comprehensive approach to traffic safety on Ashby Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the Ashby Avenue Vision Zero Safety Plan is necessary in order to facilitate
effective interagency coordination, to develop a comprehensive corridor traffic safety
plan, and to support the robust local public engagement necessary to fully understand
and address the safety concerns of the local community; and

WHEREAS, City of Berkeley will serve as the lead agency for this study with Caltrans as
a joint applicant and project partner; and

WHEREAS, Reconnecting Communities Pilot Grant Program capital project planning
funds can be used to develop a comprehensive corridor traffic safety plan; and

WHEREAS, if awarded, the grant funds will be placed in the Federal Capital Grants Fund
(Fund 305) starting in FY 2023.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to submit a grant application to the Reconnecting
Communities Pilot Grant Program for the Ashby Avenue Vision Zero Safety Plan for up
to the amount of $480,000; and accept the grant awarded, and execute any resultant
agreements and amendments.

Page 244



Page 1 of 3 22

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Submitted by: Jose Luis Bedolla, Chairperson, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission

Subject: Red Curbs and Visible Signage

RECOMMENDATION

The Disaster and Fire Safety Commission (“Commission” or “DFSC”) respectfully
requests that Council immediately take the following remedial actions to improve
emergency vehicle access and residents’ ability to evacuate in the event of a wildfire,
while we await implementation of more comprehensive long-term actions such as the
Safe Passages program.

In identified high fire risk areas (Fire Zones 2 and 3) and in other high-risk areas, such
as where hazardous chemicals are stored or used:

1. Inspect, fix or replace all parking restriction signage as necessary;

2. Red curb all fire hydrant areas to the maximum extent allowed by law; and

3. Direct the Fire Department and Public Works to identify areas that could be pinch
points for fire trucks to travel.

It is important that residents understand parking restrictions in the City and State
Vehicle Codes. The City should lessen any confusion that might be caused by poorly
maintained, misplaced or unclear signs or curbs. The simple step of a periodic
inspection of existing parking visual cues (signage, red curbs, etc.) has a profound
impact on the safety of all Berkeley residents at any time, but at this time, this effect is
enhanced enormously when we are experiencing wildfire conditions tied to severe
drought. This proposed periodic review is something that needs to be done and that
can be done easily and quickly to reduce the increasing stress residents feel about fire
danger and evacuation routes.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The Commission is not privy to the budget or plans from Public Works Department and
other departments, however, given the increasing fire danger, we ask that completion of
this initiative be a priority. Use of Measure FF funds should be considered if necessary
to expedite implementation of this initiative for the 2022 fire season.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 245
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager

Page 2 of 3

Red Curbs and Visible Signage CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

On June 22, the commission passed a motion to recommend remedial actions to
improve emergency vehicle access and residents’ ability to evacuate in the event of an
emergency.

Motion: Dean,second: Bradstreet, Vote: 8 Ayes: Bedolla, Dean, Bradstreet, Cutler,
Simmons, Degenkolb, Rader, Stein; 0 Noes; 0 Absent:; 0 Abstain:

BACKGROUND

Signage in the Berkeley hills in particular is in various states of disrepair. Without clear
signage, in these and other high-risk areas of the City, residents and visitors tend to
ignore signage and park in prohibited areas. Parking in restricted areas could result in
blocking fire trucks’ ability to get to an emergency and could prevent residents from
egress in the event of wildfire. While there is existing law that governs parking near
hydrants regardless of red curbing, that tends to be ignored.

As such, red curbing to the maximum distance around hydrants to the extent allowed by
law will serve as a reminder of the parking restriction and allow for the fire department to
access hydrants in case of fire. Lastly, we ask for further interdepartmental discussions
around identifying pinch points for fire trucks where red curbing those pinch points
would allow for fire truck access in case of emergencies. In cases where there is no
sidewalk, the edge of the asphalt could be painted to serve the same purpose.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
There is no direct environmental impact of this recommendation.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The rationale is to improve emergency vehicle ingress during common emergencies
and in the event of wildfire, and to improve emergency public egress in case of wildfire
while we await a larger discussion around the Safe Passages program.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

There is no alternative to improving existing signage and red-curbing around fire
hydrants other than delayed or no action. Not red curbing the areas around the fire
hydrants and focusing on parking enforcement is another possible approach but would
require substantially increased parking enforcement.

CITY MANAGER

The City Manager concurs with the content and recommendations of the Commission’s
Report. The Fire Department has already begun to address replacement of all existing
“No Parking” signs that have faded and the repainting of all existing Red Curbs in Fire
Zones 1, 2, and 3.

Page 246



Page 3 of 3

Red Curbs and Visible Signage CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

Funding has been allocated within Measure FF to initiate this project. The Fire
Department will evaluate what the one-time fees will be to update the painting of curbs,
replacement of signs, and then analyze continual maintenance costs.

The Safe Passages Project is aimed at mitigation of wildfire risks by supporting
Berkeley’s Emergency Evacuation Plan and helping to keep emergency ingress and
egress routes accessible.

CONTACT PERSON
Keith May, Secretary, Disaster and Fire Safety Commission, 510-981-5508

Page 247



Page 248



Page 1 of 4 23

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Mental Health Commission

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Mental Health Commission

Submitted by: Dr. Margaret Fine, Mental Health Commission Chair

Subject: Appointment of Judy Appel to Mental Health Commission for the City of
Berkeley

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution appointing Judy Appel as a representative of the Special Public
Interest Category (family member), to complete her first 3- year term beginning
September 14, 2022 and ending September 13, 2025.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Mental Health Commission is authorized to be composed of thirteen members.
However, there are presently five vacancies on the Commission. The Mental Health
Commission is actively seeking candidates with the ability to fulfill the state law duties
for Commissioners, including reviewing and evaluating the community’s needs,
services, facilities and special problems. Approval of the recommended action will fill
one vacancy and allow the Commission to move one step closer to having a full and
diverse complement of commissioners.

BACKGROUND

California State law requires that appointments to the Mental Health Commission
meet specific categories, who may serve up to nine years consecutively. The
general public interest category may include anyone who has an interest in and
some knowledge of mental health services. The special public interest category
includes direct consumers of public mental health services and family members of
consumers, which together must constitute at least fifty percent or nine of the
commission seats. Direct consumers and family members shall each constitute at
least 20% of the commission membership.

The Mental Health Commission nominated Judy Appel as a special public interest
consumer applicant for appointment to the Mental Health Commission for the City of
Berkeley for a three-year term. She grew up with a sister who was close in age and who

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 249
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 4

Appointment of Judy Appel to the MHC CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

had severe psychiatric disabilities. She was in mental health programs and hospitals
much of her life, so Judy has that personal experience which in many ways that informs
her professional experience. Her sister died several years ago.

Judy Appel is a long-time Berkeley resident with a deep commitment to supporting
Berkeleyans living with mental health and substance use issues and disabilities. She
currently serves on the Board of Directors for the Ashby Village and is a non-profit
organizational development consultant. She is committed to addressing diversion for
people calling 911 who need emergency mental health and substance use services in
the community and moreover, avoiding involvement in the criminal legal system and
incarceration. She has worked with very diverse populations of people impacted by
mental health and substance use challenges, including for people experiencing
homelessness.

In addition, Judy is a strong supporter of mental health and substance use services for
young people in need. She was elected to the School Board for Berkeley Unified School
District in 2012 and 2016 and served two times as President. She provided policy
direction for educational instruction with a focus on closing the opportunity gap for
students of color and low-income students. The School Board oversees a budget of
$160M from local, state, and federal sources and directs budgeting and fiscal oversight.
She has lead School Board efforts to implement restorative justice, social-emotional
learning, and trauma-informed practices at multiple school sites.

Further Judy served as a Senior Program Officer and Director of Special Projects for the
Jonathan Logan Family Foundation. She managed a broad range of education
portfolios and grantees focused on social justice projects, equity, and inclusion. She
also leveraged an extensive network to secure involvement from community leaders
and influencers on foundation initiatives, including a broad range of local, national, and
global grantees.

The Mental Health Commission passed the following motions at the June 23, 2022
meeting:

M/S/C (Fine, Prichett) Motion to nominate Judy Appel to the Mental Health Commission
Ayes: Fine, Jones, Opton, Pritchett Noes: None; Abstentions: None; Absent: Escarcega;
Taplin

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

Page 2 Page 250



Page 3 of 4

Appointment of Judy Appel to the MHC CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

Approval of the recommended action will allow the Mental Health Commission to move
one step closer to having a full and diverse complement of commissioners to review and
evaluate the community’s mental health needs, resources, and programs.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position.

CONTACT PERSON
Jamie Works-Wright, Commission Secretary, HHCS, 510-981-7721

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 3 Page 251



Page 4 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
APPOINTMENT OF JUDY APPEL TO THE MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSION

WHEREAS, membership of the Mental Health Commission is composed of thirteen
appointments by the City Council as a whole, including one appointment by the Mayor (or
designee), six special public interest appointments, and four general public interest
appointments; and

WHEREAS, with the ongoing implementation of the Mental Health Services Act, the City
of Berkeley will need to have a full complement of diverse appointees to the Commission
to review and evaluate the community's mental health needs, resources, and programs
and to fulfill its mandate; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Judy Appel has an investment in the mental health community and has
family lived experience,

WHEREAS, the Mental Health Commission at its June 23, 2022 meeting recommended
appointments of Judy Appel.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the

Council appoint Judy Appel as a representative of the Special Public Interest family
member category, to complete her first term ending September 13, 2025.

Page 252



Page 1 of 5 24

¢ [ CITY9F

-

9
o
5
A
II'_F
-

Peace and Justice

Commission
CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Peace and Justice Commission

Submitted by: George Lippman, Chairperson, Peace and Justice Commission

Subject: Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion Access

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion
Access.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Minimal impact to staff time.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Roe v. Wade, the landmark U.S. Supreme Court decision recognizing and confirming

the right to privacy in the federal Constitution protects the right for pregnant people to

choose to have an abortion prior to viability, is in imminent danger of being overturned

At its regular meeting of June 6, 2022, the Peace and Justice Commission unanimously
proposed the attached resolution for the City Council.

M/S/C: (Bohn/Morizawa)

Ayes: Bohn, Gussman, Jacqulin, Lee, Lippman, Maran, Morizawa
Noes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Leon-Maldonado, Rodriguez

BACKGROUND

On January 18, 2022, the Berkeley City Council adopted a resolution entitled
“Reaffirming the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Roe v. Wade and Access to Safe

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 253
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 2 of 5

Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion Access
Consent Calendar
September 13, 2022

Reproductive Health Services,” stating its “support for women to be able to exercise
their constitutional rights and continue have access to critical health care services,
including abortion.”

Limiting access to reproductive healthcare, including systematically stripping pregnant
people of access to abortion, is not only a transgression against basic human
reproductive rights but is also an assault on dignity.

Dozens of states have already taken legal action to limit or ban abortion, potentially
stripping millions of people of reproductive care and endangering thousands of
healthcare workers, including nurses and doctors who have dedicated their lives to
caring for those in need.

California Governor Gavin Newsom has taken a number of steps, in anticipation of a
Supreme Court ruling to overturn Roe v. Wade, to protect access to abortion for
Californians and others across the country. These actions include the formation of the
California Future of Abortion Council (CA-FAB Council), which has issued 45
recommendations including among many others:’

e Assistance to the expected up to 1.4 million visitors to the state seeking abortion
services, as well as to the providers that will serve them.2

e Comprehensive community survey and research to identify unmet educational
and health needs of California residents. To accurately assess the needs and
preferences of people experiencing barriers to care, a survey must be conducted,
and data analyzed on all of the following:

— The educational and health awareness needs of populations most impacted by
lack of access to abortion.

— Community preferences for types of abortion services and levels of care.

— How youth/young people access sexual and reproductive health services and
education.

— Access to telehealth and preference for various modalities when receiving
sexual and reproductive care, including abortion services.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

" “California plans to be abortion sanctuary if Roe overturned,” AP News, December 8, 2021,
https://apnews.com/article/abortion-california-sanctuary-625a118108bcda253196697c83548d5b
> https://www.plannedparenthoodaction.org/uploads/filer public/d8/e1/d8e17825-72e0-4{6f-9c57-
7549bb54261e/ca_fab_council report .pdf

2 https://states.quttmacher.org/

Page 2 Page 254


https://apnews.com/article/abortion-california-sanctuary-625a118108bcda253196697c83548d5b
https://www.plannedparenthoodaction.org/uploads/filer_public/d8/e1/d8e17825-72e0-4f6f-9c57-7549bb54261e/ca_fab_council_report_.pdf
https://www.plannedparenthoodaction.org/uploads/filer_public/d8/e1/d8e17825-72e0-4f6f-9c57-7549bb54261e/ca_fab_council_report_.pdf
https://states.guttmacher.org/

Page 3 of 5

Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion Access
Consent Calendar
September 13, 2022

No significant impacts.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The East Bay is home to a number of nonprofit healthcare providers that provide free or
low-cost reproductive care, including abortion. The demand for abortion access is likely
to increase greatly, making cities like Berkeley a destination for individuals seeking care
that may be made illegal in their home cities and states.

Research and study that is locally directed, grassroots-oriented, comprehensively
diverse, and collaboratively designed by staff, commissions, community members,
advocates and other subject matter experts will contribute a great deal to local and state
policy-makers.

For this reason the Peace and Justice Commission proposes Council refer to the
Commission a request to collaborate with the listed Commissions, Boards, and
Departments among others to study what resources exist for reproductive health and
educational services, what obstacles residents of Berkeley face in accessing them, and
what disparities may exist on the basis of race and class; and give an interim report to
the City Council on what actions should be taken to address such limitations on
reproductive rights and services for Berkeley’s residents, within four months.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of the
Commission’s Report.

CONTACT PERSON
George Lippman, Chair, Peace and Justice Commission

Okeya Vance-Dozier, Commission Secretary, City Manager’s Office, (610) 684-0503

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 3 Page 255



Page 4 of 5

RESOLUTION NO. ## ###-N.S.
Resolution Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion Access

WHEREAS, the Peace and Justice Commission advises the City Council on all matters
relating to the City of Berkeley's role in issues of peace and social justice (Berkeley
Municipal Code Chapter 3.68.070); and

WHEREAS, limiting access to reproductive healthcare, including systematically stripping
pregnant people of access to abortion, is not only a transgression against basic human
reproductive rights but is also an assault on dignity;' and

WHEREAS, Roe v. Wade, the landmark U.S. Supreme Court decision recognizing and
confirming the right to privacy in the federal Constitution protects the right for pregnant
people to choose to have an abortion prior to viability, is in imminent danger of being
overturned; and

WHEREAS, dozens of states have already taken legal action to limit or ban abortion,
potentially stripping millions of people of reproductive care and endangering thousands
of healthcare workers, including nurses and doctors who have dedicated their lives to
caring for those in need; and

WHEREAS, the East Bay is home to a number of nonprofit healthcare providers that
provide free or low-cost reproductive care, including abortion; and

WHEREAS, the Berkeley City Council passed a resolution on January 18, 2022,
reaffirming Berkeley’s commitment to Roe v. Wade, stating its “support for women to be
able to exercise their constitutional rights and continue have access to critical health care
services, including abortion;” and

WHEREAS, the demand for abortion access is likely to increase greatly, making cities
like Berkeley a destination for individuals seeking care that may be made illegal in their
home cities and states.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley declares
Berkeley to be a Right-To-Choose Sanctuary City, recognizing that anyone should have
a right to abortion, on-demand, and without question.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley urges the State of
California and Alameda County to increase funding for reproductive rights and abortion

3 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2022-01-18%20Agenda%20Packet%20-
%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf

Page 256



Page 5 of 5

Taking Action on the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Abortion Access
Consent Calendar
September 13, 2022

access.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley refers this
resolution to the Peace and Justice Commission requesting it to collaborate with the
Berkeley Unified School District, the Health Department, the Community Health
Commission, and the Commission on the Status of Women to study what resources exist
for reproductive health and educational services, what obstacles residents of Berkeley
face in accessing them, and what disparities may exist on the basis of race and class;
and give an interim report to the City Council on what actions should be taken to address
such limitations on reproductive rights and services for Berkeley’s residents, within four
months.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley reaffirms its support
for codifying the right to an abortion into federal law via HR 3755, The Women’s Health
Protection Act of 2021 (Lee & Chu).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the copies of this Resolution be sent to Berkeley’s
county, state, and federal legislative representatives, Rep. Judy Chu, Governor Newsom,
State Senate President Pro Tempore Toni Atkins, and the BUSD.

4 https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/3766

Page 5 Page 257



Page 258



Page 1 of 4 25

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Office of the Mayor

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Members of the City Council
From: Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember Rigel Robinson, and

Councilmember Sophie Hahn

Subject: Pacific Center for Human Growth: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget
Funds to General Fund and Grant of Such Funds

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $1,000 per
Councilmember including $1,000 from Mayor Arreguin to the Pacific Center for Human
Growth, for the planning and production of a historical quilt to honor their 50t
anniversary. Funds would be relinquished to the City’s General Fund for this purpose
from the discretionary Council Office Budgets of Mayor Arreguin and any other
Councilmembers who would like to contribute.

BACKGROUND

Founded in 1973, the Pacific Center for Human Growth has served the Bay Area’s
LGBT+ community for almost 50 years. It is the oldest LGBT+ center in the Bay Area,
and third oldest in the nation. The Pacific Center works to enhance the mental health
and overall well being of its clients and LGBT+ community by providing support groups,
community outreach, facilitated workshops, and culturally responsive therapy. Their
programs aim to counter the social and institutional experiences of homophobia,
ageism, misogyny, and racism.

The City of Berkeley has an existing partnership with the Pacific Center. In 2010, to
better serve individuals in underserved populations who have been exposed to trauma,
the City signed a contract with the Pacific Center. Through this, the Mental Health
Division partners with the Pacific Center to provide trauma support services to the
LBGT+ population. This contract continues today, which was last extended in July 2022.

To commemorate their 50t anniversary in the spring of 2023, the Pacific Center plans
on creating a historical quilt. A local artist will design the quilt using testimonies from
community members on how the Pacific Center has supported them. These stories will
be presented visually on the quilt, which will create a sense of community and
connectedness. To make this project happen, the Pacific Center is requesting $3,500,
which will be used for labor, materials, and related expenses (details in Attachment 2).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7100 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7199 Page 259
E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info



Page 2 of 4

Pacific Center 50" Anniversary Quilt CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

No General Fund impact; $1,000 is available from Mayor Arreguin’s Council Office
Budget discretionary account.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

CONTACT PERSON
Mayor Jesse Arreguin 510-981-7100

Attachments:
1: Resolution
2: Description of 50" Anniversary Quilt Project

Page 2 Page 260



Page 3 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF SURPLUS FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE
EXPENSE ACCOUNTS OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS FOR A GRANT
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC SERVICES FOR A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC PURPOSE

WHEREAS, Mayor Jesse Arreguin has surplus funds in his office expenditure account;
and

WHEREAS, a California non-profit tax exempt corporation, the Pacific Center for
Human Growth seeks funds in the amount of $3500 to provide the following public
services; to develop a historical quilt to commemorate their 50t anniversary, which will
feature personal stories and testimonies about how the Pacific Center has meant to
them; and

WHEREAS, the provision of such services would fulfill the following municipal public
purpose of creating a sense of community and connectedness and advancing their
causes of improving mental health in the LGBT+ community.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that

funds relinquished by the Mayor and Councilmembers from their Council Office Budget
up to $1,000 per office shall be granted to the Pacific Center for Human Growth.

Page 261



Page 4 of 4

34 PACIFIC CENTER

FOR HUMAN GROWTH

Pacific Center for Human Growth: Honoring 50 Years Building LGBTQIA+ Community Wellness

Pacific Center for Human Growth (“PC”) is thrilled to celebrate 50 years of building community wellness for the
East San Francisco Bay Area’s diverse LGBTQIA+ communities. The Pacific Center is the oldest LGBTQIA+
community center in the Bay Area and the third oldest in the nation.

Pacific Center requests a one time project support grant of $3,500 from the City of Berkeley to support the
planning and production of a historical quilt to honor our “golden” (50th) anniversary in spring 2023.

The vision for a historical quilt emerged from a local artist who approached Pacific Center to offer their vision
of a collaborative project that will engage LGBTQIA+ community members in sharing their personal stories and
testimonies about what Pacific Center has meant to them. Using a variety of media, the artist will facilitate a
series of online or socially distanced workshops to support participants to tell their stories in a visual form.

Rooted in the East San Francisco Bay Area, we serve LGBTQIA+ community members from age nine through
senior adulthood. Our peer groups, clinical program, training, and outreach activities positively impact a broad
spectrum of LGBTQIA+ community members across age, race/ethnicity, and gender identities.

For 49 years, PC has provided accessible, culturally responsive mental health services and peer-driven
community engagement programs. Our programs serve to counter the social and institutional experiences of
homophobia, ageism, misogyny, and racism which present ongoing challenges to the wellbeing of
LGBTQIA+/BIPOC community members.

The collaborative process inherent to the quilt project will increase participants’ sense of connectedness,
decrease isolation, and create a legacy project to be enjoyed by many for decades to come.

Project Budget
A one-time project grant of $3,500 will enable Pacific Center to purchase materials, compensate the labor of a

Project Coordinator for 100 hours of work at a living wage of $25.00 per hour, and cover overhead expenses.

Expense Total Details

Labor S 2,500.00 Project Coordinator at 100 Hours x $25.00 hour

Materials S 500.00 Fabric, paper, ink, paint, other

Overhead S 500.00 Technology platforms supporting safe and accessible meetings
including Zoom, Google Workspace, Rev Live Captions

TOTAL REQUEST |$ 3,500.00

2712 Telegraph Avenue, Berkeley, CA 94705 Phone: 510.548.8283 Fax: 510.548.2938 www.pacificcenter.org

Page 262



Page 1 of 40 26

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Office of the Mayor

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

To: Honorable Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmember Sophie Hahn

Subject: Ordinance Amendment: Correction to the COVID-19 Emergency Response

Ordinance, BMC Chapter 13.110.

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt the first reading of an Ordinance correcting BMC Chapter 13.110, the COVID-19
Emergency Response Ordinance, to clarify the effect of Ordinance No. 7,762-N.S. upon
tenant protections that were inadvertently omitted during the last update of BMC
Chapter 13.110.

BACKGROUND

The City of Berkeley declared a local State of Emergency on March 3, 2020 in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic, first detected globally in late December 2019. Shortly
thereafter, Council passed BMC Chapter 13.110 - the COVID-19 Emergency Response
Ordinance (“Chapter 13.110”) - prohibiting most evictions in Berkeley, which has been
subsequently updated over the past couple of years. There is currently no timeline as to
when the local State of Emergency will end, and even when the health crisis is no
longer a significant threat to the community, the economic ramifications of COVID-19
will be felt for some time in the future.

Chapter 13.110 has been updated a total of five times: Ordinance No. 7,693-N.S.
approved on March 17, 2020; Ordinance No. 7,698-N.S., approved on April 21, 2020;
Ordinance No. 7,704-N.S. approved on May 26, 2020; Ordinance No. 7,743-N.S.
approved on December 15, 2020; and Ordinance No. 7,762-N.S. approved on May 11,
2021. The intent of the latest amendment, as mentioned in the report in Attachment 2,
was to make just one narrowly tailored amendment to exempt from the provisions of the
ordinance commercial leases where the lease has expired and the City has issued a
permit for the demolition or substantial alternation of the commercial unit. This was
necessary to move forward with existing approved developments that are needed to
address the housing affordability crisis and meet the quota of new units as prescribed in
the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). While the recommendation was clear
in the intent of amending Chapter 13.110 for this singular purpose, the amendments
made in the ordinance were drafted using an older version of the ordinance, Ordinance
7,698-N.S., as approved on May 26, 2020. Because of this, the amendments that were
approved in Ordinance No. 7,704-N.S. on May 26, 2020, and Ordinance No. 7,743-N.S.
on December 15, 2020 were inadvertently omitted from the text of Ordinance No. 7,762-
N.S.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7100 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7199 Page 263
E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info



Page 2 of 40

COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance Correction CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022

The amendments made in Ordinance No. 7,743-N.S. were based on recommendations
approved by the 4x4 Joint Task Force Committee on Housing. This primarily includes
the halting of evictions under the Ellis Act for the duration of the local state of
emergency pertaining to the COVID-19 pandemic, in addition to establishment of civil
penalties, adding actions that hurt a Resident’s credit rating passed on non-payment of
rent as a prohibited retaliation, along with general cleanup language. The changes
incorporated and approved by the Council through Ordinance No. 7,743-N.S. has been
reinstated in this corrected version of the ordinance.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

This correction is needed to clarify and fully implement the legislative intent of the
passage of Ordinance No. 7,762-N.S. This is done by incorporating the changes that
were enacted in Ordinance Nos. 7,704-N.S. and 7,743-N.S. and then inadvertently
omitted from the text of Ordinance 7,762-N.S.

CONTACT PERSON
Mayor Jesse Arreguin 510-981-7100

Attachments:

1: Ordinance (clean)

2: Ordinance (track changes)

2: May 11, 2021 Council ltem: Amending COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance
Relating to Commercial Leases

3: Track changes between Ordinance No. 7,743-N.S. and Ordinance No. 7,762-N.S.

Page 2 Page 264



Page 3 of 40

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13.110 OF THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE,
THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:
Section 1. The Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 is amended to read as follows:

Chapter 13.110
COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

Sections:

13.110.010 Findings and Purpose
13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct
13.110.030 Definitions

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees
13.110.050 Application

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations
13.110.070 Waiver

13.110.080 Remedies

13.110.090 Severability

13.110.100 Liberal Construction

13.110.010 Findings and Purposes

International, national, state and local health and governmental authorities are responding
to an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus named "SARS-CoV-
2." And the disease it causes has been named "coronavirus disease 2019," abbreviated
COVID-19, ("COVID-19"). In response to this emergency, on March 3, 2020, the City
Manager acting as the Director of Emergency Services declared a local State of
Emergency based on COVID-19 (hereinafter referred to as "the Local Emergency"),
which the City Council subsequently ratified on March 10, 2020. On April 21, 2020, June
16, 2020, July 28, 2020, September 22, 2020, November 17, 2020, December 15, 2020,
February 9, 2021, March 30, 2021, May 25, 2021, July 20, 2021, September 14, 2021,
December 14, 2021, February 8, 2022, March 22, 2022, May 10, 2022, June 28, 2022,
and July 26, 2022, the council ratified an extension of the local emergency. In addition,
on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency in California and the
President of the United States declared a national state of emergency on March 13, 2020
regarding the novel coronavirus and COVID-19.

On March 16, 2020, the City of Berkeley Public Health Officer, along with several other

neighboring jurisdictions issued a Shelter in Place Order directing all individuals living in
the City of Berkeley to shelter at their place of residence except that they may leave to

Page 265



Page 4 of 40

provide or receive certain essential services or engage in certain essential activities, and
prohibiting non-essential gatherings and ordering cessation of non-essential travel. On
March 31, 2020 this Shelter in Place Order was extended to May 3, 2020, and restricted
activities further.

Furthermore, on March 16, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-28-20,
specifically authorizing local governments to halt evictions for commercial tenants,
residential tenants, and homeowners who have been affected by COVID-19, emphasizing
that the economic impacts of COVID-19 have been significant and could threaten to
undermine housing security as many people are experiencing material income loss as a
result of business closures, the loss of hours or wages or layoffs related to COVID-19,
hindering their ability to keep up with rents, mortgages and utility bills.

The Order also stated that because homelessness can exacerbate vulnerability to
COVID-19, Californians must take measures to preserve and increase housing security
for Californians to protect public health and specifically stated that local jurisdictions may
take measures to promote housing security beyond what the state law would otherwise
allow.

On April 21, 2020, Alameda County enacted an urgency ordinance prohibiting eviction for
any reason other than withdrawal of rental property under the Ellis Act or court-ordered
eviction for public safety. Although the Alameda County ordinance does not have effect
within the incorporated area of Berkeley, it is desirable to ensure that Berkeley residents
have at least the same level of protection as the residents of unincorporated Alameda
County.

During this State of Emergency, and in the interests of protecting the public health and
preventing transmission of the COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary
displacement and homelessness. It is the intent of this Ordinance to fully implement the
suspension of the statutory bases for eviction for nonpayment of rent and for default in
the payment of a mortgage as authorized by Executive Order N-28-20.

At the same time, the Governor, as well as, the Berkeley Health Officer, and those of
other jurisdictions ordered the closure of businesses, except those deemed essential.
Many businesses, such as restaurants, are open only for take-out or pick up services and
face a critical loss of business.

The City Council is aware that some landlords of commercial properties are seeking
significant rent increases during the period when many commercial tenants are closed or
are experiencing substantial and catastrophic reductions in their business and income.
Such rent increases force tenants who are closed or have substantially reduced revenues
face the choice of accepting a significant rent increase, moving at a time when it is virtually
impossible, or closing altogether. Accepting a rent increase while closed or in a reduced
state of operations means that the commercial tenants face even more debt to the
landlord when the emergency is over, and may face a substantially increased rent when
the tenant returns to normal operations, if ever.

Page 2 Page 266



Page 5 of 40

Landlords of commercial property that unreasonably increases rents on tenants of
commercial property during the COVID-19 emergency significantly impacts vulnerable
small businesses, nonprofits, and artists who form a large part of the backbone of
Berkeley’'s economy, revenue sources, and employment opportunities These rent
increases are coming at a time when the commercial rents are likely falling due to
business closures and potential loss of businesses at the end of the emergency. Thus,
these rent increases appear as a way of evading the Governors and Berkeley’s
commercial tenant eviction moratorium by forcing tenants to agree to rent increases or
leave. Such conduct constitutes constructive evictions in contravention of the eviction
moratorium. Furthermore, such rent increases may affect businesses providing goods
and essential services, resulting in increases in those costs of essential goods and
services contravening the intent of anti-price gouging laws.

On expiration of leases when the emergency order is in place, unreasonable rent
increases have already forced the closure of businesses and will result in closing of
additional business causing loss of income for the business owners, loss of employment
for the employees and of revenue to the city, and an increase in homelessness. To reduce
the spread of COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary displacement and
homelessness. Because of the emergency restrictions, businesses forced out due to
increased rents will be unable to move to new locations and new businesses will be
unable to open during this emergency period. During a state of emergency cities have
extraordinary powers and jurisdiction to create legislation in order to counteract the effects
of the emergency situation on its people and businesses. Protecting tenants from
excessive rent increases will prevent additional loss of employment and essential
services for Berkeley residents. In order to effectively implement an eviction moratorium,
the City Council finds it imperative to prevent constructive eviction through unreasonable
rent increases.

Accordingly, the City of Berkeley adopts the following amendments to Berkeley Municipal
Code Chapter 13.110.

13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct

A. During the Covered Period, no Landlord or Lender shall evict or attempt to evict a
Resident of real property, or otherwise require a Tenant to vacate, unless necessary to
stop an imminent threat to the health and safety of other occupants. For purposes of this
Ordinance, the basis for an exception to this Ordinance cannot be the Resident's COVID-
19 illness or exposure to COVID-19, whether actual or suspected.

B. Residential Eviction Moratorium. It shall be a complete defense to any action for
unlawful detainer that the notice upon which the action is based was served or expired,
or that the complaint was filed or served, during the Covered Period.

C. No landlord of an Impacted Business or Nonprofit may upon expiration of a lease
increase rent for an Impacted Business or Nonprofit in an amount greater than ten (10)
percent over the rent in effect at the commencement of the local emergency declared by

Page 3 Page 267



Page 6 of 40

the Director of Emergency Services. For purposes of this section, rent means all
consideration for the use and enjoyment of the rented premises, including base rent and
any additional rent or other charges for costs such as utilities, maintenance, cleaning,
trash removal, repairs and any other charges to the tenant required under the rental
agreement. This section 13.110.020 C. shall expire on May 31, 2020, concurrent with
Executive Order N-28-20; provided, however, that this section shall be automatically
extended if Executive Order N-28-20 is extended or the tenant protections therein are
extended pursuant to another Governor's Executive Order.

D. For the duration of the Covered Period, if a tenant has a Covered reason for delayed
payment, the tenant may terminate a lease or rental agreement with 30 days 'notice
without penalty. A tenant may also exercise rights under this subsection if the tenants or
roommates of the tenants are or were registered at an educational institution that
cancelled or limited in-person classes due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

13.110.030 Definitions

A. “Covered Period” means the period of time beginning with March 17, 2020 and
concluding upon the expiration of the local emergency. However, the City Council may
vote by resolution to extend the duration of the Covered Period.

B. "Covered Reason for Delayed Payment" means:

(1)  The basis for the eviction is nonpayment of rent, arising out of a material decrease
in household, business, or other rental unit occupant(s)s income (including, but not
limited to, a material decrease in household income caused by layoffs or a reduction in
the number of compensable hours of work, or to caregiving responsibilities, or a material
decrease in business income caused by a reduction in opening hours or consumer
demand), or material out-of-pocket medical expenses, or a reduction in the number of
tenants living in the unit (including due to difficulty finding new tenants and/or subtenants
willing and able to cover a sufficient share of rent) which reduces the ability of the
remaining tenants to pay rent, or a rent increase that exceeds the Annual General
Adjustment for the current year; and

(2)  The decrease in household, business, or other rental unit occupant’s income or
the expenses or reduction in number of tenants described in subparagraph (1) was
caused by the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, or by any local, state, or federal
government response to COVID-19.

C. “Delayed Rent Payment Agreement” means a mutual agreement between a landlord
and tenant regarding the timing and amount of payments for rent that is delayed by a
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

D. “Homeowner” means the owner or owners of a Residential Unit subject to a mortgage
or similar loan secured by the residential unit. “Homeowner” is limited to owners who
reside in the unit and includes the individuals residing in the unit with the homeowner.

Page 4 Page 268



Page 7 of 40

E. “Impacted Business or Nonprofit” means a business or nonprofit organization that had
a business license in 2019 or 2020 in the City of Berkeley or is a registered nonprofit in
either or both of those years and:
1. whose operation has been shut down due to the COVID-19 emergency, or
2. that is unable to accept customers at its location and is open for limited virtual,
take-out or pickup services only, or
3. who suffered a material loss of income.

F. "Landlord" includes owners, lessors, or sublessors of either residential or commercial
rental property, and the agent, representative, or successor of any of the foregoing.

G. "Lender” means the mortgagee of a purchase money or similar mortgage, or the holder
or beneficiary of a loan secured by one or more units, which person has the right to
mortgage or similar payments from the owner as mortgagor, including a loan servicer,
and the agent, representative, or successor of any of the foregoing.

H. “Resident” means a Tenant, Homeowner, or their household.

I. "Tenant" includes a tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, lodger or any other person
entitled by written or oral rental agreement to use or occupancy of either residential or
commercial property.

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees

A. Nothing in this Chapter shall relieve the tenant of liability for unpaid rent, which the
landlord may seek after expiration of the local State of Emergency. Notwithstanding any
lease provision to the contrary, a landlord may not charge or collect a late fee, fine, or
interest for rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment. The City will
develop standards or guidelines for tenants to repay unpaid rent accrued during the
Covered Period course of the local State of Emergency. Landlords are encouraged to
work with local agencies that will be making rental assistance available for qualifying
tenants.

B.

1. For rent accrued through January 31, 2021, Tenants shall have until March 31, 2022,
or the date adopted by state law, as applicable, to pay rent that was delayed by a Covered
Reason for Delayed Payment unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual repayment
agreement ("Delayed Rent Payment Agreement").

2. For rent accrued beginning February 1, 2021, Tenants shall have until twenty-four (24)
months after the conclusion of the Covered Period to pay rent that was delayed by a
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment, or the period of time adopted by state law, as
applicable, unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual repayment agreement
("Delayed Rent Payment Agreement").

Page 5 Page 269



Page 8 of 40

3. Notwithstanding any lease provision to the contrary, a landlord may not charge or
collect a late fee, fine, or interest for rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed
Payment.

C. ATenantis not required to provide documentation to the Landlord in advance to qualify
for the delayed repayment of rent. However, upon the request of a Landlord, a Tenant
shall provide such documentation to the Landlord within forty-five (45) days after the
request or within thirty (30) days after the Covered Period, whichever is later. A
declaration sworn under penalty of perjury shall constitute documentation for the purpose
of this requirement. In the case of nonpayment of rent, the failure of a Tenant to notify the
landlord in advance of being delinquent in the payment of rent prior to being served with
a notice pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(2) et seq. does not waive the
Tenant's right to claim this Chapter as a complete defense to nonpayment of rent in an
unlawful detainer action.

D. Any medical or financial information provided to the landlord shall be held in
confidence, and shall not be disclosed to other entities unless such disclosure is permitted
or required by the law, or unless the tenant explicitly authorizes the disclosure of the
information in writing.

E. Any relief from the City of Berkeley either directly to a property owner on their own
application or as a pass through for City relief payments to the tenant shall directly reduce
the amount of any rent that was delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.
This requirement shall be applied into any Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, regardless
of the terms of that agreement.

13.110.050 Application

A. This Chapter applies to eviction notices and unlawful detainer actions based on notices
served, filed, or which expire during the Covered Period. It does not apply to commercial
leases where the term has expired and the City has issued a permit for the demolition or
substantial alteration of the commercial unit, or to units ordered by the City to be vacated
for the preservation of public health, including where the City deems necessary to control
the spread of COVID-19.

B. Except where expressly required by state law (such as Assembly Bill 3088 or any
subsequent statewide COVID-19 relief legislation), a landlord may seek rent accrued
during the Covered Period as set forth in Section 13.110.040, but may not file an action
pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(2) et seq. or otherwise seek to recover
possession of a rental unit based on the failure to pay rent that accrued during the
Covered Period. In any action to evict based on alleged nonpayment of rent, it shall be a
complete defense to such action if any part of the rent in dispute accrued at any time
during the Covered Period, or if the action otherwise demands any fees or amounts
contrary to the provisions of this Chapter. A landlord shall not apply any rent payment
towards rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment before applying
it towards any other Rent owed without the explicit written permission of the Tenant.

Page 6 Page 270



Page 9 of 40

C. A Landlord or Lender shall not retaliate against a Resident for exercising their rights
under this Ordinance, including but not limited to shutting off any utilities reducing services
or amenities, refusing to make or delaying repairs to which the Resident would otherwise
be entitled, or taking actions which hurt the Resident’s credit rating based on non-
payment of rent during the Covered Period as allowed under this ordinance.

D. In addition to the affirmative defenses set forth above, in any action to recover
possession of a rental unit filed under Berkeley Municipal Code section 13.76.130(A)(1),
it shall be a complete defense that the landlord impeded the tenant's effort to pay rent by
refusing to accept rent paid on behalf of the tenant from a third party, or refusing to provide
a W-9 form or other necessary documentation for the tenant to receive rental assistance
from a government agency, non-profit organization, or other third party. Acceptance of
rental payments made on behalf of the tenant by a third party shall not create a tenancy
between the landlord and the third party.

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations

The City Manager may promulgate implementing regulations and develop forms to
effectuate this Ordinance. This includes the option of requiring Landlords and Lenders to
give a notice to Residents informing them of this Chapter and the right to seek the benefits
of this Chapter.

13.110.070 Waiver.

A. By entering into a Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, Tenants do not waive any
rights under this Chapter.

B. Any agreement by a Tenant to waive any rights under this ordinance shall be void
and contrary to public policy.

13.110.080 Remedies
A. In the event of a violation of this Ordinance, any person or entity aggrieved by the

violation may institute a civil proceeding for injunctive relief, and money actual damages
as specified below, and whatever other relief the court deems appropriate.

1. An award of actual damages may include an award for mental and/or emotional distress
and/or suffering. The amount of actual damages awarded to a prevailing plaintiff shall be
trebled by the Court outside of the presence, and without the knowledge of, the jury, if
any, if a defendant acted in knowing violation of, or in reckless disregard for, the
provisions of this Chapter.

2. A defendant shall be liable for additional civil penalties of up to five thousand dollars
for each violation of this Chapter committed against a person who is disabled within the
meaning of California Government Code section 12926, et seq., or aged sixty-five or over.

3. In addition to the above awards of damages in a civil action under this Chapter, a
prevailing plaintiff shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees. A prevailing
defendant in a civil action under this Chapter shall only be entitled to an award of

Page 7 Page 271



Page 10 of 40

attorney’s fees if it is determined by the Court the action was wholly without merit or
frivolous.

4. In addition, this Chapter grants a complete defense to eviction in the event that an
eviction notice or unlawful detainer action is commenced, filed, or served in violation of
this Chapter.

B. The protections provided by this ordinance shall be available to all Residents,
regardless of any agreement wherein a Resident waives or purports to waive their rights
under this Ordinance, with any such agreement deemed void as contrary to public policy.

C. A. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) - (Commercial rent restrictions).

1. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) may be enforced by an administrative fine of up to
$1,000 pursuant to Chapter 1.28. Each day a commercial property landlord demands rent
in excess of the amount permitted pursuant to Section 13.110.020(C) is a separate
violation. The City may also charge the costs of investigating and issuing any notices of
violations, and any hearings or appeals of such notices.

2. The City Attorney may refer those violators of Section 13.110.020(C) to the Alameda
County District Attorney for redress as a violation of Business and Professions Code
section 17200, et seq. or, if granted permission by the District Attorney, may bring an
action pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17200, et seq.

D. Nonexclusive Remedies and Penalties. The remedies provided in this subdivision are
not exclusive, and nothing in this Chapter shall preclude any person from seeking any
other remedies, penalties or procedures provided by law.

13.110.090 Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter, or any
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional
by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity
of the remaining portions or applications of this Chapter. The Council of the City of
Berkeley hereby declares that it would have passed this Chapter and each and every
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, and word not declared invalid or
unconstitutional without regard to whether any other portion of this Chapter or application
thereof would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.

13.110.100 Liberal Construction

The provisions of this Chapter shall be liberally construed so as to fully achieve its
purpose and provide the greatest possible protections to tenants.

Section 2. Effective Date

Page 8 Page 272



Page 11 of 40

This ordinance shall go into effect thirty days from the time of its final passage.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a
newspaper of general circulation.

Page 9 Page 273



Page 12 of 40

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13.110 OF THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE,
THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:
Section 1. The Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 is amended to read as follows:

Chapter 13.110
COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

Sections:

13.110.010 Findings and Purpose
13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct
13.110.030 Definitions

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees
13.110.050 Application

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations
13.110.070 Waiver

13.110.080 Remedies

13.110.090 Severability

13.110.100 Liberal Construction

13.110.010 Findings and Purposes

International, national, state and local health and governmental authorities are responding
to an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus named "SARS-CoV-
2." And the disease it causes has been named "coronavirus disease 2019," abbreviated
COVID-19, ("COVID-19"). In response to this emergency, on March 3, 2020, the City
Manager acting as the Director of Emergency Services declared a local State of
Emergency based on COVID-19 (hereinafter referred to as "the Local Emergency"),
which the City Council subsequently ratified on March 10, 2020. On April 21, 2020, June
16, 2020, July 28, 2020, September 22, 2020, November 17, 2020, December 15, 2020,
February 9, 2021, March 30, 2021, May 25, 2021, July 20, 2021, September 14, 2021,
December 14, 2021, February 8, 2022, March 22, 2022, May 10, 2022, June 28, 2022,
and July 26, 2022 the council ratified an extension of the local state of emergency.through
June-21.-2020. In addition, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency
in California and the President of the United States declared a national state of emergency
on March 13, 2020 regarding the novel coronavirus and COVID-19.

On March 16, 2020, the City of Berkeley Public Health Officer, along with several other
neighboring jurisdictions issued a Shelter in Place Order directing all individuals living in
the City of Berkeley to shelter at their place of residence except that they may leave to

Page 274



Page 13 of 40

provide or receive certain essential services or engage in certain essential activities, and
prohibiting non-essential gatherings and ordering cessation of non-essential travel. On
March 31, 2020 this Shelter in Place Order was extended to May 3, 2020, and restricted
activities further.

Furthermore, on March 16, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-28-20,
specifically authorizing local governments to halt evictions for commercial tenants,
residential tenants, and homeowners who have been affected by COVID-19, emphasizing
that the economic impacts of COVID-19 have been significant and could threaten to
undermine housing security as many people are experiencing material income loss as a
result of business closures, the loss of hours or wages or layoffs related to COVID-19,
hindering their ability to keep up with rents, mortgages and utility bills.

The Order also stated that because homelessness can exacerbate vulnerability to
COVID-19, Californians must take measures to preserve and increase housing security
for Californians to protect public health and specifically stated that local jurisdictions may
take measures to promote housing security beyond what the state law would otherwise
allow.

On April 21, 2020, Alameda County enacted an urgency ordinance prohibiting eviction for
any reason other than withdrawal of rental property under the Ellis Act or court-ordered
eviction for public safety. Although the Alameda County ordinance does not have effect
within the incorporated area of Berkeley, it is desirable to ensure that Berkeley residents
have at least the same level of protection as the residents of unincorporated Alameda
County.

During this State of Emergency, and in the interests of protecting the public health and
preventing transmission of the COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary
displacement and homelessness. It is the intent of this Ordinance to fully implement the
suspension of the statutory bases for eviction for nonpayment of rent and for default in
the payment of a mortgage as authorized by Executive Order N-28-20.

At the same time, the Governor, as well as, the Berkeley Health Officer, and those of
other jurisdictions ordered the closure of businesses, except those deemed essential.
Many businesses, such as restaurants, are open only for take-out or pick up services and
face a critical loss of business.

The City Council is aware that some landlords of commercial properties are seeking
significant rent increases during the period when many commercial tenants are closed or
are experiencing substantial and catastrophic reductions in their business and income.
Such rent increases force tenants who are closed or have substantially reduced revenues
face the choice of accepting a significant rent increase, moving at a time when it is virtually
impossible, or closing altogether. Accepting a rent increase while closed or in a reduced
state of operations means that the commercial tenants face even more debt to the
landlord when the emergency is over, and may face a substantially increased rent when
the tenant returns to normal operations, if ever.

Page 275



Page 14 of 40

Landlords of commercial property that unreasonably increases rents on tenants of
commercial property during the COVID-19 emergency significantly impacts vulnerable
small businesses, nonprofits, and artists who form a large part of the backbone of
Berkeley’'s economy, revenue sources, and employment opportunities These rent
increases are coming at a time when the commercial rents are likely falling due to
business closures and potential loss of businesses at the end of the emergency. Thus,
these rent increases appear as a way of evading the Governors and Berkeley’s
commercial tenant eviction moratorium by forcing tenants to agree to rent increases or
leave. Such conduct constitutes constructive evictions in contravention of the eviction
moratorium. Furthermore, such rent increases may affect businesses providing goods
and essential services, resulting in increases in those costs of essential goods and
services contravening the intent of anti-price gouging laws.

On expiration of leases when the emergency order is in place, unreasonable rent
increases have already forced the closure of businesses and will result in closing of
additional business causing loss of income for the business owners, loss of employment
for the employees and of revenue to the city, and an increase in homelessness. To reduce
the spread of COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary displacement and
homelessness. Because of the emergency restrictions, businesses forced out due to
increased rents will be unable to move to new locations and new businesses will be
unable to open during this emergency period. During a state of emergency cities have
extraordinary powers and jurisdiction to create legislation in order to counteract the effects
of the emergency situation on its people and businesses. Protecting tenants from
excessive rent increases will prevent additional loss of employment and essential
services for Berkeley residents. In order to effectively implement an eviction moratorium,
the City Council finds it imperative to prevent constructive eviction through unreasonable
rent increases.

Accordingly, the City of Berkeley adopts the following amendments to Berkeley Municipal
Code Chapter 13.110.

13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct

A. During the lecal-State—of-EmergeneyCovered Period, no Liandlord or_Lender ether
entity-shall evict or attempt to evict an-occupant Resident of real property, or otherwise
require a Tenant to vacate, unless necessary to stop an imminent threat tofer the health
and safety of residentsother occupants. For purposes of this Ordinance, the basis for an
exception to this Ordinance cannot be the Resident's COVID-19 illness or exposure to
COVID-19, whether actual or suspected.

B. Residential Eviction Moratorium. It shall be a complete defense to any action for
unlawful detainer that the notice upon which the action is based was served or expired,

or that the complaint was filed or served, during the lecal-State-of EmergencyCovered
Period.

Page 276



Page 15 of 40

C. No landlord of an Impacted Business or Nonprofit may upon expiration of a lease
increase rent for an Impacted Business or Nonprofit in an amount greater than ten (10)
percent over the rent in effect at the commencement of the local state-ef-emergency
declared by the Director of Emergency Services. For purposes of this section, rent means
all consideration for the use and enjoyment of the rented premises, including base rent
and any additional rent or other charges for costs such as utilities, maintenance, cleaning,
trash removal, repairs and any other charges to the tenant required under the rental
agreement. This section 13.110.020 C. shall expire on May 31, 2020, concurrent with
Executive Order N-28-20; provided, however, that this section shall be automatically
extended if Executive Order N-28-20 is extended or the tenant protections therein are
extended pursuant to another Governor's Executive Order.

D. For the duration of the lecal-State-of EmergencyCovered Period, if a tenant has a
Covered reason for delayed payment, the tenant may terminate a lease or rental
agreement with 30 days 'notice without penalty. A tenant may also exercise rights under
this subsection if the tenants or roommates of the tenants are or were registered at an
educational institution that cancelled or limited in-person classes due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

13.110.030 Definitions

A. “Covered Period” means the period of time beginning with March 17, 2020 and
concluding upon the expiration of the local emergency. However, the City Council may
vote by resolution to extend the duration of the Covered Period.

B. "Covered Reason for Delayed Payment" means:

(1)  the basis for the eviction is nonpayment of rent, arising out of a material decrease
in household, business, or other rental unit occupant(s)’'s income (including, but not
limited to, a material decrease in household income caused by layoffs or a reduction in
the number of compensable hours of work, or to caregiving responsibilities, or a material
decrease in business income caused by a reduction in opening hours or consumer
demand), or material out-of-pocket medical expenses, or;- a reduction in the number of
tenants living in the unit (including due to difficulty finding new tenants and/or subtenants

willing and able to cover a suff|C|ent share of rent) m—a—g;eup—lwng—a#engeme#ﬂ—whe#an

m—the—number—ef—tenan%s—#wng—m—the—um WhICh reduces the ability of the remalnlng

tenants to pay the rent, or a rent increase that exceeds the Annual General Adjustment
for the current year; and

(2)  The decrease in household, business, or other rental unit occupant’s income or
the expenses or reduction in number of tenants described in subparagraph (1) was
caused by the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, or by any local, state, or federal
government response to COVID-19.

Page 277



Page 16 of 40

CB.“Delayed Rent Payment Agreement” means a mutual agreement between a landlord
and tenant regarding the timing and amount of payments for rent that is delayed by a
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

D. “Homeowner” means the owner or owners of a Residential Unit subject to a mortgage
or similar loan secured by the residential unit. “Homeowner” is limited to owners who
reside in the unit and includes the individuals residing in the unit with the homeowner.

EC. “Impacted Business or Nonprofit” means a business or nonprofit organization that
had a business license in 2019 or 2020 in the City of Berkeley or is a registered nonprofit
in either or both of those years and:
1. whose operation has been shut down due to the COVID-19 emergency, or
2. that is unable to accept customers at its location and is open for limited virtual,
take-out or pickup services only, or
3. who suffered a material loss of income.

FD. "Landlord" includes owners, lessors, or sublessors of either residential or commercial
rental property, and the agent, representative, or successor of any of the foregoing.

G. “Lender’” means the mortgagee of a purchase money or similar mortgage, or the holder
or beneficiary of a loan secured by one or more units, which person has the right to
mortgage or similar payments from the owner as mortgagor, including a loan servicer,
and the agent, representative, or successor of any of the foregoing.

H. “Resident” means a Tenant, Homeowner, or their household.

IE. "Tenant" includes a tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, or any other person entitled
by written or oral rental agreement to use or occupancy of either residential or commercial
property.

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees

A. Nothing in this Chapter shall relieve the tenant of liability for unpaid rent, which the
landlord may seek after expiration of the local State of Emergency. Notwithstanding any
lease provision to the contrary, a landlord may not charge or collect a late fee, fine, or
interest for rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment. The City will
develop standards or guidelines for tenants to repay unpaid rent accrued during the
Covered Period course of the local State of Emergency. Landlords are encouraged to

work with local agencies that will be making rental assistance available for qualifying
tenants.

Page 278



Page 17 of 40

1. For rent accrued throuqh Januarv 31, 2021 Tenants shall have unt|I March 31, 2022,

or the date adopted by state law, as applicable, to pay rent that was delayed by a Covered
Reason for Delayed Payment unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual repayment
agreement ("Delayed Rent Payment Agreement").

2. For rent accrued beginning February 1, 2021, Tenants shall have until twenty-four (24)
months after the conclusion of the Covered Period to pay rent that was delayed by a
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment, or the period of time adopted by state law, as
applicable, unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual repayment agreement
("Delayed Rent Payment Agreement").

C. ATenantis not required to provide documentation to the Landlord in advance to qualify
for the delayed repayment of rent-ever-the-42-months. However, upon the request of a
Landlord, a Tenant shall provide such documentation to the Landlord within forty-five (45)
days after the request or within thirty (30) days after the local-State—of Emergency-is
endedCovered Period, whichever is later. In the case of nonpayment of rent, the failure
of a Tenant to notify the landlord in advance of being delinquent in the payment of rent
prior to being served with a notice pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(2)
et seq. does not waive the Tenant's right to claim this Chapter as a complete defense to
nonpayment of rent in an unlawful detainer action.

D. Any medical or financial information provided to the landlord shall be held in
confidence, and shall not be disclosed to other entities unless such disclosure is permitted
or required by the law, or unless the tenant authorizes the disclosure of the information in
writing.

E. Any relief from the City of Berkeley either directly to a property owner on their own
application or as a pass through for City relief payments to the tenant shall directly reduce
the amount of any rent that was delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.
This requirement shall be applied into any Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, regardless
of the terms of that agreement.

13.110.050 Application

A. This Chapter applies to eviction notices and unlawful detainer actions based on notices
served, filed, or which expire en-or-afterthe-effective-date-of this Chapterthrough-the-end
ef—the—leeat—Stateef—Emergeneydunnq the Covered Perlod It does not apply te—\wthelrawat

(—Euls—Aet—)—commermaI leases where the term has explred and the City has |ssued a
permit for the demolition or substantial alteration of the commercial unit, or to units
ordered by the City to be vacated for the preservation of public health, including where
the City deems necessary to control the spread of COVID-19.

Page 279



Page 18 of 40

B. Except where expressly required by state law (such as Assembly Bill 3088 or any

subsequent statewide COVID-19 relief legislation)With—respect—to—delayed—payment

covered-by-this-Ordinance, a landlord may seek such rent after the expiration of the local
State of Emergency, pursuant to Section 13.110.040, but may not file an action pursuant

to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(2) et seq. or otherwise seek to recover
posseSS|on of a rental unit based on the failure to pay rent that accrued due to a Covered
, O yduring the
Covered Perlod In any actlon to evict based on aIIeged nonpayment of rent, it shall be a
complete defense to such action if any part of the rent in dispute accrued at any time
during the Covered Period, or if the action otherwise demands any fees or amounts
contrary to the provisions of this Chapter. A landlord shall not apply any rent payment
towards rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment before applying

it towards any other Rent owed W|thout the epr|C|t written perm|33|on of the Tenant.from

C. A Landlord or Lender shall not retaliate against a Tenant for exercising their rights
under this Ordinance, including but not limited to shutting off any utilities reducing services
or amenities, refusing to make or delaying repairs to which the Tenant would otherwise
be entitled:, or taking actions which hurt the Resident’'s credit rating based on non-
payment of rent during the Covered Period as allowed under this ordinance.

D. In addition to the affirmative defenses set forth above, in any action to recover
possession of a rental unit filed under Berkeley Municipal Code section 13.76.130(A)(1),
it shall be a complete defense that the landlord impeded the tenant's effort to pay rent by
refusing to accept rent paid on behalf of the tenant from a third party, or refusing to provide
a W-9 form or other necessary documentation for the tenant to receive rental assistance
from a government agency, non-profit organization, or other third party. Acceptance of
rental payments made on behalf of the tenant by a third party shall not create a tenancy
between the landlord and the third party.

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations

The City Manager may promulgate implementing regulations and develop forms to
effectuate this Ordinance. This includes the option of requiring Landlords and Lenders to
give a notice to Residents informing them of this Chapter and the right to seek the benefits
of this Chapter.

13.110.070 Waiver.

A. By entering into a Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, Tenants do not waive any
rights under this Chapter.

B. Any agreement by a Tenant to waive any rights under this ordinance shall be void
and contrary to public policy.

13.110.080 Remedies

Page 280



Page 19 of 40

A. In the event of a violation of this Ordinance, any person or entity aggrieved_by the
violation-terant may institute a civil proceeding for injunctive relief, and money actual
damages as specified below, and whatever other relief the court deems appropriate.

1. An award of actual damages may include an award for mental and/or emotional distress

and/or suffering. The amount of actual damages awarded to a prevailing plaintiff shall be
trebled by the Court outside of the presence, and without the knowledge of, the jury, if
any, if a defendant acted in knowing violation of, or in reckless disregard for, the
provisions of this Chapter.

2. A defendant shall be liable for additional civil penalties of up to five thousand dollars
for each violation of this Chapter committed against a person who is disabled within the
meaning of California Government Code section 12926, et seq., or aged sixty-five or over.

3. In addition to the above awards of damages in a civil action under this Chapter, a
prevailing plaintiff shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees. A prevailing
defendant in a civil action under this Chapter shall only be entitled to an award of
attorney’s fees if it is determined by the Court the action was wholly without merit or
frivolous.

4. In addition, this Ordinance-Chapter grants a defense to eviction in the event that an
eviction notice or unlawful detainer action is commenced, filed, or served in violation of
this OrdinanceChapter.

B. The protections provided by this ordinance shall be available to all tenants, regardless
of any agreement wherein a tenant waives or purports to waive their rights under this
Ordinance, with any such agreement deemed void as contrary to public policy.

CA. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) - (Commercial rent restrictions).

1. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) may be enforced by an administrative fine of up to
$1,000 pursuant to Chapter 1.28. Each day a commercial property landlord demands rent
in excess of the amount permitted pursuant to Section 13.110.020(C) is a separate
violation. The City may also charge the costs of investigating and issuing any notices of
violations, and any hearings or appeals of such notices.

Page 281



Page 20 of 40

2.The City Attorney may refer those violators of Section 13.110.020(C) to the Alameda
County District Attorney for redress as a violation of Business and Professions Code
section 17200, et seq. or, if granted permission by the District Attorney, may bring an
action pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17200, et seq.

D. Nonexclusive Remedies and Penalties. The remedies provided in this subdivision are
not exclusive, and nothing in this Chapter shall preclude any person from seeking any
other remedies, penalties or procedures provided by law.

13.110.090 Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter, or any
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional
by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity
of the remaining portions or applications of this Chapter. The Council of the City of
Berkeley hereby declares that it would have passed this Chapter and each and every
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, and word not declared invalid or
unconstitutional without regard to whether any other portion of this Chapter or application
thereof would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.

13.110.100 Liberal Construction

The provisions of this Chapter shall be liberally construed so as to fully achieve its
purpose and provide the greatest possible protections to tenants.

Section 2. Effective Date

This ordinance shall go into effect thirty days from the time of its final passage.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the

display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall
be filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in
a newspaper of general circulation.

Page 282



FRegpe 21 off D 18
([ CITY 2F

CONSENT CALENDAR
May 11, 2021

>
=]
=
f
L.

OFfiCE OF THE MAYOR

TO: Members of the City Council
FROM: Mayor Jesse Arreguin

SUBJECT: Amending COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance Relating to
Commercial Leases

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt an urgency ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code Section 13.110.050
(COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance) to exempt from the provisions of the
ordinance commercial leases where the lease term has expired and the City has issued
a permit for the demolition or substantial alternation of the commercial unit. The
proposed ordinance change reads as follows:

13.110.050 Application

A. This Chapter applies to eviction notices and unlawful detainer actions based
on notices served or filed or which expire on or after the effective date of this
Chapter through the end of the local State of Emergency. It does not apply to
withdrawal of accommodations from the rental market pursuant to Government
Code 7060 et seq. ("Ellis Act"), commercial leases where the term has expired
and the City has issued a permit for the demolition or substantial alteration of the
commercial unit, or to units ordered by the City to be vacated for the preservation
of public health, including where the City deems necessary to control the spread
of COVID-19.

BACKGROUND

The City of Berkeley declared a local State of Emergency on March 3, 2020 in response
to the COVID-19 pandemic, first detected globally in late December 2019. Shortly
thereafter, Council passed BMC 13.110 - the COVID-19 Emergency Response
Ordinance - prohibiting most evictions in Berkeley, which has been subsequently
updated over the past year. Despite recent data showing a decline in new cases in the
Bay Area and progress in the distribution and administration of vaccines, the threat of
another wave of infections remains, and cases in other regions continue to rise. There is
currently no timeline as to when the local State of Emergency will end, and even when
the health crisis is no longer a significant threat to the community, the economic
ramifications of COVID-19 will be felt for some time in the future.

Page 283


http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=7060
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
18


Rayppe 22 off D

The current COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance provides a critical lifeline to
residential and commercial tenants who have faced financial difficulties as a result of
the pandemic. This item makes a very narrow amendment to the ordinance exempting
from its provisions a lease termination for a commercial tenant whose lease term has
expired and where the City has already approved a permit for demolition or substantial
alteration of the unit.

While the City does not want to create an incentive to evict existing commercial tenants.
However in limited cases where the lease has already expired and there has been an
approved project, the City should enable those housing and mixed-use projects to
proceed. Berkeley faces a critical shortage of housing, particularly for low, very-low and
extremely-low income households. It was never the intent of the Council to prohibit
already entitled projects, where the lease has expired to be stalled due to the
commercial eviction moratorium.

This is necessary to move forward with existing approved developments that are
needed to address the housing affordability crisis and meet the quota of new units as
prescribed in the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA). Without an end date for
when the local State of Emergency will be lifted, clarity in the ordinance language is
needed to allow property owners who have already entitled projects to proceed with
building needed housing.

CONTACT
Mayor Jesse Arreguin

mayor@cityofberkeley.info | 510-981-7100

Attachments:
1. Urgency Ordinance

Page 284



Reayppe 233 off 1D

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY
AMENDING THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE; DECLARING
THE URGENCY THEREOF; AND DECLARING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL
TAKE EFFECT IMMEDIATELY.

BE IT ORDAINED By the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. That Chapter 13.110 of the Berkeley Municipal Code is hereby amended to
read as follows:

Chapter 13.110

COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE
Sections:

13.110.010 Findings and Purpose.

13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct.

13.110.030 Definitions.

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees.
13.110.050 Application.

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations.

13.110.070 Waiver.

13.110.080 Remedies.

13.110.090 Severability.

13.110.010 Findings and Purpose.

International, national, state and local health and governmental authorities are
responding to an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus named
"SARS-CoV-2." And the disease it causes has been named "coronavirus disease 2019,"
abbreviated COVID-19, ("COVID-19"). In response to this emergency, on March 3,
2020, the City Manager acting as the Director of Emergency Services declared a local
State of Emergency based on COVID-19 (hereinafter referred to as "the State of
Emergency"), which the City Council subsequently ratified on March 10, 2020. On April
21, 2020, the council ratified an extension of the local state of emergency through June
21, 2020. In addition, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency in
California and the President of the United States declared a national state of emergency
on March 13, 2020 regarding the novel coronavirus and COVID-19.

Page 285



Rayppe 20 of f 1D

On March 16, 2020, the City of Berkeley Public Health Officer, along with several other
neighboring jurisdictions issued a Shelter in Place Order directing all individuals living in
the City of Berkeley to shelter at their place of residence except that they may leave to
provide or receive certain essential services or engage in certain essential activities,
and prohibiting non-essential gatherings and ordering cessation of non-essential travel.
On March 31, this Shelter in Place Order was extended to May 3, 2020, and restricted
activities further.

Furthermore, on March 16, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-28-20,
specifically authorizing local governments to halt evictions for commercial tenants,
residential tenants, and homeowners who have been affected by COVID-19,
emphasizing that the economic impacts of COVID-19 have been significant and could
threaten to undermine housing security as many people are experiencing material
income loss as a result of business closures, the loss of hours or wages or layoffs
related to COVID-19, hindering their ability to keep up with rents, mortgages and utility
bills.

The Order also stated that because homelessness can exacerbate vulnerability to
COVID-19, Californians must take measures to preserve and increase housing security
for Californians to protect public health and specifically stated that local jurisdictions
may take measures to promote housing security beyond what the state law would
otherwise allow.

On April 6, 2020, the Judicial Council of California issued emergency rules suspending
court proceedings for unlawful detainer and judicial foreclosures until 90 days after the
Governor declares that the state of emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic is
lifted.

On April 21, 2020, Alameda County enacted an urgency ordinance prohibiting eviction
for any reason other than withdrawal of rental property under the Ellis Act or court-
ordered eviction for public safety. Although the Alameda County ordinance does not
have effect within the incorporated area of Berkeley, it is desirable to ensure that
Berkeley residents have the same level of protection as the residents of unincorporated
Alameda County.

Page 286



Rayppe 25 off D

During this State of Emergency, and in the interests of protecting the public health and
preventing transmission of the COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary
displacement and homelessness. It is the intent of this Ordinance to fully implement the
suspension of the statutory bases for eviction for nonpayment of rent and for default in
the payment of a mortgage as authorized by Executive Order N-28-20.

At the same time, the Governor, as well as, the Berkeley Health Officer, and those of
other jurisdictions ordered the closure of businesses, except those deemed essential.
Many businesses, such as restaurants, are open only for take-out or pick up services
and face a critical loss of business.

The City Council is aware that some landlords of commercial properties are seeking
significant rent increases during the period when many commercial tenants are closed
or are experiencing substantial and catastrophic reductions in their business and
income. Such rent increases force tenants who are closed or have substantially reduced
revenues face the choice of accepting a significant rent increase, moving at a time when
it is virtually impossible, or closing altogether. Accepting a rent increase while closed or
in a reduced state of operations means that the commercial tenants face even more
debt to the landlord when the emergency is over, and may face a substantially
increased rent when the tenant returns to normal operations, if ever.

Landlords of commercial property that unreasonably increases rents on tenants of
commercial property during the COVID-19 emergency significantly impacts vulnerable
small businesses, nonprofits, and artists who form a large part of the backbone of
Berkeley’s economy, revenue sources, and employment opportunities. These rent
increases are coming at a time when the commercial rents are likely falling due to
business closures and potential loss of businesses at the end of the emergency. Thus,
these rent increases appear as a way of evading the Governor’s and Berkeley’s
commercial tenant eviction moratorium by forcing tenants to agree to rent increases or
leave. Such conduct constitutes constructive evictions in contravention of the eviction
moratorium. Furthermore, such rent increases may affect businesses providing goods
and essential services, resulting in increases in those costs of essential goods and
services contravening the intent of anti-price gouging laws.

Page 287



FReppe 26 of f YD

On expiration of leases when the emergency order is in place, unreasonable rent
increases have already forced the closure of businesses and will result in closing of
additional business causing loss of income for the business owners, loss of employment
for the employees and of revenue to the city, and an increase in homelessness. To
reduce the spread of COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary displacement and
homelessness. Because of the emergency restrictions, businesses forced out due to
increased rents will be unable to move to new locations and new businesses will be
unable to open during this emergency period. During a state of emergency cities have
extraordinary powers and jurisdiction to create legislation in order to counteract the
effects of the emergency situation on its people and businesses. Protecting tenants
from excessive rent increases will prevent additional loss of employment and essential
services for Berkeley residents. In order to effectively implement an eviction
moratorium, the City Council finds it imperative to prevent constructive eviction through
unreasonable rent increases.

Accordingly, the City of Berkeley adopts the following amendments to Berkeley
Municipal Code Chapter 13.110. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1
(part), 2020: Ord. 7693-NS § 1 (part), 2020)

13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct.

A. During the local State of Emergency, no landlord or other entity shall evict or
attempt to evict an occupant of real property unless necessary for the health and safety
of residents. For purposes of this Ordinance, the basis for an exception to this
Ordinance cannot be the Resident’'s COVID-19 illness or exposure to COVID-19,
whether actual or suspected.

B. Residential Eviction Moratorium. It shall be a complete defense to any action for
unlawful detainer that the notice upon which the action is based was served or expired,
or that the complaint was filed or served during the local State of Emergency.

C. No landlord of an Impacted Business or Nonprofit may upon expiration of a lease
increase rent for an Impacted Business or Nonprofit in an amount greater than ten (10)
percent over the rent in effect at the commencement of the local state of emergency
declared by the Director of Emergency Services. For purposes of this section, rent

Page 288



RReayppe 277 of f D

means all consideration for the use and enjoyment of the rented premises, including
base rent and any additional rent or other charges for costs such as utilities,
maintenance, cleaning, trash removal, repairs and any other charges to the tenant
required under the rental agreement. This section 13.110.020 C. shall expire on May
31, 2020, concurrent with Executive Order N-28-20; provided, however, that this section
shall be automatically extended if Executive Order N-28-20 is extended or the tenant
protections therein are extended pursuant to another Governor’s Executive Order.

D. For the duration of the local State of Emergency, if a tenant has a Covered reason
for delayed payment the tenant may terminate a lease or rental agreement with 30 days’
notice without penalty. A tenant may also exercise rights under this subsection if the
tenants or roommates of the tenants are or were registered at an educational institution
that cancelled or limited in-person classes due to the COVID-19 pandemic. (Ord. 7720-
NS § 1, 2020: Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7693-

NS § 1 (part), 2020)
13.110.030 Definitions.
A. "Covered Reason for Delayed Payment" means:

(1) the basis for the eviction is nonpayment of rent, arising out of a material decrease
in household, business, or other rental unit occupants’ income (including, but not limited
to, a material decrease in household income caused by layoffs or a reduction in the
number of compensable hours of work, or to caregiving responsibilities, or a material
decrease in business income caused by a reduction in opening hours or consumer
demand), or material out-of-pocket medical expenses, or, in a group living arrangement
wherein all tenants are collectively responsible for payment of the rent to the landlord, a
reduction in the number of tenants living in the unit which reduces the ability of the
remaining tenants to pay the rent, or a rent increase that exceeds the Annual General
Adjustment for the current year; and

(2) the decrease in household, business, or other rental unit occupant’s income or the
expenses or reduction in number of tenants described in subparagraph (1) was caused
by the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, or by any local, state, or federal government
response to COVID-19.

Page 289



FReayppe 28 of f 1D

B. "Delayed Rent Payment Agreement" means a mutual agreement between a
landlord and tenant regarding the timing and amount of payments for rent that is
delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

C. "Impacted Business or Nonprofit" means a business or nonprofit organization that
had a business license in 2019 or 2020 in the City of Berkeley or is a registered non-
profit in either or both of those years and:

1. whose operation has been shut down due to the COVID-19 emergency, or

2. thatis unable to accept customers at its location and is open for limited virtual,
take-out or pickup services only, or

3. who suffered a material loss of income.

D. "Landlord" includes owners, lessors, or sublessors of either residential or
commercial rental property, and the agent, representative, or successor of any of the
foregoing.

E "Tenant" includes a tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, or any other person
entitled by written or oral rental agreement to use or occupancy of either residential or
commercial property. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020:
Ord. 7693-NS § 1 (part), 2020)

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees.

A. Nothing in this Chapter shall relieve the tenant of liability for unpaid rent, which the
landlord may seek after expiration of the local State of Emergency. The City will develop
standards or guidelines for tenants to repay unpaid rent accrued during the course of
the local State of Emergency. Landlords are encouraged to work with local agencies
that will be making rental assistance available for qualifying tenants.

B. Tenants shall have up to twelve (12) months to pay rent that was delayed by a
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual
repayment agreement "Delayed Rent Payment Agreement"). Notwithstanding any lease
provision to the contrary, a landlord may not charge or collect a late fee, fine, or interest
for rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

Page 290



FReape ZD of f 1D

C. ATenantis not required to provide documentation to the Landlord in advance to
qualify for the repayment of rent over the 12 months. However, upon the request of a
Landlord, a Tenant shall provide such documentation to the Landlord within forty-five
(45) days after the request or within thirty (30) days after the local State of Emergency is
ended, whichever is later. In the case of nonpayment of rent, the failure of a Tenant to
notify the landlord in advance of being delinquent in the payment of rent prior to being
served with a notice pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1161(2) does not
waive the Tenant’s right to claim this Chapter as a complete defense to nonpayment of
rent in an unlawful detainer action.

D. Any medical or financial information provided to the landlord shall be held in
confidence, and shall not be disclosed to other entities unless such disclosure is
permitted or required by the law, or unless the tenant authorizes the disclosure of the
information in writing.

E. Any relief from the City of Berkeley either directly to a property owner on their own
application or as a pass through for City relief payments to the tenant shall directly
reduce the amount of any rent that was delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed
Payment. This requirement shall be applied into any Delayed Rent Payment
Agreement, regardless of the terms of that agreement. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020:
Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7693-NS § 1 (part), 2020)

13.110.050 Application.

A. This Chapter applies to eviction notices and unlawful detainer actions based on
notices served or filed or which expire on or after the effective date of this Chapter
through the end of the local State of Emergency. It does not apply to withdrawal of
accommodations from the rental market pursuant to Government Code 7060 et seq.
("Ellis Act"), commercial leases where the term has expired and the City has issued a

permit for the demolition or substantial alteration of the commercial unit, or to units

ordered by the City to be vacated for the preservation of public health, including where
the City deems necessary to control the spread of COVID-19.

B. With respect to delayed payment covered by this Ordinance, a landlord may seek
such rent after the expiration of the local State of Emergency, pursuant to Section

Page 291



Page 30 of 402

13.110.040, but may not file an action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections
1161(2) et seq. or otherwise seek to recover possession of a rental unit based on the
failure to pay rent that accrued due to a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment during
the term of the local State of Emergency. In any action to evict based on alleged non-
payment of rent, it shall be a complete defense to such action if any part of the rent in
dispute accrued at any time from the effective date of this Chapter to the expiration of
the local State of Emergency and there exists a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

C. A Landlord shall not retaliate against a Tenant for exercising their rights under this
Ordinance, including but not limited to shutting off any utilities or reducing services or
amenities to which the Tenant would otherwise be entitled.

D In addition to the affirmative defenses set forth above, in any action to recover
possession of a rental unit filed under Berkeley Municipal Code section 13.76.130(A)(1),
it shall be a complete defense that the landlord impeded the tenant’s effort to pay rent
by refusing to accept rent paid on behalf of the tenant from a third party, or refusing to
provide a W-9 form or other necessary documentation for the tenant to receive rental
assistance from a government agency, non-profit organization, or other third party.
Acceptance of rental payments made on behalf of the tenant by a third party shall not
create a tenancy between the landlord and the third party. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part),
2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7693-NS § 1 (part), 2020)

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations.

The City Manager may promulgate implementing regulations and develop forms to
effectuate this Ordinance. This includes the option of requiring landlords to give a notice
to Tenants informing them of this Chapter and the right to seek the benefits of this
Chapter. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7693-NS
§ 1 (part), 2020)

13.110.070 Waiver.

A. By entering into a Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, Tenants do not waive any
rights under this Chapter.

Page 292



Page 31 of 402

B. Any agreement by a Tenant to waive any rights under this ordinance shall be void
and contrary to public policy. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part),
2020: Ord. 7693-NS § 1 (part), 2020)

13.110.080 Remedies.

In the event of a violation of this Ordinance, an aggrieved tenant may institute a civil
proceeding for injunctive relief, and money actual damages as specified below, and
whatever other relief the court deems appropriate. Money damages shall only be
awarded if the trier of fact finds that the landlord acted in knowing violation of or in
reckless disregard of this Ordinance. The prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable
attorney’and costs pursuant to order of the court. The remedy available under this
section shall be in addition to any other existing remedies which may be available to the
tenant under local, state or federal law. In addition, this Ordinance grants a defense to
eviction in the event that an unlawful detainer action is commenced in violation of this

Ordinance.

The protections provided by this ordinance shall be available to all tenants, regardless
of any agreement wherein a tenant waives or purports to waive their rights under this
Ordinance, with any such agreement deemed void as contrary to public policy.

A. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) - (Commercial rent restrictions:).

1. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) may be enforced by an administrative fine of up
to $1,000 pursuant to Chapter 1.28. Each day a commercial property landlord demands

rent in excess of the amount permitted pursuant to Section 13.110.020(C) is a separate

violation. The City may also charge the costs of investigating and issuing any notices of

violations, and any hearings or appeals of such notices.

2. The City Attorney may refer those in violators of Section 13.110.020(C) to the
Alameda County District Attorney for redress as a violation of Business and Professions
Code section 17200, et seq. or, if granted permission by the District Attorney, may bring
an action pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17200, et seq. (Ord.
7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7693-NS § 1 (part),
2020)

Page 293



Page 32 of 402

13.110.090 Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter, or any
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or
unconstitutional by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall
not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Chapter. The
Council of the City of Berkeley hereby declares that it would have passed this Chapter
and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, and word not
declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any other portion of this
Chapter or application thereof would be subsequently declared invalid or
unconstitutional. (Ord. 7704-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord. 7698-NS § 1 (part), 2020: Ord.
7693-NS § 1 (part), 2020)

Section 2. Vote Required, Immediately Effective

Based upon the findings in Section 13.110.010 of this Ordinance, the Council
determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
health, peace and safety in accordance with Article XIV Section 93 of the Charter of the
City of Berkeley and must therefore go into effect immediately. This Ordinance shall go
into effect immediately upon a seven-ninths vote of the City Council, in satisfaction of
the Charter of the City of Berkeley.

Page 294



Page 33 of 40

ORDINANCE NO. -N.S.

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13.110 OF THE BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE, THE
COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. The Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 is amended to read as follows:

Chapter 13.110
COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

Sections:

13.110.010 Findings and Purpose
13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct
13.110.030 Definitions

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees
13.110.050 Application

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations
13.110.070 Waiver

13.110.080 Remedies

13.110.090 Severability

13.110.100 Liberal Construction
13.110.010 Findings and Purposes

International, national, state and local health and governmental authorities are responding to an
outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus named "SARS-CoV-2." And the
disease it causes has been named "coronavirus disease 2019," abbreviated COVID-19,
("COVID-19"). In response to this emergency, on March 3, 2020, the City Manager acting as the
Director of Emergency Services declared a local State of Emergency based on COVID-19
(hereinafter referred to as "the State-ef-Local Emergency"), which the City Council subsequently
ratified on March 10, 2020. On April 21, 2020, June 16, 2020, July 28, 2020, September 22,
2020, and November 17, 2020, the council ratified an extension of the local state-ef-emergency.
In addition, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency in California and the
President of the United States declared a national state of emergency on March 13, 2020
regarding the novel coronavirus and COVID-19.

On March 16, 2020, the City of Berkeley Public Health Officer, along with several other
neighboring jurisdictions issued a Shelter in Place Order directing all individuals living in the City
of Berkeley to shelter at their place of residence except that they may leave to provide or
receive certain essential services or engage in certain essential activities, and prohibiting non-
essential gatherings and ordering cessation of non-essential travel. On March 31, 2020 this
Shelter in Place Order was extended to May 3, 2020, and restricted activities further.

Furthermore, on March 16, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-28-20, specifically
authorizing local governments to halt evictions for commercial tenants, residential tenants, and
homeowners who have been affected by COVID-19, emphasizing that the economic impacts of
COVID-19 have been significant and could threaten to undermine housing security as many

Page 295



Page 34 of 40

people are experiencing material income loss as a result of business closures, the loss of hours
or wages or layoffs related to COVID-19, hindering their ability to keep up with rents, mortgages
and utility bills.

The Order also stated that because homelessness can exacerbate vulnerability to COVID-19,
Californians must take measures to preserve and increase housing security for Californians to
protect public health and specifically stated that local jurisdictions may take measures to
promote housing security beyond what the state law would otherwise allow.

On April 21, 2020, Alameda County enacted an urgency ordinance prohibiting eviction for any
reason other than withdrawal of rental property under the Ellis Act or court-ordered eviction for
public safety. Although the Alameda County ordinance does not have effect within the
incorporated area of Berkeley, it is desirable to ensure that Berkeley residents have at least the
same level of protection as the residents of unincorporated Alameda County.

During this State of Emergency, and in the interests of protecting the public health and
preventing transmission of the COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary displacement and
homelessness. It is the intent of this Ordinance to fully implement the suspension of the
statutory bases for eviction for nonpayment of rent and for default in the payment of a mortgage
as authorized by Executive Order N-28-20.

At the same time, the Governor, as well as, the Berkeley Health Officer, and those of other
jurisdictions ordered the closure of businesses, except those deemed essential. Many
businesses, such as restaurants, are open only for take-out or pick up services and face a
critical loss of business.

The City Council is aware that some landlords of commercial properties are seeking significant
rent increases during the period when many commercial tenants are closed or are experiencing
substantial and catastrophic reductions in their business and income. Such rent increases force
tenants who are closed or have substantially reduced revenues face the choice of accepting a
significant rent increase, moving at a time when it is virtually impossible, or closing altogether.
Accepting a rent increase while closed or in a reduced state of operations means that the
commercial tenants face even more debt to the landlord when the emergency is over, and may
face a substantially increased rent when the tenant returns to normal operations, if ever.

Landlords of commercial property that unreasonably increases rents on tenants of commercial
property during the COVID-19 emergency significantly impacts vulnerable small businesses,

nonprofits, and artists who form a large part of the backbone of Berkeley’s economy, revenue

sources, and employment opportunities These rent increases are coming at a time when the
commercial rents are likely falling due to business closures and potential loss of businesses at
the end of the emergency. Thus, these rent increases appear as a way of evading the

Governor’s and Berkeley’s commercial tenant eviction moratorium by forcing tenants to agree to

rent increases or leave. Such conduct constitutes constructive evictions in contravention of the
eviction moratorium. Furthermore, such rent increases may affect businesses providing goods
and essential services, resulting in increases in those costs of essential goods and services
contravening the intent of anti-price gouging laws.

Page 296



Page 35 of 40

On expiration of leases when the emergency order is in place, unreasonable rent increases
have already forced the closure of businesses and will result in closing of additional business
causing loss of income for the business owners, loss of employment for the employees and of
revenue to the city, and an increase in homelessness. To reduce the spread of COVID-19, it is
essential to avoid unnecessary displacement and homelessness. Because of the emergency
restrictions, businesses forced out due to increased rents will be unable to move to new
locations and new businesses will be unable to open during this emergency period. During a
state of emergency cities have extraordinary powers and jurisdiction to create legislation in
order to counteract the effects of the emergency situation on its people and businesses.
Protecting tenants from excessive rent increases will prevent additional loss of employment and
essential services for Berkeley residents. In order to effectively implement an eviction
moratorium, the City Council finds it imperative to prevent constructive eviction through
unreasonable rent increases.

Accordingly, the City of Berkeley adopts the following amendments to Berkeley Municipal Code
Chapter 13.110.

13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct

A. During the Covered Period lecal-State-of-Emergeney, no Landlord or Lender ether-entity-shall
evict or attempt to evict an-Residentoccupant of real property, or otherwise require a Tenant to
vacate, unless necessary to stop an imminent threat to fer-the health and safety of other
occupants residents. For purposes of this Ordinance, the basis for an exception to this

Ordinance cannot be the Resident's COVID-19 iliness or exposure to COVID-19, whether actual
or suspected.

B. Residential Eviction Moratorium. It shall be a complete defense to any action for unlawful
detainer that the notice upon which the action is based was served or expired, or that the

complaint was filed or served, during the Covered Period local-State-of Emergency.

C. No landlord of an Impacted Business or Nonprofit may upon expiration of a lease increase
rent for an Impacted Business or Nonprofit in an amount greater than ten (10) percent over the
rent in effect at the commencement of the local state-ef-emergency declared by the Director of
Emergency Services. For purposes of this section, rent means all consideration for the use and
enjoyment of the rented premises, including base rent and any additional rent or other charges
for costs such as utilities, maintenance, cleaning, trash removal, repairs and any other charges
to the tenant required under the rental agreement. This section 13.110.020 C. shall expire on
May 31, 2020, concurrent with Executive Order N-28-20; provided, however, that this section
shall be automatically extended if Executive Order N-28-20 is extended or the tenant protections

therein are extended pursuant to another Governor’'s Executive Order.

D. For the duration of the Covered Period local-State-of Emergency, if a tenant has a Covered
reason for delayed payment, the tenant may terminate a lease or rental agreement with 30

days ’'notice without penalty. A tenant may also exercise rights under this subsection if the

tenants or roommates of the tenants are or were registered at an educational institution that
cancelled or limited in-person classes due to the COVID-19 pandemic

13.110.030 Definitions

Page 297



Page 36 of 40

A.“Covered Period” means the period of time beginning with March 17, 2020 and concluding

upon the expiration of the local emergency. However, the City Council may vote by resolution
to extend the duration of the Covered Period.

B.A———"Covered Reason for Delayed Payment" means:
(1) The basis for the eviction is nonpayment of rent, arising out of a material decrease in

household, business, or other rental unit occupant(s)’s income (including, but not limited to, a

material decrease in household income caused by layoffs or a reduction in the number of
compensable hours of work, or to caregiving responsibilities, or a material decrease in business
income caused by a reduction in opening hours or consumer demand), or material out-of-pocket

medical expenses, or, in-a-group-living-arrangement-wherein-all-tenants-are-collectively
responsible-forpayment-of-therentto-the-landlord;-a reduction in the number of tenants living in

the unit (including due to difficulty finding new tenants and/or subtenants willing and able to
cover a sufficient share of rent) which reduces the ability of the remaining tenants to pay the
rent, or a rent increase that exceeds the Annual General Adjustment for the current year; and

(2) The decrease in household, business, or other rental unit occupant’s income or the

expenses or reduction in number of tenants described in subparagraph (1) was caused by the
impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, or by any local, state, or federal government response to
COVID-19.

C.B—“Delayed Rent Payment Agreement” means a mutual agreement between a landlord and

tenant regarding the timing and amount of payments for rent that is delayed by a Covered
Reason for Delayed Payment.

D. “Homeowner” means the owner or owners of a Residential Unit subject to a mortgage or
similar loan secured by the residential unit. “Homeowner” is limited to owners who reside in the
unit and includes the individuals residing in the unit with the homeowner.

E.C—*Impacted Business or Nonprofit” means a business or nonprofit organization that had a

business license in 2019 or 2020 in the City of Berkeley or is a registered nonprofit in either or
both of those years and:
1. whose operation has been shut down due to the COVID-19 emergency, or
2. thatis unable to accept customers at its location and is open for limited virtual, take-out
or pickup services only, or
3. who suffered a material loss of income.

F.B-"Landlord" includes owners, lessors, or sublessors of either residential or commercial
rental property, and the agent, representative, or successor of any of the foregoing.

G.“Lender” means the mortgagee of a purchase money or similar mortgage, or the holder or
beneficiary of a loan secured by one or more units, which person has the right to mortgage or
similar payments from the owner as mortgagor, including a loan servicer, and the agent,
representative, or successor of any of the foregoing.

H.“Resident” means a Tenant, Homeowner, or their household.

Page 298



Page 37 of 40

I.E-"Tenant" includes a tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, lodger or any other person
entitled by written or oral rental agreement to use or occupancy of either residential or
commercial property.

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees

A. Nothing in this Chapter shall relieve the tenant of liability for unpaid rent, which the landlord
may seek after expiration of the local State of Emergency. Notwithstanding any lease provision
to the contrary, a landlord may not charge or collect a late fee, fine, or interest for rent that is
delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment. The City will develop standards or
guidelines for tenants to repay unpaid rent accrued during the Covered Period course of the
local State of Emergency. Landlords are encouraged to work with local agencies that will be
making rental assistance available for qualifying tenants.

B.

1.For rent accrued through January 31, 2021, Tenants shall have until March 31, 2022 up-te
twelve-(12)-menthsto pay rent that was delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment
unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual repayment agreement ("Delayed Rent
Payment Agreement").

2.For rent accrued beginning February 1, 2021, Tenants shall have until twenty-four (24)
months after the conclusion of the Covered Period to pay rent that was delayed by a Covered
Reason for Delayed Payment unless the landlord and tenant come to a mutual repayment
agreement ("Delayed Rent Payment Agreement").

3.Notwithstanding any lease provision to the contrary, a landlord may not charge or collect a
late fee, fine, or interest for rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

C. A Tenant is not required to provide documentation to the Landlord in advance to qualify for
the delayed repayment of rent everthe-42-months. However, upon the request of a Landlord, a
Tenant shall provide such documentation to the Landlord within forty-five (45) days after the
request or within thirty (30) days after the Covered Period, whichever is later. A declaration
sworn under penalty of perjury shall constitute documentation for the purpose of this
requirement. In the case of nonpayment of rent, the failure of a Tenant to notify the landlord in
advance of being delinquent in the payment of rent prior to being served with a notice pursuant

to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(2) et seq. does not waive the Tenant’s right to claim
this Chapter as a complete defense to nonpayment of rent in an unlawful detainer action.

D. Any medical or financial information provided to the landlord shall be held in confidence, and
shall not be disclosed to other entities unless such disclosure is permitted or required by the
law, or unless the tenant explicitly authorizes the disclosure of the information in writing.

E. Any relief from the City of Berkeley either directly to a property owner on their own application
or as a pass through for City relief payments to the tenant shall directly reduce the amount of
any rent that was delayed by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment. This requirement shall
be applied into any Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, regardless of the terms of that
agreement.

13.110.050 Application
A: This Chapter applies to eviction notices and unlawful detainer actions based on notices
served, filed, or which expire during the Covered Period en-er-after-the-effective-date-of-this

Chapter through the end of the local State of Emergency. It does not apply to withdrawal-of

Page 299



Page 38 of 40

erto units ordered by the City to be vacated for the preservation of public health, |ncIud|ng
where the City deems necessary to control the spread of COVID-19.

B. Except where expressly required by state law (such as Assembly Bill 3088 or any

subsequent statewide COVID-19 relief legislation) with-respectto-delayed-payment-covered-by
this-Ordinance, a landlord may seek rent accrued during the Covered Period as set forth in after

the-expiration-of-the-local- State-of Emergency,pursuant-to-Section 13.110.040, but may not file
an action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(2) et seq. or otherwise seek to
recover possession of a rental unit based on the failure to pay rent that accrued due-to-a
Covered-Reason-forDelayed-Payment-during the Covered Periodlocal State-ofEmergeney. In
any action to evict based on alleged nonpayment of rent, it shall be a complete defense to such
action if any part of the rent in dispute accrued at any time during the Covered Period, or if the
action otherwise demands any fees or amounts contrary to the provisions of this Chapter. A
landlord shall not apply any rent payment towards rent that is delayed by a Covered Reason for
Delayed Payment before applying it towards any other Rent owed without the explicit written
permission of the Tenant.

C. A Landlord or Lender shall not retaliate against a FerantResident for exercising their rights
under this Ordinance, including but not limited to shutting off any utilities, erreducing services or
amenities, refusing to make or delaying repairs to which the TenantResident would otherwise be
entitled

D. In addition to the affirmative defenses set forth above, in any action to recover possession of
a rental unit filed under Berkeley Municipal Code section 13.76.130(A)(1), it shall be a complete

defense that the landlord impeded the tenant’s effort to pay rent by refusing to accept rent paid

on behalf of the tenant from a third party, or refusing to provide a W-9 form or other necessary
documentation for the tenant to receive rental assistance from a government agency, non-profit
organization, or other third party. Acceptance of rental payments made on behalf of the tenant
by a third party shall not create a tenancy between the landlord and the third party.

13.110.060____Implementing Regulations

The City Manager may promulgate implementing regulations and develop forms to effectuate
this Ordinance. This includes the option of requiring Landlords and Lenders to give a notice to
FenantsResidents informing them of this Chapter and the right to seek the benefits of this
Chapter.

13.110.070 Waiver.

A. By entering into a Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, Tenants do not waive any rights
under this Chapter.

B. Any agreement by a Tenant to waive any rights under this ordinance shall be void and
contrary to public policy.

13.110.080 Remedies
A.In the event of a violation of this Ordinance, any person or entity aggrieved by the violation

may institute a civil proceeding for injunctive relief, and money actual damages as specified
below, and Whatever other relief the court deems approprlate Meney—damages—shalrl—eﬂly-be

Page 300



[

|

|~

Page 39 of 40

. An award of actual damages may include an award for mental and/or emotional distress

and/or suffering. The amount of actual damages awarded to a prevailing plaintiff shall be
trebled by the Court outside of the presence, and without the knowledge of, the jury, if any, if a
defendant acted in knowing violation of, or in reckless disregard for, the provisions of this

Chapter.

A defendant shall be liable for additional civil penalties of up to five thousand dollars for each
violation of this Chapter committed against a person who is disabled within the meaning of
California Government Code section 12926, et seq., or aged sixty-five or over.

In addition to the above awards of damages in a civil action under this Chapter, a prevailing
plaintiff shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees. A prevailing defendant in
a civil action under this Chapter shall only be entitled to an award of attorney’s fees if it is
determined by the Court the action was wholly without merit or frivolous.

In addition, this Chapter grants a complete defense to eviction in the event that an eviction
notice or unlawful detainer action is commenced, filed, or served in violation of this

Chapter.

B.The protections provided by this ordinance shall be available to all , regardless of any
agreement wherein a waives or purports to waive their rights under this Ordinance, with any
such agreement deemed void as contrary to public policy.

C.A. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) - (Commercial rent restrictions).

1. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) may be enforced by an administrative fine of up to
$1,000 pursuant to Chapter 1.28. Each day a commercial property landlord demands rent in
excess of the amount permitted pursuant to Section 13.110.020(C) is a separate violation. The
City may also charge the costs of investigating and issuing any notices of violations, and any
hearings or appeals of such notices.

2. The City Attorney may refer those violators of Section 13.110.020(C) to the Alameda
County District Attorney for redress as a violation of Business and Professions Code section
17200, et seq. or, if granted permission by the District Attorney, may bring an action pursuant
to Business and Professions Code section 17200, et seq.

D.Nonexclusive Remedies and Penalties. The remedies provided in this subdivision are not
exclusive, and nothing in this Chapter shall preclude any person from seeking any other
remedies, penalties or procedures provided by law.

13.110.090 Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter, or any application
thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of a
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions or applications of this Chapter. The Council of the City of Berkeley hereby declares that
it would have passed this Chapter and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause,

Page 301



Page 40 of 40

phrase, and word not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any
other portion of this Chapter or application thereof would be subsequently declared invalid
or unconstitutional.

13.110.100Liberal Construction

The provisions of this Chapter shall be liberally construed so as to fully achieve its purpose
and provide the greatest possible protections to tenants.

Section 2. Effective Date

This ordinance shall go into effect thirty days from the time of its final passage or on February
1, 2021, whichever is later.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the display
case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King
Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each branch of the
Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation.

Page 302



Page 1 of 4
BerkeLEY CiTY COUNCILMEMBER

TERRY TAPIAN

A DISTRICT 2

CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept. 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Taplin

Subject: Resolution in Support of High-Quality, Equitable Healthcare Services at UCSF
Children’s Hospital Oakland

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution in support of patients, nurses, doctors, caregivers and other
employees at UCSF Children’s Hospital Oakland; and send resolution to the UC Board
of Regents, UC Office of the President, and UCSF Health.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

BACKGROUND

Since the 2014 Affiliation Agreement established Children’s Hospital Oakland as a
partnering organization and subsidiary of UCSF, patients' and caregivers? have been
raising alarms? regarding staff burnout and attrition, loss of critical services, and
redirecting East Bay patients from lower-income communities of color to facilities in San
Francisco.

According to a 2020 letter from the California Nurses Association, “UCSF took over the
leadership and control of Children’s Oakland without financial responsibility for the
effects of its decisions,” which resulted in significant losses to “complex cardiovascular
surgery, loss of adolescent medicine, loss of behavior and development specialists, loss
of pulmonologists, loss of pediatric surgeons, lack of MRI capability, loss of
neurooncologists, and loss of sickle cell clinicians and researchers.”

In the letter, CNA made the following requests:

1. Restore high quality, tertiary care for all children at Children’s Hospital Oakland.

"Fernandez, L. & Jarosz, B. (2021). Patients, providers say UCSF affiliation with Children's Hospital
means worse care for East Bay families. KTVU. Retrieved from https://www.ktvu.com/news/patients-
providers-say-ucsf-affiliation-with-childrens-hospital-means-worse-care-for-east-bay-families

2 Krans, B. (2021). Patients, workers maintain Children’s Hospital still suffers under UCSF. Oaklandside.
Retrieved from https://oaklandside.org/2021/12/03/patients-workers-maintain-childrens-hospital-oakland-
still-suffers-under-ucsf/

3 Kassabian, S. (2021). Children’s Hospital Oakland joined UCSF in 2014. Was it a good move?
Oaklandside. Retrieved from https://oaklandside.org/2021/02/25/childrens-hospital-oakland-joined-ucsf-7-
years-ago-was-it-a-good-move/

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7120 o E-Mail: TTaplin@cityofberkeley.info

27

Page 303


https://www.ktvu.com/news/patients-providers-say-ucsf-affiliation-with-childrens-hospital-means-worse-care-for-east-bay-families
https://www.ktvu.com/news/patients-providers-say-ucsf-affiliation-with-childrens-hospital-means-worse-care-for-east-bay-families
https://oaklandside.org/2021/12/03/patients-workers-maintain-childrens-hospital-oakland-still-suffers-under-ucsf/
https://oaklandside.org/2021/12/03/patients-workers-maintain-childrens-hospital-oakland-still-suffers-under-ucsf/
https://oaklandside.org/2021/02/25/childrens-hospital-oakland-joined-ucsf-7-years-ago-was-it-a-good-move/
https://oaklandside.org/2021/02/25/childrens-hospital-oakland-joined-ucsf-7-years-ago-was-it-a-good-move/

Page 2 of 4

Children’s Hospital CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept. 13, 2022

2. Create a Board and Executive Leadership structure at Oakland independent of
UCSF.

3. Create a health care system committed to rooting out structural racism and
correcting the inequities between Oakland and San Francisco.

4. Commit to respecting and retaining nurses, physicians and other health care
workers who have dedicated our careers to care for this community.

This resolution reiterates those requests, and supports a similar resolution issued by the
Oakland City Council in January 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Taplin Council District 2  510-981-5120

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 304



Page 3 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF HIGH-QUALITY, EQUITABLE HEALTHCARE
SERVICES AT CHILDREN’'S HOSPITAL OAKLAND

WHEREAS, the 2014 Affiliation of Children’s Hospital Oakland and Children’s Hospital
Oakland Research Institute with University of California San Francisco (UCSF) was
touted as a collaboration of equals—a public-private partnership strengthening both
hospitals, with Children’s Hospital Oakland retaining its identity and benefiting from
additional financial resources; and

WHEREAS, the 2014 Affiliation of Children’s Hospital Oakland and Children’s Hospital
Oakland Research Institute with University of California San Francisco (UCSF) was
touted as a collaboration of equals—a public-private partnership strengthening both
hospitals, with Children’s Hospital Oakland retaining its identity and benefiting from
additional financial resources; and

WHEREAS, the vast majority of Children's Hospital Oakland patients come from
Alameda, Contra Costa, Solano, and San Joaquin Counties and the patient population
at Children's Hospital Oakland reflects the demographics of the East Bay, including
many immigrants and children from families of color; and

WHEREAS, costs to patients and families have skyrocketed, with devastating economic
impacts often exacerbated by the loss of household income during the recent pandemic;
and

WHEREAS, inpatient and surgical volumes at UCSF Oakland have gone down since
the affiliation, while UCSF Children’s Hospital in San Francisco has increased
significantly; and

WHEREAS, as critical services have been adjusted, many of Children’s Hospital
Oakland’s patients have been forced to travel to San Francisco for services that had been
provided in Oakland for decades; and

WHEREAS, critical services and health care service providers in Oakland, including
complex cardiovascular surgery, adolescent medicine, behavior and development
specialists, pulmonologists, pediatric surgeons, MRI capability, neuro-oncologists, have
been neglected or cut after UCSF took over the leadership and control of Children’s
Hospital Oakland; and

WHEREAS, Children’s Hospital Oakland remains a separate, not-for-profit children’s

hospital lacking true representation in the UC system, and with a separate operating
budget from UCSF; and

Page 305



Page 4 of 4

Children’s Hospital CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept. 13, 2022

WHEREAS, decreases in Oakland patient volume as well as loss of subspeciality
services have decreased revenue for Children’'s Oakland, further limiting staff and
services; and

WHEREAS, loss of radiologists and other subspecialists such as neurologists and
pulmonologists has limited the clinical program’s ability to provide comprehensive care;
and

WHEREAS, since the affiliation, nurses, health care technicians, nurse practitioners, and
physicians have strived to address these increasing healthcare disparities and costs, and
have attempted to engage the UCSF leadership as partners with limited and inadequate
success; and

WHEREAS, the lack of success by UCSF management to fill vacant positions has
exacerbated short staffing and called into question the remaining staff’s ability to provide
high quality care consistent with the Children’s Hospital Oakland’s long-standing
reputation as one of the premier children’s hospitals in the country; and

WHEREAS, the transfer of financial resources from Children’s Hospital Oakland to UCSF
in San Francisco can lead to racial inequity for East Bay families, where people with less
access to resources also get more limited access to quality health care.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley
respectfully urges UCSF Health, the UC Office of the President, and the UC Board of
Regents to restore comprehensive high quality, tertiary care for all children at Children's
Hospital Oakland locations;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council respectfully urges UCSF Health, the
UC Office of the President, and the UC Board of Regents to restore comprehensive high
quality, tertiary care for all children at Children's Hospital Oakland locations;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council requests and urges UCSF to create
a health care system committed to correcting the inequities between San Francisco and
Oakland— as well as the other East Bay and Central Valley communities where the
overwhelming maijority of Children Hospital’s patient population lives;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council urges UCSF to re-commit to
respecting the views of and retaining nurses, doctors, and other health care workers
who have dedicated their careers to care to serving children and families in our East
Bay community.

Page 4 Page 306



Page 1 of 3 28

BerkeLEY CiTy COUNCILMEMBER

TERRY TAPIIN

s

DISTRICT 2

CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept. 13, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Taplin

Subject: Berkeley Youth Alternatives (BYA) Charity Golf Classic: Relinquishment of
Council Office Budget Funds from General Funds and Grant of Such Funds

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $500 per
Councilmember, including $200 from Councilmember Taplin, to support the 4" Annual
Charity Golf Classic hosted by Berkeley Youth Alternatives (BYA).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
No General Fund impact. $200 is available from contributing Councilmember’s Council
Office Budget discretionary accounts.

BACKGROUND
Berkeley Youth Alternatives (BYA) is hosting its fifth annual Charity Golf Tournament on
September 16, 2022.

For over 40 years, BYA has served the children and families of Berkeley and the
surrounding cities in Alameda County and Contra Costa Counties by providing
comprehensive services in a supportive and bias-free haven. Founded in 1969 as a
runaway youth shelter, BYA has since expanded to provide comprehensive youth and
family services. Funds raised by this charity event will help support important services
such as mental health counseling, case management, academic support, mentoring,
health education, sports and fitness programs, recreation, workforce development and
youth internships.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7120 o E-Mail: TTaplin@cityofberkeley.info Page 307



Page 2 of 3

BYA CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept 13, 2022

> Berkeley Youth Alternatives (BYA)
4TH ANNUAL CHARITY GOLF CLASSIC

e — ey

e =

~ “Friday .'S_Ff;té_ﬁjber 16th, 2022
~Hiddenbros f Club

OO REgiitEl’ Online Tuday! All funds help promote academic
https://tinyurl.com/BYAGOLF22 | Success economic self-sufficiency,

Ep or scan QR code health and wellness for youth of
color in the Great East Bay!

For more information, please contact S

Brandon Mason at {510} 849-1402, 10:20 AM REGISTRATION
email bmason@byaonline.org. 11:00 AM  LUNCH
12:30 PM SHOTGUN START
6:00 PM TEXAS STYLE BEQ

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Taplin Council District 2  510-981-7120

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

Page 308



Page 3 of 3

BYA CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept 13, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF SURPLUS FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE
EXPENSE ACCOUNTS OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS FOR A GRANT TO
PROVIDE PUBLIC SERVICES FOR A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC PURPOSE

WHEREAS, Councilmember Taplin has surplus funds in his office expenditure account
(budget code 011-11-102-100-0000-000-411); and

WHEREAS, a California non-profit tax exempt corporation Berkeley Youth Alternatives
seeks funds in the amount of $200 to provide the following public services: BYA 4t Annual
Charity Golf Classic; and

WHEREAS, the provision of such services would fulfill the following municipal public
purpose: providing youth athletic programming and mentorship;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that funds
relinquished by the Mayor and Councilmembers from their Council Office Budget up to
$200 amount per office shall be granted to Berkeley Youth Alternatives to support the
BYA Charity Golf Classic.

Page 3

Page 309



Page 310



Page 1 of 3 29

BerkeLEY CiTy COUNCILMEMBER

TERRY TAPLIN

7
s

DISTRICT 2
CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept. 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Taplin, Councilmember Droste (co-sponsor), Councilmember

Wengraf (co-sponsor), Councilmember Kesarwani (co-sponsor)

Subject: California Marriage Equality Resolution (Prop 8 Repeal)

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution Urging the California Legislature to Place a Measure on the Ballot to
Repeal Article | Section 7.5 of the State Constitution, a.k.a. Proposition 8; and send
copies to the Offices of the Speaker of the Assembly, Senate President Pro Tempore,
and Governor.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

BACKGROUND

Marriage equality and LGBTQ+ rights are under existential threat in the United States.
When the US Supreme Court voted to remove essential reproductive rights by
overturning Roe v. Wade (1973) in Dobbs v. Jackson (2022), Justice Clarence Thomas
issued a concurring opinion citing Obergefell v. Hodges (2015), the historic decision
providing marriage equality to same-sex couples, as another judicial precedent that he
wished to revisit."

As a nakedly partisan body, the conservative Supreme Court majority is very likely to
pursue further action to undermine civil rights. Thus, it is urgent for California to
enshrine marriage equality in state law. In order to do so, voters would have to repeal
Proposition 8 (2008), which prohibited same-sex marriage. The state legislature has the
power to place measures on the ballot without the costly signature-gathering process,
and the City of Oakland has already issued a resolution calling for Prop 8 repeal to be
placed on the ballot.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS
None.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Terry Taplin Council District 2  510-981-7120

" Dobbs v. Jackson Women's Health Organization, No. 19-1392, 597 U.S. (2022).

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7120 o E-Mail: TTaplin@cityofberkeley.info Page 311



Page 2 of 3

Prop 8 Resolution CONSENT CALENDAR
Sept. 13, 2022

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 312



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

RESOLUTION URGING THE CALIFORNIA STATE LEGISLATURE TO DEFEND
MARRIAGE EQUALITY BY PLACING A MEASURE ON THE BALLOT TO REPEAL
ARTICLE | SECTION 7.5 OF THE STATE CONSTITUTION, ALSO KNOWN AS
PROPOSITION 8

WHEREAS, the path to full marriage equality in the United States has been one of the
most affirmative social movements fought by the lesbian, gay, bisexual, Transgender, and
Queer (LGBTQ+) community over the past century; and

WHEREAS, according to estimates from the 2019 Current Population Survey Annual
Social and Economic Supplement (CPS ASEC), there are 543,000 same-sex married
households across the US; and

WHEREAS, in California, Proposition 8 was approved by 52% of the voters on
November 4, 2008, adding a new section to the state Constitution that “Only marriage
between a man and a woman is valid or recognized in California.”; and

WHEREAS, when Proposition 8 passed in 2008, the State of California reported an
increase in depression, anxiety, and suicide in the LGBTQ+ community and in children
with LGBTQ+ parents; and

WHEREAS, following the Dobbs v. Jackson (2022) decision overturning abortion rights
that had been guaranteed by Roe v. Wade (1973), US Supreme Court Justice Clarence
Thomas issued a concurring opinion suggesting further legal challenges to same-sex
marriage rights; and

WHEREAS, LGBTQ+ rights are increasingly under threat in the United States and the
world at large.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley hereby
urges California State Legislature to defend marriage equality by placing a measure to
repeal Article | Section 7.5 of the state Constitution, also known as Proposition 8, onto
the ballot.

Page 313



Page 314



Page 1 of 13 30
s CITY CRUNCILMEMBER n—

RIGEL REBINS9N

I D|STRICT 7

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Rigel Robinson (Author), Councilmember Terry Taplin

(Co-Sponsor), Mayor Jesse Arreguin (Co-Sponsor), and Councilmember
Kate Harrison (Co-Sponsor)

Subject: Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley

RECOMMENDATION

Refer to the City Manager and the Planning Commission to consider and return to
Council with Zoning Ordinance amendments, codified performance standards, and
other actions to encourage the growth and retention of Research & Development (R&D)
in Berkeley. Staff and the Commission should explore:

1. Naming R&D as an allowed land use in the commercial districts of Telegraph (C-
T and C-C), West Berkeley (C-W), University (C-U), and Downtown Berkeley (C-
DMU) with a Zoning Certificate, subject to performance standards.

a. Performance standards should regulate and mitigate potential impacts
on quality of life, public health, and environmental health, such as noise,
odors, fumes, vibrations, dust, light pollution, hours of operation, and
disposal and storage protocols for flammable, combustible, chemical, and
hazardous substances.

2. Updating the “District Purpose” sections of the MM and MU-LI districts to
specifically embrace R&D. Consider doing the same for other districts where
R&D is allowed, if deemed appropriate.

3. Amending R&D parking requirements in M-prefixed districts to align with
Laboratory parking requirements and in C-prefixed districts, excluding C-T, to
align with Manufacturing parking requirements.

4. Reviewing Berkeley Municipal Code 23.206.080 to ensure that language
regulating Biosafety Level (BSL) Classes 1-4 is clear and consistent with
regulations in neighboring jurisdictions and other cities that support a broad
range of R&D. Consider repealing the section or amending it to permit BSL-2 in
all districts where research and development facilities or laboratories are
permitted.

5. Returning to Council with additional recommendations, if any, that would serve to
encourage R&D in Berkeley, as determined by staff or that present themselves
through the Planning Commission process.

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7170 @ TDD: (510) 981-6903 Page 315
E-Mail: RRobinson@cityotberkeley.info



Page 2 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

On July 19, 2022, the Land Use, Housing, & Economic Development Policy Committee
adopted the following action: M/S/C (Robinson/Bartlett) to approve the item with a
positive recommendation. Vote: All Ayes.

BACKGROUND

The City of Berkeley has over 400 “innovation sector” businesses in tech, biotech, R&D,
and other STEM industries. The 2021 Berkeley Economic Dashboard (published in Q1
2022) reported robust growth opportunities in this sector, with 10 Berkeley-based
companies receiving a total of nearly $9 million in federal and state grants for R&D."
35% of Berkeley’s innovation companies develop software, 31% develop biotechnology
and healthcare technologies, and 13% develop clean technologies to support
environmental sustainability and address climate change. Nearly 87% of these
innovation companies are relatively early stage and take advantage of the city’s
coworking spaces, accelerators, and incubators.

It is critical for the City to continue efforts to encourage the growth of R&D in Berkeley.
In addition to providing jobs and fueling economic development locally, innovation
companies make a global impact across sectors, including in the healthcare field and
the fight against climate change. Berkeley benefits from the presence of the University
of California, Berkeley and the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory (LBNL), whose
affiliates go on to found startups supported by the Berkeley Startup Cluster and
accelerators or incubators like Berkeley SkyDeck or Bakar Labs.2 There is a clear
demand for R&D space from companies who have grown out of UC Berkeley and are
seeking to build their enterprise in Berkeley, close to the talent, facilities, and
entrepreneur support programs on campus. If the City’s zoning regulations do not
provide sufficient opportunities for emerging growth companies, they have no choice but
to leave Berkeley and settle in nearby cities that accommodate them with open arms,
such as Oakland, Emeryville, San Leandro, and Alameda.

On March 22, 2022, Council adopted the first reading of a Zoning Ordinance
amendment that modified the land use definition of Research and Development (R&D)
in Berkeley Municipal Code 23.502.020.R.8.2 This amendment came to Council as a
referral response to a March 20, 2020 referral from Mayor Arreguin and Councilmember
Wengraf.

The original definition read:
Research and Development. An establishment comprised of laboratory or other
non-office space, which is engaged in one or more of the following activities:

1 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-04/2022-03-
22%201tem%2038%20Economic%20Dashboards%20Update.pdf

2 https://berkeleystartupcluster.com/

3 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2022-03-
22%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf

Page 2 Page 316


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-04/2022-03-22%20Item%2038%20Economic%20Dashboards%20Update.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-04/2022-03-22%20Item%2038%20Economic%20Dashboards%20Update.pdf
https://berkeleystartupcluster.com/
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2022-03-22%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2022-03-22%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf

Page 3 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

industrial, biological or scientific research; product design; development and
testing; and limited manufacturing necessary for the production of prototypes.

The updated definition reads:
Research and Development: An establishment engaged in the following
activities: 1) industrial, biological or scientific research; and/or 2) product or
process design, development, prototyping, or testing. This may include labs,
offices, warehousing, and light manufacturing functions as part of the overall
Research and Development use.

The March 2020 referral observed that the R&D definition in the BMC did not
adequately reflect present-day R&D business activities. For example, the definition
prohibited R&D establishments from including office space and required the inclusion of
a laboratory. The referral requested that the new definition reflect evolving business
practices and provide flexibility for R&D establishments to occupy spaces that meet
their operating needs. Modifying the R&D definition supported the City’s Strategic Plan
goal of fostering a dynamic, sustainable, and locally-based economy.

Through that process, additional issues have come to light that have the effect of
inhibiting innovation in Berkeley, which this referral aims to address.

Recommendation #1: Naming R&D as an allowed land use in the commercial districts
of Telegraph (C-T and C-C), West Berkeley (C-W), University (C-U), and Downtown
Berkeley (C-DMU) with a Zoning Certificate, subject to performance standards.

BMC 23.204.020.A Table 23.204-14 and 23.206.020.A Table 23.206-15 lay out allowed
land uses for each commercial and manufacturing district, respectively. Currently, R&D
is permitted in three districts across the city: C-W (with an Administrative Use Permit)
and MM and MU-LI (with a Zoning Certificate if under 20,000 sq. ft. and an AUP if over
20,000 sq. ft.).

Notably, the commercial districts in Southside (C-T), the southern portion of Telegraph
(C-C), and the Downtown (C-DMU) do not currently allow R&D. R&D spaces close to
campus would be extremely valuable to students, alumni, and others affiliated with UC
Berkeley and LBNL. By allowing R&D in these districts, the City would make it easier to
keep the innovation and talent that flows from the university in Berkeley. Furthermore,
permitting R&D in the University Avenue commercial corridor (C-U) would play an
important role in connecting West Berkeley and UC Berkeley, the City’s two primary
hubs of innovation.

4 https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.204.020
5 https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.206.020

Page 3 Page 317


https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.204.020
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.206.020

Page 4 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

Startups have expressed that the City’s permitting process remains a challenge,
particularly if the Zoning Ordinance requires an AUP. This process can take months or
even years, which is problematic for R&D companies whose runway for finding a
suitable space to develop proof of concept is limited by the funding they have available
from early-stage investors. The timelines associated with an AUP provide founders no
concrete assurance and can jeopardize operations during the most critical time for
startups.

However, noise disruption and biohazard safety are of particular concern when
permitting new uses in commercial districts due to their mixed-use residential buildings
and proximity to residential districts. It is important that staff and the Planning
Commission consider strategies for mitigating any impacts of R&D in C-prefixed
districts, including the use of performance standards. Performance standards, which lay
out metrics and regulations that the applicant must agree to before being issued a
Zoning Certificate, are an important tool to ensure conformance to the neighborhood
without imposing lengthy permit approval timelines.

One example that the City of Berkeley can look towards is the City of Fremont. Fremont
utilizes performance standards in their industrial districts, which house R&D activities, to
ensure that “adjoining properties, persons and the community as well as the region are
provided protection against adverse conditions which may be created by the various
uses operating within the industrial zoning districts.” The performance standards
regulate noise, vibration, glare or heat, fire hazards, liquid or solid wastes, fissionable or
radioactive material, and aesthetics.® See Attachment 1.

The City of San Diego serves as a case study of how R&D can co-exist with commercial
and residential uses. In 2019, the San Diego City Council approved the creation of two
new mixed-use zones, RMX (Residential Mixed-Use) and EMX (Employment Mixed-
Use).” The stated purpose of the zones was to “provide housing and jobs near
commercial centers and corridors to reduce dependency on the automobile, promote
access to transit and multi-model transportation systems, and to provide for a walkable,
pedestrian-oriented setting, including infill of existing development.” In both RMX and
EMX zones, R&D is permitted by-right alongside multi-family residential development,
retail, and most commercial services. San Diego also permits R&D in several of its
commercial zones.?

Recommendation #2: Updating the “District Purpose” sections of the MM and MU-LI
districts to specifically embrace R&D. Consider doing the same for other districts where
R&D is allowed, if deemed appropriate.

6 https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Fremont/#!/html/Fremont18/Fremont1850.html (18.50.040
Performance Standards)

7 https://docs.sandiego.gov/municode/MuniCodeChapter13/Ch13Art01Division07.pdf

8 https://docs.sandiego.gov/municode/MuniCodeChapter13/Ch13Art01Division05.pdf

Page 4 Page 318


https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Fremont/#!/html/Fremont18/Fremont1850.html
https://docs.sandiego.gov/municode/MuniCodeChapter13/Ch13Art01Division07.pdf
https://docs.sandiego.gov/municode/MuniCodeChapter13/Ch13Art01Division05.pdf

Page 5 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

The “District Purpose” sections of the Zoning Ordinance determine the purpose of each
zoning district, detailing what uses are allowed, welcomed, and explicitly stated to
further the City’s goals. R&D applicants need to feel confident that they will have a place
in the district if they choose to locate there. In MM and MU-LI, where R&D is currently
permitted, the Purpose sections do not mention R&D despite calling out the importance
and belonging of similar industries, including manufacturing, industrial use, and
laboratories.

Staff and the Commission should consider amending BMC 23.206.070.A and
23.206.080.A with the following language:

23.206.070 MM Mixed Manufacturing District.

A. District Purpose. The purpose of the Mixed Manufacturing (MM) district is to:
1. Implement the West Berkeley Plan MM designation;

2. Encourage development of a general manufacturing district for the full range
of manufacturers, including larger scale materials processing manufacturers
sometimes known as heavy manufacturers;

3. Encourage development of a manufacturing district targeted to manufacturing
and industrial uses including research and development, so that manufacturers
and industrial businesses will not be interfered with by incompatible uses;

4. Encourage the creation and continuation of well paid (often unionized) jobs for
men and women without advanced degrees;

5. Provide an appropriate location for the development of compatible industries
which can provide high quality employment for people at all educational levels,
and add significantly to the tax base, such as the biotechnology industry and
other research and development uses;

6. Allow reuse of upper story industrial space as offices to facilitate use of upper
story space;

7. Maintain and improve the quality of the West Berkeley environment, while
allowing the lawful and reasonable operation of the full range of manufacturers;
and

8. Support the development of industrial businesses which contribute to the
maintenance and improvement of the environment.

23.206.080 MU-LI Mixed Use-Light Industrial District.

A. District Purpose. The purpose of the Mixed Use-Light Industrial (MU-LI)
district is to:

1. Implement the West Berkeley Plan Light Manufacturing District designation;
2. Encourage development of a mixed use-light industrial area for a range of
compatible uses;

Page 5 Page 319



Page 6 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

3. Encourage development of an area where light manufacturers can operate
free from the economic, physical and social constraints caused by incompatible
uses;

4. Encourage the creation and continuation of well-paid jobs which do not
require advanced degrees;

5. Provide for the continued availability of manufacturing and industrial buildings
for manufacturing uses, especially of larger spaces needed by medium sized and
larger light manufacturers;

6. Provide opportunities for office development when it will not unduly interfere
with light manufacturing uses and/or the light manufacturing building stock;

7. Provide the opportunity for laberatery-development the development of
research and development facilities in appropriate locations;

8. Support the development of businesses which contribute to the maintenance
and improvement of the environment;

9. Allow on-site ancillary retail as a tool to maintain and enhance the economic
viability of manufacturers in the district; and

10. Maintain and improve the quality of the West Berkeley environment, while
allowing the lawful and reasonable operation of light industrial uses.

Recommendation #3: Amending R&D parking requirements in M-prefixed districts to
align with Laboratory parking requirements and in C-prefixed districts, excluding C-T, to
align with Manufacturing parking requirements.

BMC 23.322.030 details the minimum off-street parking spaces required for each use.
Currently, in M-prefixed districts, R&D is not explicitly named in Table 23.322-4,
meaning that it is parked under “All non-residential uses except uses listed below” at 2
spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. In contrast, laboratories are parked as 1 space per 650 sq. ft.,
despite R&D spaces typically accommodating a similar number of people per square
foot as laboratories. This disadvantages R&D by requiring them to provide more parking
than their laboratory counterparts, which is expensive and creates incentives for
employees to drive to work that run counter to the City’s Climate Action Plan goals. For
the purposes of consistency, R&D parking requirements should be amended to align
with Laboratory parking requirements.

In C-T, off-street parking is not required, so no amendments are needed. In C-prefixed
districts excluding C-T, R&D is also not listed in Table 23.322-2. It may be unclear to
applicants whether R&D falls under Manufacturing (which requires 1.5 spaces per 1,000
sq. ft. in C-DMU, 1 per 1,000 sq. ft. in C-W, and 2 per 1,000 sq. ft. in all other C-prefixed
districts), or under “All non-residential uses except uses listed below,” (which requires
1.5 spaces per 1,000 sq. ft. in C-DMU and 2 per 1,000 in all other C-prefixed districts).
This can create confusion for R&D companies looking to locate in C-W. Adding an R&D
section here to align parking requirements with Manufacturing would improve clarity and
consistency.

Page 6 Page 320



Page 7 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

In addition to considering the following changes to BMC 23.322.030 Table 23.322-2 and
Table 23.322-4, staff and the Commission may take up the R&D parking discussion in
concert with other Council referrals that address off-street parking, such as
Councilmember Taplin’s “Parking Minima for Mixed-Use Projects and Manufacturing
Districts” item referred on June 28, 2022.

Table 23.322-2. REQUIRED OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS IN COMMERCIAL
DISTRICTS (EXCLUDING C-T)

Land Use Required Parking Spaces

Residential Uses

Accessory Dwelling Unit See Chapter 23.306
Dwellings, including Group If located on a roadway less than 26 feet in width in the
Living Accommodations Hillside Overlay: 1 per unit

All Other Locations: None required

Hotel, Residential None required

Mixed-Use Residential None required
(residential use only)

Senior Congregate Housing None required

Non-Residential Uses

All non-residential uses except | C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.

uses listed below All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.
Hospital 1 per each 4 beds plus 1 per each 3 employees
Library C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.

All Other Commercial Districts: 1 per 500 sq. ft. of publicly
accessible floor area

Nursing Home 1 per 3 employees

Medical Practitioners C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.
All Other Commercial Districts: 1 per 300 sq. ft.

Hotels, Tourist C-DMU District: 1 per 3 guest/sleeping rooms or suites
C-C, C-U, C-W Districts: 1 per 3 guest/sleeping rooms or
suites plus 1 per 3 employees

All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Motels, Tourist C-DMU District: 1 per 3 guest/sleeping rooms or suites

Page 7 Page 321


https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.306

Page 8 of 13

Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

C-C, C-U, C-W Districts: 1 per guest/sleeping room plus 1 for
owner or manager [1]
All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Large Vehicle Sales and
Rental

C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.
C-SA District: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft.
All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Small Vehicle Sales and
Service

C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.
C-SA District: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft.
All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Manufacturing

C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.
C-W District: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft [1]
All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Research and Development

C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.

C-W District: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft [1]
All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Wholesale Trade

C-DMU District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.
C-W District: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft
All Other Commercial Districts: 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Live/Work If workers/clients are permitted in work area, 1 per first 1,000
sq. ft. of work area and 1 per each additional 750 sq. ft. of
work area

Notes:

[1] Spaces must be on the same lot as building it serves.

Table 23.322-4. REQUIRED OFF-STREET PARKING IN MANUFACTURING DISTRICTS

Land Use

Required Parking Spaces

Residential Uses

Accessory Dwelling Unit

See Chapter 23.306

Dwellings None required
Group Living None required
Accommodation

Non-Residential Uses

Page 8 Page 322


https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.322.030(B)(1)#23.322.030(B)(1)__%5B1%5D
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.322.030(B)(1)#23.322.030(B)(1)__%5B1%5D
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.322.030(B)(1)#23.322.030(B)(1)__%5B1%5D
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.306

Page 9 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

All non-residential uses 2 per 1,000 sq. ft.
except uses listed below

Art/Craft Studio 1 per 1,000 sq. ft.

Community Care Facility 1 per 2 non-resident employees

Food Service Establishment | 1 per 300 sq. ft.

Library 1 per 500 sq. ft. of publicly accessible floor area

Laboratories 1 per 650 sq. ft.

Research and Development | 1 per 650 sq. ft.

Nursing Home 1 per 5 residents, plus 1 per 3 employees

Medical Practitioners One per 300 sq. ft.

Large Vehicle Sales and MU-LI District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.
Rental All Other Districts: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft. of display floor area plus 1
per 500 sq. ft. of other floor area; 2 per service bay

Manufacturing MU-R District: 1.5 per 1,000 sq. ft.

All Other Districts: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft. for spaces less than
10,000 sq. ft.; 1 per 1,500 sq. ft. for spaces 10,000 sq. ft. or
more

Storage, warehousing, and | 1 per 1,000 sq. ft. for spaces of less than 10,000 sq. ft.; 1 per
wholesale trade 1,500 sq. ft. for spaces 10,000 sq. ft. or more

Live/Work MU-LI District: 1 per 1,000 sq. ft. of work area where
workers/clients are permitted

MU-R District: if workers/clients are permitted in work area, 1
per first 1,000 sq. ft. of work area and 1 per each additional 750
sq. ft. of work area

Notes:

[1] For multiple dwellings where the occupancy will be exclusively for persons over the age
of 62, the number of required off-street parking spaces may be reduced to 25% of what
would otherwise be required for multiple-family dwelling use, subject to obtaining a Use
Permit.

Recommendation #4: Reviewing Berkeley Municipal Code 23.206.080 to ensure that
language related to Biosafety Level (BSL) Classes 1-4 is clear and consistent with
requirements in neighboring jurisdictions and other cities that support a broad range of

Page 9 Page 323



Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley

Page 10 of 13

CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

R&D. Consider repealing the section or amending it to permit BSL-2 in all districts

where research and development facilities or laboratories are permitted.

BSL lab levels, ranging from BSL-1 to BSL-4, are set by the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention to protect laboratory personnel and the surrounding community. The
primary risks that determine levels of containment are infectivity, severity of disease,
transmissibility, and the nature of the work conducted.®

Description

Sample
Organisms

Pathogen
Type

Autoclave
Requirements

Chart of Biosafety Levels'®

» No Containment
+ Defined organisms

- Unlikely to cause
dissase

E.Coli

Agents that present
minimal potential

hazard to personnel
& the environment.

MNone

 Containment
« Moderate Risk

- Disease of varying
severity

Influenza, HIV,
Lyme Disease

Agents associated
with human disease
& pose moderate
hazards to personnel
& the environment.

Mone

- High Containment

+ Aerosol
Transmission

- Serlous/Potentially
lethal disease

Tuberculosis

Indigenous or exotic
agents, apents that
present a potential
for aerosol trans-
mission, & agents
causing serlous or
potentially lethal
disease.

Pass-thru autoclave
with Bioseal required
in laboratory room.

+ Max Containment
- "Exotic," High-Risk
Agents

: Life-threatening
disease

Ebola Virus

Dangerous & exotic
agents that pose a
high risk of aerosol-
transmitted lab-
oratory infections
& life-threatening
disease,

Pass-thru autoclave
with Bioseal required
in laboratory room.

Another way of classifying biological agents and organisms is using Risk Groups 1-4.
While these two classification methods often align (e.g. BSL-2 equals Risk Group 2),
they do not always. Biosafety Levels prescribe the work practices, engineering controls,
personal protective equipment, and facility requirements required for working with
biological agents. The Risk Group classification is only one factor to consider when
determining the appropriate Biosafety Level for a particular agent. Other factors to

9 https://www.cdc.gov/training/quicklearns/biosafety/

10 hitps://consteril.com/biosafety-levels-difference/

Page 10

Page 324


https://www.cdc.gov/training/quicklearns/biosafety/
https://consteril.com/biosafety-levels-difference/

Page 11 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

consider include the mode of transmission, pathogenicity, manipulations that will be
conducted, volume, experience of staff, and more."!

4 RISK CLASSIFICATIONS OF INFECTIOUS MATERIAL

Risk Group Individual Community Examples

2 F
Biological safety cabinet needed -Inﬂuenzz? st
Pathogens spread via ingestion A —
i, i S Moderate Low -Hepatitis (A, B, C, D, E)
inoculation and mucous membrane Tt

routes

BMC 23.206.080.B.5'2 reads:
Commercial Physical or Biological Laboratories. Commercial physical or
biological laboratories using Class 3 organisms are not permitted in the MU-LI
district. Use of Class 2 organisms are permitted only in locations at least 500 feet
from a Residential District or a MU-R district.

This section is the only place in the BMC where organism classes, presumably referring
to BSL, are mentioned other than in the defined terms. The BMC is silent on BSL
regulations in districts other than MU-LI, or for non-laboratory uses such as research
and development.

A preliminary review finds that the City of Berkeley is more restrictive than other Bay
Area cities in our regulation of Biosafety Levels. For example, the Cities of Emeryville,

1 https://www.safetypartnersinc.com/are-biosafety-levels-and-risk-groups-the-
same/#:~:text=Biosafety%20levels%20prescribe%20the %20work,level%20for%20a%20particular¥%20age
nt.

12 hitps://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.206.080

Page 11 Page 325


https://www.safetypartnersinc.com/are-biosafety-levels-and-risk-groups-the-same/#:~:text=Biosafety%20levels%20prescribe%20the%20work,level%20for%20a%20particular%20agent
https://www.safetypartnersinc.com/are-biosafety-levels-and-risk-groups-the-same/#:~:text=Biosafety%20levels%20prescribe%20the%20work,level%20for%20a%20particular%20agent
https://www.safetypartnersinc.com/are-biosafety-levels-and-risk-groups-the-same/#:~:text=Biosafety%20levels%20prescribe%20the%20work,level%20for%20a%20particular%20agent
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/23.206.080

Page 12 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

San Jose, Mountain View, Alameda, San Leandro, South San Francisco, and San
Mateo do not reference BSLs or Risk Groups in their zoning ordinances. The Cities of
Fremont, Oakland, Palo Alto, and San Francisco permit BSL-1, BSL-2, and BSL-3 (or
the Risk Group equivalents) in varying degrees. See Attachment 2.

Moreover, laboratories that work with Risk Group 1-3 agents are already allowed on the
UC Berkeley campus. Most campus experiments use agents classified as Risk Group 1
or 2, although work with Risk Group 3 is permitted with a biological use authorization
(BUA) application approved by UC Berkeley’s Committee for Laboratory and
Environmental Biosafety.'3

Staff and the Commission should conduct further research into nearby jurisdictions,
including Oakland, San Francisco, South San Francisco, Emeryville, Alameda, San
Leandro, and Fremont, as well as other cities across the country that support a broad
range of R&D, such as Cambridge, MA. This research should provide insight into best
practices for BSL zoning regulations that keep the surrounding neighborhood safe while
allowing biological research facilities where they make sense, with federally-required
protocols and locally-required performance standards or other conditions in place.

Staff and the Commission should return to Council with amendments to this BMC
section and other relevant sections that provide clarity for potential applicants, ensure
that Biosafety Levels are clearly stated and defined in accordance with the most recent
CDC guidelines, and bring the City of Berkeley in alignment with other jurisdictions.

Recommendation #5: Returning to Council with additional recommendations, if any,
that would serve to encourage R&D in Berkeley, as determined by staff or that present
themselves through the Planning Commission process.

The City Manager and/or Planning Commission may choose to return to Council with
additional recommendations that would serve to encourage R&D in Berkeley, in addition
to the ones suggested in this item.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable negative environmental impacts associated with this action.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Rigel Robinson, (510) 981-7170
Angie Chen, Legislative Assistant

13 https://ehs.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/biosafetymanual.pdf

Page 12 Page 326


https://ehs.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/biosafetymanual.pdf

Page 13 of 13
Referral: Keep Innovation in Berkeley CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

Attachments:
1: City of Fremont performance standards
2: BSL regulations in neighboring jurisdictions

Page 13 Page 327



Attachments
Not Received

These attachments have not been received from the
submitting office.

City Clerk Department
2180 Milvia Street
Berkeley, CA 94704
(510) 981-6900

The City of Berkeley, City Council’s Web site:
http.//www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil/

Page 328



Page 1 of 3 31
s CITY CRUNCILMEMBER n—

RIGEL REBINS9N

I D|STRICT 7

CONSENT CALENDAR
September 13, 2022
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Councilmember Rigel Robinson (Author) and Councilmember Ben Bartlett
(Author)
Subject: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds to the General Fund and

Grant of Such Funds for the Center for Independent Living’s 50th Anniversary

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $500 per
Councilmember, including $500 each from Councilmember Robinson and
Councilmember Bartlett, to the Center for Independent Living to fund a Berkeley mural
project, street festival, CIL open house, three-day conference on independent living,
and other activities for their 50th Anniversary.

BACKGROUND

In 1972, The Center for Independent Living was established in Berkeley, California as
the first independent living center in the United States, founded in order to support
people with disabilities in living independent and dignified lives. The Center for
Independent Living engaged in grassroots advocacy that resulted in the passage of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, in addition
to some of the first curb cuts in the nation that were installed here in Berkeley.

Their work became the catalyst of the emerging Independent Living Movement, based
on the principle that people with disabilities are entitled to the same civil rights, options,
and autonomy over their lives as people without disabilities. The movement grew to
over 400 independent living centers in the United States and more in 20 countries
across the globe.

From October 19-23, 2022, The Center for Independent Living will hold a week of
events to honor their 50th Anniversary, celebrate with the community, and raise funds
to continue to advocate for and provide services to support independent living for
people with diverse disabilities. The Center for Independent Living is requesting funds
from the City of Berkeley to assist with paying for their 50th Anniversary events.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
No General Fund impact; $500 each is available from Councilmember Robinson’s and
Councilmember Bartlett’s discretionary accounts.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7170 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 Page 329
E-Mail: RRobinson@cityofberkeley.info



Page 2 of 3

CIL: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022
No impact.

CONTACT PERSON

Councilmember Rigel Robinson (510) 981-7170

Councilmember Ben Bartlett (510) 981-7130

Attachments:

1: Resolution

Page 2 Page 330



Page 3 of 3
CIL: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds CONSENT CALENDAR September 13, 2022

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF SURPLUS FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE
EXPENSE ACCOUNTS OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS FOR A GRANT
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC SERVICES FOR A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC PURPOSE

WHEREAS, Councilmember Ben Bartlett and Councilmember Rigel Robinson have
surplus funds in their office expenditure accounts; and

WHEREAS, a California non-profit tax exempt corporation, The Center for Independent
Living, Inc., seeks funds in the amount of $500 to fund a Berkeley mural project, street
festival, CIL open house, three-day conference on independent living, and other activities
for their 50th Anniversary; and

WHEREAS, the provision of such services would fulfill the municipal public purpose of
supporting and celebrating a treasured disability rights advocacy group that catalyzed
the Independent Living Movement and continues to support people with disabilities in
the City of Berkeley today.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
$500 relinquished by Councilmembers Robinson and Bartlett from each of their Council
Office Budgets and any other Councilmember who wishes to contribute shall be granted
to the Center for Independent Living to fund their 50th Anniversary activities.

Page 3 Page 331



Page 332



Page 1 of 299

Kate Harrison
Councilmember District 4

REVISED AGENDA MATERIAL
for Supplemental Packet 1

Meeting Date: July 26, 2022
Item Number: 29
Item Description: Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition

Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License
Plate Readers

Submitted by: Vice Mayor Harrison

32

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the updated BPD Policy 1302, the legally enforceable Surveillance Use Policy
for Automated License Plate Readers (ALPR) pursuant to BMC 2.99.

BACKGROUND
The proposed Policy 1302 represents near complete agreement between BPD, the
City Manager’s Office, and Vice Mayor Harrison’s Office.

Council originally financed and authorized ALPR technology to help automate BPD'’s
parking and scofflaw enforcement, but through BPD policy development, usage
expanded to criminal enforcement. To date, due to the pandemic and policy
concerns regarding data retention, sharing, and civil liberties protections, Council
deferred adoption of a Surveillance Use Policy pursuant to BMC Sections 2.99.020
and 2.99.050 of the Surveillance Ordinance for ALPR.

BPD Administrative Order #001-2016, prepared in 2016 before adoption of the
Surveillance Ordinance, has served as a de facto ALPR policy, yet Administrative
Order #001-2016 is out of date with local and state law and does not satisfy the
specific requirements of the Surveillance Ordinance. Most recently, adoption of a
proposed update to the use policy for ALPRs (Policy 1302) was deferred by Council
in 2020 and 2021. In November 2021, Councilmembers Harrison and Hahn, and
separately Councilmember Taplin, submitted proposed revisions. Council referred
the matter to the Agenda Committee for future scheduling to allow for further policy
development.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.7140 TDD: 510.981.6903
E-Mail: kharrison@CityofBerkeley.info

Page 333



Page 2 of 299

Since the referral to the Agenda Committee, Vice Mayor Harrison and
Councilmember Hahn have been working diligently with BPD, the City Manager, City
Attorney, the Information Technology and Public Works Departments, and City
Contractors to craft a sensible policy that (1) fully addresses the requirements of the
Surveillance Ordinance, (2) clarifies the purpose and scope of collection, (3) enacts
various safeguards to protect sensitive data, and (4) provides clarity on the
circumstances when parking enforcement and analysis ALPRs and associated data
can be used to support criminal investigations.

Use Policy Updates Overview:

Definitions

¢ Provides key new definitions related to the City’s ALPR equipment, vendors,
and data types. Also provides definitions for Parking Enforcement Operations
and Parking Analysis as part of the goBerkeley system.

e Enumerates the specific authorized uses of ALPR technology associated with
Parking Enforcement and Parking Analysis.

Authorized and Prohibited Uses

e Allows BPD to query ALPR data retroactively to support a specific BPD
criminal investigation when an officer has a good faith belief that an
emergency involving the danger of, or imminent threat of death or serious
physical injury to any person requires such a query or use, and the officer
reasonably believes there is a nexus between a vehicle and the alleged crime
scene. Approval to query the data must be granted by the Chief of Police and
City Manager. The City Manager shall log any queries or use of such
information pursuant to this subsection in its Annual Surveillance Technology
Report pursuant to BMC 2.99.

¢ Provides that officers may investigate hits based on reasonable suspicion
resulting from apparent matches, discovered in the regular course of work of
Parking Enforcement Operations, between the Genetec ALPR System and
the following databases: Stolen Vehicles System, Amber, Silver, and Blue
Alerts, local missing persons, scoff law violator, gig car, general permit, or
other non-criminal local lists.

e Explicitly prohibits ALPR use that invades privacy and during crowd control.

e Limits the use of ALPR in conjunction with lists or databases to the: Stolen
Vehicles System, Amber, Silver and Blue Alerts, local missing persons, scoff
law violator, gig car, general permit, or other non-criminal local lists.

Data Collection and Retention

e ALPR Reads Not Resulting in ALPR Hits - All ALPR Read Images and ALPR
Read Metadata transmitted to and stored in the Genetec ALPR System shall
be purged within fourteen (14) days to allow for the City's enforcement of its

Page 334



Page 3 of 299

72- Hour Rule (BMC Section 14.36.050).

ALPR Read Metadata in the form of license plate data or other non-Pll data
may be transmitted to and stored in the Passport Automatic Data Collection
System for Parking Analysis purposes and retained pursuant to applicable
retention policies.

e ALPR Hits - All ALPR Hits and related metadata resulting from ALPR Reads
should be uploaded daily to the Genetec server and shall be purged from

Genetec within fourteen (14) days to allow for the City's enforcement of its 72-
Hour Rule (BMC Section 14.36.050).

e Unenforced ALPR Hits - All erroneous and unenforced ALPR Hit data shall be
purged locally at least nightly.

e Enforced ALPR Hits - Only ALPR Read Images and Metadata associated with
Enforced ALPR Hits shall be downloaded to the Passport Parking
Management System servers, with a maximum retention period of one (1)
year in Passport and in accordance with the established records retention
schedule.

Third Party Data Sharing

e The ALPR data may be shared only with other law enforcement or
prosecutorial agencies as pursuant to a valid court order, subpoena, or a
search warrant, Cal. Civ. Code §1798.90.5(f), and as limited by this Policy,
and shall not be shared with federal immigration enforcement officials
consistent with this policy and other applicable City policy.

¢ Requests for ALPR data by non-law enforcement or non-prosecutorial
agencies will be processed as provided by this policy and the Records
Maintenance and Release Policy.

e Aggregated ALPR data not related to specific criminal or civil investigations
authorized by a court order, subpoena, or search warrant shall not be
released to any local, or state agency or entity without the express written
consent of the City Manager and only in accordance with this Use Policy.

Page 335



PRggel 962999

Surveillance Use Policy-ALPR- Automated
License Plate Reader

1302.1 PURPOSE

The policy of the Berkeley Police Department is to utilize ALPR technology to capture and store
digital license plate data and images for Parking Enforcement Operations, Parking Analysis, and
limited criminal enforcement purposes associated with Parking Enforcement Operations while
recognizing the established privacy rights of the public.

1302.2 DEFINITIONS

"Alleged Parking Violation" means an alleged violation of time limits in parking areas designated
by state and local law, or a violation of time limits and/or non-permit parking in the City's RPP
zones.

"ALPR Read Image" means images of license plates, vehicles, wheels or any other incidentally
captured image.

"ALPR Read" means computer-readable data captured by an ALPR Reader, including ALPR
Read Image and associated ALPR Read Metadata. ALPR Reads are transient means to create
potential government records, to include Parking Analysis data and Enforced Citations.

"ALPR Hit" means an Alleged Parking Violation or Stolen Vehicle System alert resulting from
computer generated analysis of ALPR Reads by the Genetec ALPR System resulting in an
apparent:

1. match between an ALPR Read and ALPR Read Metadata stored in the Genetec ALPR
System, to include the Stolen Vehicle System; or

2. cross checking between ALPR Read and permit information which is stored on the
Genetec ALPR System.

"ALPR Read Metadata" means any image-based or other metadata, including but not limited to,
global positioning system coordinates, block face information, tire position information, digitized
license plates in alphanumeric characters, and timestamps.

"Automated License Plate Reader" or "ALPR" means one or more Genetec AutoVVu mobile
cameras affixed to Parking Enforcement Vehicles and combined with computer software and
algorithms to read and convert images of license plates, the characters they contain, and
associated ALPR Read Metadata related to Parking Enforcement Operations or Parking Analysis
into computer-readable data.

"Deploy" or "Deployment” means any operation or use of ALPR Readers affixed to Parking
Enforcement Vehicles.

"Enforced ALPR Hit" means an Alleged Parking Violation confirmed by a Parking Enforcemerﬁage 336




PRggel 962999
Officer that results in the transmission of associated ALPR Read Image and ALPR Read Metadata

to the Passport Parking Management System for storage in a database as a government record
for the purpose of citation processing.

"Genetec ALPR System" means the computerized Genetec server and database that stores all
ALPR Reads, metadata and hits, and also pushes an Enforced ALPR Hit metadata to the Passport
Parking Management System.

"Residential Parking Permits" or "RPP" means an annual, visitor, merchant or in-home care
parking permit, typically represented by a vehicle's license plate, and associated with the City's
Residential Parking Permit program across designated zones.

"Parking Enforcement Vehicle" means the GO-4 three-wheeled parking enforcement vehicle.

"Parking Enforcement Officers" means employees of the City who work weekly rotations on
Parking Enforcement Operations beats throughout the City and are properly trained to operate
ALPRs and access the Genetec ALPR System.

"Parking Enforcement Operations" means Parking Enforcement Officer enforcement of parking
requlations associated with local ordinances, the California Vehicle Code, and Stolen Vehicle
System enforcement through Parking Enforcement Vehicle-based automated (ALPR) and non-
automated means.

"Personally Identifiable Information" or "PII" means information:

1. that directly identifies an individual (e.q., name, address, telephone number, email
address, etc.) or

2. by which the City or other agency intends to identify specific individuals in conjunction
with other data elements, i.e., indirect identification.

"Parking Analysis" means ongoing computational or algorithmic analyses performed by the City
of Berkeley on ALPR Read Metadata regarding the occupancy of total parking spaces across
commercial districts as part of goBerkeley, the City's data-driven, demand-responsive parking
management program. ALPR Read Metadata data associated with Parking Analysis may include
non-randomized license plates, to be maintained by Public Works for Parking Analysis.

"Parking Permit Application” means an application submitted to the City for RPP or other permit
that may include but is not limited to PIl such as names, address, photo identification, vehicle
registration (license plate and vehicle identification number), phone number and email address.

"Passport Automatic Data Collection System" means the server and database whereby the
Passport Parking Management System vendor, on behalf of the City, downloads, stores and
transfers Parking Analysis ALPR Read Metadata stripped of any and all Pll before being
transferred to the goBerkeley program.

"Passport Parking Management System" means the servers and databases maintained by
Passport Labs Incorporated, containing the database of the license plate numbers and other
Pll associated with Parking Permit Applications and Residential Parking Permits, and including
historic parking citation data, to include Enforced Hits.

"OPSMan Mobile" means a mobile device providing handheld ticket issuance and ALPR data
reference capabilities.

"Stolen Vehicle System" or "SVS" means information from the California Law Enforcement
Telecommunications System's (CLETS) Department of Justice (DOJ) Stolen Vehicle System
(SVS) database providing data regarding wanted and stolen vehicles.

1302.3 AUTHORIZED AND PROHIBITED USES
Use of an ALPR is restricted to the purposes outlined below.

Page 337



(a)

PRggel 6962999
All data and images gathered by the ALPR are for the-official use efby the Berkeley Police

Department (BPD) for Parking Enforcement Operations and may be retroactively queried in limited

circumstances only as specified by this department-Because-such-data-may-centainpolicy and/or
federal, state, local law.

ALPR data may be used by the Finance, Information Technology (IT), Customer Service, and
Public Works Departments only as specified in this policy, and consistent with Parking
Enforcement Operations and Parking Analysis. Data that is considered confidential infermation;-
#pursuant to case law, state statutes, and BPD Policy 804 Records Release Management and/or
applicable federal, state, or local law is not open to public review.{Ref—poliey-422.-2}
Berkeley Police

13022 AJTFHORIZED-ANBPROHBHEDB USES USE

# Department members_or other
Degartment s shall not use, or allow others to use the equipment or database records for any
unauthorized purpose-{Civ 18- 8.9

and will enforce this policy pursuant to Sectlon 1302 11(2).

(@) An ALPR shall only be Deployed and used for efficiaHaw-enfercement-
businessParking Enforcement Operations, and Parking Analysis.

(b) ALPR data obtained from Parking Enforcement Operations and retained pursuant to
this use policy, including data and metadata associated with ALPR Reads and Hits,
may be gueried and used to support a specific BPD criminal investigation when an
officer has a good faith belief that an emergency involving the danger of, or imminent
threat of death or serious physical injury to any person requires such a query or use,
and the officer reasonably believes there is a nexus between a vehicle and the alleged
crime scene. Approval to query or use the data must be granted by the Chief of Police
and City Manager. The City Manager shall log any queries or use of such information
pursuant to this subsection in its Annual Surveillance Technology Report pursuant to
BMC 2.99.

() Notwithstanding subsection (b), officers may investigate hits based on reasonable
suspicion resulting from apparent matches, discovered in the reqular course of work of
Parking Enforcement Operations, between the Genetec ALPR System and the
following databases: Stolen Vehicles System, Amber, Silver, and Blue Alerts, local
missing persons, scoff law violator, gig car, general permit, or other non-criminal local
lists.

(d) Data obtained from Parking Analysis shall not be queried or used for criminal
investigations.

(e) The following uses of the Genetec ALPR System are specifically prohibited:

1. Invasion of Privacy

It is a violation of this Policy to utilize the Genetec ALPR System to capture license plates not on a

public road or street, or in a place not accessible to the public.

2. Crowd Control

(a) ALPRs shall not be deployed in crowd control operations except strictly for
the purposes of Parking Enforcement Operations.

3. Criminal Enforcement

(a) ltis a violation of this Policy to use or Deploy ALPRs to scan or canvass
license plates in connection with any crime scene, patrol operation, or
investigation except pursuant to Section 1302.3(c) of this Policy.

4, Use of Lists and Databases

(@) Itis a violation of this Policy to use the Genetec ALPR System or Page 338




PRggU®b 562999
associated ALPR Read data in conjunction with any list or database other
than those specified pursuant to Section 1302.3(c) of this Policy, or for any

personal use.

Department-—Such-datamay_DATA COLLECTION AND RETENTION
The Investigations Division Captain, or their designee, is responsible for ensuring proper collection
a